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Disclaimer

This document cortains foiward-looking statements, specifically in the sections entitled "Significant events
after the reporting period"! and "Business outlook”, that relate to future events and the operating, economic
and financial resuits of'the Prysmian Group. By their nature, forward-looking statements involve risk and
uncertainty pecause they depend on the occurrence of future events and circumstances. Actual results may
differ materially from those reflected in forward-looking statements due to multiple factors.



LETTER TO STAKEHOLDERS

The year 2018 has been an important one for Prysmian Group, with the acquisition of General Cable-and-the
rapid start to its integration. This union has secured the Group's global leadership in the energy and-telecom
cables and systems industry, with the ultimate strength in its ability to create innovation and-develop new
solutions that generate value for our customers. The introduction of the new integrated- organisation has
been completed in record time, giving birth to a new Group present in over 50 countries, with 112 plants, 25
R&D centres and approximately 29,000 employees, a multicultural and diversified humar universe which |

regard as the Group's most important asset.

Business performance

The 2018 results have confirmed a generally positive performance by ail ‘aur businesses, expressed in an
organic growth in sales of 3.3%, including a good contribution by the former-General Cable organisation.
Organic sales growth was particularly supported by the solid performarice of Telecom and High Voltage
Underground, also translating into a positive contribution at the profitabiiity-level, thereby offsetting, at least
in part, the impact of provisions for the issues concerning the Western Link project. Prysmian Group is
showing itself capable of tackling these issues by deploying- every necessary resource to support the
customer.

The integration with General Cable has generated higher-than-expected synergies in 2018, leading us to
revise up the original target by Euro 25 million, to Euro 175 miilion, and bring forward its achievement by one
year, to 2021. Net financial debt has also improved, reporting a level of Euro 2,222 million to 31 December
2018. This scenario has allowed us to provide investors-and the market with the following guidance for 2019:
additional improvement in profitability, with Adjusted EBITDA in the target range of Euro 950 million - Euro
1,020 million, and free cash flow projected-ai-approximately Euro 300 million, after about Euro 90 million in

restructuri ng costs.

Industrial investments

During 2018, the Group continued- ic-invest in all three areas of its business, Energy, Telecom and Projects,
with a particular focus on submarine cables, optical fibre and telecommunication cables, further securing its
leading position in high-tech activities generating higher value added. Gross investments amounted to Euro
285 million in 2018, mamntaining-the growth rate of around 10% every year. Of particular note is the
investment in a new cable-laying vessel, which will allow the Group to consolidate and strengthen its
leadership of the submarine” cables and systems market where installation assets and capabilities are
becoming more and more strategic drivers of competitive advantage. Other important investments in 2018
included those to upgrade the production capabilities of Prysmian Technology Jiangsu in China, allowing the
Group to offer a complete range of High Voltage cables, and to increase production capacity and improve
efficiency at-optical fibre and cable plants around the world, particularly in the USA, France and Italy. Also

deserving mention is the Industry 4.0 pilot project launched at Calais in France.



Research & Development

The merger of General Cable into Prysmian Group has also strengthened our ability to lead the crucial field
of R&D, particularly focused on innovations ever more responsive to customer needs. During 2018 Prysmian
Group invested a total of some Euro 105 million in Research, Development and Innovation. This ‘cemimitimert
is supported by over 900 professionals in 25 R&D centres worldwide, of which 8 from the former General
Cable, and a combined portfolio of over 5,600 patents. Amongst the legacy General Cable R&D-cenires are
two strategic ones: the Indianapolis Technology Centre, a centre of excellence for materials innovation, and
the Marshall Technology Centre, a world class electrical testing lab. The heart of the systeri-is located in the
Milan centre adjoining our Headquarters. Important projects have been taken forward in 2018, including the
Design to Cost program focused on using the best materials, technologies and cable design and over 100
product development projects: in particular, synthetically armoured submarine cahies for extra deep subsea
installation, completion of qualifications for extra high voltage 600 kV direct current cables with P-Laser and
XLPE insulation, for ultra-compact FlexRibbon™ optical cables able to pack up to 6,912 fibres, for advanced
conductors for E3X heat-dissipating overhead lines and for the new generation Piy-Cam Grids offering faster,
simpler, more accurate and reliable measurements.

In 2018, Prysmian Group launched the Corporate Hangar project with the purpose of accelerating its ability
to create innovation, while maintaining its efficiency and ability-to meet.customer needs. During 2018, R&D
activities continued to benefit from the European Investment Bank-funding of Euro 110 million covering 50%
of Prysmian's industrial research, innovation, experimentatich and new product development over the period

2017-20 in six European countries: Italy, France, Great Britain, Netherlands Spain and Germany.

Integration with General Cable

The acquisition of General Cable has confirmad. the Greup's vocation for acquisition-led growth acting in the
role of aggregator in a fragmented global cahle industry. The start of the integration in record time has
allowed the new organisational structure to e -completed in just 6 months. The union with General Cable
represents a milestone in Prysmian's history, aleng with the integration of Draka in 2011, and follows on from
a series of other important transacticns,-inclading the recent acquisitions of Shen Huan Cable's assets in
China and Corning's copper data cahies-ibusiness in Germany and, less recently, the acquisitions of Gulf
Coast Downhole Technologies in the-USA and Oman Cables Industry. The new organisation is already
solidly structured with an enlarged leadership team ready to guide the Group at every level: corporate,
regional, business and furictional. /The integrated Group will also benefit from a much wider geographical
footprint: General Cabie has always been particularly strong in the Americas and thanks to the merger, it has

now doubled its presence in the region.

Human capital development

Prysmian has-continued to invest in 2018 in developing its human capital to ensure that everyone has
personal and professional development goals that reflect long-term expectations and create the conditions to
make our glotai business grow. More than 7,500 people are completing training, including leadership
development courses at the Prysmian Group Academy, with its two centres of excellence, namely the

Manufacturing Academy and R&D Academy. "Build The Future", receiving 38,000 applications in 2018, is
4



Prysmian's graduate program through which 300 candidates have been recruited between 2012 and 2018.
With the "Make It" and "Sell It" recruitment programs we are giving professionals with 3-7 years of
experience in manufacturing the opportunity to reach levels of excellence. We have also pursued- our
commitment to promote diversity and inclusion at every level of the organisation with the "Side by Side"
initiative, while, together with General Cable, we have launched activities to foster diverse cultures,
backgrounds and experiences.

YES, Prysmian's employee share ownership scheme, has reached a landmark of $;200 participants,
equating to 53% of those eligible. There has been no lack of recognition for Prysmian's-commitment to
human capital development, like the Malaysia Best Employer Brand Award or its_selection as one of the

three finalists in the "Best Employer Brand" category of the Italian LinkedIn Talernt’/Awards.

Sustainability as a value for growth

The Group has made significant progress in recent years in focusing the obkiectives and related action plans
to improve its sustainability performance. Such objectives and action plans.iiave also been extended to the
new organisation resulting from the integration of General Cable. Speciiic attention has been given to issues
of particular relevance to our stakeholders, such as energy efficiency and reduction of environmental impact,
development of our people as well as respect for the communities where we are present and, last but not
least, policies and codes for an ethical, transparent and fair.conduct of our business. In 2018, Prysmian
Group placed well in the main international indices, inciuding-the Dow Jones Sustainability Index and the
Carbon Disclosure Project. R&D projects achieving significani results in terms of sustainability have included
the research into deep water submarine cables, for installation up to 3,000 metres below sea level, the
development of "leadless" technology, eliminating-the use of metal in power cables, and the development of
P-Laser technology, now also applied to high/vaoltage cables to make them fully recyclable and sustainable
while also increasing their power transmission capacity. In the Telecom business, Prysmian has developed
FlexRibbon™, a record-breaking cable that packs up to 6,912 optical fibres, thus helping reduce the impact
of civil engineering work when constrocting, telecom networks. Prysmian Group's commitment to
sustainability has also been recognised with the award to its new Milan headquarters of LEED Platinum
International Certification, the global benchmark standard for rating environmentally friendly buildings. In
addition, the Slatina plant in, Remania, the largest optical cable factory in Europe, has received special

recognition from the Joint Audit Coaperation for its high standards of sustainability.

Value creation for our/'shareholders
In light of the results achieved in a testing year like 2018, we are able to propose our shareholders a

dividend of Euro 0.43 per share, confirming our commitment to providing them with an appropriate return.

VALERIO BATTISTA
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

PRYSMIAN GROUP
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INTRODUCTION

In compliance with the provisions-of art. 5, par. 3 (b) of Italian Legislative Decree 254/2016, the Group has
prepared its Consolidated Non-Financial Statement in a separate document (Sustainability Report 2018).
This document, coverirng environmental, social and personnel-related issues, respect for human rights, and
the fight against active -and passive corruption, aims to provide its users with an understanding of the
Group's business; its performance, results and impact. The Consolidated Non-Financial Statement 2018 has
been prepared according to the GRI Sustainability Reporting Standards (published by the GRI - Global
Reporting lnitiaiive — in 2016) and was approved by the Board of Directors on 5 March 2019. As required by
the abovelaw, the cdocument is subjected to a limited review by the independent auditors, in accordance with
the International- Standard on Assurance Engagement (ISAE 3000 Revised). The document is available on

the Group's website at www.prysmiangroup.com.
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

MAIN FINANCIAL AND OPERATING DATA (*)

(in millions of Euro)

PRYSMIAN GROUP | DIRECTORS' REPORT

2018 (*) = 2017 (***) % % | 2016 (***)
Prysmian | General Adjustments Total | Prysmian %hoinsgoé P:,Qﬁﬂgﬁ Prysmlan """
Cable —\

Sales 8,061 2,155 (58) | 10,158 7,904 28.5% 2.0% 7,576
Adjusted EBITDA  before
share of net profit/(loss) of 581 123 - 704 694 689
equity-accounted companies
Adjusted EBITDA @ 640 123 - 763 736 | 720
EBITDA @ 532 64 - 596 660 654
Adjusted operating income @ 460 76 - 536 559 547
Operating income 309 1 - 310 ----424 456
Profit/(loss) before taxes 207 9) - 198 325 ..... 377
Net profit/(loss) for the year 143 (23) - 130 237 268

(in millions of Euro)

31 December = 31 December Change 31 December
2018 2017 ) Conso. 2016 )
Net capital employed 2,430 2,701 2,558
Employee benefit obligations 355 108 383
Equity 1,639 807 1,638
of which attributable to non-controlling interests 188 - 227
Net financial debt 436 1,786 537
(AN MIONS OF BUNO) e
2018 (**) © 2017 (***) % % : 2016 (***)
Prysmian | General Total | Prysmian (E:hoe:]nsgoe? Pr;t;;nigﬁ -~ Prysmian
Cable
Capital expenditures @ 19 285 257 10.9% 3.5% 233
asc;fet:/hlch for acquisition of Shen Huan 35 1
Employees (at year-end) 7,754 29,159 21,050 38.5% 1.7% 20,493
camingslloss par share NN
NN - T T
R AN oo T 5
Patents (== 5,627 4,871 4,651
Number of plants 112 82 82

@

recurring items and other nan-cperating income and expense.

@

Adjusted EBITDA is defined as EBITDA before income and expense associated with company reorganisation and before non-

EBITDA is defined-as-earnings/(loss) for the year, before the fair value change in metal derivatives and in other fair value items,

amortisation, depreciation and impairment, finance costs and income, dividends from other companies and taxes.

©)

Adjusted operzting income is defined as operating income before income and expense associated with company reorganisation,

before non-recuiring iteris and other non-operating income and expense, and before the fair value change in metal derivatives and

in other fair value. iteinis.
(4)
*)
(**)

Capital expenditure refers to additions to Property, plant and equipment and Intangible assets, gross of leased assets.
All percentages contained in this report have been calculated with reference to amounts expressed in thousands of Euro.
The results-oi General Cable have been consolidated for the period 1 June - 31 December 2018.

(***) The previously-published comparative figures for 2017 and 2016 have been restated following the introduction of IFRS 9 and IFRS
15. Further details can be found in Section C. Restatement of comparative figures, within the Explanatory Notes to the

Consolidated Financial Statements.

(****)These are the total number of patents, comprising patents granted plus patent applications pending worldwide.
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The following figures include General Cable for the period 1 June - 31 December 2018

(*) Europe - Middle East - Africa.
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©)

4)
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Organic growth is defined as growth in sales calculated net.of changes irithe scope of consolidation, changes in commodity prices
and exchange rate effects. The previously published cemparative figures for 2017 and 2016 have been restated following the
introduction of IFRS 9 and IFRS 15. Further details can e found in Section C. Restatement of comparative figures, within the
Explanatory Notes to the Consolidated Financial State:nents:

Adjusted EBITDA is defined as EBITDA before income and exnense associated with company reorganisation and before non-
recurring items and other non-operating income and expense. The previously published comparative figures for 2017 and 2016
have been restated following the introduction of IFRS 9 and\FRS 15. Further details can be found in Section C. Restatement of
comparative figures, within the Explanatory Notes.tc.the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Adjusted operating income is defined as operating inceme before income and expense associated with company reorganisation,
before non-recurring items and other non-operating income and expense, and before the fair value change in metal derivatives and
in other fair value items. The previously jpublished comparative figures for 2017 and 2016 have been restated following the
introduction of IFRS 9 and IFRS 15. Further datails' zan be found in Section C. Restatement of comparative figures, within the
Explanatory Notes to the Consolidated inanciai-Statements.

Net Operating Working Capital is defined.as-Net Working Capital excluding the effect of derivatives. The percentage is calculated
as Net Working Capital/Annualisect-last-quarter sales. The previously published comparative figures for 2017 and 2016 have been
restated following the introduction ef i=RS S and IFRS 15. Further details can be found in Section C. Restatement of comparative
figures, within the Explanatory Notes to-thie Consolidated Financial Statements.
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PRYSMIAN GROUP

VISION, MISSION, VALUES
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Prysmian Group

World leader in the energy and telecom cable systems industry

With 140 years of experience, Prysmian Group's story traces the history of the entire cable industiry. Maore
than a year after first announcing the merger agreement with General Cable, the new and stronger. Prysmian
Group continues to retain its leadership of the global cable industry, with sales in excess of Eurc-1G billion in
2018, approximately 29,000 employees in over 50 countries and 112 plants. The Group-oifers the widest
possible range of products, services, technologies and know-how for every type cf-industrial application
thanks to a diffused commercial presence, 25 R&D centres in EMEA, North and South America and APAC
and more than 900 qualified R&D professionals.

The integration of General Cable into Prysmian Group is a milestone in the Group's history and a strategic
and unique opportunity to create value for its shareholders. Thanks to this urion, the new Group will be even
better equipped to face and overcome the challenges of the global economic and political environment,
along with those of growing competition in the cable and systems industry,

In addition, Prysmian Group continues to establish close and lasting relationships with its customers in all the
markets served, helping it to fully understand their needs, to provide fast, efficient service and satisfy every
type of request.

Prysmian is a true public company, listed on the Italian Stock Exchange in the FTSE MIB index.

The Group's structure is organised around three business areas {Projects, Energy and Telecom).

In fact, the Group operates in the business of underground and submarine cables and systems for power
transmission and distribution, of specialty cables for, applications in many different industries and of medium
and low voltage cables mostly for the construction-and infrastructure sectors.

The Group produces voice, video and data transmission. cables and accessories for the telecommunications
industry, offering a comprehensive range of opiical fibres, optical and copper cables and connectivity

systems.

Prysmian Group's work in the renewable energy transmission and distribution sector see it involved in the
development and operation of some of thie largest solar and wind farms in the world. The new projects
awarded to Prysmian in 2018 for ihe-carstruction of inter-array submarine cable systems have additionally
confirmed the competitiveness of the Group's offering in this business. Among the contracts secured in 2018
was the Group's first cable-project/ for a floating offshore wind farm, involving inter-array and export cables
for the Kincardine wind farm, located southeast of Aberdeen in Scotland. In addition, the Group won
contracts to supply submarine cables for the Hornsea 2 project in the UK, the world's largest offshore wind
farm (66kV), and'to construct an inter-array submarine cable system between the turbines of the Borssele I
and IV wind farms in the' North Sea (731.5 MW). Prysmian has also successfully implemented the inter-array
cable systen for the Wikinger wind farm, located in the West of Adlergrund cluster in the German Baltic Sea.
In 2018, the Group won three other turnkey contracts to supply and install inter-array submarine cable
systems in France for the offshore wind farms of Fécamp, Courseulles-sur-Mer and Saint Nazaire. NSW, a

General Cable company recently acquired by Prysmian Group, has been awarded a contract by Northwester

13
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NV for the construction of an inter-array submarine cable system to connect the Northwester 2 offshore wind
farm, located in the North Sea.

In Argentina, Prysmian Group will supply 3,600 km of cables and a PRY-CAM monitoring system for-a-new
solar farm in Cauchari located 4,100 metres above sea level in one of the world's most concentratea areas of
solar radiation. The 315 MW photovoltaic plant will provide the Argentine grid with an annual average of
660,887 MWh for 20 years.

Still in the area of power transmission, Prymian Group executes major interconnection yrojects, both on land
and subsea, for utilities and grid operators, like the contract awarded in 2018 by the Independent Power
Transmission Operator, the Greek electricity grid operator, for two interconnections hetween the Cyclades
islands of Evia, Andros and Tinos and the Greek mainland. Prysmian has also been awarded a new project
for the first submarine electricity interconnection between Crete and the mainiand, involving the design,
supply, installation and commissioning of an HVAC cable system._ In_addition, Prysmian has been
commissioned by Terna Rete Italia S.p.A. to supply a cable to connect the/isle-of Capri and town of Sorrento,
along a route running 16 km subsea and 3 km onshore.

In 2018, Prysmian secured an important contract from the utility SP-Power Assets Ltd for the design, supply,
installation and commissioning of two high voltage power transmission systems to connect the Rangoon and
Paya Lebar substations in Singapore. Prysmian Group has aiso strengthened its solid partnership with Terna,
the Italian transmission system operator, through a framswork. agreement for the supply, installation and
emergency repair of 220 kV cables to upgrade the national power grid. Still in 2018, Caldwell Marine
International LLC, a US company, engaged Prysmian to develop a power interconnection between Deer
Island and the Boston power grid, involving a totai-of 6 km of submarine cable and 8 km of underground
cable.

In Asia, the National Grid Corporation of the Philinnines (NGCP) has selected Prysmian Group for the design,
supply, installation and commissioning of twa submarine power cables between the islands of Cebu and
Negros, along a 30 km subsea route.

When constructing subsea power transmissicr’infrastructure for both interconnection purposes and offshore
wind farms, Prysmian has the benefit oi-an unrivalled fleet of cable-laying vessels, consisting of the Giulio
Verne, Cable Enterprise and Ulisse and providing it with an installation capability able to meet the toughest
challenges. The Group continues. ia invest in this sector and the current fleet will soon be joined by a fourth
vessel, further enhancing its project execution capabilities.

In the area of onshore /infrastructure, the Group has been involved in the construction of electricity grids in
some of the world's largest metropolises, from New York to Buenos Aires, London to St. Petersburg, and
Hong Kong to Svdriey.

The Group also 'supports the petrochemicals industry with solutions for use in both upstream exploration and
production activities, and downstream hydrocarbon processing and storage. More specifically, it has recently
signed an agreemzant with JG Summit Petrochemicals Group (JGSPG) in the Philippines for the supply of
approximately 820 km of low and medium voltage power cables, instrumentation and control cables and

telecom cables for application in the petroleum and petrochemicals industry.

14
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Some of the world's most spectacular, state-of-the-art constructions, like the new Louvre Abu Dhabi, the
Wimbledon tennis stadium, the futuristic Marina Bay Sands in Singapore and the Shard skyscraper in
London, the tallest in Western Europe, are made safe by Prysmian Group's fire-resistant cables. Ir-Milan,
Prysmian Group cable solutions have contributed to enhancing the safety of Isozaki Tower, the skyscraper
designed by the renowned eponymous Japanese architect in the futuristic City Life district.

As for the elevator business, the Group's elevator cables are present in some of the world's tailest or most
prestigious buildings, like the new World Trade Center in New York City. By cabling the BurjKhalifa in Dubai,
the world's tallest building at 828 metres high, Prysmian has guaranteed the safety of every-one of its 163
floors with elevator cables and fire-resistant cables the length of which is more than 1,300 times the tower's
height.

Prysmian can also boast some exceptional achievements in the world of transport. In fact, the Group has
supplied cables for all Airbus aircraft, including the recent A320 and the super-technological A350, for the
world's largest cruise ships, like the MSC Seaside and MSC Seaview sister-ships built by Fincantieri, for the
fastest trains and for the most innovative metro systems, like the one inaugurated’in Shanghai.

With a wide range of telecom cables and fibre solutions for voice; video and data, and also thanks to
continuous investment in R&D, Prysmian Group contributes/to-the development of infrastructure that
supports information flows and communication essential for the economic and social growth of communities
around the world.

Among the more important projects won, the Group has secured. a major contract from the US telco Verizon
Communications, which it has assisted since 2017 iri-the "Onefiber" digital transformation process, for the

supply of optical fibre products to develop and acceigrate 5G services and improve 4G broadband capacity.

Business areas

The Projects business area encompasses the iigh-tech and high value-added businesses focused not only
on the entire project and its executiori,/but also-on the customisation of products and systems. The cables
and systems produced in the Projecis segmerit for the energy sector are mainly high or extra high voltage

ones, for both underground and submarine installation.

» Prysmian designs, manufactures and installs high and extra high voltage cables for underground and
submarine power transmission directly from power stations to primary distribution networks. Through
Prysmian PowerLink $.1.l., the . Group develops pioneering "turnkey" submarine cable systems for installation
at depths of up to 2,000 metres, assisted by its cable-laying fleet comprising the Giulio Verne, one of the
largest and most higii-tech such vessels in the world, the Cable Enterprise and the Ulisse. Prysmian also
offers state-of-the-art solutions, ranging from project management to cable installation, for submarine cables
between offshare wind farms and the mainland, used for both generation and distribution. The Group's
technological solutjgns for this business cover inter-array and export cables.

The Energy business area encompasses the businesses offering a complete and innovative product portfolio
designed to meet the many diverse demands of the market: Energy & Infrastructure, Qil&Gas, Electronics,

Elevators, Automotive, Network Components, Industrial Specialties, serving in turn the sectors of Crane,
15
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Mining, Railways, Rolling Stock, Nuclear and Renewables (cables for applications in the solar energy

industry and for the operation of wind turbines).

« In the field of power transmission and distribution, the Group manufactures medium voltage cahie systems
to connect industrial and residential buildings to primary distribution grids and low voltage ones. for-nower
distribution and the wiring of buildings. Prysmian solutions are designed to support utilities aria.grid cperators,
industrial concerns, installers and wholesalers in the electric power industry. In particular, its praducts for the
Trade & Installers market include cable systems for distributors and installers used ‘g wire buildings and
distribute power to or within commercial and residential structures. Fire-resistant and iow smoke halogen-

free cables complete one of the widest and most comprehensive product ranges’in the waorig,

» The Group's offer of integrated solutions for the Industrial market constitutes the most comprehensive and
technologically advanced response to the needs of a wide variety -of industries. Prysmian's Industrial
Specialties business offers cable systems for many specific industrial applications such as trains, aircraft,
ships, port cranes, tunnel and mining excavation systems, nuclear-pcwer stations, military vehicles and
renewable energy. The Group also offers specific, technologically -advanced solutions for the elevator and
automotive industries. The product range is completed with accessories and components for connecting

cables and other elements contained in networks.

Completing the offer of the Energy business is the Electronics product range for diagnostics and monitoring
of electrical systems for voltages from 3 kV to 690 kV, using the Group's innovative and revolutionary

proprietary PRY-CAM technology.

The Telecom business area encompasses the. businesses devoted to making cable systems and
connectivity products used in telecomrnunication networks. The product portfolio includes optical fibre,

optical cables, connectivity components and/accessories, OPGW (Optical Ground Wire) and copper cables.

With centres of excellence in Battipagla (Italy), Claremont (USA), Douvrin (France), Eindhoven (the
Netherlands) and Sorocaba (Brazii),-Erysmian Group is one of the leading manufacturers of the core
component of every type of opticai cable: optical fibre. A wide range of optical fibres is designed and made to
cater to the broadest possible spectrum of customer applications, including single-mode, multimode and
specialty fibres. The Group has proprietary technology for the manufacture of optical fibre, allowing it to
achieve optimal solutians for the different applications.

Optical fibres are’ employed in the production of a wide range of standard optical cables or those specifically
designed for challenging or inaccessible environments, from underground ducts to overhead electricity lines,
from road arnd-rail tuiniiels to gas and sewerage networks.

Prysmian’ Group also supplies passive connectivity solutions that ensure efficient management of optical
fibre within networks.

Growing demand for higher bandwidth has seen the deployment of optical fibre moving closer to the end

user. The Group is extremely active in this rapidly growing sector of the market, known as FTTx, where its
16
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approach is based on combining existing technologies with innovative, new solutions allowing fibres to be
deployed in high-rise buildings and multi-dwelling units. Many of the cables used in FTTx systems feature
Prysmian's bend-insensitive BendBrightxs optical fibre, which has been specially developed far- this
application.

Prysmian Group also produces a wide range of copper cables for underground and overhead cahling
solutions and for residential as well as commercial buildings. The product portfolio comprises cables of
different capacity, including broadband xDSL cables and those designed for high transmission, low
interference and electromagnetic compatibility. Prysmian has also designed FlexRitbon™ . -a new line of
telecom products capable of packing up to 6912 optical fibres to offer superior perforiviance to the data

centres of major corporations around the world.

The Group also produces cable solutions serving communication needs’ in inirasiructure, industry and
transport, for a diverse range of applications: cables for television and film-studics, cables for rail networks
such as underground cables for long-distance telecommunications, light-signailing cables and cables for
track switching devices, as well as cables for mobile communication/ antennae and for communication

networks.
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GLOBAL PRESENCE!

! The above geographical representation includes plants belonging to companies not consolidated line-by-line.
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DEVELOPMENT OBJECTIVES AND STRATEGIES

A GROWTH STRATEGY FOUNDED ON RESPONSIBILITY
Prysmian has further strengthened its global leadership in energy and telecom cables with the integration of
General Cable, thereby assuming even more responsibility as a "technology enabler" of the economic.and

social development of the communities in which it operates.

The Group's medium-term growth strategy is based on the concept of responsibility towards-all stakeholders
and in general towards the communities in which it operates throughout the world. Such responsibility is
based on the shared principles of the corporate Mission and Vision and on a system of VValues redefined for
the meeting of cultures of two leaders that have decided to join forces: Prysmiari-Gfoup and General Cable.
Our commitment to develop and apply state-of-the-art technological solutiors is even stronger, with the goal
of offering customers worldwide ever more effective, efficient and sustainabie solutions for transmitting and
distributing energy and communications the world over. This means acting; in-parinership with our customers,
as a "technology enabler" of the economic and social development of the/countries in which we operate. The
ability to produce constant innovations and to steer the entire’ gicbal caisle industry towards increasingly
ambitious goals for technological progress is an integral pait-of Prysmian's approach to the market. The
Group identifies itself in a strategy based on the concept of responsiisility, geared towards constantly creating

sustainable value for all stakeholders, and whose guidelines-are mainly inspired by:

» Customer Centricity, and ability to satisfy always, and possibly anticipate, customer needs with innovative
products and solutions inspired by a solution-driven-approach. Based on this approach, Prysmian Group has
long adopted information sharing tools and business KPRis - using Customer Relationship Management and
Customer Portal software - which improve processes-internally and consequently the know-how and services
offered to our customers;

e Creating Value for Shareholders; meaning responsibility for offering a return on investment and

sustainable earnings especially in the-mediuni and long term.

Prysmian Group's success story is huilt-an the relationship with the market and how it governs its business:

Ability to always satisfy the customer is one of the cornerstones of Prysmian's success. Thanks to the
innovative technologies and._solutions developed by the R&D centres, with a global leadership further
strengthened by the ‘integration of General Cable, Prysmian is able to develop products and systems
capable of anticipating and satisfying its customers' needs. Customer Centricity, continuous development of
human capital and atterition to environmental sustainability also underpin the responsible growth strategy

that Prysmian-adepis-iil its business and for the benefit of its customers.

Balanced and-sustainable growth consists of the ability to combine short-term and medium to long-term
objectives, measurable not only in terms of financial performance in response to shareholder expectations

regarding capital return, but also in terms of responsible growth that creates sustainable value over time. An
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objective that Prysmian achieves thanks to a system of governance and a business model that allow long-

term sustainability of financial results, for lasting creation of value over time.

"Sound" management and financial discipline allow the Group to deploy criteria for achieving kighileveis
of operating profitability and cash generation, combining special attention to working capital rnanagement
with the ability to reduce fixed costs and capital employed in order to maximise cash flow geieration and
return on investment. The Group also imposes on itself the necessary discipline to maintain adequate

financial leverage for a strategy of organic and acquisition-led growth.

Transparency, corporate governance and market and investor confidence are the advantages the
Group offers its investor base, also thanks to its public company status. The Group‘pays particular attention
to its relations with financial markets, shareholders and investors, to ensure timeiy, reliable maintenance and
delivery of its commitments in terms of target results. Transparency and crediility are expressed in a system
of corporate governance based on strict interpretation and application of rules arid the adoption of principles

and choices drawn from international best practices.

Expansion and growth. The Group's development strategy follows the dual track of growth in size and
continuous improvement in profitability. The Group's record of growth reflects not only constant organic
growth of the business, based on a selective investment palicy and development of commercial and
production synergies, but also acquisition-led growth, in which the recent acquisition and integration of
General Cable represents a milestone. Growth opportunities are primarily sought among higher value-added
tech-driven businesses, while in terms of geographical expansion the Group's main focus of investment is in
countries and markets able to ensure high rates.of growth and profitability, like, in the case of General Cable,

the great North American market.

More efficient and innovative industrial and commercial processes have always been Prysmian's recipe
for consolidating and optimising itsdndustrial piocesses. Since 2017 the Group has taken an important step
in this direction with Factory 4.0 anad the implementation of the "Fast Track" pilot project, launched in the
Calais optical cable plant (France) and being implemented in other sites (Romania and then Finland) in
2019-2020, with the goal of making factories smarter, using state-of-the-art technologies and leveraging the
interaction between digital skills and’human expertise. The "Fast Track" approach ensures full traceability of
manufacturing activities" and materials, while managing events that could jeopardise production processes
and providing in real-time all the information needed to identify problems at source and possible solutions.
The objective is tccreaie a digital ecosystem to make production processes more efficient and improve the

quality of work for employees.

21



PRYSMIAN GROUP | DIRECTORS' REPORT

APPROACH TO THE MARKET

Prysmian Group has perfected an approach to the market over the years based on the ability to analyse,
satisfy and possibly anticipate customer expectations in a "dynamic" fashion, i.e., by following the evaiution
in their needs over time. The key to this approach and the heart of this ability are encapsulatedaiinthe
concept of "Customer Centricity". An approach that requires constant attention to every stage of the value
chain, from design to delivery, and the ability to measure performance accurately at every such staue, Above
all, the Group is perfectly capable of serving and satisfying very different segments of demand and market
thanks to a matrix organisational structure: from very specific local markets, through-business and
organisational structures at a country level, to markets comprising global products and businesses, which

require both local presence and cooperation between different countries.

With the goal of customer satisfaction a constant, Prysmian presents itself and acts as a reference partner,

also by using tools such as specific surveys and one-to-one interviews te fuily understand customer needs.

One of the ways that allow Prysmian to implement its customer ceniricity strategy successfully is the process
known as "Factory Reliability”, which makes it possible not only to improve the reliability of planning and
the execution of manufacturing output, in terms of both mix and volumes in ever faster response times, but
also to have stricter control over inventory levels for every type of stock, from raw materials to intermediate
and finished goods.

All this successfully enables the Group to deal effectiveiy-and efficiently even with upswings and downswings

in sales volumes and the consequent variation in manufacturing output.

APPROACH TO SUSTAINABILITY

Once again in 2018 Prysmian Group devoted every energy to making its strategic proposition of sustainable
and responsible growth a reality, by muiiiplying.its efforts to develop the most advanced technologies in a
continuous drive for process and product irinovation. Prysmian Group's attention is constantly focused on
solutions that improve efficiency, protect people's health and safety, and create constructive relationships
with local communities in which it operates, all while limiting its impact on the environment. Prysmian's
strategy of sustainable development is-aligned with the Sustainable Development Goals (SDGs) established
by the United Nations and with measuirable sustainability targets. The Group's commitment to sustainability
and responsible, eco-friend!ly-growth was acknowledged once again in 2018 with its receipt of awards from

prestigious internationai organisations.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Effective and efficient, in order to create long-term sustainable value and produce a virtuous circie with

business integrity at its centre.

Prysmian is aware of the importance of a good corporate governance system in order to achieve strategic
objectives and create long-term sustainable value, by having a system that is effective in compiving with the
legal and regulatory framework, efficient in terms of cost-effectiveness, and fair towards-all the Group's
stakeholders.

Accordingly, Prysmian Group keeps its corporate governance system constantiyin/line with latest
recommendations and regulations, adhering to national and international best practices.

In addition, the Group has adopted principles, rules and procedures that/govern and guide the conduct of
activities by all its organisational and operating units, as well as ensuring that all’business transactions are

carried out in an effective and transparent manner.

Once again in 2018, Prysmian undertook several initiatives (¢ implement the recommendations of the

Corporate Governance Code?, to which it has adhered.

Corporate Governance Structure. Prysmian's corporate gavernance structure is based on the central role
of the Board of Directors (as the most senior body responsible for managing the company in the interests of
shareholders) in providing strategic guidance, in ensuring the transparency of the decision-making process
and in establishing an effective system of interna! control and risk management, including decision-making
processes for both internal and external matters. The model of governance and control adopted by Prysmian
is the traditional one, with the presence of a general'meeting of the shareholders, a Board of Directors and a

Board of Statutory Auditors.

An overview of the Company's corporate governance structure now follows, along with a description of its
main features.

! "Corporate Governance Code for Listed Companies - Ed. July 2018" - approved by the Corporate Governance Committee and

promoted by Borsa Italiana S.p.A., ABI, Ania, Assogestioni, Assonime and Confindustria.
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In compliance with the provisions of art. 14 of the By-laws, the Company is currently managed by a Board of
Directors consisting of twelve members - who will remain in office until the date of the annual general
meeting that approves the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2020 - of whom eight are
non-executive.

Seven of the directors are men and five women, while one director is in the 31-50 age group and eleven in
the over-50 category.

The Board of Directors is vested with the broadest possible powers of ordinary and-extraordinary
management of the business, except those which by law are the exclusive prerogative cf thie-shareholders in
general meeting. In line with the recommendations of the Corporate Governance Code, the non-executive
directors are sufficiently numerous and have enough authority to ensure that their iiidgement carries
significant weight in Board decision-making. Seven of the non-executive directors-are independent within the
meaning of art. 148, par. 3 of Legislative Decree 58 dated 24 February 1998 (knawn as the Unified Finance
Act) and of art. 3.C.1. and art. 3.C.2. of the Corporate Governance Code, whiie one’non-executive director is
independent within the meaning of art. 148, par. 3 of the Unified Finance Act. The Board of Directors has
appointed a Chief Executive Officer and General Manager from amiong its members and granted him all the
authority and powers of ordinary management of the company -necessary or useful for conducting its

business.

Management of the business is the responsibility of ttis-directors, who take the actions necessary to
implement the corporate purpose. The Board of Directors-is also responsible for the Group's internal control
and risk management system and is therefore required to verify its adequacy and to adopt specific guidelines
for this system, with the support of the other parties involved in the internal control and risk management
system, namely the Control and Risks Commiittee, the Director in charge of the internal control and risk
management system, the Chief Audit & Comniiarice Officer, the Board of Statutory Auditors and the
Managers responsible for preparing corporate-accounting documents.

Completing the Prysmian corporate gavernaice structure is a Compensation, Nominations and Sustainability
Committee and a Monitoring Board instituted nder Legislative Decree 231/2001.

Further information regarding (i) the corporate governance system of Prysmian S.p.A. (ii) its ownership
structure, as required by art.123-bis-of the Unified Finance Act and (iii) directors' disclosures about
directorships or statutory auditor-appoiritments held in other listed or relevant companies, can be found in the
"Report on Corporate Governance and Ownership Structure”, prepared in accordance with art. 123-bis of the
Unified Finance Act and available in the Investor Relations/Corporate Governance section of the company

website at www.prysiriiangroup.com.
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TOP MANAGERS

Directors

VALERIO BATTISTA

Chief Executive Officer & General Manager.

Prysmian Group Chief Executive Officer.

He was born in Arezzo on 8 January 1957.

A graduate in Mechanical Engineering from Florence University, Valerio Battista is a manager with extensive
knowledge and understanding of the industrial sector thanks to more than 30 vears of experience, initially
with Pirelli Group and then with Prysmian Group, which he has led since 2005. He held positions of
increasing responsibility in Pirelli Group, including for the restructuring and recrganisation of Pirelli Cavi,
transformed between 2002 and 2004 into one of the most profitable and. compeiitive organisations in its
industry. In 2005, he played a key role in the creation of Prysmian Group; !eadirig to its listing on the Stock
Exchange in 2007. The Group of which he is currently CEO is world, leadar in the energy and telecom cables
industry, with approximately 29,000 employees and 112 plants weridwide.

He has been President of Europacable since June 2014 and .- member of the Board of Directors of Brembo
S.p.A. since April 2017 serving as Lead Independent Director.

He has sat on the Prysmian Board of Directors since December-2005. He was elected for the current term on
12 April 2018 from the list submitted by the Board ‘oi-Directors, which obtained the majority of votes in

general meeting.

MASSIMO BATTAINI

Prysmian Group CEO North America.

Executive Director.

He was born in Varese on 1 August 1961.

After graduating in Mechanical Engineering from the Polytechnic University of Milan and earning an MBA
from SDA Bocconi in the same’city, iie started his career in Pirelli Group in 1987 and held various positions
in R&D and Operations over an 18-year period. After running the Business Development department from
2000 to 2002, covering the three Business Divisions of Tyres, Energy Cables and Telecom Cables, he was
appointed Operations Director-of‘Energy Cables and Telecom Cables at Pirelli Group. In 2005, he was
appointed CEO of Prysmian UK and in January 2011 the group's Chief Operating Officer, remaining in this
post until 2014, when-he became Senior Vice President Projects and Chairman and CEO of Prysmian

PowerLink S.r.l.| serving)in this position until June 2018, when he assumed the office of CEO North America.

12 April 2018 from the list submitted by the Board of Directors, which obtained the majority of votes in

general meeting.
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PIER FRANCESCO FACCHINI

Chief Financial Officer.

Executive Director.

He was born in Lugo (Ravenna) on 4 August 1967.

He graduated in Business Economics in 1991 from the "Luigi Bocconi" University in Milan. his. first work
experience was with Nestle Italia, where he held different positions in the Accounting. and Finance
department between 1991 and 1995. From 1995 to 2001, he worked for the Panalpina Groupwhere he held
the position of Regional Financial Controller for the Asia-Pacific region and CFO of Panainiina Korea (Seoul)
and Panalpina lItalia Trasporti Internazionali S.p.A.. In April 2001 he was appointed Finance Director of Fiat
Auto's Consumer Services business unit, leaving in 2003 to become CFO of the/Benatton Group, a post he
held until November 2006.

He has sat on the Prysmian Board of Directors since February 2007. He was elected for the current term on
12 April 2018 from the list submitted by the Board of Directors, which chtained’ the majority of votes in

general meeting.

FABIO IGNAZIO ROMEO

Chief Strategy and Development Officer.

Executive Director.

He was born in Rho (Milan) on 25 August 1955.

Mr. Romeo earned his degree in Electronic Engineefing fram the Polytechnic University of Milan in 1979,
later followed by a Master's degree and a Ph.D. in‘Electronic Engineering and Computer Sciences from the
University of California, Berkeley, awarded in 1986-and 1989 respectively. Mr. Romeo began his career in
1981 at Tema (part of the ENI Group) as a designer ¢t control systems for chemical plants. He moved to
Honeywell in 1982 as a member of Technical Staff, iater becoming Technical Advisor to the CEO. He joined
Magneti Marelli's Electronics Division in 198S-as Innovation Manager. In 1995, he was appointed Managing
Director of the Rearview Mirrors Division,/ and-in 1998 Managing Director of Magneti Marelli's Electronic
Systems Division. In 2001, he moved to-Pirelli & C. S.p.A. Group as Director of the Truck Division at the
Pirelli Tyre business unit. A year later, hetook up the post of Utilities Director at the Pirelli Cables Division. In
December 2004, he became Heaa oi-RPrysmian Group's Energy Cables and Systems Business Unit, holding
this position until December 2013, when he was named Chief Strategy and Development Officer.

He has sat on the Prysmian Board of Directors since February 2007. He was elected for the current term on
12 April 2018 from the’ list submitted by the Board of Directors, which obtained the majority of votes in

general meeting.
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Senior managers

ANDREA PIRONDINI

Chief Operating Officer

Andrea Pirondini has been Chief Operating Officer of Prysmian Group since January 2014. He has a degree
in Business Administration from the "Luigi Bocconi" University in Milan. He started his career. in Pirelli Group
in 1989, holding various positions in the UK, Italy, Turkey, Russia and Egypt over a 24-year period, both in
the Tyres and Cables & Systems businesses, where he was involved in restructuring iie-manufacturing
footprint of energy cables. In 2012 he was appointed Chief Commercial Officer of Pirelli Tyre S.p.A, a

position he held until December 2013.

FRANCESCO FANCIULLI

Senior Vice President Energy

Francesco Fanciulli has been Senior Vice President of the Energy segmerit-since’ February 2018. He holds a
degree in Law from the Cattolica University of Milan. In 1988, he joinad Procter and Gamble, where he
served in various leading positions in sales and marketing, culminating with his appointment as Head of
Mass Retail for Italy. He moved to Pirelli in 1998 as Marketing Director for its Tyres division and successfully
filled a variety of sales-related roles in this division, eventually tecoming Senior Vice President Sales &
Marketing. He has been with Prysmian since 2008, contriiauting.his vast experience in sales and marketing
and occupying various positions of regional responsiiility, 'such as CEO India, CEO Turkey and CEO
Danube Area. Since 2015 - when the Central Eastern Europe region was created - he has been CEO CEE
Region, responsible for integration of Germany and the Danube Area and development of the region's

industrial footprint.

PHILIPPE VANHILLE

Senior Vice President Telecom

Philippe Vanhille has been Senior-Vice President Telecom since May 2013. After graduating as a
Mechanical Engineer in Lyon (France). in 1989, he began his career as a Research Engineer for Renault
Formula 1 development, and then moved to the cable industry joining Alcatel Cable in 1991. Over a 20-year
period he held a number of seniar Operations and General Management positions within the cable industry
for Alcatel and Draka, and-subsequently in the energy, copper telecom and optical fibre sectors. He was
head of Draka's Optical Fibre Business Unit at the time of the Prysmian merger, holding the same position in

Prysmian Group until his appeointment as Senior VP Telecom.
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HAKAN OZMEN

Senior Vice President Projects

Hakan Ozmen has been Senior Vice President Projects and Chief Executive Officer of Prysmian Powerlink
S.r.l. since June 2018. After graduating as an Industrial Engineer, he began his career in 1993 as internal
Audit Manager and Corporate Secretary at Siemens AS in Istanbul. In August 1999, he obtained an MBA
from Yeditepe University in Istanbul. He joined Pirelli S.p.A. in September 1999 as Internal Audii- Manager for
the EMEA region, completing audits in Germany, Italy, Finland, UK, Turkey, Romania and-Czech Republic.
In January 2001, he became Chief Financial Officer & Board Member at Turk Pirelii in-Istanbul, later
becoming Chairman. After holding the position of Global Director of Prysmian Teleconi /for two years, he

served as Prysmian Group's President & CEO North America from 2011 to May 2018.
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PRYSMIAN AND THE FINANCIAL MARKETS

OWNERSHIP STRUCTURE

Prysmian Group has been a Public Company in all respects for many years: its free float is equal-to 100% of

capital, of which around 70% held by institutional investors.

The listing of Prysmian's ordinary shares, resulting from the sale of 46% of the shares held by the Goldman
Sachs Group Inc., took place on 3 May 2007 at a price of Euro 15.0 per share, corresponding to a
capitalisation of Euro 2.7 billion. Subsequent to the listing, the Goldman Sachs Grsiip Inc. ‘gradually reduced
its interest in the company, control of which it had acquired in July 2005, by placing the remaining 54% of the
shares with institutional and selected investors in several successive stages:-i) approx. 22% in November
2007, ii) approx. 14% in November 2009, iii) approx. 17% in March 2010/ ¥alerio Battista, Prysmian's Chief
Executive Officer, announced on occasion of the last sale that he had purchased 1,500,000 shares,
corresponding to around 0.8% of share capital and taking his total shareholding to 1.2%, which he has raised
to approximately 1.5% during the course of subsequent years.

At 31 December 2018, the Company's free float was equal to 160%¢ of the outstanding shares and significant
shareholdings (in excess of 3%) accounted for approximatelv12% of total share capital, meaning there were
no majority or controlling interests. Prysmian is now one of Italy's few globally present industrial concerns to
have achieved true Public Company status in recent years

At 31 December 2018, the share capital of Prysmian S.p.A. amounted to Euro 26,814,424.60, comprising
268,144,246 ordinary shares with a nominal value’af Euro 0.1 each. The ownership structure at this date is

shown below.
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Source: Nasdag, December 2018 (Ownership structure by type)
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Source: Nasdag OMX December 2018

The geographical ownership structure shows a predominaiit presence of the United States, which represents
28% of the institutional investor total, up from 2017, followed by the United Kingdom, which accounted for
22%, down from 2017. Italy accounted for around 18% of the-capital held by institutional investors, slightly up
from 2017, while France's share remained the sa:ne at 10%. The proportion of Asian investors was basically
unchanged.

Approximately 67% of the share capital held by-institutional investors is represented by investment funds
with Value, Growth or GARP strategies, therefore focused on a medium to long-term investment horizon.
The proportion of investors adopting ar’ !ndex investment strategy, based on the principal stock indexes, was
up from 2017, while the Hedge Fund component, focused on a shorter time horizon, remained in line with the

year before.

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
The Annual General Meeting saw participation by over 63% of share capital, with more than 1,650

shareholders present, iri-person-or-dy proxy.

The Annual Generai ivieeting-of the shareholders of Prysmian S.p.A. was held on 12 April 2018 in single call
to adopt resolutions on ‘a number of items: in ordinary session, approval of the 2017 financial statements,
allocation of profit for the year and declaration of a dividend, determination of the size of the Board of
Directors, determination of the directors' term in office, appointment of the directors, determination of the
global directers' fee, authorisation of a share buyback programme, amendments to the Group employee
share ownership plan, approval of incentive plan and consultation on remuneration policies; in extraordinary
session, the meeting authorised the proposal to increase share capital by a maximum of Euro
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500,000,000.00 in cash. The meeting, which was attended by over 1,650 shareholders, in person or by proxy,
representing more than 63% of share capital, approved every item on the agenda by a wide majority (more
than 85%).

The Annual General Meeting also approved the declaration of a dividend of Euro 0.43 per sharg, in-line with
the amount distributed the previous year. The dividend was paid on 25 April 2018, involving a totai-pay-cut of

approximately Euro 96 million.
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FINANCIAL MARKET PERFORMANCE
On the whole 2018 displayed a stable global macro environment despite final-quarter weakness reported in

some European and Asian economies

Prysmian S.p.A. was floated on the Italian Stock Exchange on 3 May 2007 and since September 2007 has
been included in the FTSE MIB index, comprising the top 40 Italian companies by capitalisation-and stock
liquidity. The Prysmian stock has since entered the principal world and sector indexes, inciuding the Morgan
Stanley Capital International index and the Dow Jones Stoxx 600, made up of the worid's iargest companies
by capitalisation, and the FTSE4Good, composed of a select basket of listed companies’'that demonstrate

excellent Environmental, Social and Governance (ESG) practice.

The main Eurozone stock indexes posted a negative performance in 20138, primariiy driven by the stock
markets in ltaly (FTSE MIB -16.1%) and Germany (DAX -18.3%). The French /market retreated by 11%
(CAC40 -11.0%) and the Spanish one by 15% (IBEX -15.0%). After the’'Dow Jones Industrial's prior year
record high, the US stock market closed 2018 5.6% lower, with the ,Nasdaq reporting a minus 3.9%. Among
the major emerging country indexes, the Brazilian market index (Bovespa) recorded a 15.0% increase,
reflecting newfound political stability and encouraging signs/ef econctiic rebound, already seen in 2017,
after more than three years of recession. In China, the Hong Kong Hang Seng index lost 13.6%, while the
Shanghai Composite index plunged by 24.6%.

The Prysmian stock posted a negative performance i 28.0% in 2018, closing the year at Euro 16.87 per
share compared with Euro 27.19 at the end of 2017. The stock's underperformance against the Italian stock
market and its sector of reference (Capital Goods-Industrial Services) is due to issues involving the Western
Link project emerging during the year.

Despite this extraordinary event, the Prysmian stock once again outperformed its main cable industry
competitors.

The average share price was Euro 22.17 /iri 2018, down from Euro 26.31 in 2017. Including dividend pay-
outs, the total shareholder return oftered by the Prysmian stock was +36.4% in 2018 and +40.2% since its
date of listing. Excluding the contribution of dividends and so just considering the change in price, the
performance was -38.0% in 2018-and+12.5% since listing.

Looking at the stock's performance.over the four quarters of 2018, the second-quarter trend was particularly
negative (-16.4%) in response to the technical faults in the Western Link detected late in April 2018 and on
22 June 2018. More details can be found in the later section on Significant events during the year.

The solidity of the Group, the gradual recognition of the high potential of the General Cable acquisition to
create shareholdei value, thanks to synergies and the high geographical complementarity achieved by
combining the two companies, and the expectations for growth have allowed the Prysmian stock to retain its
strong market-appeat, confirmed by financial analyst recommendations at year end, of which 73% were "buy"

and the rernainder "hold".
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PERFORMANCE OF PRYSMIAN STOCK SINCE IPO

During 2018, the stock's liquidity reported average daily trading volumes of approximately 1.3 million shares,

with an average daily turnover of Euro 28 million.
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Source: Nasdaq OMX data

INVESTOR RELATIONS
Transparency in communication, growth in market.confidence in the company and promotion of a long-term

investment approach to its stock.

Creating value for shareholders, and other stakehoiders, is a key priority for Prysmian, whose policy of
strategic and financial communication’ s directed towards the highest standards of accuracy, clarity and
transparency. Its actions and procedures’are designed to provide the market with credible information, with
the goal of boosting market confidgetice invthe group by seeking to encourage a long-term investment
approach, avoiding unequal access-to information and ensuring effective compliance with the principle that
all existing and potential investors ihave the right to receive the same information so as to make informed
investment decisions.

On occasion of the pubkiication-of’its quarterly results, Prysmian organises conference calls with institutional
investors and financial analysts and also invites industry press representatives to take part. In addition, it
promptly informs _existing-and potential shareholders of any action or decision that could have a material
impact on their investment.

There was intense cerntact with the financial market during 2018, with more than 500 encounters involving
conference/ calls “\and one-to-one or group meetings at Prysmian's offices. Prysmian also undertook
numerous read shows in the major financial centres of Europe and North America, and took part in
conferences organised by major international brokers. In addition, the increasing attention paid to the
Group's activities by socially responsible investors (SRI) was confirmed by their growing number at SRI
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dedicated meetings and road shows. Lastly, the Group organised several visits during the year for
institutional investors and financial analysts to view its factories and R&D centres, in order to give them a
deeper understanding of its products and production processes.

Coverage of the Prysmian stock remained very high and geographically diversified. Thiere aie 20
independent analysts who regularly cover the Prysmian stock: Banca Akros, Banca Profilo, Ranca;IMlI,
Barclays Capital, BofA Merrill Lynch, Citi, Credit Suisse, Equita, Exane BNP Paribas, Fidentiic,-Goldman
Sachs, Hammer Partners, HSBC, Intermonte, JP Morgan, Kepler Cheuvreux, Mediobanca;-Viorgan Stanley,
Natixis and Société Generale.

The Investor Relations office has also maintained regular contacts with institutional investors through the
group website www.prysmiangroup.com, which contains recordings of conference/calls and presentations
to the financial community, corporate documents, press releases and all other-information concerning the
Group, in both English and Italian. The Investor Relations section als¢’includes the financial calendar,
documents relating to shareholders' meetings, the Code of Ethics, the contact details of analysts who cover

the stock as well as specific sections about Corporate Governance, Risk Facters and Share Performance.

Investor Relations contact details:

Investor Relations Office Maiia Cristina Bifulco — IR Director
= +39 02 6449 1 = +39 02 6449 51400
investor.relations@prysmiangroup.com mariacristina.bifulco@prysmiangroup.com
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SIGNIFICANT EVENTS DURING THE YEAR

New industrial projects and initiatives

Cable to link Kincardine floating offshore wind farm to mainland Britain

On 24 January 2018, the Group was awarded a contract by Cobra Wind International Ltd fo: the-cable to link
the Kincardine floating offshore wind farm to mainland Britain. This is the Group's first-cable project for a
floating offshore wind farm and involves the design and supply of two submarine expart cables, inter-array
cables and related accessories to connect the turbines of the Kincardine floating offshcre wind farm, located
approximately 15 km southeast of Aberdeen, to the Scottish mainland power grid.\The cables are being

manufactured at the Group's factories in Spain and Norway.

Submarine power link to Capri

On 2 February 2018, following a European call for tender, the Group was awarded a contract worth around
Euro 40 million for a new submarine cable link between the isle of Capri’and Sorrento (Naples); the contract
was awarded by Terna Rete Italia S.p.A., a company wholly owned by Termna S.p.A., Italy's sole transmission
system operator.

The project involves the turnkey installation of a 150 kV HVAC power cable between the power stations
located in Sorrento and at the Gasto recycling centre on-Capri,~along a route running 16 km subsea and 3
km onshore.

The cables for the Capri-Sorrento link will be manufactured- at the Arco Felice plant in Naples, a Group
centre of submarine cable manufacturing and technological excellence. Prysmian will be responsible for
submarine cable laying, using its vessel the“Cable-Enterprise”, and for supplying all related network
components and performing the required speciaiist civil engineering works. The project, which started during

2018, is scheduled for completion in 2019.

Framework agreement with Terna to-upgrade’ltalian power grid

On 19 March 2018, the Group was awarded~ as lead contractor in a Temporary Association of Companies
(RTI) involving CEBAT S.r.l. and-Eiettrovit S.r.l., which will carry out civil engineering installation works - a
framework contract by the ltalian transmission system operator Terna, through its subsidiary Terna Rete
Italia, for the supply, instaliation and emergency repair of 220 kV cables to upgrade the national power grid.
The turnkey project is worth about’'Euro 50 million and will last for three years, with an option to extend its

duration and augment its value.

Contract with JG Summit Petrochemicals Group

On 21 March 2018, the Group signed an agreement with JG Summit Petrochemicals Group (JGSPG) for the
supply of /approximately 820 km of low and medium voltage power cables, instrumentation and control
cables and telecomm’ cables for applications in the petroleum and petrochemicals industry.

JGSPG consists of JG Summit Petrochemical Corporation (JGSPC) - the largest manufacturer of polyolefins

in the Philippines and the first and only integrated PE and PP resin manufacturer in the country - and JG
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Summit Olefins Corporation (JGSOC) - the company that operates the first and only naphtha cracking plant
in the Philippines. Both companies are wholly-owned subsidiaries of JG Summit Holdings, Inc. (JGSHI), one
of the country's largest and most diversified conglomerates, with business interests in food manufacturing,
air transportation, real estate and property development, petrochemicals, banking, publishirg, —power
generation and telecommunications.

The JGSPG complex is located 120 km south of Manila in Batangas City, overlooking the scenic 2atangas
Bay. At present, JGSPG has a 250-hectare fully integrated world-class manufacturing complex that also
houses the naphtha cracking and polymer manufacturing plants.

The Group will provide a complete package of power, instrumentation and control, and telecom cables for
Plant & Petrochemical applications for phase 1 of the OSBL (Outside Battery Limits) expansion project for

the existing JG Summit facilities initiated in 2018.

New submarine cable-laying vessel

In April 2018, the Group entered into a contract for an investment of’ ever Euro 170 million in a new
advanced cable-laying vessel. This strategic asset will bolster Prysmian's turnkey approach, under which it
delivers end-to-end EPCI projects, from engineering, manufacturing and installation to full monitoring and
diagnostic services for submarine power transmission lines. !n-particuiar, the investment in this new vessel
will support long-term growth prospects in the submarine cable- business, strengthening the Group's

installation and execution capabilities for interconnection and offshore wind projects.

Contract for 66 kV submarine cable for Borssele lll & IV offshore wind farms in the North Sea

On 18 June 2018, the Group was awarded a contract by Van Oord Offshore Wind B.V. to develop a
submarine inter-array cable system for the Borssele Il & iV offshore wind farms.

Prysmian will be responsible for the design, manufacture, supply and testing of approximately 175 km of 66
kV three-core XLPE-insulated cables in various cross sections and all related accessories for the Borssele Ill
& IV wind farms. These two farms, forming part of the extensive Borssele Wind Farm Zone located near the
southern boundary of the Dutch Exciusive Eccnomic Zone (EEZ), approximately 25 km from the shore, will
have a total installed capacity of 731.5 MW with individual wind turbine capacity of 9.54 MW.

The cables, all of which will be manufaciured at Prysmian's centre of excellence in Pikkala (Finland), are due

to be delivered in early 2020.

Contract for offshore’wind farm connections in France

On 29 August 2018, 'the Group was awarded three important projects to develop cable connections for
offshore wind farins in France. Prysmian has been engaged to design, supply and install inter-array cables
for the two offshore wind farms, Fécamp and Courseulles-sur-Mer, located off the north coast of France.

The third project, for-the Saint Nazaire wind farm also owned by Eolien Maritime France, is worth over Euro

20 millionZand will be performed in a consortium with Louis Dreyfus Travocean.
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Contract for submarine interconnection in Greece

On 4 September 2018, the Group was awarded a new contract worth approximately Euro 21 million by IPTO
(Independent Power Transmission Operator), the Transmission System Operator of the Greek electricity
grid, for two interconnections between the Cyclades islands (Evia, Andros and Tinos) in Greece,

The project involves the design, supply and installation, as well as related onshore civil engineering works, of
two turnkey high voltage cable systems, which will boost power transmission between the Cyciades islands,
ensuring a robust, reliable and sustainable power supply.

The submarine cables will be manufactured at the Arco Felice plant (Naples),—a Group centre of
technological and manufacturing excellence, while the underground cables will be praduced in Pignataro
(Naples).

Submarine and underground cable manufacturing will be completed in 2619, with delivery and

commissioning also scheduled for the same year.

Contract for first submarine cable interconnection between the islan¢ o Crete and mainland Greece
On 2 October 2018, the Group was awarded a new contract;, wortn some Euro 125 million, for an
interconnection between the island of Crete and mainland Greece (Peloponnese region). The project was
awarded by IPTO (Independent Power Transmission Operatct), which-operates the transmission system for
Greece's power grid.

The project for this first submarine electricity interconnecticn between Crete and the mainland involves the
design, supply, installation and commissioning of an‘HVAC cable system using 150 kV three-core XLPE-
insulated double-armoured cables. The cables, runising along a route of 135 km, will be installed as deep as
950 metres.

The submarine cables, which will be manufactired at the /Arco Felice plant (Naples), will be laid at sea by the
"Giulio Verne", a vessel forming part of the Group's in-house fleet. Delivery and commissioning are
scheduled for 2020.

Contract for the design, installation-and ecmmissioning of two HV power cable systems in Singapore
On 15 November 2018, the Group was awarded a contract by the utility SP Power Assets Ltd, worth Euro 33
million, for the design, supply, instaiiatton and commissioning of two high voltage power cable systems to
connect the Rangoon and Paya Lebar substations in Singapore.

Prysmian Group will also-supply/a grid monitoring system using its proprietary PRY-CAM technology
allowing the acquisition, processing and classification of electrical parameters and temperature
measurements. The cable and accessories will be supplied by the Group's factory in China. This project is

scheduled for delivery-and commissioning in 2020.

Technical cocperation agreement with GCC Lab in Saudi Arabia for grid monitoring services

On 29 Nevember 2018, the Group signed a non-binding memorandum of understanding with GCC Electrical
Equipment Testing Laboratory (GCC Lab) - a testing facility for power transmission and distribution cables
and accessories located in Dammam (Saudi Arabia) - for joint technical cooperation aimed at developing

services in support of testing, inspection and certification activities in the Gulf Cooperation Council region.
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The agreement involves the supply of PRY-CAM equipment and training for GCC Lab engineers at Prysmian
Headquarters in Milan (ltaly). Prysmian will support GCC Lab in the execution of measurement analysis to
ensure superior performance, quality and levels of service. PRY-CAM will also become an integrai part of

GCC Lab's overall package offered to its customers.

Contract for a power interconnection between Deer Island and the mainland Boston powei-grid

On 17 December 2018, the Group was awarded a new contract by Caldwell Marine Internatichai LLC, a US
construction contractor specialising in submarine utilities operations.

Prysmian Group will be responsible for the design, manufacture, supply and commissioning of a 6 km 3x630
mm?2 115kV XLPE-insulated submarine cable system, plus all related cable accessories/'to connect Deer
Island to mainland Massachusetts (USA). Prysmian Group will also be responsiile for the project's onshore
section, for which it will supply and install 8 km of 115kV undergrourid cables, along with all related
accessories. The submarine cables will all be manufactured at Prysmian's ceritre cf excellence in Arco Felice
(Italy). The underground cables will be manufactured at Prysmian's state-of-the-art factory in Abbeville
(South Carolina, USA), thus offering high-quality products and cabile soldtions to the US market by drawing

on local expertise. The project is due for delivery in 2019.

Mergers & Acquisitions

Acquisition of General Cable

On 4 December 2017, the Prysmian Group and Generai Cable Corporation announced that they had entered
into a merger agreement. Under this agreement, Frysmian S.p.A., through Alisea Corp. (Alisea), a wholly-
owned indirect subsidiary of Prysmian S.p.A., and-General Cable Corporation (a company whose shares
were listed on the NYSE prior to completion/cf the merger) had entered into an "Agreement and Plan of

Merger" governing the terms and conditions of the merger of Alisea into General Cable Corporation.

On 16 February 2018, a special meeting-of the shareholders of General Cable Corporation approved
Prysmian's acquisition of 100% of General Cable's shares for a consideration of USD 30.00 per share.
Present at the meeting was 75.34% c¢f ihe share capital entitled to vote, of which some 99% voted in favour

of the acquisition.

Between March and 2 June, all the approvals or clearances were obtained from the relevant antitrust
authorities along with approval v other requisite governmental regulators and authorities (Committee on

Foreign Investment in the Uniied States - CFIUS).

The closing of the acquisition was consummated on 6 June, following which all the Alisea shares, wholly-
owned by Prysmian, were converted into General Cable Corporation shares resulting from the merger, with
the conseguence that all the General Cable Corporation shares outstanding on the effective date of the
merger witih- Alisea’ were cancelled and converted into a right of their respective holders to receive cash

consideration of USD 30.00 per share.
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Following consummation of the transaction, General Cable Corporation shares were delisted from the NYSE
on 6 June 2018.

The combined group is now present in more than 50 countries with approximately 29,000 empioyees.
Prysmian expects the combined group to generate run-rate pre-tax cost synergies of approximately-Curc 175
million by 2022 versus a total of Euro 220 million in integration costs. These synergies will come rhainily from

improved procurement strategy, overhead cost savings and manufacturing footprint optimisation.

Finance Activities

Interest rate hedging derivatives

In January 2018, the Group entered into interest rate hedging derivatives, transforming variable into fixed
rate, with the purpose of reducing rate volatility risk. In particular, forward rate agreements were arranged, for
an overall notional value of Euro 850 million, with the objective of hedging variahie interest rate flows over
the period 2018-2023 on financing contracted by the Group for the General Cable acquisition. Following the
acquisition, these agreements have become operative through their transformation into interest rate swaps.
Other interest rate swaps were also arranged in January 2018 for ari‘overall notional value of Euro 110
million, with the objective of hedging variable interest rate flows overthe period 2018-2024 on the EIB loan of
matching underlying amount.

In July 2018, the Group entered into interest rate hedging derivatives, transforming variable into fixed rate,
with the purpose of reducing variable rate risk. In particular, forward rate agreements were arranged, for an
overall notional value of Euro 300 million, with the okjective of hedging variable interest rate flows over the
period 2018-2020 on financing contracted by the Group for the General Cable acquisition. These
agreements became operative in September 2018 tikrough their transformation into interest rate swaps.

In November 2018, the Group entered into additional interest rate hedging derivatives, transforming variable
into fixed rate, with the purpose of reducing variahie rate risk. More specifically, interest rate swaps have
been arranged, for an overall notional value of Euro 150 million, with the objective of hedging variable
interest rate flows over the period 2018-2023 ¢n financing contracted by the Group for the General Cable

acquisition.

General Cable Corporation Acguisition’Financing Agreement

On 2 March 2018, the Group entered into an agreement (the Acquisition Financing Agreement) under which

a syndicate of leading banks made available lines of credit, intended to finance costs of the General Cable

acquisition; in particular:

(8) Acquisition Term Lean for Euro 1 billion, lasting 5 years from the Acquisition Closing and repayable with
a bullet paymient at maturity;

(b) Acquisition Bridge Loan for Euro 700 million, lasting 2 years from the Acquisition Closing and repayable
with a bullet payimient at maturity.

Further details can be found in Note 12. Borrowings from banks and other lenders.
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Capital increase

On 12 April 2018, the shareholders of Prysmian S.p.A. approved a capital increase, in cash, for a maximum
amount of Euro 500,000,000.00, including any share premium, to be implemented by issuing ordinary shares
with normal dividend rights.

On 27 June 2018, the Board of Directors of Prysmian S.p.A. approved the final terms and conditions-of the
capital increase, approved by the Shareholders' Meeting on 12 April 2018. In particular, it was decided that
the capital increase would take place through the issue of up to 32,652,314 ordinary shares with a hominal
value of Euro 0.10 each, to be offered pre-emptively to all shareholders and holders of-the Company's
convertible bonds, namely the convertible bond known as "Prysmian S.p.A. €500,000,000 Zero Coupon
Linked Bonds due 2022", in the ratio of 2 new shares for every 15 option rights held, at.an issue price of
Euro 15.31 per new share, for a total amount of Euro 499,906,927.34, of which Eurc 496,641,695.94 by way
of share premium.

The rights offering of up to 32,652,314 new shares closed on 27 July 2018. During'the option rights offering
period (2 July 2018 - 19 July 2018, the "Option Period"), 239,533,800 ¢niionrights were exercised and
31,937,840 new shares were subscribed, with an aggregate value,of Euro 488,968,330.40. The 5,358,555
option rights not exercised during the Option Period were ther oifered on' the Italian Stock Exchange. All
these rights were sold by the end of the first trading sessich on 24 July 2018 and were subsequently
exercised, resulting in the issue of 714,474 new shares, with an aggaregate value of Euro 10,938,596.94. The
offering therefore concluded with the complete subscriptioiv-of the 32,652,314 new shares with an aggregate
value of Euro 499,906,927.34.

The offering also involved the payment of Euro 8,753,836 In related expenses and the receipt of Euro
4,455,461 in unsubscribed cancelled rights.

Share buyback and disposal programme and Employee incentive plan

The Shareholders' Meeting of Prysmian: S.p.A._held on 12 April 2018 authorised a share buyback and
disposal programme, revoking at the same time-the previous authorisation under the shareholder resolution
dated 12 April 2017. The new programme provides the opportunity to purchase, on one or more occasions, a
maximum number of ordinary shares wriose total must not exceed, at any one time, 10% of share capital.
Purchases may not exceed the amauit-of undistributed earnings and available reserves reported in the most
recently approved annual financial staiements. The authorisation to buy back treasury shares lasts for 18
months commencing from-the dale of the Shareholders' Meeting, while the authorisation to dispose of
treasury shares has notime limit.

The same Shareholders' Meeting also approved an incentive plan for Prysmian Group employees, including
members of the Board of Directors of Prysmian S.p.A., and granted the Board of Directors the necessary
powers to establish and implement this plan.

The purposg cf this Plan is:

- to generate strong commitment by the Group's management to achieving the targets for additional growth
in profits and return on capital employed over the next three years;

- to align the interests of management with those of shareholders by using share-based incentives, and

promoting stable share ownership of the Company;
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- to support synergies and the development of a one-company identity by defining a common performance
objective and introducing a retention mechanism, conditional upon completion of the acquisition of 100% of
the share capital of General Cable Corporation.

During the extraordinary session of the above meeting, the shareholders authorised an increase-iii-share
capital by a maximum amount of Euro 756,281.90, through the issue of up to 7,562,819 new ordinary shiares
with a nominal value of Euro 0.10 each, to be allotted for no consideration to Group empleyees who are

beneficiaries of the above incentive plan.

Shanghai Stock Exchange listing and capital increase by Yangtze Optical Fibre’/and Cable Joint
Stock Limited

On 20 July 2018, Yangtze Optical Fibre and Cable Joint Stock Limited Compaiy (an equity-accounted
associate) completed its listing on the Shanghai Stock Exchange; the comipany. was already listed on the
Hong Kong Stock Exchange. The Shanghai listing has increased the number of shares from a previous total
of 682,114,598 to 757,905,108. Since Draka Comteq B.V. has kept its’ holding (of 179,827,794 shares)
unchanged, its stake in this company has gone from 26.37% to 23,73%:/The Group has recorded a gain of

Euro 36 million resulting from the consequent share dilution.

Unicredit Loan Agreement
On 15 November 2018, Prysmian S.p.A. entered into ar agreement with Unicredit for a medium-term cash
loan for a maximum amount of Euro 200 million fer S years from the date of signing. The agreement

envisages a bullet repayment at maturity. The loan was drawn down in full on 16 November.

Other significant events

Approval of financial statements at 31 December 2017 and dividend distribution

On 12 April 2018, the shareholders of Prysmian S.p.A. approved the financial statements for 2017 and the
distribution of a gross dividend of Eure 0.43 joer share, for a total of some Euro 96 million. The dividend was
paid out from 25 April 2018 to shares outstanding on the record date of 24 April 2018, with the shares going
ex-dividend on 23 April 2018.

Western Link

With reference to the Wesierin Link, an electrical transmission cable between Scotland, Wales and England,
a fault was detected at the end of April 2018 during preparations to make the link available for full load
operation, as a result ‘of which, when approving the Quarterly Financial Report at 31 March 2018, the
Directors decided t0 recognise a provision of Euro 20 million as the best estimate of costs to cover the
related contractual penalties for this project's late delivery.

On 22 June 2018, tive Board of Directors of Prysmian S.p.A. met to examine the implications of certain faults
in the cable's operation. In particular, it was noted that during commissioning of the Western Link Cable, the
fault detected at the end of April 2018 had recurred. In light of the tests carried out and the information
received from the project's technical managers, it was concluded with reasonable certainty that the area in

which the fault had re-emerged was limited to that affected by the previous repair. In light of the information
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received from the project's technical managers concerning the costs and time for the new repairs needed to
solve this fault, of the related risks and the liquidated damages envisaged by the Western Link Contract, the
Board of Directors prudently estimated that the Company might be required to incur additional costs of
approximately Euro 50 million and recognised a provision accordingly.

On 12 September 2018, Prysmian announced that the commissioning and testing of the Western Link
Interconnection project had been temporarily suspended to investigate a problem in the laria.sectien of the
cable.

On 16 October 2018, Prysmian announced that the problem involving the land section &f thie-cable had been
successfully repaired.

On 19 February 2019, a problem was detected in the Western Link interconnector, leading to its temporary
switch-off.

The tests and investigations carried out so far have located the problem necessiiating the temporary switch-
off within the southern land cable section.

Prysmian has already started mobilising specialised teams on site to investigate the nature of the problem
further. In parallel, the Group is taking every necessary step to carry aut'the repairs in the shortest possible
time with the least logistical and environmental impact.

As a result of these events, the Group's management has assessed tiie need for a provision of Euro 25
million. This provision is against contractual penalties, accruing -over the period needed for the repair in
guestion, and against costs of producing an additional lerigth-of cable for any future repairs or other needs
that might arise.

As described above, the provisions recognised in 2018 have therefore had a total impact of Euro 95 million

on income.

Agreement with Ol Group in Brazil

During the first few months of 2018, the Group-reached a credit recovery agreement with the Ol Group, a
Brazilian customer that has filed for bankruptcy., The outstanding receivables, amounting to around Euro 8
million, had already been written down in fuli in 2016. The agreement involves a partial repayment in four

annual instalments and so the Group has reinstated the receivable at its realisable amount of Euro 5 million.

Establishment of privacy department and appointment of internal data protection officer pursuant to
European Regulation 2016/679 ("GDPR")

In view of the entry into force of the GDPR (on 25 May 2018), the Board of Directors of Prysmian S.p.A.
decided on 10 May 2018 to establish a new department to oversee the area of personal data protection and
identified and appointed. an internal data protection officer (or DPO) whose duties include monitoring the
correct application of the GDPR within the Group, supporting senior management in identifying adequate
data protecticn-meastres and, consequently, processing data correctly in accordance with the law. The role

of DPO is held by Mr. Giorgio Totis who continues to act as Group Compliance Director.
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New organisation for integration with General Cable

On 11 June 2018, Prysmian Group announced its new organisation and began its integration with General
Cable.

The new organisation combines the strengths of both Prysmian and General Cable and is hased on
centralised governance and integrated management of global businesses, clear responsibilities for resuits, a
focus on efficiency and technological innovation and a customer-centric approach enabled- by, teams
dedicated to key customer accounts.

The new organisational matrix is structured along 3 lines: Group centralised functions,-wiiich aim to foster
the creation of a highly integrated "One Company"; Regions, which must ensure proximity to the market; and
Business areas (Energy, Telecom and Projects), which are responsible foi/product and cross-selling
strategies.

Further details can be found in Section G. Segment information.

Ruling of the General Court of the European Union regarding antitrust investigations

On 12 July 2018, the General Court of the European Union issued rulings on the appeals lodged by the
Prysmian Group, including General Cable, against the decision’ef the European Commission dated 2 April
2014 and whose content had already been anticipated by Prysmian on the same date.

These rulings have dismissed the appeals, thus confirming the-previously imposed fines. The Prysmian
Group, including General Cable, does not agree with the cangclusions reached by the General Court of the
European Union and has appealed to the Court of Justice cf the European Union. Further details can be

found in Note 14. Provisions for risks and charges.

Resignation and new appointment of the Chairman ef the Board of Directors

On 25 July 2018, Massimo Tononi, Chairman of the Board of Directors, tendered his resignation as
Chairman and member of the Board oi Directors and as a member of the Company's Compensation,
Nominations and Sustainability Committee, with-effect from the end of the Board of Directors' meeting which
approved the Half-Year Financial Repart at 30 June 2018.

Mr. Tononi's resignation was tendered feliowing his appointment to Cassa Depositi e Prestiti S.p.A., as a
result of which he considered it approptiate to step down from all positions held in other companies.

In its meeting of 18 September 2018 io approve the Half-Year Financial Report at 30 June 2018, the Board
of Directors named Mr. Ciaudio De Conto, an independent non-executive pursuant to Legislative Decree

58/98, as its new Chairrman.

Closure of the Generai-Cable Group's European headquarters

The Prysmian European Works Council and General Cable European Works Council and the local unions
were informed-iri-October 2018 of the intention to close the General Cable Group's European corporate
headquarters in Barcelona. After consultations and negotiations, an agreement was reached on 16
November 2018 with the site's union representatives, providing incentives to employees who leave the
company and, in order to reduce the social impact, also offering the possibility of relocation for part of the

redundant workforce to other company sites.
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This operation, involving about 75 employees, together with a social plan instituted in the same period at
Montereau (France) for around 70 staff, forms part of the Group's rationalisation following the General Cable
acquisition. Accordingly, the process aims to streamline resources by exploiting possible synergies arising

from the combination of the two groups.

Antitrust Brazil

On 11 February 2019, as reported in the note on Subsequent Events, the general supeiiniendence of the
Brazilian antitrust authority published a technical note in the Brazilian Federal Officiai Gazette-in connection
with the procedure notified to Prysmian in 2011; the note sets out the conclusions of the authority's
investigation and recommends the imposition of a fine on Prysmian. In view of the circumstances described
and consistent with the Group's accounting policies, the directors, assisted by the Group's legal advisors,
have recognised a specific risk provision for Euro 68 million, deemed appropriate o cover the potential

liability associated with the matter in question.

Changes to segment reporting
Following the acquisition of General Cable, the Group has embarked on a process of organisational change
that has led to a redefinition of its segment reporting and the resulting identification of the following new

operating segments: Energy, Projects and Telecom. In detail:

e Energy segment: this encompasses the former-Energy Products segment as well as the Core
Oil&Gas and DHT businesses included uiitil the last quarter in the OIL&GAS segment no longer
significant for the Group.

e Projects segment: this encompassesthe former.Energy Projects segment, the Submarine Telecom
business, new to the Group follewing-the acquisition of General Cable, and the Offshore
Specialties business (previously known-as SURF and included in the OIL&GAS segment now no
longer significant for the Grouig);

e Telecom segment: this has not undeigone any changes as a result of the above reorganisation.

This change has resulted in the reallocation of Euro 23 million in goodwill; the Cash-Generating Units (CGU)
have also been redefined.

Work on the reporting sysiers in’ support of the new model started in 2018 and was completed for the
purposes of preparing/the current document. The Board of Directors approved the adoption of the new
structure for segment reporting in its meeting on 19 February 2019. Further details can be found in Section
G. Segment information. and in Section B.8 Impairment of property, plant and equipment and finite-life

intangible assets.
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BUSINESS ENVIRONMENT

MACROECONOMIC ENVIRONMENT
The world economy continued to grow in 2018 at virtually the same rate as in 2017, desbite the sharp

slowdown in major advanced and emerging economies, like Europe and China.

The global economy started to show signs of slowing in 2018 with growth unchanged on'the year before and
the emergence of a cyclical deterioration in the two major economies of Europe and China.

Despite the European Central Bank's continued pursuit of expansionary mgnetary policies, Eurozone
economic growth was worse than in 2017 due to a general deterioration in-business expectations (fall in
industrial output especially in the final months of the year) and a contraction in foreign demand. Specific
factors also weighed on this slowdown, such as the great uncertainty being generated by the prospect of a
negative outcome to the Brexit negotiations or the entry into force cf the worldwide harmonised light vehicle
test procedure for automotive sector emissions, which has caused the-industry's production in the main
producer countries (Germany, Italy) to come to a standstill.

US economic growth exceeded the previous year's even in 2018, benefiting from expansionary fiscal policies,
the impact of lower corporate taxation, and robust censuimer spending. China recorded a high but
nonetheless lower growth rate than in 2017, despite the governmeiit's fiscal stimulus policies.

Global GDP grew by +3.7%* year-on-year (basically unchanged on +3.8%* in 2017), reflecting a slight
slowdown by both more developed economies (fiam +2.4%* in 2017 to 2.3%* in 2018) and emerging ones
(+4.7%* to +4.6%*).

The United States continued to expand in 2018, with growth of 2.9%* beating that of 2.2%* in 2017, thanks
to increased domestic spending and higher-exports.

The uncertainty surrounding Brexit, following the British Parliament's failure to ratify the agreement reached
in November by the government, had a negative impact on both the Eurozone and the United Kingdom. The
Eurozone reported a sharp slowdown in growth from 2017: from +2.4%* to +1.8%* this year; this reflected a
negative trend for basically all the-main European economies, which displayed a drop in industrial production
in the last period of the year: Germany's GDP growth went from +2.5%* to +1.5%%, Italy's from +1.6%* to
+1.0%*, France's from +2/:3%* to +1,5%* and Spain's from +3%* to +2.5%*. Even Great Britain followed the
same trend as the other major-ELropean economies, with a sharp slowing in growth from 1.8%* in 2017 to
+1.4%* in 2018.

As for the emerging economies, China lost its primacy in growth to India. Chinese economic growth suffered
a slowdown, even if its\rate was once again above the average of other emerging countries, going from
6.9%* in 2017 t06.6%*'in 2018. India reported growth of +7.3%* in 2018, improving from 2017 (+6.7%%),
confirming itself as one of the main drivers of growth in the region, along with China. The Brazilian economy

posted positive-growth for the second year in a row (+1.3%*), in the wake of the 2016 recession.
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* Source: IMF, World Economic Outlook Update — January 2019

CABLE INDUSTRY TRENDS

Global cable demand improved in 2018 on 2017, driven by livelier growth in all the major regions. Growth in
world demand for optical cables was less striking than in 2017, reflecting stable demand by the Chinese
market.

Global demand for power cables in 20158 dispiayed higher volume growth than the previous year, mainly
driven by performance on the European and North American markets. Demand for telecom (copper and
optical fibre) cables was stable infast-developing markets (China and APAC) which alone accounted for
more than 50% of the market. Optical fibre cable consumption continued to expand in North America, and in
Europe thanks to plans under the Digital- Agenda for Europe 2025.

Geographically, Brazil shrugged-off its’ previous slowdown, reflecting the challenging economic conditions
faced in recent years, to contirm stahle demand for both energy and telecom cables.

Emerging Asian economies {China, India, Southeast Asia) were confirmed as the main engine of 2018
growth in global demand for power cables, while the Middle East region, where the oil crisis and geopolitical
uncertainty had adversely affected regional economic performance in the past, recorded an improvement. In
the United States.and Europe, demand for power cables continued the upward trajectory initiated in previous
years, supported-by a resurgence in industrial output and consumer confidence. As for the optical cable
market, China accounted for more than 50% of global volume growth, despite stable demand versus the

previous year, foilowed by North America and Europe, which both displayed higher growth than in 2017.
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The various segments of Prysmian Group's market had a mixed performance in 2018, featuring expansion
by optical fibre cables, general stability in demand for cables for industrial applications and infrastructure and
softer demand for cables by utilities in certain regions (North Europe), albeit recovering in the final part.¢f the

year.

After a weak start to the year, the submarine cables market reported a recovery in the seconud-half; with a
number of projects awarded in the final months of the year. The size of the submarine cahies market was
about Euro 2.8 billion, slightly above its past average.

By contrast, demand continued to grow in Southeast Asia, where the Group has wori. &' number of major
interconnection projects. Tendering activities have started for the major/ Suedlink vand Suedostlink

underground HVDC cable projects in Germany.

Partly thanks to political stabilisation, Brazil has seen the major telecom cairiers resume investments in both

copper and optical fibre cables.

North America has continued to see a big increase in data consurnption iy all sectors of society. As a result,
the major market players - AT&T and Verizon to name just a-few - are investing in fibre network
infrastructure. For instance, Verizon has announced that it'is upgrading its network architecture around a
next-generation fibre platform with the aim of increasing-4G caverage and laying the foundations for the
subsequent development of 5G and IoT (Internet of Things) technology. There has also been growing

demand for interconnections between data centres.

The industrial applications business saw a mixed trend-for the different market niches. While cables for the
automotive and railway infrastructure industries were stable year-on-year, the nuclear and infrastructure
businesses recorded a minor decline.

In the Oil & Gas business, demand for orishore pirojects remained at the same level as the year before.

The Downhole Technology business saw signs of improving demand primarily linked to growth in production
of Shale Oil & Shale Gas in North Arngrica.

The Trade & Installers business-enjoyed a positive trend in demand during 2018 in most of the European
countries served as well as-in North America.

As for Power Distribution,’ the-major European countries have seen a generally stagnant trend in energy
consumption in recent years, in turn adversely affecting demand by the main utilities. The latter, operating in
a recessionary ecanemic erivironment, have either maintained extremely cautious positions given the
difficulty of forecasting future growth, or else they have concentrated on business restructuring to improve

efficiency and reduce supply-side costs.
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GROUP PERFORMANCE AND RESULTS
INTRODUCTION

Following the acquisition of General Cable, since June 2018 the Group has embarked on & recrganisation,
as a result of which it has redesigned its operating segments and therefore its segment infermation to reflect

the new model adopted by the Group.
These changes have caused the operating segments to be redesigned as follows:

e Energy: this segment encompasses the former Energy Products segment as well as the Core
Oil&Gas and DHT businesses included until the last quarter in the OIL&GAS segment no longer
significant for the Group.

e Projects: this segment encompasses the former Energy Projects/segmient, the Submarine Telecom
business, new to the Group following the acquisitiori/of General Cable, and the Offshore
Specialties business (previously known as SURF and/included in the OIL&GAS segment now no
longer significant for the Group);

e Telecom: this segment has not undergone any changes as aresult of the above reorganisation.
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FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

(in millions of Euro)

2018 (*) 2017 (**) % % 2016 (**)
Prysmian | General | Adjustments Total | Prysmian | change change | Prysmian
Cable Conso.  Prysmian : .

Sales 8,061 2,155 (58) | 10,158 7,904 28.5% 2.0% 7,516

of which sales vs third parties 8,041 2,117 10,158 7,904 28.5% 1.7

Adjusted EBITDA before

share of net profit/(loss) of 581 123 - 704 694 1.4% -16.3% 689

equity-accounted companies 1 ]

% of sales 7.2% 5.7% 6.9% 8.8% 9.0%

Adjusted EBITDA 640 123 - 763 736 720

% of sales 7.9% 5.7% 7.5% 9.3% 9.4%

EBITDA 532 64 - 596 660 654

% of sales 6.6% 2.9% 5.9% 8.4% 8.5%

Fair value change in metal

derlvatlves (33) (15) i (48) 12 O S— A= 54

Fair value stock options (5) 1) - (6) (49) i/ (49)

Amortisation, depreciation,

impairment and impairment (185) (47) - (203)

reversal

Operating income 309 1 - -27.1% 456

% of sales 3.8% 0.0% 5.9%

Net finance income/(costs) (102) (10) - (79)

Profit/(loss) before taxes 207 9 - -36.4% 377

% of sales 2.6% -0.4% 4.9%

Taxes (64) (4) - (109)

Net profit/(loss) for the year 143 (13) - "A30-0 237 . -45.1% -39.6% 268

% of sales 1.8% -06% : A 1.3% 5 3.0% 3.5%

Attributable to:

Owners of the parent 143 (13) 252

Non-controlling interests - - 16

Reconciliation of Operating Income / EBITD.

Operating income (A) 309 1 . - 310 424+ -26.9% -27.1% 456

EBITDA (B) 532 64  / - 596 660 -9.7% -19.3% 654

Adjustments:

Company reorganisation 27 39 (4 - 66 30 50
pf Whlch General Cable 10 39" } 49 } )
integrationcosts ~~~~~~"E T

Non-recurrl_ng 69 — ) 69 18 N

expenses/(income)
of which Antitrust 69 ./ S - 69 18 1)

Other non-operating 12 2 ) 32 o8 17

expenses/(income) !
of which General Cable :
acquisition-related costs < ’ ) 4 16 )
of which General Cable :
integration costs ) s1 ) )
of which release of General . 16 . .
Cable inventory step-up
of which income from YOFC 36
listing ) (36) ) )

Total adjustments (C) - 167 76 66

Fair value change in metal

derivatives (D) (& B (12) 4

Fair value stock options (E) 5 1 - 6 49 49

Assets impairment and‘ ) ) 5 22 30

impairment reversal (F) .

Adjusted operating’income

(A+JC+D+EfF) I 460 76 - 536 559 -4.1% -17.7% 547

Adjusted EBITDA (BE+C) 640 123 - 763 736 3.7% -13.1% 720

(*) The results of General Cable have been consolidated for the period 1 June - 31 December 2018.

(**) The previcusly published comparative figures for 2017 and 2016 have been restated following the introduction of IFRS 9 and IFRS
15. Further detalis.can be found in Section C. Restatement of comparative figures, within the Explanatory Notes to the Consolidated
Financial Statements.

@ Reflects the higher cost of using finished goods and raw materials measured at General Cable's acquisition-date fair value
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Organic sales growth for the Projects segment was heavily influenced in 2018 by the negative impact of the
Western Link project.

Excluding this effect, organic sales growth would have been higher, reflecting a recovery in insiaiiation
activities for Submarine projects and solid High Voltage demand in certain markets, primarity -China,
Indonesia, South Europe and South America.

Segment profitability was significantly lower than in 2017, the consequence of additionai. cesis for the
Western Link project, an unfavourable comparison with 2017 (for both Prysmian and Genetai-Cable), delays
in the execution of certain projects and some rework activities. The High Voltage business reported
significant growth in lower margin markets. This confirms the Group's important presence /in Middle and Far
East markets, which continue to display growing demand for energy infrastri:cture but also lower profit

margins. Positive results were also achieved in South Europe and South America:

Profits in the Energy segment in 2018 reflected mixed performances within-its business lines. Within Energy
and Infrastructure, the Power Distribution business remained depressed, compared with the previous year,
particularly in the Nordic region, although displaying some recovery-in/sales volumes, while those of the
Trade & Installers business improved on the previous year, particuiarly in North America and Europe, even if
profitability was affected by negative exchange rate trends. Industrial & Natwork Components also reported a
mixed performance between the different businesses: positive -or stable for Network Components,
Renewables and Automotive, like for the Elevator businesses, affected by rising price pressure in the
Chinese market and an unfavourable exchange rate due to the considerable exposure to the North American

market, nonetheless offset by increased volumes.

The Downhole Technology business saw signs-of improving demand primarily linked to growth in production
of Shale Oil & Shale Gas in North America; the Core Qil & Gas business confirmed a resurgence in demand
by onshore projects. The business's overall margins remained largely stable despite a drop in higher-margin

MRO and offshore volumes.

The Telecom segment performed weli, with-organic growth in 2018 sales reflecting the positive trend already
observed last year. This was mainly the product of a steady growth in demand for optical fibre and special
cables serving major investmeni-projects. The segment's profitability also benefited from the positive results
reported by the associate Yangtze Optical Fibre and Cable Joint Stock Limited Company in China and by the

recovery of credit from 4 Brazilian customer that had been written off in 2016.

The Group's sales for-2018 came to Euro 10,158 million, compared with Euro 7,904 million in 2017, posting
a positive change of Eurn 2,254 million (+28.5%).
The increase in sales can be broken down into the following main factors:

- ~Eure’ 2,117 million (+26.8%) following General Cable's inclusion in the Group from the end of
May 2018;
- Euro 137 million (+1.7%) in sales growth by the pre-acquisition Prysmian Group.

59



PRYSMIAN GROUP | DIRECTORS' REPORT

The change relating to the pre-acquisition Prysmian Group is mainly attributable to the following factors:

- increase of Euro 261 million (+3.3%) for organic sales growth;

- decrease of Euro 389 million (-5.0%) due to adverse exchange rate effects;

- sales price increase of Euro 265 million (+3.4%) following metal price fluctuations (copper,
aluminium and lead).

Organic sales growth for the pre-acquisition group was a positive 3.4%, analysed hetween the three

operating segments as follows:

Projects +2.6%;
Energy +3.1%;
Telecom +5.0%.

Group Adjusted EBITDA (before net expenses for company reorganisailon, net non-recurring expenses and
other net non-operating expenses totalling Euro 167 million) came te Euro 763 million, posting an increase of
Euro 27 million on the corresponding 2017 figure of Euro 736/million (+2.7%), mainly due to Euro 123 million
from the first-time consolidation of General Cable into Prysmian, as-partly offset by Euro 95 million in extra
costs for the Western Link project. Adjusted EBITDA for-2018 was also negatively impacted by Euro 33
million in exchange rate effects compared with the same period and same scope of consolidation in 2017,
mainly due to a general depreciation of currencies against the Euro, particularly by the Argentine Peso,

Brazilian Real, US Dollar, Turkish Lira, Australiari Dcllar and Omani Rial.

EBITDA is stated after net expenses for company rearganisation, net non-recurring expenses and other net
non-operating expenses totalling Euro 2467 million (Euro 76 million in 2017). Such adjustments in 2018
consist primarily of Euro 69 million in provisionsfor antitrust litigation, Euro 49 million in reorganisation costs
following the acquisition of General’ Cabie, Euro 35 million in costs related to the acquisition and integration
of General Cable, and Euro 16 million in-higher costs for the sale of inventory, measured at fair value under
IFRS 3 as part of the General Cahie acduisition accounting process, as partially offset by the gain of Euro 36

million arising on dilution of the interestin YOFC.

Amortisation, depreciation and impairment amounted to Euro 232 million in 2018, reporting a year-on-year
increase of Euro 33 miliion, with Euro 47 million attributable to the first-time consolidation of General Cable.
The fair value charige-in.metal derivatives was a negative Euro 48 million in 2018, compared with a positive
Euro 12 million in.2017.
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Group operating income was Euro 310 million in 2018, compared with Euro 424 million in 2017, reflecting a
decrease of Euro 114 million primarily due to:

- Euro 95 million in extra costs for the Western Link project;

- Euro 69 million in provisions for antitrust litigation;

- Euro 43 million in less expense for stock option fair value recognition.

Net finance costs amounted to Euro 112 million in 2018, compared with Euro 99 million in the previous year.

Taxes came to Euro 68 million, representing an effective tax rate of around 34%.

Net profit for 2018 was Euro 130 million (all of which attributable to the Group), compared with Euro 237
million (of which Euro 241 million attributable to the Group) in 2017.

If General Cable had been consolidated from 1 January 2018, the Group's, sales’to third parties would have
been Euro 11,577 million, up Euro 224 million on 2017. The Group's.organic growth would therefore have
been 3.3%.

Adjusted EBITDA for 2018 would have been Euro 837 million,.down Eura 103 million on the year before.

The prime objective of the ongoing integration process ‘is-to-achieve synergies. The synergies realised to
date can be divided into:

e Greater cost efficiency and cross-selling, /achieved by reducing fixed costs through organisational
efficiencies and savings in the procurement of direct and indirect materials and by cross-selling
activities; these synergies amounted to-Euro 35 rillion in 2018;

e Working capital synergies: through-—mere efficient inventory management and by centralising
supplier terms and conditions of payrnent; these synergies amounted to Euro 180 million;

e Financial synergies: the refinancirig of General Cable's net financial debt at the time of acquisition

has generated a synergy cf Euro-14.iillion in the subsequent six months.

The aggregate target synergies announced at the time of acquisition have been revised up by Euro 25
million and are now expected to-be achieved one year in advance (by 2021 instead of 2022). More
specifically, cost synergies,-originaliy forecast at Euro 5-10 million for 2018, actually came in at Euro 35
million, and are expected to e around Euro 120 million in 2019, Euro 155 million in 2020 and Euro 175
million in 2021.
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REVIEW OF PROJECTS OPERATING SEGMENT

(in millions of Euro)

2018 (*) 2017 (**) % % 2016 (**)
: : : change change i v ——
Prysmian | General | Adjustments | Total | Prysmian Conso. = Prysmian Pryamian
Cable :
Sales 1,539 151 1) i 1,689 1,533 10.2% 0.4% 1,719
of which sales vs third parties 1,538 151 1,689 1,533 10.2% 0:3% 1,719
Adjusted EBITDA before share |
of net profit/(loss) of equity- 149 10 - 159 277 -46.2% 287
accounted companies
% of sales 9.7% 6.4% 9.4% 18.0% 16.2%
Adjusted EBITDA 149 10 - 159 278° -46.3% 287
% of sales 9.7% 6.4% 9.4% 18.0% 16.2%
EBITDA 79 - - -69.3% 300
% of sales 5.2% -0.1% 17.0%
Amortisation and depreciation 47) ) - _ (44)
Adjusted operating income 102 3 - 105 228 -54.1% -55.1% 243
% of sales 6.7% 1.5% 6,2% 14.7% 13.7%
Reconciliation between
EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA
EBITDA (A) 79 - 258 | -69.4% -69.3% 300
Adjustments:
Company reorganisation 1 9 - 10 1 -
of which General Cable "
; h - 9 - 9 - -
integration costs /NN
Non-recurrl_ng 69 ) 69 18 N
expenses/(income)
of which Antitrust 69 — - 69 18 1)
Other non-operating : ) 1 1 (12)
expenses/(income)
of which release of General 1
Cable inventory step-up E
Total adjustments (B) 70 - 80 20 (13)
Adjusted EBITDA (A+B) 149 10 - 159 278 | -42.8% -46.3% 287

(*) The results of General Cable have heen cansoiicated for the period 1 June - 31 December 2018.

(**) The previously published comparative figures for 2017 and 2016 have been restated following the introduction of IFRS 9 and IFRS
15. Further details can be found in Section C. Restatement of comparative figures, within the Explanatory Notes to the Consolidated
Financial Statements.

The Projects Operating Segment incorporates the high-tech businesses of High Voltage underground,
Submarine Power, Submarine Telecom, and Offshore Specialties, whose focus is projects and their
execution, as weil-as product customisation.

The Group engineers, produces and installs high and extra high voltage cables for electricity transmission
both from power stations and within transmission and primary distribution grids. These highly specialised,
tech-driven-products include cables insulated with oil or fluid-impregnated paper for voltages up to 1100 kV
and extruded poiymer insulated cables for voltages up to 600 kV. These are complemented by laying and
post-laying services, grid monitoring and preventive maintenance services, power line repair and

maintenance services, as well as emergency services, including intervention in the event of damage.
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In addition, Prysmian Group engineers, produces and installs "turnkey" submarine cable systems for power
transmission and distribution. The products offered include cables with different types of insulation: cables
insulated with layers of oil or fluid-impregnated paper for AC and DC transmission up to 700 kV; cahles
insulated with extruded polymer for AC transmission up to 400 kV and DC transmission up to 600 kV. The
Group uses specific technological solutions for power transmission and distribution inunderwater
environments, which satisfy the strictest international standards.

With the acquisition of General Cable, Prysmian Group has entered the Submarine Telecoim cahles business,
specialised in the production and installation of data transmission cables.

The Offshore Specialties business incorporates a wide range of products for the oi! “industry, including
umbilical cables, flexible pipes and all electrical, optical and signalling componerits for-oil well management

from the seabed to the offshore platform.

MARKET OVERVIEW

The submarine cables business faced a weaker market in 2018 than in the previous year; however, several
tenders, whose award delayed for several months, are now in progress and at an advanced stage of the
tendering process, pointing to an upturn in demand in 2019./This market is expected to grow over the
medium term, especially the Offshore Wind segment, fostered by tiie continuous reduction in electricity
generation costs and accompanying increase in competitiveness.

The high voltage underground business has experienced essentially stable demand in Europe, with a mixed
performance between the different countries, while repcrting.a downturn in North America and the Middle
East. By contrast, demand continued to grow in Southeast Asia, where the Group has won a number of
major interconnection projects. Tendering activities have started for the major Suedlink and Suedostlink
underground HVDC cable projects in Germany.

The Offshore Specialties business has seen a-cantinued drop in prices due to strong local market

competition.

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE
Sales to third parties by the Projects segment amounted to Euro 1,689 million in 2018, compared with Euro
1,533 million in 2017, posting a pastive-change of Euro 156 million (+10.2%).
The main components of this change aie as follows:
- Euro 151 million (+9.9%¢) following General Cable's inclusion in the Group from the end of May 2018;

- Euro 5 million (+6.3%) in sales growth by the pre-acquisition Prysmian Group.

The change relating to-the pre-acquisition Prysmian Group is mainly attributable to the following factors:
- positive organic growth of Euro 40 million (+2.6%);
- decrease of Euio 41 million (-2.5%) for exchange rate fluctuations;

- salas price increase of Euro 6 million (+0.2%) for metal price fluctuations.

Organic sales growth was heavily influenced in 2018 by the negative impact of the Western Link project.
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Excluding this effect, organic sales growth would have been higher, reflecting a recovery in installation
activities for Submarine projects and solid High Voltage demand in certain markets, primarily China,
Indonesia, South Europe and South America.

Segment profitability was significantly lower than in 2017, the consequence of additional costs foir the
Western Link project, an unfavourable comparison with 2017 (for both Prysmian and General Cable), delays
in the execution of certain projects and some product rework activities. The High Voltage business reported
significant growth in lower margin markets. This confirms the Group's important presence-in-Middle and Far
East markets, which continue to display growing demand for energy infrastructuré-bui also lower profit
margins. Positive results were also achieved in South Europe and South America.

The Offshore Specialties business was marked by continued contraction in the rnarket for imbilical cables in
Brazil, Prysmian's main market and home to Petrobras, its top customer for these products.

The main submarine cable projects on which work was performed during the period were: the links between
offshore wind farms in the North and Baltic Seas and the German. mainland /(Borwin3, 50Hertz), the
interconnector between Norway and Britain (North Sea Link), the interconnector between the Netherlands
and Denmark (CoBRA cable) and the interconnection between Frarice-and the UK (IFA2).

Sales in the period were the result of cable manufacturing activities by the Group's industrial facilities
(Pikkala in Finland, Arco Felice in Italy, Drammen in Norway and Nordznhan in Germany) and installation

services, performed with both its own assets and third-party equipment.

The value of the Group's Submarine order book is arcund Euro 1.465 billion, inclusive of the General Cable
order book, and mainly consists of the following contracts: the interconnector between Norway and Britain
(North Sea Link); the CoBRA cable between the MNetherlands and Denmark; inter-array and export cables for
offshore wind platforms (Deutsche Bucht); the intercennection between France and the UK (IFA2); the
Hainan2 project in China; the interconnection preiects in the Philippines and Bahrain; the new offshore
projects in France; the Capri-Sorrento interconnection project in Italy; and contracts to supply inter-array
cables for the Hornsea2 and Borssele/lli e iV wind farms.

The value of the Group's High Voltage order book is around Euro 435 million, inclusive of the General Cable

order book.

Adjusted EBITDA recorded in 2818 came to Euro 159 million, down from Euro 278 million in 2017, with the
decrease of Euro 119 millien-(-42.3%) largely attributable to Euro 95 million in extra costs for the Western
Link project, to an unfavourable comparison with the submarine business's performance in 2017 (for both
Prysmian and General -Cable), to delays in the execution of certain projects and some rework activities.
These effects were partially offset by the High Voltage business's performance in South Europe and South

America. The negative trend for the Offshore Specialties business was confirmed in 2018.

If Generai Cable had been consolidated from 1 January 2018, the Projects operating segment's sales to third
parties would have been Euro 1,804 million, up Euro 50 million on 2017. The segment's organic growth
would therefore have been 4.7%.

Adjusted EBITDA for 2018 would have been Euro 170 million, down Euro 128 million on the year before.
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REVIEW OF ENERGY OPERATING SEGMENT

(in millions of Euro)

2018 (*) 2017 %
: : : h
Prysmian | General | Adjustments : Total | Prysmian %Oe;nsgoe
Cable AN :

Sales 5,239 1,779 (43) i 6,975 5,113 36.4% 2:5% 4,693
of which sales vs third parties 5,233 1,742 6,975 5,113 36.4% 2.3% 4,693
Adjusted EBITDA before
share of net profit/(loss) of 231 85 - 316 240 31.6% -3.9% 267
equity-accounted companies AN
% of sales 4.4% 4.8% 4.5% 4.7% 5.7%
Adjusted EBITDA 235 85 - 320 244 -3.8% 270
% of sales 4.5% 4.8% 4.6% 4.8% 5.8%
EBITDA 199 50 - -10.2% 208
% of sales 3.8% 2.8% 4.4%
Amortisation and depreciation (89) (37) - (89)
Adjusted operating income 146 48 - -7.7% 181
% of sales 2.8% 2.7% 3.9%
Reconciliation between AT
EBITDA and Adjusted
EBITDA e
EBITDA (A) 199 50 221 12.5% -10.2% 208
Adjustments:
Company reorganisation - 45 20 40

of which General Cable 30

integration costs
Non-recurring ) ) ) )
expenses/(income)
Other non-operating ) 26 3 22
expenses/(income)

of which release of General

’ 12

Cable inventory step-up
Total adjustments (B) - 71 23 62
Adjusted EBITDA (A+B) - 320 244 31.2% -3.8% 270

(*) The results of General Cable have beern-censciidated for the period 1 June - 31 December 2018.

The Energy Operating Segment, incorporating those businesses able to offer a complete and innovative
portfolio to a variety of-indusiries; is organised around the business areas of Energy & Infrastructure
(comprising Trade & /Installers, Power Distribution and Overhead Transmission Lines) and Industrial and
Network Components (cemnrising Oil & Gas, Downhole Technology, Specialties & OEM, Elevators,

Automotive and Network Components).
Sales to third parties by the Energy operating segment amounted to Euro 6,975 million, compared with Euro

5,113 millicn in 2017, posting a positive change of Euro 1,862 million (+36.4%), the main components of

which are as follows:
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- Euro 1,742 million (+34.1%) following General Cable's inclusion in the Group from the end of
May 2018;
- Euro 120 million (+2.3%) in sales growth by the pre-acquisition Prysmian Group.

The change relating to the pre-acquisition Prysmian Group is mainly attributable to the following factors:
- organic increase of Euro 158 million (+3.1%), reflecting a growth in volumes conceritrated in
Europe and North America;
- decrease of Euro 286 million (-5.6%) linked to unfavourable exchange rate-movements;

- sales price increase of Euro 248 million (+4.8%) for metal price fluctuations:

Adjusted EBITDA for 2018 came to Euro 320 million, up Euro 76 million (+31.2%){rom Euro 244 million in
2017. This increase has benefited from Euro 85 million (+34.8%) for the first-time consolidation of General
Cable.

The entry of General Cable to the Energy segment has led to a tuiring point for the Group's size, by
enlarging its product portfolio and strengthening its presence in- strategic regions like North America and

Latin America.

If General Cable had been consolidated from 1 January 2018, the Energy operating segment's sales to third
parties would have been Euro 8,139 million, up Eure-132 million on 2017. The segment's organic growth
would therefore have been 2.4%.

Adjusted EBITDA for 2018 would have been Euro 372 million, down Euro 23 million on the year before.

The following paragraphs describe market trends and financial performance in each of the Energy operating

segment’s business areas.
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2018 (*) 2017 % %
Prysmian | General @ Adjustments | Total | Prysmian %2?”5%6? P?gg::]?sn
Cable . T A S

Sales 3,371 1,294 (29) 4,636 3,271 41.7% 3.0%. 3,016
of which sales vs third parties 3,368 1,268 4,636 3,271 41.7% 3.0% 3,016
Adjusted EBITDA before share

of net profit/(loss) of equity- 116 52 - 168 128 31.2% -8.6% 152
accounted companies b

% of sales 3.4% 4.0% 3.6% 3.9% 5.0%
Adjusted EBITDA 119 52 - 171 130 154
% of sales 3.5% 4.0% 3.7% 4.0% 5.1%
Adjusted operating income 58 27 - 85 73 W% -20.1% 92
% of sales 1.7% 2.1% 1.8% 22% 3.0%

(*) The results of General Cable have been consolidated for the period 1 June - 31 Decemizer 2018.

Prysmian produces high and medium voltage cable systems to connect indusirial and/or civilian buildings to
primary distribution grids and low voltage cables and systems/for power distribution and the wiring of
buildings. All the products offered comply with international staridards regarding insulation, fire resistance,
smoke emissions and halogen levels. The low voltage product portfolio includes rigid and flexible cables for
distributing power to and within residential and commercia! buiidings. The Group concentrates product
development and innovation activities on high performance cahies, such as Fire-Resistant and Low Smoke
zero Halogen cables, capable of guaranteeing specific_safety standards. The product range has been
recently expanded to satisfy cabling demands for infrastructure such as airports, ports and railway stations,

by customers as diverse as international distribuitors, buying syndicates, installers and wholesalers.

MARKET OVERVIEW

The reference markets have distinct geagraphical characteristics (despite international product standards)
both in terms of customer and supplief fragmentation and the range of items produced and sold.

The Trade & Installers business enjayed a positive trend in demand during 2018 in most of the European

countries served as well as in Nerth America.

As for Power Distribution, the ‘major-European countries have seen a generally stagnant trend in energy
consumption in recent years;.in turn adversely affecting demand by the main utilities. The latter, operating in
a recessionary econcriic’ environment, have either maintained extremely cautious positions given the
difficulty of forecasting future growth, or else they have concentrated on business restructuring to improve
efficiency and recluce suppiy-side costs. This situation has exacerbated the competitive environment in terms
of price and mix, leavingan extremely challenging context almost everywhere.

In 2018, the Power Distribution business showed signs of recovery in Europe, particularly in Germany and
the Danube area, with a substantially stable situation in South Europe but a contraction in North Europe.
Beyond Europe;-demand expanded in North America and APAC; the situation in South America, however,
remained challenging due to recent changes in the Latin American utilities sector currently in the throes of

consolidation.
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The Overhead Transmission Lines business, with a major presence on the American market, is part of the

Group following the General Cable acquisition.

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE
Sales to third parties by the Energy & Infrastructure business area amounted to Euro 4,636 miiiicn in-2018,
compared with Euro 3,271 million in 2017, posting a positive change of Euro 1,365 million (+41.7%), the
main components of which are as follows:
- Euro 1,268 million (+38.7%) following General Cable's inclusion in the Group-fram-the end of May
2018;

- Euro 97 million (+3.0%) in sales growth by the pre-acquisition Prysmian Gioup,

The change relating to the pre-acquisition Prysmian Group is mainly attributable te the following factors:

- positive organic growth of Euro 117 million (+3.6%);
- decrease of Euro 180 million (-5.5%) for adverse exchange rate fiuctuations;

- sales price increase of Euro 160 million (+4.9%) for metal price fluctuations.

Prysmian Group has carried on its strategy for the Trade & Instailers business of focusing on relationships
with top international customers and of developing tactical actions to avoid losing sales opportunities, by
differentiating its offer in the various markets and by increasing its market share in specific geographical
areas. This has led to a complex commercial strategy, not only focused where possible on improving the
sales mix, but also aimed at regaining market share while seeking to optimise sales margins.

Over the course of 2018, the Group saw sales volumes.increase year-on-year, particularly in North America
and in Europe, thanks not only to strict application-of the Construction Products Regulation (EU Regulation
305/2011), which became mandatory froim 1 July 2017 in every European Union member state, but also to a
general upturn in the construction market.

Power Distribution, however, reported-a worse year-on-year performance, reflecting softer demand in several
markets and pressure on prices, the continued strength of which has impacted the results.

Even the results of the Omani subsidiary, suffering from conditions on the local market, were below the year
before.

Given the factors described.above, Adjusted EBITDA for 2018 came to Euro 171 million, up Euro 41 million
from the prior year figure of Euro 130 million (+31.5%). This increase has benefited from Euro 52 million

(+40.0%) for the first-time consolidation of General Cable.

If General Cable had been consolidated from 1 January 2018, the E&I business's sales to third parties would
have been Eura 5,482 million, up Euro 113 million on 2017. The business's organic growth would therefore
have been2.1%.

Adjusted EBITDA for 2018 would have been Euro 207 million, down Euro 26 million on the year before.
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INDUSTRIAL & NETWORK COMPONENTS

(in millions of Euro)

2018 (*) 2017 % %
Prysmian = General . Adjustments = Total  Prysmian change = change
Cable Conso. = Prysmian
Sales 1,712 393 (2) i 2,103 1,693 24.2%
of which sales vs third parties 1,711 392 2,103 1,693 24.2%
Adjusted EBITDA before
share of net profit/(loss) of 115 35 - 150 113 1.4% 116
equity-accounted companies
% of sales 6.7% 8.9% 7.1% 6.7% 7.5%
Adjusted EBITDA 116 35 - 151 115 0.8% 117
% of sales 6.8% 8.9% 7.2% 6.8% 7.5%
Adjusted operating income 89 24 - 113 88 28/4% 1.4% 91
% of sales 5.2% 6.1% 5.4% 2% 5.8%

(*) The results of General Cable have been consolidated for the period 1 June - 31 December-2018.

The extensive range of cables developed specially for certain industries is characterised by the highly
specific nature of the solutions offered. In the transport market, Prysmian-cables are used in the construction
of ships and trains, and in the automotive and aerospace industries; in-the infrastructure market, the principal
applications for its cables are found in railways, docks and airparts. The product range also includes cables
for the mining industry, for elevators and for applications in.the renewable energy field (solar and wind
power), cables for military use and for nuclear power siations, able to withstand the highest radiation

environments.

It also offers a wide range of products able to serve-every onshore and offshore need, including the design
and supply of systems for power transmission and data communications and for hydraulic powering of
wellheads by offshore platforms and/or ty-floating, production, storage and offloading vessels; flexible
offshore pipes for hydrocarbon transport; Downhole Technology (DHT) solutions, which include insulated
tubing encased cables to control and power systems inside extraction and production machinery both
offshore and onshore.

The range of products for the Gli.-& GAS industry also includes low and medium voltage power cables, and
instrumentation and control cables for-offshore and onshore applications. The onshore product range is able

to support applications in the Upstream, Midstream and Downstream segments.

Lastly, the Group produces accessories and network components, as well as sophisticated control systems;
for example, joints-and-terrinations for low, medium, high and extra high voltage cables and submarine
systems to connect cables with one another and/or connect them with other network devices, suitable for
industrial, construction and infrastructure applications and for use within power transmission and distribution

networks.
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MARKET OVERVIEW

Trends in Industrial cable markets display considerable inconsistencies within the various business lines and
between the different geographical areas. In fact, while some market segments have shown growing
demand, like certain OEM sectors (such as Railway or Cranes), others have been stable, like Automotive
and Mining, while other segments have seen volumes decline in specific countries due to. delays in

investment projects in areas of national interest like Nuclear and Infrastructure.

0&G demand was down year-on-year in Europe and North America, but stable in APAC. Dffshore activities
have remained depressed, putting pressure not only on the major Asian shipyards (in, Singapore and Korea)
but also EPC contractors. The drilling sector has revived, largely driven by the North’ American market, while
the MRO (Maintenance, Repair and Overhaul) segment has remained weak.

The Downhole Technology business has seen further signs of growth in turnover associated with Shale Oil &
Shale Gas production in North America and, in the Middle East, with onchare invesiments in Saudi Arabia.
The ESP (Downwell Pump) business has seen initial signs of market-arowth, especially in North America and
the Middle East.

The Elevator market has recorded growth in North America and’EMEA, but substantial stability in APAC.

The Automotive market has remained stable. Demand continued to be strong in South America, stable in
Europe and Southeast Asia and slightly down in North America and Thina.

Despite the strong growth in the market for electric cars, there-is a continuing trend in the latter regions for

cable manufacturers to intercept the market upstream.

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE
Sales to third parties by the Industrial & Network Components business area amounted to Euro 2,103 million
in 2018, compared with Euro 1,693 millionin-2017, recording a positive change of Euro 410 million (+24.2%),

the main components of which are as foilows:

- Euro 392 million (+23.2%%) folicwing General Cable's inclusion in the Group from the end of May
2018;

- Euro 18 million (+1.0%)in sales growth by the pre-acquisition Prysmian Group.

The change relating to the pre-acquisition Prysmian Group is mainly attributable to the following factors:
- positive organic growth of Euro 43 million (+2.5%);
- decrease of Eurc 98 million (-5.8%) for adverse exchange rate fluctuations;

- sales pricg/increase of Euro 73 million (+4.3%) for metal price fluctuations.

The industiial appiications market posted a stable performance in 2018 compared with 2017, supported by

the necessary differentiation by geographies and application.
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In the Oil & Gas business, demand for onshore projects remained at the same level as the year before. The
business's overall profitability remained largely stable despite a drop in higher-margin MRO and offshore

volumes.

The Downhole Technology business saw signs of improving demand primarily linked to growth In produsction
of Shale Oil & Shale Gas in North America.

In the OEM market, the Group recorded growth in North America and South America.-As for the different
applications, the market's main drivers compared with the previous year were the Cranes, Railway and Solar

businesses. Instead, the Nuclear and Infrastructure businesses were both weaker.

The Elevator business was affected in 2018 by growing price pressure on thie-Chinese market and negative
exchange rate effects arising from its considerable exposure to the Ncrth. American market, as offset by
increased volumes. Last year's growth in the EMEA region continued. By conirast, the North American

market was marked by growing demand, mostly concentrated on low value-added products.

The Automotive business maintained its margins year-on-year, thianks to the strategy of focusing on top-end
segments and to better industrial performance, especially “in-North America. Competitive pressure has
continued for low value-added products, and mounted in Southeast-Asia.

The acquisition of General Cable has enabled greater verticai integration and greater proximity to the end

customer.

Growth in the Network Components business area was driven by High Voltage applications, where the range

of products up to 150kV more than made up fér a contraction in EHV volumes.

Given the factors described above, Adjusted EBITDA for 2018 came to Euro 151 million, up from Euro 115
million in 2017, posting a positive change of Eurc-36 million (+31.3%) of which Euro 35 million (+30.4%) due

to the first-time consolidation of Genera! Cable:

If General Cable had been corsoiidated from 1 January 2018, the Industrial & Network Components
business's sales to third parties-wouid have been Euro 2,353 million, up Euro 51 million on 2017. The
business's organic growth/would therefore have been 3.3%.

Adjusted EBITDA for 2618 would have been Euro 167 million, down Euro 2 million on the year before.
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OTHER
(in millions of Euro)
2018 (*) 2017 2016
Prysmian | General | Adjustments Total | Prysmian Prysn'i"i"é_ﬁ """
Cable
Sales 156 92 (12) 236
of which sales vs third parties 154 82 236
Adjgsted EBITDA before share of net profit/(loss) of ) @ ) @ (i) 1)
equity-accounted companies 4 M e e
Adjusted EBITDA - 2 - 1) 1)
Adjusted operating income (1) ?3) - 3) 2)

(*) The results of General Cable have been consolidated for the period 1 June - 31 December 2018.

This business area encompasses occasional sales by Prysmian Group operating units of intermediate goods,
raw materials or other products forming part of the production process. Tihese sales are normally linked to

local business situations, do not generate high margins and can vary in size from period to period.
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REVIEW OF TELECOM OPERATING SEGMENT

(in millions of Euro)

2018 (*) 2017 % % 2016
Prysmian | General | Adjustments Total | Prysmian %2?”5%? P(i;g;gagn . _Prysmian
Cable ..................................................
Sales 1,283 225 (14) | 1,494 1,258 18.7% 1,164
of which sales vs third parties 1,270 224 1,494 1,258 18.7% 1,164
Adjusted EBITDA before
share of net profit/(loss) of 201 28 - 229 177 29.6% 135
equity-accounted companies
% of sales 15.7% 12.7% 15.4% 11.6%
Adjusted EBITDA 256 28 - 284 32:8% 19.5% 163
% of sales 19.9% 12.7% 19.0% 14.0%
EBITDA 287 19 - 306 48.4% 39.1% 158
% of sales 22.4% 8.5% 20.5% 13.6%
Amortisation and depreciation (44) 3) - 47y (40)
Adjusted operating income 212 25 - Z3% 37.2% 22.3% 123
% of sales 11.5% 15.9% 10.6%
T T T e e N AN
EBITDA and Adjusted
EBITDA .......
EBITDA (A) 287 19 - 306 206 48.4% 39.1% 158
Adjustments:
Company reorganisation 1 7 - 8 6 6
of which General Cable N
; h - 7 - 7 - -
integrationcosts 0T
Non-recurring ) ) ) ) )
expenses/(income)
Other non-operating )
expenses/(income) (30) 2 @
of which release of General 3
Cable inventory step-up
of which income from YOFC
st (36)
isting
Total adjustments (B) - (22) 8 5
Adjusted EBITDA (A+B) - 284 214 32.8% 19.5% 163

(*) The results of General Cable have been consolidated for the period 1 June - 31 December 2018.

As partner to leading telecorn|operators worldwide, Prysmian Group produces and manufactures a wide

range of cable systems and-connectivity products used in telecommunication networks. The product portfolio

includes optical fiore, optical cables, connectivity components and accessories and copper cables.

Optical fibre

Prysmian Group is/one of the leading manufacturers of the core component of every type of optical cable:

optical fibre. The Group is in the unique position of being able to use all existing manufacturing processes
within its plants: MCVD (Modified Chemical Vapour Deposition), OVD (Outside Vapour Deposition), VAD
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(Vapour Axial Deposition) and PCVD (Plasma-activated Chemical Vapour Deposition). The result is an
optimised product range for different applications. With centres of excellence in Battipaglia (Italy), Eindhoven
(the Netherlands) and Douvrin (France), and 5 production sites around the world, Prysmian Group cfiers a
wide range of optical fibres, such as single-mode, multimode and specialty fibres, designed and

manufactured to cater to the broadest possible spectrum of customer applications.

Optical cables

Optical fibres are employed in the production of standard optical cables or those ‘sgecially- designed for
challenging or inaccessible environments. Optical cables, constructed using just a singie fibre or up to as
many as 1,728 fibres, can be pulled (or blown) into ducts, buried directly underground or suspended on
overhead devices such as telegraph poles or electricity pylons. Cables are also installed in road and rail
tunnels, gas and sewerage networks and inside various buildings where they. must satisfy specific fire-
resistant requirements. Prysmian Group operates in the telecommunicaticns. market with a wide range of
cable solutions and systems that respond to the demand for wider bandwidth by major network operators
and service providers. The product portfolio covers every area of/the. industry, including long-distance and
urban systems, and solutions such as optical ground wire (CPGW), Rapier (easy break-out), Siroccoxs
(fibres and cables for blown installation), Flextube® (extremeiy flexibie =2asy-to-handle cables for indoor or

outdoor installations), Airbag (dielectric direct buried cable) and many. more.

Connectivity

Whether deployed in outdoor or indoor applicaticins, Prysmian Group's OAsys connectivity solutions are
designed for versatility, covering all cable management needs whatever the network type. These include
aerial and underground installations, as weii-as cabling in central offices (or exchanges) or customer
premises. Prysmian Group has been designing,.developing and making cable and fibre management
products for more than two decades and’is ati the forefront of designing next-generation products specifically
for Fibre-To-The-Home (FTTH) networks.

FTTx

Increasing bandwidth requiremenis, by _both business and residential customers, are having a profound
effect upon the level of performaince demanded of optical networks, which in turn demands high standards of
fibore management. Optimal fibre management in every section of the network is increasingly a matter of
priority in order to minimise pewer loss and overcome the problems caused by ever greater space limitations.
The Group has developed the' suite of xsNet products for "last mile" access networks, which is also very
suited to optical fibre deployment in sparsely populated rural areas. Most of the cables used in FTTX/FTTH
systems feature Prysmian's bend-insensitive BendBrightxs optical fibre, which has been specially developed

for this application.

FTTA (Fibre-Ta-The-Antenna)
xsMobile, which offers Fibre-To-The-Antenna (FTTA) solutions, is an extensive passive portfolio which

enables mobile operators to upgrade their networks quickly and easily. Incorporating Prysmian's experience
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in Fibre-to-the-Home (FTTH) and its unique fibre innovations, xsMobile provides different product solutions
for three applications: antenna towers, roof-top antennas and Distributed Antenna Systems (DAS) for small
cell deployment. The technology offers three access types for outdoor and indoor FTTA deployment, as well

as backhaul solutions, incorporating the latest fibre technologies.

Copper cables

Prysmian Group also produces a wide range of copper cables for underground and-everihead cabling
solutions and for both residential and commercial buildings. The product portfolio~camprises cables of
different capacity, including broadband xDSL cables and those designed for high “iransmission, low

interference and electromagnetic compatibility.

Multimedia Solutions

The Group also produces cable solutions serving communication needs in infrastructure, industry and
transport, for a diverse range of applications: cables for television and filrn.studios, cables for rail networks
such as underground cables for long-distance telecommunicatiors, light-signalling cables and cables for

track switching devices, as well as cables for mobile telecommuriications antennae and for data centres.

MARKET OVERVIEW

The global optical fibre cables market expanded in 2018 -compared with the previous year. Demand
remained stable in fast-developing markets (China and-APAC) which alone accounted for more than 50% of
the market. Optical fibre cable consumption has coniinued to expand in North America, and in Europe thanks
to plans under the Digital Agenda for Europe 2025. The latter envisages the provision of three levels of
minimum service depending on the type of user. In fact, government offices and entities like schools and
hospitals will benefit from a bandwidth of atleast 1 Gb/s. Likewise, the entire residential population will be
connected with 100 Mb/s, while all urban areas and transport corridors should have broadband mobile
coverage with 5G technology. In Europe, the network architectures used vary according to decisions made
by each country.

FTTH networks are the preference in France, Spain, Portugal and the Nordics, while G.Fast is the norm in
Germany and Britain; although thiese systems use the last metres of the existing copper network, massive
volumes of optical cables are nonetheless required to upgrade the distribution networks. In other places like
Italy, the two technologies coexist.

Partly thanks to political stabitisation, Brazil has seen the major telecom carriers resume investments in both
copper and optical fibre cables:

North America has continued to see a big increase in data consumption by all sectors of society. As a result,
the major market playsrs - AT&T and Verizon to name just a few - are investing in fibre network
infrastructure. Far.instance, Verizon has announced that it is upgrading its network architecture around a
next-generation fibre platform with the aim of increasing 4G coverage and laying the foundations for the
subsequent development of 5G and loT (Internet of Things) technology. There has been growing demand for

interconnections between data centres.
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In conclusion, the growing demand for data on both fixed and mobile networks is leading to a progressive

convergence between the two and to a consequent increase in fibre infrastructure investments.

market was increasingly evident in 2018, with high demand for internet access causing major operators to
opt to renew their networks using optical fibre, rather than perform maintenance or upgrade wark-oii existing
networks. It is still worth remaining in this segment since the gradual decommissioning-of. assets by
competitor cable manufacturers nonetheless offers attractive opportunities.

The MMS cable market has reported timid global growth, driven by Asia and, in the case of'the optical cables
segment, by China. Growth in demand is being fuelled by requests for ever gieater bandwidth capacity in
professional and office environments and data centres. Interestingly, this trend applies to both new buildings
and projects to renovate existing ones. An important contribution to this/growth is coming from industrial
applications (Industry 4.0) that require new highly specialised products,-Anaiher iimportant source of growth
is HDTV cables used for the broadcast of digital content such as sports evenis or other events of media

interest.

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE
Sales to third parties by the Telecom operating segment amaunted-to Euro 1,494 million, compared with
Euro 1,258 million in 2017.
The main components of the change of Euro 236 millien {+18.7%) are as follows:
- Euro 224 million (+17.8%) for the first-time consolidation of General Cable from the end of May 2018;
- Euro 12 million (+0.9%) in sales growth by the pre-acquisition Prysmian Group, net of Euro 14 million

in intercompany transactions.

The change relating to the pre-acquisitior Prysririan Group is mainly attributable to the following factors:
- sales price increase of Euro 11 ivillicn’(+0.8%) for metal price fluctuations;
- organic sales growth of Euro 63 miilicn’ (+5.0%), mainly thanks to further volume growth for optical
fibre cables;

{

- negative change of Euro 62 miiiicn (-4.9%) for exchange rate fluctuations.

The organic growth in 2018 sales reflects the positive trend already observed the previous year. This is
mainly the product cof a steady growth in demand for optical fibre and special cables serving major
investment projects.

Volume trends in"Eurcpe have been positive and price levels stable. The Group has won important contracts
with leading operators in Europe for the construction of backhaul links and FTTH connections. The network
development plan i rural areas is progressing in the Netherlands, while a national plan is being
implemerited by Swisscom in Switzerland. In France the "Trés Haut Débit" broadband roll-out project is going
ahead at full speed. In addition, British Telecom has announced a new FTTH project to connect 3 million

"premises" in 8 cities by 2020.
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In North America, the development of new ultra-broadband networks is generating a steady increase in
domestic demand from which Prysmian is benefiting. As part of a massive multi-year investment program by
Verizon, one of the major US incumbents, Prysmian has signed a three-year agreement to supply ogtical
fibre cables. At the same time, the Group has announced it will increase the production capacity. Gt its Noitnh
American plants to support this growth.

Brazil and Argentina have seen increased investments by the major telecom carriers in both-cogper and
optical fibre cables.

Lastly, copper cables have continued their steady decline due to the retirement of iraditicnal networks in

favour of next-generation ones.

The high value-added business of optical connectivity accessories has periernied well, thanks to the
development of new FTTx networks (for last mile broadband access) in Europe; particularly in France and

Britain.

Growth in the Multimedia Solutions business mainly reflects increased volumes on the European market for
copper data transmission cables, also observed, albeit to a lesser extent, in South America. This result has
been achieved thanks to the business's ability to satisfy growing demand with a high level of responsiveness
and service. An approach that, along with its strong customer orientation, has been appreciated as one of

the Group's main strengths.

The return on investments in optical fibre cost reduction and the relocation of some cable manufacturing

sources to Eastern Europe have also made a substantial contribution to the segment's overall results.

Adjusted EBITDA for 2018 came to Euro 284 millian; compared with Euro 214 million in 2017, reporting an
increase of Euro 70 million (+32.8%), of which-Euro 28 million attributable to the first-time consolidation of
General Cable. This increase has alse benrefitea from the positive results reported by the associate Yangtze
Optical Fibre and Cable Joint Stock’ Limited-Company in China and from the reversal of impairment recorded

in 2016 against receivables owed by a Brazilian customer.

The acquisition of General Cable has ailowed Prysmian to increase the exposure of its MMS business to the
North American market, io increase optical cable production capacity and to extend its geographical

presence to new countries in Latin America.

If General Cable hiad-heen consolidated from 1 January 2018, the Telecom operating segment's sales to
third parties would have been Euro 1,634 million, up Euro 42 million on 2017. The segment's organic growth
would therefore have been 6.4%.

Adjusted £RITDA tor 2018 would have been Euro 295 million, up Euro 48 million on the year before.
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REVIEW OF THE ACQUIRED PERIMETER (GENERAL CABLE)

The subsequent comments refer to the results of the acquired perimeter (General Cable) for the fuii_yvear
using the segment reporting format adopted by General Cable before the acquisition. The new arganisation,
becoming effective from June 2018, has required Prysmian Group to change its segment repuiting, involving
several months of work to homogenise the reporting structure presented and discussed eariier. .For the sake
of clarity, it has nonetheless been decided also to present the old segment reporting used-hy General Cable

in the previous year and up to the third quarter of 2018.

Sales to third parties by the acquired perimeter (General Cable) came to Euro 3;526/million in 2018, up Euro

87 million on the previous year. Organic sales growth on 2017 was +3.3%.

Adjusted EBITDA for 2018 was Euro 197 million, reporting a reduction of Euro 7-miillion on the previous year,
of which Euro 8 million due to adverse exchange rate movements.

The results will now be examined by geographical area.

North America

Sales to third parties by the North America operating segnient-amounted to Euro 2,131 million in 2018, up
Euro 92 million on the previous year. Organic sales growth was +4.6%, reflecting a recovery by the Power
Distribution business and a robust performance by the Industriai and Telecom businesses.

Adjusted EBITDA was Euro 139 million, down Eviré.10 million on the year before, primarily as a result of the

negative impact of exchange rates and higher transport costs.

Europe

Sales to third parties by the Europe operating segment amounted to Euro 863 million in 2018, up Euro 65
million on the previous year. Orgarnic sales growth was +8.2%, driven primarily by the uptrend in projects
(particularly in the first half) and in the aptical cables business.

Adjusted EBITDA was Euro 25-miilion,~up Euro 5 million on the year before, mainly reflecting a favourable

sales mix.

Latin America

Sales to third parties by the Latin America operating segment amounted to Euro 542 million in 2018, down
Euro 70 million ori the previous year. Sales reflected an organic decline of -7.5% due to decreased volumes
for overhead transmission lines in Brazil, albeit partially offset by a strong fourth quarter reported by the
Trade & Instaiiers and lridustrial businesses.

Adjusted /EBITDA| was Euro 33 million, down Euro 2 million on the year before mainly due to the

performance cf the overhead business.
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31 December 31 December Change 31 December

2018 2017 (*) 2016 (*)

Net fixed assets 5,071 2,610 2,630
Net working capital 721 128 272
Provisions and net deferred taxes (661) (308) (353) (344)
Net capiial employed 5131 prey /Ay )= Z”Jl o,
Employee benefit obligations 463 355 108 383
Total equity 2,446 1639 . 807 1,638
of which attributable to non-controlling interests 18 - - 227
Net financial debt 2,222 1,786 537
Total equity and sources of funds 5,131 2,701 2,558

(*) The previously published prior year comparative figures have been restated foilowing the introduction of IFRS 9 and IFRS 15. Further

details can be found in Section C. Restatement of comparative figures, within the Exglanatory Notes to the Consolidated Financial

Statements.

NET FIXED ASSETS

(in millions of Euro)

31 December 31 December Change 31 December

2018 2017 (%) 2016 (*)

Property, plant and equipment 2,629 1,646 983 1,631
megbe s N > 15 . Lsor o
Equity-accounted investments 294 217 77 195
?;rr:]e[)rrglt:/:iricgr;;s(: g;:glr valuetroughather AN 13 12 1 12
Assets held for sale (**) 3 - 3 -
Net fixed assets 5,071 2,610 2,461 2,630

(*) The previously published prior year comparative fiqures have been restated following the introduction of IFRS 9 and IFRS 15. Further

details can be found in Section C. Restaiement of comparative figures, within the Explanatory Notes to the Consolidated Financial

Statements.

(**) These include the value of Land and Buiidings classified as held for sale.

At 31 December 2018, net fixed assets amounted to Euro 5,071 million, compared with Euro 2,610 million

at 31 December 2017, posting/an increase of Euro 2,461 million mainly due to the combined effect of the

following factors;

- Euro 1,216 miliicrn-irom the first-time consolidation of companies in the General Cable group;

- Euro4;084 million for the recognition of provisional goodwill on the acquisition of General Cable;

- Euro 278 miiiion in net capital expenditure on property, plant and equipment and intangible assets;

- Euro 232 million in depreciation, amortisation and impairment charges for the year;
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- Euro 29 million in positive currency translation differences affecting property, plant and equipment and

intangible assets;

- Euro 77 million for the net increase in equity-accounted investments, mainly comprising Euro 59 miilion

for the share of net profit/(loss) of equity-accounted companies and the Euro 36 million gairi-on-ditition

of the interest in YOFC, less Euro 16 million in dividend payments and Euro 2 million in negative

currency translation differences.

NET WORKING CAPITAL

The following table analyses the main components of net working capital:

(in millions of Euro)

31 December 31 December | Change 31 December

2018 2016 (*)

Inventories 1,515 561 906
Trade receivables 1,635 504 1,088
Trade payables (2,132) (446) (1,498)
Other receivables/(payables) (282) 11 (231)
Net operating working capital 736 630 265
Derivatives as) 22 37) 7
Net working capital 721 ........ 128 593 272

(*) The previously published prior year comparative figures have been restated fallowing the introduction of IFRS 9 and IFRS 15. Further
details can be found in Section C. Restatement of comparative figures, within the Explanatory Notes to the Consolidated Financial

Statements.

Net working capital of Euro 721 million at 31/December 2018 was Euro 593 million higher than the
corresponding figure of Euro 128 million at 31‘December 2017. Net operating working capital amounted to
Euro 736 million (6.4% of annualised sales) at 31-.December 2018, an increase of Euro 630 million from Euro

106 million (1.3% of sales) at 31 December 2017, refiecting the following factors:

- Euro 380 million from the first-time consolidation of companies in General Cable group;

- an increase in working capital empioyed in multi-year Submarine projects, reflecting their stage of
completion relative to their respeciive contractual deadlines, as partially offset by new provisions for the
Western Link contract;

- an increase in working capital due to a decrease in without-recourse factoring of trade receivables;

- a decrease for currency transiatici differences.
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The following table reconciles the Group's equity and net profit/(loss) for 2018 with the corresponding figures

reported by Prysmian S.p.A., the Parent Company.

(in millions of Euro)

Equity Net profit/ Equity | Net profit/
at 31 December (loss) at 31 December . (loss)
2018 2018 2017 (*) 2017 (%)
Parent Company Financial Statements 2,106 100 1,328 | 111
T S e e e e
subsidiaries, net of carrying amount of the 366 170 36 201
related investments
Reversal of dividends distributed to the Parent | T TR
Company by consolidated subsidiaries (139) (162)
Deferred taxes on earnings/reserves e
distributable by subsidiaries (16) - (16) @
Elimination of intercompany profits and losses
included in inventories (10) ©) @
Non-controlling interests (188) (188) 4
Consolidated Financial Statements 2,258 1,451 241

(*) The previously published prior year comparative figures have been restated following the-iniroduction of IFRS 9 and IFRS 15. Further

details can be found in Section C. Restatement of comparative figures, within’the Explanatory Notes to the Consolidated Financial

Statements.
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The following table provides a detailed breakdown of net financial debt:

(in millions of Euro)

31 December 31 December Change 3+ Beeember |
2018 2017 S 2016
Long-term financial payables
CDP Loan 100 100 TN )
EIB Loans 135 152
Non-convertible bond 745 743
Convertible bond 2013 R -
Convertible bond 2017 467 456 R
Term Loan 993 - -
rdge Loan <00 L&A 5.00 :
Unicredit Loan 199 199 -
Derivatives 1 T 8 -
Other financial payables 22 7 27
Total long-term financial payables 3,169 1,703 1,114
Short-term financial payables /S
Revolving Credit Facility 2014 - - - 50
EIB Loans 17 - 17
Non-convertible bond 14 - 14
Convertible bond 2013 _ 283 (283) 1
Term Loan 1 - 1 -
Derivatives 1 1 7 1
Other financial payables /. 66 56 10 90
Total short-term financial payables .~ 106 371 (265) 173
Total financial liabilites 3,275 1,837 1,438 1,287
Long-term financial receivables ~ // 1 2 2) 2
orgembakees ) . A : ,
R NN A/ ; . . ,
TN Y , ) . ]
Short-term financial receivables ~ © . 7 7 - 38
T R . " o ,
Financial assets at fair value through profltorloss 25 38 (13) 57
e ot o value S1oBee 1 1 o _
Cash and cash equivalents 1,001 1,335 (334) 646
Total financial assets 1,053 1,401 (348) 750
Net financial debt /- 2,222 436 1,786 537

Net financial debt of Euro 2,222 million at 31 December 2018 has increased by Euro 1,786 million from Euro

436 millieri-at 31 December 2017. The main factors contributing to this change are summarised in the

comments in the'next section on the statement of cash flows.
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

(in millions of Euro)

2018 (**) 2017 (%) 2016 (*)
EBITDA 596 60 (64— 5 b’l
Changes in provisions (including employee benefit obligations) and other 52 ) 21
movements
(Gains)/losses on disposal of property, p_lant and _quipment, intangible 37) @ @)
assets and non-current assets and on dilution of equity interests
Share of net profit/(loss) of equity-accounted companies (59) (42) (31)
\[;J/?)trlfiisghcf;%\?{aﬁ))mvmed by operating activities (before changes in net 552 616 : 623
Changes in net working capital 4 85 58
Taxes paid (110) (124) (76)
Dividends from investments in equity-accounted companies 16 10 6 10
Net cash flow provided/(used) by operating activities 462 6 07 (145) 615
Cash flow from acquisitions and/or disposals 1,290) ( 7) (1,283) 31
Net cash flow used in operating activities ©78) (254) (24) 227
of which for investment in Wuhan Shen Huan N\ ( 35) 35 (11)
Free cash flow (unleveredy ~ @aee), ) 346 (1,452) 419
Net finance costs (70) (14) (68)
Free cash flow (levered) 276 (1,466) 351
Share buyback I - (100) 100 -
Dividend distibution S0 > (105) (101) 4) (102)
Capital contributions and other changes in equity (o "496 3 493 -
Net cash flow provided/(used) in the year . o (799) 78 (877) 249
Opening net financial debt (436) (537) 101 (750)
Net cash flow provided/(used) in the year . (799) 78 (877) 249
Equity component of Convertible Bond 2017 /"~ - 48 (48) -
Conversion of Convertible Bond 2013 -~ 283 13 270 -
Net financial debt General Cable (1,215) - (1,215) -
Other changes (55) (38) a7 (36)
Closing net financialdebt ~ // /5 = (2,222) (436) (1,786) (537)

(*) The previously published prior year comparative tigures have been restated following the introduction of IFRS 9 and IFRS 15. Further
details can be found in Section C. Restatement of comparative figures, within the Explanatory Notes to the Consolidated Financial
Statements.

(**) The results of General Cable have heen cansolidated for the period 1 June - 31 December 2018.

Net cash flow provided by eperating activities (before changes in net working capital) amounted to Euro 552
million at the end of 2(18.

The decrease in net working capital, described earlier, provided Euro 4 million in cash flow. After Euro 110
million in tax payrients and Euro 16 million in dividend receipts, net cash flow from operating activities in
2018 therefore arnounted to a positive Euro 462 million.

Cash flow frem acquisitions and/or disposals was a negative Euro 1,290 million, all of which related to
General Cable and representing the cash outflow to acquire this group.

Net operating capital expenditure amounted to Euro 278 million in 2018, a large part of which relating to

projects to increase and rationalise production capacity and to develop new products.
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In addition, Euro 84 million in net finance costs were paid and Euro 105 million in dividends were distributed

during the year.
The capital increase, completed in July 2018, generated a net cash inflow of Euro 496 million.

Net financial debt has been affected by net cash outflows for the year of Euro 799 million and the first-time

consolidation of General Cable's net financial debt of Euro 1,215 million, while benefiting. from Euro 283

million after converting the Convertible Bond 2013.
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ALTERNATIVE PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

In addition to the standard financial reporting formats and indicators required under IFRS, this document
contains a number of reclassified statements and alternative performance indicators. The purpose is to help
users better evaluate the Group's economic and financial performance. However, these statements and
indicators should not be treated as a substitute for the standard ones required by IFRS.

In this regard, on 3 December 2015, Consob adopted the ESMA guidelines in Italy with-puistication of "ESMA
Guidelines/2015/1415" which supersede the "CESR Recommendation 2005 (CESR/05-178b)". The
alternative performance measures have therefore been revised in light of these guidelines.

The alternative indicators used for reviewing the income statement include:

» Adjusted operating income: operating income before income and expense for company reorganisation(®,
before non-recurring items®@, as presented in the consolidated income statement, before other non-operating
income and expense® and before the fair value change in metal derivatives and in other fair value items.
The purpose of this indicator is to present the Group's operating profitability without the effects of events

considered to be outside its recurring operations;

« EBITDA: operating income before the fair value change-tn-metal price derivatives and in other fair value
items and before amortisation, depreciation and impeairment. The purpose of this indicator is to present the

Group's operating profitability before the main non-monetary items;

» Adjusted EBITDA: EBITDA as defined aikove calculated before income and expense for company
reorganisation, before non-recurring items, as presented in the consolidated income statement, and before
other non-operating income and expense:. The -purpose of this indicator is to present the Group's operating
profitability before the main non-monetary items, without the effects of events considered to be outside the

Group's recurring operations;

(1) Income and expense for company-rearganisaiion: these refer to income and expense that arise as a result of the closure of
production facilities and/or as a result of projectsto enhance the organisational structure's efficiency;

(2) Non-recurring income and expgense: these refer to income and expense related to unusual events that have not affected the income
statement in past periods and that will probably not affect the results in future periods;

(3) Other non-operating incorne and expense: these refer to income and expense that management considers should not be taken into

account when measuring business performance.

85



PRYSMIAN GROUP | DIRECTORS' REPORT

» Adjusted EBITDA before share of net profit/(loss) of equity-accounted companies: Adjusted EBITDA

as defined above calculated before the share of net profit/(loss) of equity-accounted companies;

» Organic growth: growth in sales calculated net of changes in the scope of consolidation, charigesiiiimetal

prices and exchange rate effects.

The alternative indicators used for reviewing the reclassified statement of financial positiori-inciude:

* Net fixed assets: sum of the following items contained in the statement of financial position:
- Intangible assets
- Property, plant and equipment
- Equity-accounted investments
- Other investments at fair value through other comprehensive income

- Assets held for sale with regard to Land and Buildings

» Net working capital: sum of the following items contained in the statemerit of financial position:
- Inventories
- Trade receivables
- Trade payables
- Other non-current receivables and payables, net of long-term financial receivables classified in net
financial debt
- Other current receivables and payables, net¢f short-term financial receivables classified in net financial
debt
- Derivatives net of financial instruments for hedging interest rate and currency risks relating to financial
transactions, classified in net financial d=bt
- Current tax payables

- Assets and Liabilities held for saie with regard to current assets and liabilities

* Net operating working capitai: sum-of the following items contained in the statement of financial position:
- Inventories
- Trade receivables
- Trade payables
- Other non-current receivables and payables, net of long-term financial receivables classified in net
financial debt
- Other currenit'receivables and payables, net of short-term financial receivables classified in net financial
debt

- Currenttax payables

» Provisions and net deferred taxes: sum of the following items contained in the statement of financial

position:
86



PRYSMIAN GROUP | DIRECTORS' REPORT

- Provisions for risks and charges — current portion
- Provisions for risks and charges — non-current portion
- Provisions for deferred tax liabilities

- Deferred tax assets

* Net capital employed: sum of Net fixed assets, Net working capital and Provisions.

 Employee benefit obligations and Total equity: these indicators correspond to_Employee benefit

obligations and Total equity reported in the statement of financial position.

* Net financial debt: sum of the following items:
- Borrowings from banks and other lenders — non-current portion
- Borrowings from banks and other lenders — current portion
- Derivatives on financial transactions recorded as Non-current derivatives and’classified under Long-term
financial receivables
- Derivatives on financial transactions recorded as Current Jerivativesand classified under Short-term
financial receivables
- Derivatives on financial transactions recorded as Non-cuirent derivatives and classified under Long-term
financial payables
- Derivatives on financial transactions recorded ac Current derivatives and classified under Short-term
financial payables
- Medium/long-term financial receivables recorded-in Other non-current receivables
- Bank fees on loans recorded in Other non-current receivables
- Short-term financial receivables recorded in Other-current receivables
- Bank fees on loans recorded in Otherzurrent receivables
- Financial assets at amortised cost
- Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
- Financial assets at fair value through etirer comprehensive income

- Cash and cash equivalents
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Reconciliation between the Reclassified Statement of Financial Position presented in the Directors' Report and

the Statement of Financial Position contained in the Consolidated Financial Statements and Explanatory Notes

at 31 December 2018

(in millions of Euro)

31 December 2018 31 Dec r2017 (*)
Note Partial Total Partial Total
amounts amounts ameunts amounts
from from from from
financial financial financial financial
statements : statements : statements : = statements
Net fixedassets
Property, plant and equipment 1 2,629 1,646
Intangible assets 2 735
Equity-accounted investments 3 217
Other investments at fair value through other 4 12
comprehensive income
Asset held for sale 4 - -
Total net fixed assets A 2,610
Net working capital
Inventories B 954
Trade receivables C ) 1,131
Trade payables D (2,132) (1,686)
Other receivables/payables net E (282) (293)
of which:
Other receivables - non-current 15
Tax receivables 3
Receivables from employees 1
Advances to suppliers -
Other 11
Other receivables - current 410
Tax receivables 115
Receivables from employees and pension plans 3
Advances to suppliers ~~—/ 15
Other ................ 91
Construction contracts 186
Other payables - non-current (8)
Tax and social security payables 3)
other ()
Other payables - current (692)
Tax and social security payables (161)
Advances from customers 177)
Payables to employees (92)
Accrued expenses (107)
Other (155)
Current tax payables (38) (18)
Total net operating net working-cagpital E+_C+D+E 736 106
Derivatives [/ G (15) 22
of which.
Forward currency contracis—0rn commercial
) Ve 8 - 6
transactions (cash flow-iieuges) - non-current
Forward currency contracts on commercial 8 %) 4
transactions (cash flow hedges) - current
Zero cost collar_on Cerieial Cable acquisition 8 ) arn
(cash flow hedoes) . .
Forward / currency ", contracts on commercial
transactions -.cutrent “) @
Metal derivatives-'non-current 8 1 6
Metal derivatives = current 8 (5) 24
Total net working capital H=F+G 721 128
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31 December 2018 31 December 2017 (*)
Note Partial Total Partial Total
amounts amounts amounts . amounts
from from from from
financial financial financial | financial
statements | statements | statements  statements
Provisions for risks and charges - non-current 14 (51)
Provisions for risks and charges - current 14 (533)
Deferred tax assets 16 161
Deferred tax liabilities 16 (238)
Total provisions | (661)
Net capital employed L = A+H+| 5,131 ¢ 2,430
Employee benefit obligations M 15 463 355
Total equity N 1,639
_of which equity attributable to non-controlling 188
interests
Net financial debt
Total long-term financial payables (0] 1,466
CDP Loan 100
EIB Loans 152
Non-convertible bond 743
Convertible bond 2017 456
Term Loan -
Bridge Loan -
Unicredit Loan
Derivatives -
Other payables 15
of which:
Finance lease obligations 12
Other financial payables 3
Total short-term financial payables P 371
EIB Loans 17
Non-convertible bond 14
Convertible bond2023 ~~ 283
Termloan T -
Derivaives 1
Of WhICh: .........
Interest rateswaps -
Forward currency contracts on financial 1
transactons
Otherpayables 66 56
of which:
Finance lease obligations 12 1 1
Other financial payables 12 65 55
Total financial liabilities 3,275 1,837
Long-term financial receivables R 5 1) (2)
Long-term bank fees R 5 Q) 1)
Short-term financial receivables R 5 (7) (7)
Short-term derivatives R 8 2) (1)
of which.
Forward currency contracts-_on financial 8 @ o
transactions (current) -
Short-term bank fees [/ A R 1) (2)
Financial assets at amortised cost ' S (5) 2)
Financial a_sse_ts at fair' value through other T 4 (10) a1
comprehensive income—
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss U 7 (25) (40)
Cash and cash equivalents V 9 (1,001) (1,335)
. . Z=
Total flnan0|a|m§?§stj R+S+T+ULV (2,053) (1,401)
Total net firancial debt W=0Q+Z 2,222 436
Total equity and saurces of funds Y = M+N+W 5,131 2,430

(*) The previously published comparative figures for 2017 have been restated following the introduction of IFRS 9 and IFRS 15.

Further details can be found in Section C. Restatement of comparative figures, within the Explanatory Notes to the Consolidated

Financial Statements.
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Reconciliation between the principal income statement indicators and the Income Statement contained in the
Consolidated Financial Statements and Explanatory Notes for 2018

(in millions of Euro)

2018 (%) 20076
Amounts from Amounts frorm
income income
statement siatement
Sales of goods and services A
Change in inventories of work in progress, semi-finished and finished goods
Other income
Raw materials, consumables used and goods for resale
Personnel costs (3,260) (1,086)
Other expenses (1,879) (1,475)
Operating costs B (9,627) (7,335)
Share of net profit/(loss) of equity-accounted companies C 59 42
Fair value stock options D 6 49
EBITDA E= 596 660
A+B+C+D ..........
Other non-recurring expenses and revenues FOANYNN// (69) (18)
Personnel costs for company reorganisation G (57) (24)
Other costs and revenues for company reorganisation H, ./ 9) (6)
Other non-operating expenses | (32) (28)
. L=
Totaladjustments ) E+GHHH (167) (76)
Adjusted EBITDA M=E-L 763 736
Share of net profit/(loss) of equity-accounted companies 59 42
. . oo i e
Adjuste(_j EBITDA before share of net profit/(loss) of equity-accounted O = M-N 704 694
L Y S-S W
(inmilionsof Euro) A
_____ 2018 () 2017 (%)
Amounts from Amounts from
income income
________ statement statement
Operating income A 310 424
Other non-recurring expenses and revenues (69) (18)
Personnel costs for company reorganisation (57) (24)
Other costs and revenues for company reorganisation,/ / 9) (6)
Other non-operating expenses (32) (28)
Total adjustments to EBITDA B (167) (76)
Fair value change in metal derivatives C (48) 12
Fair value stock options D (6) (49)
Non-recurring impairment and releases E 5) (22)
Adjusted operating income . | E=A-B-C-D 536 559

(*) The results of General Cahie have been consolidated for the period 1 June - 31 December 2018

(**) The previously published comparative figures for 2017 have been restated following the introduction of IFRS 9 and IFRS 15.
Further details can be feund-in-Section C. Restatement of comparative figures, within the Explanatory Notes to the Consolidated
Financial Statements.
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Following adoption of the new organisational structure, the alternative performance indicators for 2017 have
been restated as follows:

(in millions of Euro)

2017
ot B NN Y
Published E&I Total
.......... Energy
2 | sales 1,490 1,533
% Adjusted EBITDA before share of net 265 277
a profit/(loss) of equity-accounted companies T NN
§ Adjusted EBITDA 266 278
(]
g Adjusted operating income 225 228
Sales 3,271
Adjusted EBITDA before share of net
— ) h . 128
3 profit/(loss) of equity-accounted companies /= ./
Adjusted EBITDA 130 13(
Adjusted operating income 73 73
Q | sales 1,460 _ 1,693
< "Adjusted EBITDA before share of net T
o3 . . . 113 113
B profit/(loss) of equity-accounted companies 7T 0 S
% | Adjusted EBITDA 115 115
e J S 0
2 | Adjusted operating income 88
Sales 149
= Adjusted EBITDA before share of net a)
g profit/(loss) of equity-accounted companies W
O | Adjusted EBITDA () @)
Adjusted operating income 3) )
Sales 4,880 5,113
" Y 40 A
gg Adju_sted EBITDA pefore share of net _ 240 240
5 = .profit/(loss) of equity-accounted companies . .
& g Adjusted EBITDA 244 244
Adjusted operating income 165 158
" Sales 273 -
< Adjusted EBITDA before share of nat—
0} . . . 9 -
< profit/(loss) of equity-accounted companies
- Adjusted EBITDA 9 -
o b A— ), W . X
Adjusted operating income (@) -
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RISK FACTORS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The policy of value creation that motivates Prysmian Group has always been based on effective iisk

"

management. Since 2012, by adopting the provisions on risk management introduced by the “italian-Stock
Exchange Corporate Governance Code for Listed Companies" (Corporate Governance Code), Prysimian has
taken the opportunity to strengthen its governance model and implement an advanced-system of Risk
Management that promotes proactive management of risks using a structured and sysismaiic-tool to support
the main business decision-making processes. In fact, this Enterprise Risk Manageirient (ERM) model,
developed in line with internationally recognised models and best practices, ailows the Board of Directors
and management to consciously evaluate those risk scenarios that might comproinise the achievement of
strategic objectives, and to adopt additional tools able to anticipate, mitigate, or manage significant exposures.
The Group Chief Risk Officer (CRO), designated to govern the ERM process, is responsible for ensuring,
together with management, that the main risks facing Prysmian and its subsidiaries are promptly identified,
evaluated and monitored over time. A special Internal Risk Management Committee (consisting of the
Group's Senior Management) also ensures, through the CRO, thatthe ERM process develops dynamically,
by taking account of changes in the business, of needs and of events tiat have an impact on the Group over
time. The CRO reports periodically (at least twice a year) on such developments to the top management.
Reference should be made to the "Corporate Governance™ section of this report for a discussion of the
governance structure adopted and the responsibilities‘desianated to the bodies involved.

The ERM model adopted (and formalised within the,Group ERM Policy which incorporates the guidelines for
the Internal Control and Risk Management System approved by the Board of Directors back in 2014) follows
a top-down approach, whereby it is steered by-Senior-Management and by medium to long-term business
objectives and strategies. It extends to all the tynes.of risk/opportunity for the Group, represented in the Risk
Model - shown in the following diagram - that-uses five categories to classify the risks of an internal or
external nature characterising the Prysmiari business model:

e  Strategic Risks: risks arising- from-external or internal factors such as changes in the market
environment, from bad and/or.impgroperly implemented corporate decisions and from failure to react
to changes in the competitive environment, which could therefore threaten the Group's competitive
position and achievement of its’strategic objectives;

e Financial Risks: risks associated with the amount of financial resources available, with the ability to
manage currency and interest rate volatility efficiently;

e Operational Risks: risks arising from the occurrence of events or situations that, by limiting the
effectiveness and efficiency of key processes, affect the Group's ability to create value;

e Legal arid Compliance Risks: risks related to violations of national, international and industry-specific
legal-and regulatory requirements, to unprofessional conduct in conflict with company ethical policies,

expesing the Group to possible penalties and undermining its reputation in the marketplace;
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e Planning and Reporting Risks: risks related to the adverse effects of incomplete, incorrect and/or
untimely information with possible impacts on the Group's strategic, operational and financial

decisions.

In compliance with the amendments to the Corporate Gaverinance Code published in July 2015, the Group
Risk Model has been revised to include, as pari cf strategic risks, the issue of Corporate Social
Responsibility with the purpose of identifying more precisely the Group's economic, environmental and social
sustainability risks which, over time, could jeopardise value creation for its shareholders and stakeholders.

The Board of Directors has also given the Compensation, Nominations and Sustainability Committee
responsibility, with effect from 1 January 2016, for supervising the issues of sustainability associated with the

Group's business, as described in the Corporate. Governance Report.

Members of management involved in the ERM process are required to use a clearly defined common
method to measure and assess specific risk events in terms of Impact, Probability of occurrence and
adequacy of the existing Level of Risk Management, meaning:

e economic-financial impact en expected EBITDA or cash flow, net of any insurance cover and
countermeasures in_place, and/or qualitative type of impact on reputation and/or efficiency and/or
business continuity, measured using a scale that goes from negligible (1) to critical (4);

e probability that a particular event may occur within the specific planning period, measured using a
scale that.goes from remote (1) to high (4);

e level of control, meaning the maturity and efficiency of existing risk management systems and

processes, measured using a scale that goes from adequate (green) to inadequate (red).

The overall assessment must also take into account the future outlook for risk, or the possibility that in the

period considered the exposure is increasing, constant or decreasing.
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The results of measuring exposure to the risks analysed are then represented on a 4x4 heat map diagram,
which, by combining the variables in question, provides an immediate overview of the risk events considered

most significant.

This overall picture of the Group's risks allows the Board of Directors and Management to reflect upon the
level of the Group's risk appetite, and so identify the risk-management strategies to adopt, or assess which
risks and with what priority it is thought necessary to improve and optimise mitigation actions or simply to
monitor the exposure over time. The adoption of a particular risk management strategy, however, depends
on the nature of the risk event identified, so in the case of:

e external risks outside the Group's coritiol, it will be possible to implement tools that support the
assessment of scenarios should the risk-materialise, by defining the possible action plans to mitigate
impacts (e.g. continuous monitoring aciiviiies, stress testing of the business plan, insurance cover,
disaster recovery plans, and so‘en);

o risks partially addressable hy thie/Group, it will be possible to intervene through systems of risk
transfer, monitoring of specific.indicators of risk, hedging activities, and so on;

e internal risks addressahle-hy-the Group, it will be possible, as risks inherent in the business, to take
targeted actions to preveni-risk and minimise impacts by implementing an adequate system of

internal controls and related monitoring and auditing.

ERM is a continuous process itat, as stated in the ERM Policy, forms part of the Group's three-year strategic
and business planiiiing process, by identifying potential events that could affect its sustainability, and is
updated annually with the involvement of key members of management.

In 2018 this nrocess involved the main business/function managers of the Group, allowing the most
significant/risk factors to be identified, assessed and managed; this process also covered factors related to
the Group's-economic, environmental and social sustainability, to ensure lasting value creation for

shareholders and stakeholders, about which more details can be found in the annual Sustainability Report,
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available on the Company's website at www.prysmiangroup.com in the section media/media-

library/sustainability-report

The main risk factors to which the Group's particular type of business model is exposed ‘wilt now be
presented according to the classification used in the Risk Model described earlier, and describing the
strategies adopted to mitigate these risks.

Financial risks are discussed in detail in the Explanatory Notes to the Consolidated Financtai-Statements in
Section D (Financial Risk Management). As stated in the Explanatory Notes to the Censolidated Financial
Statements (Section B.1 Basis of preparation), the Directors have assessed that there’ are no financial,
operating or other kind of indicators that might provide evidence of the Group's-inability to meet its
obligations in the foreseeable future and particularly in the next 12 months. In<particular, based on its
financial performance and cash generation in recent years, as well as its available financial resources at 31
December 2018, the Directors believe that, barring any unforeseeable extraordinary events, there are no
material uncertainties, such as to cast significant doubts upon the business's ability to continue as a going

concern.

It should be noted that, in line with the Group's ERM pracess, the risks described below have been
reassessed, particularly taking into consideration any effects arising from completion of the General Cable

acquisition.

STRATEGIC RISKS

Risks associated with the competitive envitchment

Many of the products offered by Prysmian Group primarily in the Trade & Installers and Power Distribution
businesses, are made in conformity with’speciiic industrial standards and so are interchangeable with those
offered by major competitors. Price is therefore-a key factor in customer choice of supplier. The entry into
mature markets (e.g. Europe) of /nen-traditicnal competitors, meaning small to medium manufacturing
companies with low production cosis, and the need to saturate production capacity, together with the
possible occurrence of a contraction in-market demand, translate into strong competitive pressure on prices,
with possible consequences for the Group's expected margins.

In addition, high value-added segments - like High Voltage underground cables, Optical Cables and
Submarine cables - are seeing an escalation in competition from both existing operators and new market
entrants with leaner mare flexible organisation models, with potentially negative impacts on both sales
volumes and selling prices. With particular reference to the Submarine cables business, the high barriers to
entry, linked to difficult-to-replicate ownership of technology, know-how and track record, are driving large
market players-to-comjpete not so much on the product as on the related services.

The strategy of rationalising production facilities currently in progress, the consequent optimisation of cost
structure, the paiicy of geographical diversification and, last but not least, the ongoing pursuit of innovative
technological solutions, all help the Group to address the potential effects arising from the competitive

environment.
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Risks associated with changes in the macroeconomic environment and in demand

Factors such as trends in GDP and interest rates, the ease of getting credit, the cost of raw materials, and
the general level of energy consumption, significantly affect the energy demand of countries which;-in. the
face of persistent economic difficulties, then reduce investments that would otherwise develop the-imarket.
Government incentives for alternative energy sources and for developing telecom networks: alsa face
reduction for the same reason. The Prysmian Group's transmission business (high voltage submariric, cables)
and Power Distribution and Telecom businesses, all highly concentrated in the Europearn-market, are being
affected by fluctuating contractions of demand in this market caused by the region's-proichged economic
downturn.

To counter this risk, the Group is pursuing, on the one hand, a policy of geographical diveisification in non-
European countries (e.g. Vietnam, Philippines, etc.) and, on the other, a sirategy to reduce costs by
rationalising its production structure globally in order to mitigate possible negative effects on the Group's
performance in terms of lower sales and shrinking margins.

In addition, the Group constantly monitors developments in the global geopglitical environment which, as a
result - for example - of the introduction of specific industrial policies hy individual countries, could require it
to revise existing business strategies and/or adopt mechanisms. to safeguard the Group's competitive

position.

Risks associated with dependence on key customers

In the Offshore Specialties business, the Prysmian-Group  has a significant business relationship with
Petrobras, a Brazilian oil company, for the supply of umbilicai cables, developed and manufactured at the
factory in Vila Velha, Brazil. In light of the country’'s continuing economic difficulties causing the local market
for umbilical cables to contract and of growirig.competitive pressures on product technological innovation,
the sustainability, even partial, of the business in Rrazil could be impacted.

While committed to maintaining and strengthening its business relationship with this customer over time, the
Group has started to gradually reorgaiise the husiness unit to make its processes more efficient and to
concentrate increasingly on develaping new/products whose technical and economic solutions can lower

production costs.

Risk of instability in the Group's countries of operation

The Prysmian Group operates and /has production facilities and/or companies in Asia, Latin America, the
Middle East and Eastéin Eurcpe. The Group's operations in these countries are exposed to different risks
linked to local regulatory and/legal systems, the imposition of tariffs or taxes, exchange rate volatility, and
political and ecoriomic instability affecting the ability of business and financial partners to meet their
obligations.

Significant changes-iri the macroeconomic, political, tax or legislative environment of such countries could
have an adverse impact on the Group's business, results of operations and financial condition; consequently,
as already menticned in an earlier paragraph, the Group constantly monitors developments in the global
geopolitical environment which could require it to revise existing business strategies and/or adopt

mechanisms to safeguard its competitive position.
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FINANCIAL RISKS

The Prysmian Group's risk management strategy focuses on the unpredictability of markets and aims to
minimise the potentially negative impact on the Group's financial performance. Some types of risk are
mitigated by using financial instruments (including derivatives).

Financial risk management is centralised with the Group Finance department which identifies, assesses and
hedges financial risks in close cooperation with the Group's operating companies.

The Group Finance, Administration and Control department provides guidelines on risk-maiiagement, with
particular attention to exchange rate risk, interest rate risk, credit risk, the use of derivative and non-
derivative instruments, and on how to invest excess liquidity. Such financial instruments—re used solely to

hedge risks and not for speculative purposes.

Risks associated with availability of financial resources and their cost

The volatility of the international banking and financial system could be’a potential risk factor in terms of
raising finance and its associated cost. In addition, non-compliance. with the financial and non-financial
covenants contained in the Group's credit agreements could restrict its ability to increase its net
indebtedness, other conditions remaining equal. In fact, should.it fail t¢-satisfy one of these covenants, this
would trigger a default event which, unless resolved under ttie terms of the respective agreements, could
lead to their termination and/or an early repayment of any credit. drawn down. In such an eventuality, the
Group might be unable to repay the amounts demanded early,.in turn giving rise to a liquidity risk.

At present, given its balance of cash and cash etuivalents and undrawn committed credit lines, totalling
more than Euro 1 billion at 31 December 2018, and six-monthly monitoring2 of financial covenant
compliance (fully satisfied at 31 December 2018), the Group is of the opinion that this risk is significantly
mitigated and that it is able to raise sufficient financia! resources and at a competitive cost. A more detailed
analysis of the risk in question, including a description of the Group's principal sources of finance, can be

found in the Explanatory Notes to the Consciidated Financial Statements.

Exchange rate volatility

The Prysmian Group operates-iniernationally and is therefore exposed to exchange rate risk for the various
currencies in which it operates (principally the US Dollar, British Pound, Brazilian Real, Turkish Lira and
Chinese Renminbi). Exchange rate risk occurs when future transactions or assets and liabilities recognised
in the statement of financial position are denominated in a currency other than the functional currency of the
company which undertakes the transaction.

To manage exchange rate risk arising from future trade transactions and from the recognition of foreign
currency assets and liabilities, most Prysmian Group companies use forward contracts arranged by Group
Treasury, whicirmanages the various positions in each currency.

However, -since Prysmian prepares its consolidated financial statements in Euro, fluctuations in the

exchange rates-used to translate the financial statements of subsidiaries, originally expressed in a foreign

2 The financial covenants are measured at the half-year close on 30 June and at the full-year close on 31 December.
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currency, could affect the Group's results of operations and financial condition. Exchange rate volatility is
monitored both locally and centrally, by the Group Finance department, also using specific indicators
designed to intercept potential risk situations which, when thought to exceed the defined tolerance limits, will
trigger immmediate mitigating actions.

A more detailed analysis of the risk in question can nonetheless be found in the "Financia! Risk

Management" section of the Explanatory Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Interest rate volatility

Changes in interest rates affect the market value of the Prysmian Group's financial assets and liabilities as
well as its net finance costs. The interest rate risk to which the Group is expcsed is-mainly on long-term
financial liabilities, carrying both fixed and variable rates. Fixed rate debt exposes the Group to a fair value
risk. The Group does not operate any particular hedging policies in relation to the risk arising from such
contracts since it considers this risk to be immaterial. Variable rate debt expeses the Group to a rate volatility
risk (cash flow risk). The Group can use interest rate swaps (IRS) to hedge this.risk, which transform variable
rates into fixed ones, thus reducing the rate volatility risk. IRS contracts make it possible to exchange on
specified dates the difference between contracted fixed rates arici thie variable rate calculated with reference
to the loan's notional value. A potential rise in interest rates,from the record lows reached in recent years,
could represent a risk factor in coming quarters.

A more detailed analysis of the risk in question can nanetheless be found in the "Financial Risk

Management" section of the Explanatory Notes to the ‘Cansalidated Financial Statements.

Credit risk

Credit risk is represented by Prysmian Group's exposure to potential losses arising from the failure of
business or financial partners to discharge-their-gbiigations. This risk is monitored centrally by the Group
Finance department, while customer-related credit risk is managed operationally by the individual
subsidiaries. The Group does not have any excessive concentrations of credit risk, but given the economic
and social difficulties faced by some countries in which it operates, the exposure could undergo a
deterioration that would require closer.monitoring. Accordingly, the Group has procedures in place to ensure
that its business partners are of recognised reliability and that its financial partners have high credit ratings.
In addition, in mitigation of credit risk, tihe Group has a global trade credit insurance program covering almost
all its operating companies; this is imanaged centrally by the Risk Management department, which monitors,
with the assistance of/the Graup's Credit Management function, the level of exposure to risk and intervenes
when tolerance limits are exceeded due to difficulty in finding coverage on the market.

A more detailed analysis of the risk in question can nonetheless be found in the "Financial Risk

Management" section of tne Explanatory Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Liquidity-risk
Liquidity risk indicates the sufficiency of an entity's financial resources to meet its obligations to business or

financial partners on the agreed due dates.
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With regard to the Prysmian Group's working capital cash requirements, these increase significantly during
the first half of the year when it commences production in anticipation of order intake, with a consequent
temporary increase in net financial debt.

Prudent management of liquidity risk involves the maintenance of adequate levels of cash, cashi eduivaients
and short-term securities, the maintenance of an adequate amount of committed credit lines; and-timely
renegotiation of loans before their maturity. Due to the dynamic nature of the business in which ithe Prysmian
Group operates, the Group Finance department favours flexible arrangements for sourcing-tunds.in the form
of committed credit lines.

As at 31 December 2018, the Group's total financial resources, comprising cash and cash equivalents and
undrawn committed credit lines, came to in excess of Euro 1 billion.

A more detailed analysis of the risk in question can nonetheless be found<in the "Financial Risk

Management" section of the Explanatory Notes to the Consolidated Financiai Statements.

Risks associated with commodity price volatility

The main commodities purchased by the Prysmian Group are copper.and aluminium, accounting for more
than 50% of the total raw materials used to manufacture its products. The Group neutralises the impact of
possible rises in the price of copper and its other principalraw materials through hedging activities and
automatic sales price adjustment mechanisms. Hedging activities are based on sales contracts or sales
forecasts, which if not met, could expose the Group to comiiadity price volatility risk.

A dedicated team within the Group Purchasing depairtment monitors and coordinates centrally those sales
transactions requiring the purchase of raw materiais and the related hedging activities carried out by each
subsidiary, ensuring that the level of exposure to'risk-is kept within defined tolerance limits.

A more detailed analysis of the risk in guestion can nonetheless be found in the "Financial Risk

Management" section of the Explanatory Notes te-the Consolidated Financial Statements.

OPERATIONAL RISKS

Liability for product quality/defects

Any defects in the design and manufacture of the Prysmian Group's products could give rise to civil or
criminal liability in relation.to customers or third parties. Therefore, the Group, like other companies in the
industry, is exposed to the risk-of/legal action for product liability in the countries where it operates. In line
with the practice followed by many industry operators, the Group has taken out insurance which it considers
provides adequate protectior against the risks arising from such liability. Should such insurance coverage
prove insufficient,/the Group's results of operations and financial condition could be adversely affected.

In addition, the Group's/involvement in this kind of legal action and any resulting liability could expose it to
reputationai darnage, with potential additional adverse consequences for its results of operations and

financial condition;
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Risks associated with non-compliance with the contractual terms of turnkey projects

Projects for high/medium voltage submarine or underground connections are characterised by contractual
forms entailing a "turnkey" type of project management that therefore demands compliance with deadlines
and quality standards, guaranteed by penalties calculated as an agreed percentage of the contractvaiue and
that can even result in contract termination.

The application of such penalties, the obligation to compensate any damages as well as indirect efiects on
the supply chain in the event of late delivery or production problems, could significantiy-affect project
performance and hence the Group's margins. Possible damage to market reputation cannai te ruled out.
Given the complexity of "turnkey" projects, Prysmian has implemented a quality management process
involving extensive testing of cables and accessories before delivery and instaliztion. as well as specific ad
hoc insurance coverage, often through insurance syndicates, able to mitigate exposure to risks arising from
production through to delivery.

Moreover, the ERM assessments for this particular risk have led the Risk Management department, with the
support of the Commercial area, to implement a systematic process of Project Risk Assessment for "turnkey"
projects, involving the assignment of a Project Risk Manager, right from the bidding stage, with the aim of
identifying, assessing and monitoring over time the Group's exposure to’specific risks and of taking the
necessary mitigation actions. The decision to present a bid proposal to-thie customer therefore also depends
on the results of risk assessment

With regard to the events involving Western Link, an eleciricai-transmission cable between Scotland, Wales
and England, please refer to the sections on Significani Events in the Year and Significant Events after the

Reporting Period within the Explanatory Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Risk of business interruption through dependence o key assets

The submarine cables business is heavily dependent.on certain key assets, such as the Arco Felice plant in
Italy for the production of a particular type of cable and one of its cable-laying vessels (the "Giulio Verne"),
some of whose technical capabilities are hard te find on the market. The loss of one of these assets due to
unforeseen natural disasters (e.g. earthgquakes, storms, etc.) or other accidents (e.g. fire, terrorist attacks,
etc.) and the consequent prolongedbusiness interruption could have a critical economic impact on the
Group's performance.

The construction of a new cable-laying vessel began in 2018, with a best-in-class specification. As a result,
the risk of dependence on the "Giulio Verne" cable-laying vessel has been significantly reduced.

Prysmian addresses this risk through:

- asystematic Loss Prevention program, managed centrally by the Risk Management department, which,
through pericdic-on-site inspections, allows the adequacy of existing systems of protection to be
assessed and any necessary remedial actions decided to mitigate the estimated residual risk. As at 31
December 2018, the Group's operating plants were sufficiently protected and no significant exposures
to risk-were noted. All the plants have been classified as "Excellent Highly Protected Rated (HPR)",
"Good HPR' or "Good not HPR", in accordance with the methodology defined by internationally

recognised best practices in the field of Risk Engineering & Loss Prevention;
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- specific disaster recovery & business continuity plans which allow appropriate countermeasures to be
activated as soon as possible in order to minimise the impact of a catastrophic event and to manage
any consequent crisis;

- specific insurance programs for coverage against any damage to assets and loss of associate
contribution margin due to business interruption, such as to minimise the financial impact of this risk on

cash flow.

Environmental risks

The Group's production activities in Italy and abroad are subject to specific environmental regulations,
amongst which those concerning soil and subsoil and the presence/use of hazardoiis materials and
substances, including for human health. Such regulations are enforcing increasingly strict standards on
companies, which are therefore obliged to incur significant compliance costs:

Considering the large number of the Group's plants, the probability of an accident with consequences for the
environment, as well as for continuity of production, cannot be ignored or the resulting potentially significant
economic and reputational impact. Accordingly, Prysmian adopts a series of controls that keep the risk at an
acceptable level. In fact, environmental issues are managed centrally by the HQ Health Safety &
Environment (HSE) department which oversees local HSE repartments and is responsible for organising
specific training activities, for adopting systems to ensure strict adherence to regulations in accordance with
best practices, as well as for monitoring risk exposures-using-specific indicators and internal and external
auditing activities.

With reference to just the production sites witiin the pre-acquisition Prysmian Group, the certified
percentage has remained relatively stable, with /95% certified under ISO 14001 and 78% certified under
OHSAS 18001; in addition, specific other Organisations-tiave also been certified (R&D, installation activities,
kitting and distribution centres, etc.), for a tatal“of four OHSAS 18001 certificates and two 1ISO 14001
certificates.

The overall situation has been changed by the acquisition of General Cable, about a third of whose plants
(not counted in the above percentages) are currently certified under the standards in question (ISO 14001
and OHSAS 18001).

Therefore, following the acquisiiion, the programme of certifications at Group level has been duly revised,

with the intent of certifying all the production units (except for specific cases) in the future.

Cyber security risks

The growing spread of web-based technologies and business models allowing the transfer and sharing of
sensitive information through virtual spaces (i.e. social media, cloud computing, etc.) carries computing
vulnerability risks.which Frysmian Group cannot ignore in the conduct of its business. Exposure to potential
cyberattacks could be due to several factors such as the necessary distribution of IT systems around the
world, and the possession of high value-added information such as patents, technological innovation projects,
as well as financial projections and strategic plans not yet disclosed to the market, unauthorised access to

which could damage a company's results, financial situation and image. In partnership with the Risk
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Management department, the Group's IT Security function periodically performs specific assessments to
identify any vulnerabilities in IT systems locally and centrally that could compromise business continuity.

Furthermore, since 2016 Prysmian Group has started to implement a structured and integrated process for
managing cyber security-related risks which, under the leadership of the Group IT Security"fuiniction, in
partnership with the Risk Management department, aims to strengthen the Group's IT systems and platiorms
and introduce robust mechanisms to prevent and control any cyberattacks. A cogent Information-Security
strategy has been defined in this regard that clarifies the governance structure adopted by the Group and the
guidelines for managing cyber risk in connection with IT architectures and business-grocesses. A special
Information Security Committee, consisting of the key figures involved in managing cyber risk3, has been
appointed with the mission of defining the strategic and operational Cyber Security objectives, of
coordinating the main initiatives undertaken, and of examining and approving poiicies, operating procedures
and instructions. The Committee is convened on a periodic basis (twice @ year).and’in any case upon the
occurrence of any extraordinary events or crises. Lastly, specific e-learning. trairing sessions have been

provided to all the Group's IT staff with the aim of increasing their awareness ¢f thiis issue.

LEGAL AND COMPLIANCE RISKS

Compliance risks associated Code of Ethics, Policies and Procedures

Compliance risk generically represents the possibility of ‘incurring legal or administrative sanctions, material
financial losses or reputational damage as a resuli—of wiolations of prevailing laws and regulations.
Prysmian Group deploys a series of organisational procedures designed to define the principles of legality,
transparency, fairness and honesty through which-tc-operate. In particular, since its inception, the Group has
adopted a Code of Ethics, a document which/contains the ethical standards and the behavioural guidelines
that all those engaged in activities on behalf of Prysmian or its subsidiaries (including managers, officers,
employees, agents, representatives, coniractors, suppliers and consultants) are required to observe. The
Group undertakes, through its Internal’ Audit & Compliance department, to constantly monitor compliance
and actual application of these rules, with-ne type of violation tolerated.

However, despite this ongoing endeavour, assiduous vigilance and periodic information campaigns, it is not
possible to rule out future episodes-ai-imperoper conduct in breach of policy, procedures or the Code of Ethics,
and hence of current legislation-and regulations, by those engaged in performing activities on Prysmian's

behalf, which could result in-legal sanctions, fines or reputational damage, even on a material scale.

% The following sit, as permanent members, on the Information Security Committee: the Chief Operating Officer, the Vicepresident
HR&Organization, the Chief Security Officer, the Chief Information Officer, the Chief Risk Officer, the Chief Audit & Compliance Officer
and the Group's IT Security Manager.
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Risks of non-compliance with Data Protection (Privacy) legislation
In the current context, featuring a continuous globalisation of business, a proliferation of channels,
information access and an increase in volume and types of data managed, Prysmian has the chance to
create new opportunities and new services; at the same time, however, it is experiencing a time of great
complexity concerning the governance of data and its compliance with international regulations, ‘as well as
the growth of potential threats to the confidentiality, integrity and availability of information.
It is therefore essential to address the issue of how to manage information and data considered confidential
or sensitive, not solely as a compliance problem but also as a security problem and a hiisiness priority.
Furthermore, the coming into force, in May 2018, of the new European Regulation (EU). 2016/679 (GDPR —
General Data Protection Regulation) is one of the driving forces behind a renewed commitment to data
protection, particularly personal data.
The personal data protection programme adopted by Prysmian is based on three fundamental elements
impacting the entire corporate structure:
- Development of a "data-centric" model by mapping the relevant personal data processed by the
company functions and establishing a data processing register;
- Definition of a new updated governance model, designed to-meet the requirements of the GDPR and
based on the following pillars:

e A new organisational structure that includes the appointment of a Data Protection Officer,
serving in an advisory and monitoring cabacity, with the appropriate duties and
responsibilities delegated to Internai-Data Supervisors, who are responsible for the more
substantial processing of data and supervise the activities of persons who process the data;

e A series of new policies and standard appointment documents.

- Implementation of adequate technical, organisational measures to guarantee a level of security
appropriate to the risk.
The programme also includes communication-and training materials to raise user awareness of the GDPR
and of the measures adopted by Prysinianto ensure compliance with this Regulation.
Following the acquisition of Generel Cabie, the personal data protection programme has been updated and
extended to General Cable.
In fact, during the course of 2018, Gerneral Cable implemented the new European rules of the GDPR

throughout its group and also carried out training for about 800 employees.

Risks of non-compliance with-anti-bribery legislation

In recent years, legislators ahd regulators have devoted much attention to the fight against bribery and
corruption, with a-growing-tendency to extend responsibility to legal entities as well as to natural persons.
With growing internationalisation, organisations more and more often find themselves operating in contexts
exposed to the-risk ot bribery and having to comply with the many related regulations, such as Italian
Legislative Decree, 231/2001, Italy's Anti-bribery Law (Law 190/2012), the Foreign Corrupt Practices Act, the
UK Bribery Act etcy, all with a common objective: to counteract and repress corruption.

The Group's business model, with a global presence in over 50 countries and a wide array of applications for

its products, brings it into constant contact with multiple third parties (suppliers, intermediaries, agents and
103



PRYSMIAN GROUP | DIRECTORS' REPORT

customers). In particular, in the Energy (submarine and high voltage) and Oil & Gas businesses, the
management of large international projects involves having commercial relations even in countries with a
potential risk of bribery (as per the Corruption Perception Index?), often through local commercial agents-and
public officials.

Prysmian Group has therefore implemented a series of actions designed to manage bribery and corruption
on a preventive basis; foremost amongst these is the adoption of an Anti-Bribery Policy which piehibits the
bribery of both public officials and private individuals and requires employees to abide by it-aind to observe
and comply with all anti-bribery legislation in the countries in which they are employed-or active, if this is
more restrictive. In addition, specific e-learning activities (training and testing) for-all Group personnel are
periodically conducted to raise awareness about compliance with this legislation:

In continuity with the previous year, Prysmian Group moved forward in 2018 with-tlie activities defined in its
Anti-Bribery Compliance Program, inspired by the 1SO 37001 guidelires forAnti-bribery management
systems, published on 15 October 2016 and intended to strengthen its menitoring of and focus on
compliance issues. This program, in addition to giving greater control over-management of the bribery risk,
also aims to minimise the risk of punishment if crimes related to ccrruption are committed by employees or
third parties. The core of the ISO 37001 standard is the controi-of-third parties (suppliers, intermediaries,
agents and customers) through a due diligence system desigried to reveal any critical or negative events that
undermine the reputation of third parties with whom Prysmian Group deals. Following the acquisition of
General Cable, Prysmian Group's Anti-Bribery Compliance-Pregram has been updated and expanded to
include the additional activities in this area envisaged by-tiie General Cable Compliance Program.

Further details about the actions taken by the Group to prevent corrupt practices can be found in the specific

section of the annual Sustainability Report.

Risks of non-compliance with antitrust law

Competition rules, covering restrictive agreemerits and abuse of dominant position, now play a central role in
governing business activities in all sectars of economic life. Its extensive international presence in more than
50 countries means the Group is subject to-antitrust law in Europe and every other country in the world in
which it operates, each with more or less strict rules on the civil, administrative and criminal liability of parties
that violate the applicable legisiaticn. i’ the last decade, local Antitrust Authorities have paid increasing
attention to commercial activities by market players, also involving a tendency for international collaboration
between authorities themselves. ‘Prysmian aspires to operate on the market in compliance with the
competition rules.

In keeping with the priorities identified by the ERM process, the Board of Directors has adopted an Antitrust
Code of Conduct{ that all Group employees, directors and managers are required to know and observe in the
conduct of their'\duties and in their dealings with third parties. The Antitrust Code of Conduct was updated
during 2018; the new version, published on the company intranet and made available to all the Group's
employees, contains the general principles of antitrust law generally found in industry regulations applying in

the various jurisdictions in which the Group operates. In addition, other more detailed documents are

4 The Corruption Perception Index (CPI) is an indicator published annually by Transparency International, used to measure the perception of public
sector corruption in various countries around the world.
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currently being prepared, each focusing on the antitrust legislation specifically applicable in the main
countries in which the Group operates. The Antitrust Code of Conduct forms an integral part of the training
program and is intended to provide a framework for the issues concerning application of EU and-lialian
competition law concerning collusive practices and abuse of dominant position, within which—specifi
situations are assessed on a case-by-case basis. These activities represent a further step in estahlisiing an
"antitrust culture” within the Group by promoting knowledge and heightening individual accouniability for
professional duties arising under antitrust legislation. In this context, specific classrooni-training sessions
were held in 2017 and 2018 mostly for the Group's sales force and organised in coliaboraticn with external
lecturers and legal consultants. In addition, E-learning modules were launched on the . company intranet
during 2018 with the aim of continuously supporting and raising awareness of an¢ att2ntion {o this issue.

With regard to the antitrust investigations still in progress, details of which can be found in Note 14.
Provisions for risks and charges in the Explanatory Notes to the Consoiidated- Financial Statements, the
Group has a provision for risks and charges as at 31 December 2018 oi-approximately Euro 233 million.
Despite the uncertainty of the outcome of the investigations in progress-and potential legal action by
customers as a result of the European Commission's decision adgopted in April 2014, as described in the
Explanatory Notes (Note 14. Provisions for risks and charges), the amount of this provision is considered to

represent the best estimate of the liability based on the information now-available.

PLANNING AND REPORTING RISKS

Planning and reporting risks are related to the adverse effects that irrelevant, untimely or incorrect
information might have on the Group's strategic; operational and financial decisions. At present, in view of

the reliability and effectiveness of internal procedures’ for reporting and planning, the Group does not

consider these risks to be relevant.
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RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT

The merger of General Cable to the Prysmian Group has created a R&D Powerhouse.

Investments across Prysmian Group cn-Research, Development and Innovation during 2018 totaled about

EUR 105° million, confirming our sireng.commitment and focus on sustainable growth over the long term.

Prysmian group’s focus on-innovation is supported by over 900 professionals in 25 R&D Centers across the
entire globe close to our customers and our manufacturing facilities. Our flagship research center is in Milan
next to our corporate headquerters where we have committed to world class investment to maintain our

market leadership in-the wire and cable industry.

Prysmian and General Cable both have a very rich history of successful development and commercialization
of flagship/products and well recognized brands in the wire and cable industry. The combined company now

has the broadest product portfolio in this space to service customers in any part of the world. We worked on

5 Of which EUR 98 million opex and EUR 7 million capex
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several groundbreaking product innovations in 2018. This section highlights those that are most significant

from the point of view of sustainability.

/

C
program using better materials, efficient processes and innovative designs. This program achieved cost
savings totaling more than EUR 18 million in 2018 through more than 1000 projects in our manufacturing
plants. These projects deliver improve productivity and lower materials consumption resuiting.in a lower

environmental impact from our products.
PROJECTS

Submarine cables

During 2018, activities related to 3-cores cable with aluminum conductor have been accomplished with the
completion of RTE 220 kV AC Type Test. Moreover, it has been successfully.completed also the Type Test
of 3-cores cable of RTE 220 kV AC with bi-metallic joint (aluminum and/copper conductor jointed together),
which allows a cost effective optimization of the entire link using the most expensive conductors only close to
the shore and in the landfall cross section, while optimizing the conductor choice for the rest of the subsea
link portion, ensuring greater sustainability of the connection itself.

Below, the list of other milestone projects:

e Studies and activities related to welding of conductors, specifically for AC systems, with different
design started during 2018 and will be finalized during 2019: use of Milliken conductor is indicated
for land and landfall applications due to-its low icsses properties and the welding with standard Class

2 conductor typically used for submarine linlcwill allows greater sustainability of the entire link.

e Within the MI (mass impregnated) paper technology, the qualification of the system at higher
temperature (60°C instead ot the actual 55°) has been planned, allowing to transmit more power with
the same conductor cross  section.Prototype with Ml PPL (paper polypropylene laminated)

technology have beenr preduced-during 2018 and it will be tested up to 800 kV DC within 2019.

e Within the year, the development of an innovative lighter 3-cores cable has been successfully
completed and/it will allow the installation at higher water depths, not technologically achievable in
the past years (the backup would have been the installation of three stand-alone cables that made
the link not ecerniomically convenient). Interconnections between island and mainland will guarantee
a more halanced grid and less dependency form electricity production with Diesel generator and a

better, case by case, management on natural reserves.

e During the year, development projects up to 600 kV DC extruded technolo roceeded as per
g y p proj p gy p p

planning, with the use of XLPE and P-Laser as insulation materials.
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In the case the extra high voltage cable version with P-Laser insulation, the development of the P-
Laser flexible joint continued with the so-called intrusion technology by means of which the
insulation is reinstated by extruding the material within the joint area.

In the case of extra high voltage cable with XLPE technology, the intrusion joint technology-tias teen
recently introduced and first development activities started during 2018 and will be compieted-within
2019 with thermal stability test and pre-qualification tests, introducing on the maiket irifiovative
solution for submarine interconnections at higher voltages.

Cables for submarine applications have to be water proof and the technology'se fai-is hased on use
of water tight lead sheaths: during 2018 has been introduced on the market solutions with reduced
lead screen thickness, for stand alone XLPE extruded cable 220 kV /AC and for 3-cores XLPE
extruded cable 220 kV AC, with the double benefits on the reductiori-of losses (thus improving

efficiency of the system) and a positive impact on the environment,

e The path towards a totally lead free world in the cable submarine/'market is proceeding fast with the
positive completion of the development activities related, tc leadless technology, based on a
longitudinally welded copper sheath. A first prototype has been manufactured during 2018 and the
full qualification will be completed in the first months ©f 2019. Furthermore, this technology will also
allow the development of dynamic connections for cfishore platforms, thus expanding the range of

wind systems to even the deepest seas.

e Finally, the feasibility study of monitoring’ system for submarine systems in EHV, AC or DC over
long distances, using Prycam Gate techinaleqy, has been further developed. The full purpose of the
project is implement and integrate within the cakie smart diagnostic system able to prevent possible
issues during operational service of-the-system, allowing preventive maintenance and minimizing the
repair time, but also allowing a quick-detection of fault position in this way reducing the repairmen
time and the link out of service.

Terrestrial cables

*In the field of Product Development of Very High Voltage Cable Systems, significant progress was made
simultaneously in qualification of heth XLPE and proprietary P-Laser systems for 525kV HVDC applications.
Suitable technological parameters have been defined and multiple protoypes produced for extensive internal
evaluations. Thanks to’P-Laser technology, the system can operate at a higher conductor temperature of
90°C.

*Development of lHV AT cable systems development (up to 800 kV) have been pursued and two innovative
XLPE candidates has been downselected (after a screening of 8 potential candidates).

*New Techrclogicai advancements have been reached in China with the production in Yixing Plant of the
prototypes o qualify a XLPE 500 kV AC cable system.

«In the Technoiagical Transfer Activities, the start-up of the new HV Plant in La Rosa (Argentina) has to be

highlighted. Welding Aluminum Sheath (WAS) technology was introduced by commissioning and
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producing prototypes with the newly installed welding line, while prototypes to qualify the new Maillefer CCV
line were insulated. Whole Technological Transfer, included Personnel training and Technological instruction
redaction has been completed.

«In the field of Underground Network Components Technology Development, two projects were campieted.
The first one gave as a result a new distributor for class 300 kV accessories insulation. step, »with
improvement of injection conditions and mechanical performances of the EPR sleeve.

The second project allows to produce the elastic cross-linked jackets for “Speed Series” accessories without
the use of a metallic support, with cost reduction, process simplification and increase‘cf reiiakility of the final

product.

ENERGY

T&I (Trade and Installers)

CPR regulation has been actively introduced in some EU countries, where more severe requirements in
terms of flame propagation, smoke productions, acidity of gas developed during fire and droplets have been
applied for the products to be installed in places with a certain level of risk of fire. In these countries (mainly
Italy, Spain, The Netherlands) the High Performance CPR =uroclasses, typically Dca, Cca and B2ca, are
mandatory for application in these (see above) environments.and sanctions are applied for the not-compliant
players. In this sense Prysmian is actively leading the process.of development and standardization of the
new products, and additionally is moving with the other players in the sector (like distributors, fire brigades,
specifiers) in order to fix any concern or proceduralissue related to the application of CPR.

In other EU countries the CPR regulation is entered-into force but the definition of the Euroclass levels to be
applied for the different environments hasn’t baen finalized yet; so extensive work on this subject is expected

to take place in the next 2 — 3 years.

Oil&Gas

The O&G market crisis, in its first and siill partial recovery trend, is still strongly focused on design to cost,
optimization and new products development. A deep product range optimization for the offshore applications
has been successfully introduced.in 2818, including new materials concepts and process improvements: the
results are ready to be applied at Operational level and are being extended to all the focused production
units of the Group in a structured activity which will continue in 2019.

In the field of cables foi submersible pumps (ESP) a comprehensive cost optimization program has been
defined and successfully completed on the most business relevant product segments. On the other side,
the trend of simpiifying the extraction system considered as a whole, including the installation and
maintenance phases, accelerates the development of innovative solutions and requires a broader,
application-based- approach with a co-design of new combined systems in partnership with key System
Integrators:

A new range of Genfire® JF30+ products have been developed ensuring the greatest safety of people and
facilities in extreme fire scenarios. It is an innovative solution able to pass the Jet Fire test in accordance to

ISO 22899-1 standard with an enhance heat flux (350kW/m2, 1300°C). With this Technology development, a
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wide range of products has been approved for the Jet Fire test in accordance to 1ISO-22899-1 and defined in
NEK-TS606:2016 for offshore and onshore applications.

OEMs

In 2018, the intense activity of development and improvement of products for the industrial market contiriued,
including a vast and varied number of applications, with a structured focus on the developing markeis,and on
the Customer applications needs.

Wind tower cable systems have been developed and successfully launched to treduce-the amount of
manpower needed by the OEMs and Contractors on the field during installations in_harsh; remote or simply
expensive environments.

For Crane, Mining, Wind and Rolling Stock all the proprietary Compounds formuiations for MV insulations

have been successfully switched to new lead-free variants.

Prysmian Electronics

In 2018 PE has been involved in the developments of two important products. The first is the monitoring
version of a products that we are working on since 2015 and/kased on a patent of the same year. This
device is designed to implement the “Pry-Cam Gate” concept, (deteciion of partial discharges based on
“time to flag” principle) on a monitoring system for DC cabie system. In particular this device is especially
designed to check the presence of PD in joints giving as-resuit a simple traffic light. This device ah been
installed in “Laguna” project for Terna and will be instaii-in Eleklink project starting from the last part of the
year.

The second development of 2018 is the new GUi for.the monitoring system. In particular a new software has
been developed with the aim to manage all ihe information acquired by Pry-Cam products (Grids for PD,

DLOG for analog parameter as voltage current nressian, etc, DTS, DAS) in a unique software platform.

TELECOM

Optical Cables

2018 saw the launch of new, Fiexikitbon™ products reaching up to 6912 optical fibres to offer increased
functionality to data centres. Designed to maximize fibre density and duct space utilization, Prysmian’s
MassLink™ with FlexRibizon™ technology products compact the maximum fibre count into the smallest
cable possible, by usirig extremely flexible fibre ribbons that can either be rolled up for high packing densities
or laid flat for ribbon spiicing. /The significantly smaller diameter and lighter weight cables have superior kink
resistance and iricieased flexibility, which allows for easier installation and the use of smaller ducts. In the
case of the 17268 fibre design, there is a 21 percent smaller diameter (38 percent volume reduction) over
traditional flat-ribbori-designs. And while the new FlexRibbon™ products provide high packing density, they
also feature 200 and 250-micron fibre ribbons that still provide the advantages of mass fusion splicing. With
this latest product/.enhancement, Prysmian Group is reaffirming its commitment to investing in its optical fibre
and cable capacities to respond to the evolving needs of the market and support its customers in developing

new, reliable and efficient broadband networks.
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Optical fibres

To increase the capacity of data communications (local-area and intra-data-centre networks), the use of
multiple high-bandwidth OM4 MMFs in parallel has been the preferred solution. For speeds higher than
400Gbps, however, this can make cabling management too complex. Wide-Band MMFs, cornpatibie with
wavelength division multiplexing, offer a simple path to reduce fiber counts. After pioneer work started in
2014, we are now producing and selling this new type of MMF, standardized as OMZE, tivat ailow for
migration to future bit rates while being compatible with current OM4 systems. We have alsc-heen working
on new types of fibers that allow for Spatial Division Multiplexing (SDM), a unique imiltiniexing technology
able to cope with capacity demand that is growing at an exponential rate. These SDM/ fibers (few-mode
fibers that multiply the capacity by the number of modes, and multi-core fibers that multinly the capacity by
the number of cores) could find applications in short-reach green-field applicaticns such as data centre

interconnects.

Connectivity

Prysmian has continued to expand its product range for use in ultra broadband access networks. In 2018 a
strong focus was made on products that enable full fibre to the premises connections, in multi dwelling unit
applications. This included a range of termination boxes for use with-pre-connectorized drop cables, such
as the PBI-8SC and MTWB. A number of additional customer termination boxes such as the CTB Lite, 4f
Hybrid CTB and the unroller termination box were also ‘launchad, In addition to the range of MDU boxes
launched, Prysmian continued its focus on expanding its-cutside plant closure range, with a range of addition

items to provide further functionality such as splitter trays and ribbon trays.

OPGW and Specials

In the OPGW & Specials BU, the Technology of stainless steel with an aluminium coating has been
consolidated up to 96 fibres while the ’monctube aluminium extruded Technology has been further
reinforced. With these technologies (ifferent projects have been awarded, such as the OPGW supply
contract with EVN (Vietnam) and ESKOM-(South Africa).

The Specials family of high mechanical strength and chemical for applications such as sensing, OGP and
sub-aqua have been further develcped. With these technologies different projects heve been awarded such
as the Shell’'s sub aqua connectien-(Nigeria) or fibre network at Petrobel project (Egypt).

Multimedia Solutions and Data Communication Cables

Originally developed fcr application in the Automotive environment, Single-Pair-Ethernet (SPE) is now
deployed into structured cabling. Especially in areas with limited demand for bandwidth (e.g. industrial
application) SPE ‘will be able to contribute additional benefit of Ethernet interoperability using resource and
space savirig—-cabie solution compared to traditional bus-system. Standardisation projects for cabling,
connectirg-hardware and cables are on-going. Maximum bandwidth currently specified is 1 Gb/s. All
channels under development are based on screened cables and connectors. First samples are run in order

to have a suitable design ready and adjusted to connector system once standards are finalised.

111



PRYSMIAN GROUP | DIRECTORS' REPORT

About Data Communication Cables, a new generation of small diameter 10Gig Category 6A cables was
introduced in 2018 for our North America customers. With a revolutionary design developed to find the

perfect blend of product performance and product size, the new GenSPEED® 10 Category 6A Cables.is the

maneuverability. Its innovative technology and reduced size is perfect for migrating to.a Cat 6A
infrastructure, allowing for improved cable management, installation and handling. It is a win tor-aii-partners
in the value chain and the environment alike. The smaller size allows for packaging up to 3X number of reels
per pallet and improves transportation efficiency. Lighter cable is easier to manage when isading trucks or

moving around a jobsite and can help reduce the risk of worksite injuries.

INNOVATIVE MATERIALS

Prysmian is investing in leading research to push the boundaries of inngvation in materials and surface
science for cables and accessories. The main results achieved during 2018 include;

* Industrialization of the full MV disconnectable joint completed with full safistaction of the plant in France, the
new materials show better performance in the molding process than.ihe previous ones leading even to a
significative reduction of the scrap generated.

» Development of materials for MV and HV accessories that could be extruded without the central support of
an aluminum tube.

» Development of insulating compounds for HV accessories without lead, materials developed and now
ready to be tested on model cables in the laboratory.

» Development of a new sheathing material for oil 2and gas able to meet the requirements of the market more
and more stringent in term of cost preserving the‘target performance.

» Development of a patented masterbatch ta be used with the LV XLPE able to reduce significantly the
dripping of the material during the burning, of the cable.

* Studies with the University of Salerno,cn paiypropylene materials ongoing, scope of the work is to find a
material that can withstand better the heavy thermal conditions applied to the EHV cables during the long
term electrical tests.

» Development of a method to study the decomposition of mica glass tapes at high temperatures (up to
1500° C) to evaluate the performance ef broducts in current use.

* In the field of low-weight submarine reinforcements, the collaboration with a UHMW-based polyethylene
fiber producer lead to a product that we can now use to make prototypes of cables with new designs.

» Research into a new optical-fiber coating formulation based on a sustainable green raw material that can
reduce energy consumption during optical fiber drawing process.

« Studies and evaluaticns done on polyamides to understand the possibility to use bio based polymers.

« Evaluation of nanocarbon forms including carbon nanotubes (CNTs) and graphene to substitute metal as
light weight high pericimance conductor elements.

» Developrnent of ice phobic coatings that can delay ice accretion and reduce ice adhesion on both
polymeric and metal substrates

» Development of antimicrobial coatings for flexible rubber cords targeting industries requiring high

sanitation requirements such as food processing and hospitals.
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INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY
Protecting the portfolio of patents and trademarks is a key part of the Group's business, particularly in

relation to its strategy of growth in high-tech market segments. During the year, the Group continted to

investments made in recent years. As of 31 December 2018, the Prysmian Group holds 5627 patents and
patent applications throughout the world covering 854 inventions (4,845patents and patent angplications
covering 741 inventions refers to legacy Prysmian Group perimeter while 782 covering 113-invertions refers
to legacy General Cable perimeter). A total of 61 patent applications were filed during 2018 (41 legacy
Prysmian Group and 20 legacy General Cable) of which 29 in the Projects and Energy ‘sectors (17 legacy
Prysmian Group and 12 legacy General Cable) and 27 in the Telecom sector/(24 legacyPrysmian Group
and 3 legacy General Cable). Following examination, 200 patents were granted during the year (141 legacy
Prysmian Group and 59 legacy General Cable), 54 by the European Patent Office (EPO) (50 legacy
Prysmian Group and 4 legacy General Cable) and 31 in the United States {24-legacy Prysmian Group and 7

legacy General Cable).
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INCENTIVE PLANS

Long-term incentive plan 2018-2020
The Shareholders’ Meeting of Prysmian S.p.A. held on 12 April 2018 approved an incentive piari for
employees of the Prysmian Group, including members of the Board of Directors of Prysmian S.p.A., and
granted the Board of Directors the necessary powers to establish and implement this plan.
The reasons behind the introduction of the Plan are:
- generation of a strong commitment by the Group's management to achieving-the targets for additional
growth in profits and return on capital employed;
- alignment of the interests of management with those of shareholders by using share-based incentives, and
promoting stable share ownership of the Company;
- to support synergies and the development of a one-company identity by definirig a common performance
objective and introducing a retention mechanism, also further to the- acquisition of General Cable
Corporation.
The Plan covers around 600 employees of Group companies and-involves the grant of options, the number
of which depends on the achievement of common business and finaricial performance objectives for all
participants.
The Plan consists of two parts:
- Co-investment;
- Performance Shares.
The Co-investment part allows each participant/to defer and co-invest a variable portion of their annual
bonus for the years 2018, 2019 and 2020; if the Target is achieved, this portion will be returned to the
participant in the form of company shares with-a higher value, depending on the type of co-investment profile
selected and the amount co-invested.
The Performance Shares part involves the prior establishment of a minimum and maximum number of
shares for each participant, according. to-tiheir company position and salary level. The number of shares
actually awarded will depend on the extent o which the Performance Conditions are achieved. Both parts of
the plan are contingent upon-achievingthe Group's aggregate Adjusted EBITDA for the three years 2018-
2020, while the number of shares-awarded for the Performance Share part will depend on the level of:

e aggregate Adjusted EBITDA (60%);

e net financial debt at 31 December 2020 (40%).

Total Shareholders Retuin acts as a multiplier and demultiplier of the total shares awarded for both parts of
the plan (+12.5% and -25%).

The empicyee incentive plan (LTI 2018-2020), introduced to support the integration with General Cable,
which got off to-a rapid start after the mid-year closing, has been significantly affected in the short-term by

unexpected problems encountered in the Projects business during 2018. In fact, although the integration has
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continued to be implemented in line with the roadmap for its completion and achievement of the related
synergies by 2021, the operating issues, particularly involving the Western Link project, have led

management to believe that the above incentive plan is at risk in target terms and nonetheless off track with

due for completion at the end of 2021, management has deemed it appropriate to bring the term-.of the LTI
into line with that of this integration plan, also to lend additional support to the latter's effective pursuit.
Therefore, the Company will submit for approval by the forthcoming Shareholders' Meeting-a. proposal to
adopt several amendments to the Plan, aimed at strengthening its retention and motivational-mechanism for
management (including the very high number of General Cable participants), who represent the Group's key
asset for delivering the ultimate strategy, staying constantly on track with shareholder interests,

The main amendments to the Plan, made for the benefit of participants, concern the period and the
performance conditions; the period will be extended to include 2021, making it a four-year plan, in line with
the integration roadmap. The revised term of the Plan will better measure the Group's medium-term growth

in value.

Additional information about the incentive plans can be found in-Note 21 to the Consolidated Financial

Statements.
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SIGNIFICANT EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Antitrust Brazil

On 3 January 2019, the Brazilian antitrust authority informed Prysmian that its investigations, natified-toc the
Company in 2011, had been completed and gave it 10 working days for the submission of briefs, duly filed
by Prysmian on 18 January 2019. The general superintendence of the Brazilian aniitrust authority
(Administrative Council for Economic Defense — "CADE") published a Technical Note iri:the Brazilian Federal
Official Gazette on 11 February 2019. The Technical Note sets out the conclusions of CADE's investigations
which lean towards the imposition of a fine on Prysmian. The Technical Note contains-the‘recommendation
that the amount the CADE Tribunal could fine Prysmian be between15% and 20% of its turnover in Brazil in
2009. In any case, this recommendation is not binding for the CADE Triburial. The Tribunal's decision, which
will be issued at the end of a public hearing, will be provisionally enforceaile but’can be challenged before
the Brazilian courts.

In view of the circumstances described, the directors, assisted by /the Gfoup's legal advisors, have decided

to recognise a provision of Euro 68 million.

Development of power transmission grid in Washington D.C.

On 6 February 2019, the Group signed an agreement te pariicipate in a project to upgrade the US capital
district's power transmission system. The multi-stage ‘project is worth approximately USD 190 million and is
scheduled to run between 2019 and 2026. The first batch of cables worth USD 13 million will be delivered by
the end of 2019.

Cables will be manufactured at Prysmian's state-of-the-ari factory in Abbeville (South Carolina, USA).

Contract to develop a new submarine cable system in Canada (Fundy Isles)

On 11 February 2019, the Group was awarded a new contract worth Euro 17 million by New Brunswick
Power Corporation (NB Power), the largest/ electric utility in Canada, based in the province of New
Brunswick. The Fundy Isles proiect invoives the development of a new submarine cable link to upgrade the
capacity of the existing transmissicn system in the Passamaquoddy Region of the Bay of Fundy. The new
submarine power cable will connect’Deer Island, Campobello Island and Grand Manan Island to the
Canadian province's mainland-powe! grid.

The submarine cable cores wiil be produced at Prysmian's centre of excellence in Montereau (France), while
the cable armouring will.be manufactured at its state-of-the-art factory in Nordenham (Germany), part of the

Group after the General Cable acquisition. Completion of the project is scheduled for October 2019.
Western Link

On 19 Fehruary 2019, a problem was detected in the Western Link interconnector, leading to its temporary

switch-off.
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The tests and investigations carried out so far have located the problem necessitating the temporary switch-
off within the southern land cable section.

Prysmian has already started mobilising specialised teams on site to investigate the nature of the problem

time with the least logistical and environmental impact.

As a result of these events, the Group's management has assessed the need for a provision-ai-Euro 25
million. This provision is against contractual penalties, accruing over the period needed- for the repair in
guestion, and against costs of producing an additional length of cable for any future‘repairs-or other needs

that might arise.

Mediobanca loan and partial repayment of the Bridge Loan

On 20 February 2019, the Group entered into an agreement with Mediobanca for a Euro 100 million
medium-term loan for 5 years from the date of signing, with a bullet repaviment at maturity. In parallel, a
partial repayment of Euro 100 million against the Bridge Loan was instructed on 25 February 2019 for

execution on 6 March 2019.

Amendments to the long-term incentive plan 2018-2020

The employee incentive plan (LTI 2018-2020), introduced to. suppart the integration with General Cable,
which got off to a rapid start after the mid-year closing, has bean significantly affected in the short-term by
unexpected problems encountered in the Projects business during 2018. In fact, although the integration has
continued to be implemented in line with the roadmap for its completion and achievement of the related
synergies by 2021, the operating issues, particularly involving the Western Link project, have led
management to believe that the above incentive plan is-at risk in target terms and nonetheless off track with
the new medium-term outlook. Also in light of the General Cable integration plan, currently in progress and
due for completion at the end of 2021, management has deemed it appropriate to bring the term of the LTI
into line with that of this integration plan, alse to ‘end additional support to the latter's effective pursuit.
Therefore, the Company will submit for-approval by the forthcoming Shareholders' Meeting a proposal to
adopt several amendments to the Plan, aimed at strengthening its retention and motivational mechanism for
management (including the very higihntimber of General Cable participants), who represent the Group's key
asset for delivering the ultimate strategy, staying constantly on track with shareholder interests.

The main amendments to-ihe Plan, made for the benefit of participants, concern the period and the
performance conditions; the period will be extended to include 2021, making it a four-year plan, in line with
the integration roadmap. The revised term of the Plan will better measure the Group's medium-term growth

in value.
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BUSINESS OUTLOOK

In 2018, the global economy grew compared to the previous year, despite the emergence of signs of cyclical
deterioration in many advanced economies and emerging countries. In the Euro area, growth slowed down
as of the second half of the year, partly due to financial instability factors but also to/ihe deterioration of
companies’ expectations and the weakness of demand.

The US continued to show a robust growth rate, driven by internal consumption and investiments. Amongst
the main emerging economies, in China the slowdown of economic activity, which)started in early 2018,
continued also in the last months of the year, despite the fiscal stimulus ‘measures introduced by the
government.

The consolidation of such trends seems to be confirmed in early 2019, and some economies are expected to
worsen. The expansion of international economic activity is indeed hindered by multiple uncertainty and risk
factors: the consequences of the negative outcome of the US-China trade negotiations currently underway,
the rekindling of financial tensions in emerging countries, the decision, as yet to be finalized, on how Brexit
will take place.

Within this macroeconomic scenario, Prysmian Group expects. that FY 2019 demand in the cyclical
construction and industrial cable businesses will be slightiy-higher than in 2018. The medium voltage utilities
cable business is also expected to show a trend of moderate recovery, with uneven performances at the
level of the various geographical areas. In the Submarine sysiems and cables business, Prysmian Group is
aiming to reaffirm its leading position, also in light of a market that is expected to remain stable at the levels
of 2018. The results of this business will be positively-influenced by the recovery of the negative effect of the
Western Link provisions (Euro 95 million). At organic level, said results are expected to decrease in 2019
due to the limited collection of orders in-2018. in the High Voltage Underground systems and cables
business, the Group expects virtual stability, witih-a gradual improvement in expected performance in China
and South-East Asia due to the new manufacturing set-up. Finally, for the Telecom segment the Group
expects that growth will remain solia.iti-201S; driven by the increase in demand for optical cables in Europe
and North America, whereas a-siowdown is expected due to a reduction in volumes on the Australian
market.

The effect of converting subsidiaries’ results into the consolidated reporting currency is assumed to be
neutral on the Group’s operating performance.

In light of the above considerations, the Group expects to achieve an adjusted EBITDA for FY 2019 in the
range of Euro 956-1,020 miliion, significantly up compared to Euro 837 million reported in 2018 (which
included the Euro 95 million negative effect of the Western Link project).

Estimated synergies-that can be achieved in 2019 amount to Euro 120 million (Euro 85 million incremental in
2019).

Moreover, tor 2019 the Group forecasts a cash flow generation of approximately Euro300 million, with a
foreseeable maximum fluctuation of 10% (FCF before acquisition and disposals). This amount includes the
planned cash outflow of Euro 90 million for restructuring and integration activities.
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2019 objectives do not include further impacts of the Western Link project and do not take into account the
effect of the implementation of IFRS 16. Moreover, the cash objective includes the negative effect of the
Western Link criticalities occurred on 19 February 2019, and does not take into account any impacts from
the dispute with the Brazilian Antitrust Regulator.

Prysmian Group continues to optimise its organisational and production structures with the aim of achieving
by financial year 2021, a level of cumulated synergies generated by the integration of Generai Cahie of Euro
175 million (compared to Euro 35 million realised at year-end 2018), a higher amount-compared to the
previous target of Euro 150 million by 2022 and one year ahead of initial expectations:

This forecast is based on the Company'’s current business perimeter.

119



PRYSMIAN GROUP | DIRECTORS' REPORT

OTHER INFORMATION

Related party transactions

Related party transactions do not qualify as either atypical or unusual but form part of the normal course of
business by Group companies. Such transactions take place under market terms and conditions, according
to the type of goods and services provided.

The Group has also published, including on its website, the procedures adopted to ensure the transparency
and substantive and procedural fairness of related party transactions.

Information about related party transactions, including that required by the Consciz-Cemmiunication dated 28

July 2006, is presented in Note 33 to the Consolidated Financial Statements at‘31 December 2018.

Atypical and/or unusual transactions
In accordance with the disclosures required by Consob Communication DEM/6964293 dated 28 July 2006, it

is reported that no atypical and/or unusual transactions took place during’2018:

Secondary offices and key corporate information
The list of secondary offices and key corporate information of tihe legal entities making up the Group can be

found in Appendix A of the Explanatory Notes to the Consglidaied Financial Statements.

Financial risk management
The management of financial risks is discussed in the Explanatory Notes to the Consolidated Financial

Statements, in Section D. Financial risk managernent.
Treasury shares

Information about treasury shares can/te found-iri Note 11 to the Consolidated Financial Statements at 31
December 2018.
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CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO ART. 2.6.2 OF THE ITALIAN
STOCK EXCHANGE MARKET REGULATIONS

Suitable measures have been taken to ensure compliance with art. 15 of the Regulations isstied ty Consob
under Resolution no. 20249 of 28 December 2017, concerning conditions for the listing-of shares of parent
companies that control companies incorporated under and regulated by the law of countries other than EU
member states and which are material to the Consolidated Financial Statements, and whose conditions

apply to the Company.
Milan, 5 March 2019
ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

THE CHAIRMAN

Claudio De Conto
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

(in millions of Euro)

Note 31 of which 31 of which -—afwWhiCh
December related | December related January related
2018 | parties 2017 (*) parties | 2017 (*) . parties
(Note (Note :
33) 33)
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 1 2,629 1,646
Intangible assets 2 2,132 735
Equity-accounted investments 3 294 294 217 217 195 195
‘C:)gg]eprrg}:/:ﬁémgr;;sc gﬁ:w value through other 4 13 1? 12
Financial assets at amortised cost 5 2
Derivatives 8 2 3
Deferred tax assets 16 161 146
Other receivables 5 33 21
Total non-current assets 5,269 2,793/ 2,802
Current assets
Inventories 6 S54 906
Trade receivables 5 1,131 6 1,088 14
Other receivables 5 419 5 735 5
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 7 40 57
Derivatives 8 45 40
Financial ass_ets_ at fair value through other 4 1 )
comprehensive income
Cash and cash equivalents 9 1,335 646
Total current assets 3,935 3,472
Assets held for sale 10 - -
Totalassets 7 6,728 6,274
Equity attributable to the Group: 1,451 1,411
Share capital 11 22 22
Reseves A 11 1,188 1,143
Net profit/(loss) for the period i 241 246
Equity attributable to non-controlling interests; * 188 227
Share capital andreserves 7 192 211
Net profit/(loss) for the year 4) 16
Total equity 1,639 1,638
Non-current liabilities
Borrowings from banks and other lenders 12 3,161 1,466 1,114
Other payables 13 12 8 18
Provisions for risks and charges /.~ 14 51 33 40
Derivatives 8 9 2 12
Deferred tax liabilities 16 238 103 111
Employee benefit obligations 15 463 355 383
Total non-current liabilities 3,934 1,967 1,678
Current liabilites | |
Borrowings from banks and cther leriders 12 98 370 172
Trade payables /-~ . " 13 2,132 5 1,686 4 1,498 4
Other payables 13 921 1 692 5 875 3
Derivatives 8 41 35 24
Provisions for risks-and charges 14 533 4 321 4 339 2
Current tax payables | 38 18 50
Total current liabilities 3,763 3,122 2,958
Total liabilities 7,697 5,089 4,636
Total equity and liabilities 10,143 6,728 6,274

(*) The previously published prior year consolidated financial statements have been restated following the adoption of IFRS 15 and
IFRS 9. Further details can be found in Section C. Restatement of comparative figures.
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

(in millions of Euro)

Note 2018 of which 2017:(*) - of which
relat_ed 5 relat_ed
parties parties

(Note 33) (Note 33)

Sales of goods and services 17 10,158 29 34
Change in inventories of work in progress, semi-finished and finished 18 85)
e e NN N
Other income 19 139 5 81 5
Raw materials, consumables used and goods for resale 20 (6,542) 20) (4,912) (15)
Fair value change in metal derivatives (48) 12
Personnel costs 21 (1,260) (1,086) (26)

of which personnel costs for company reorganisation (24)

of which personnel costs for stock option fair value (49)
Amortisation, depreciation, impairment and impairment reversals 22 (199)

of which other impairment (18)
Other expenses 23 (1,475)

of which non-recurring (other expenses) and releases (18)

of which (other expenses) for company reorganisation 4~ > ) (6)
Share of net profit/(loss) of equity-accounted companies 59 59 42 42
Operating income 310 424
T ———\N 25 ........... ) o)

of which non-recurring finance costs 2) 2)

of which impact from hyperinflationary economies (6)
Finance income 26 302 250
Profit/(loss) before taxes Lo 198 325
Taxes .~ 27 (68) (88)
Net profit/(loss) for the year 130 237
Atributableto: /o
omesotermet &7 - ™
Noncooling e Y/ - @
Basic earnings/(loss) per share (in Euro) ....................... 28 0.53 1.14
Diluted earnings/(loss) per share (in Eura) 28 0.53 1.11

(*) The previously published grior year consolidated financial statements have been restated following the adoption of IFRS 15 and
IFRS 9. Further details can ke found in\Section C. Restatement of comparative figures.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

(in millions of Euro)

2018

Net profit/(loss) for the year

130

Comprehensive income/(loss) for the year

- items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss:

Fair value gains/(losses) on cash flow hedges - gross of tax 11
Fair value gains/(losses) on cash flow hedges - tax effect (5)
Measurement of financial instruments at fair value through other comprehensive )
income

Currency translation differences (6) (169)
Total items that may be reclassified, net of tax > a7) (163)
- items that will NOT be reclassified subsequently to profitor loss: >~/

Actuarial gains/(losses) on employee benefits - gross of tax /) 4) 17
Actuarial gains/(losses) on employee benefits - tax effect [/ 2 3)
Total items that will NOT be reclassified, net of tax ‘o~ 2) 14
Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the year L 111 88
T

e ot R ios o
Non-controlling interests 7 (32)

(*) The previously published prior year consolidated financial statements have been restated following the adoption of IFRS 15 and
IFRS 9. Further details can be found in Section C. Restatement-of comparative figures.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

(in millions of Euro)

Share Cash : Currency Other Net Equity Non-: Total
capital flow ' translation ' reserves profit/(loss) | attributable | controiling
hedge reserve for the year to the :  interesis
reserve Group-

Balance at 31 December 2016 (*) 22 (13) (156) 1,312 246 1,411 227 1,638
Allocation of prior year net result - - - 246 (246) - -
Dividend distribution - - - (91) (10) : (101)
Fair value - stock options - - - 49 - 49
Equity component of Convertible ) ) ) ) )
Bond 2017 8 48 48
Share buyback - - - (100) - (100) - (100)
Non-controlling interests purchased
In SUbSIdIarles i i i (3) .................. i (3) i (3)
Capital contributions by non- ) ) ) ) v ) 3 3
CONLIOIING INLETESES e e e
Partial conversion of Convertible ) ) ) {7 ) 17 17
Bond2013 e R
Total comprehensive income/(loss) ) 8 (143) 14 241 120 (32) 88
LT N S N N
Balance at 31 December 2017(*) 22 (5) (299) 1,492 241 1,451 188 1,639
(inmillions of Euro)

Share Cash .~ Currency Other Net Equity Non-: Total

capital flow | translaiion reserves profit/(loss) | attributable : controlling

hedg= . reserve for the year to the interests
reserve | Group

Balance at 31 December 2017(*) (299) 1,492 241 1,451 188 1,639
Allocation of prior year net result - 241 (241) - - -
Fair value - stock options - 6 - 6 6
Dividend distribution - (96) - (96) (9): (105)
Capital increase - 493 - 496 - 496
Change in scope of consolidation - - - - - 2 2
Conversion of convertible bond 2013 - - 281 - 283 - 283
Monetary revaluation for . —
hyperinflation oo ) ) ) 1 ) 1 ) 1
Total comprehensive income/(loss) ) ) (14) ) 130 104 7 111
for the year
Balance at 31 December 2018 27 (14) (313) 2,428 130 2,258 188 | 2,446

(*) The previously published prior year consolidated financial statements have been restated following the adoption of IFRS 15 and
IFRS 9. Further details-caribefound in Section C. Restatement of comparative figures.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

(in millions of Euro)

2018 of which 2017 () of which
related reiaied
parties parties

(Note 33) (Naze 33)

Profit/(loss) before taxes 198

Depreciation, impairment and impairment reversals of property, plant 173
and equipment

Amortisation and impairment of intangible assets 59

Net gains on disposal of property, plant and equipment, intangible
assets and on dilutions of interests in associates and other non-
monetary movements

Share of net profit/(loss) of equity-accounted companies (42)
Share-based payments

Fair value change in metal derivatives and other fair value items

Net finance costs

Changes in inventories

Changes in trade receivables/payables 8
Changes in other receivables/payables 2
Taxes paid

Dividends received from equity-accounted companies 10
Utilisations of provisions (including employee benefit obligations)

Increases and other movements in provisions (including employee 2

benefit obligations)

A. Net cash flow provided by/(used in) operating activities

Cash flow from acquisitions and/or disposals )

Investments in property, plant and equipment

Disposals of property, plant and equipment and assets held for sale 7 3
Investments in intangible assets (18) (20)
Investments in financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (7) (2)

Disposals of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss ' 17 11

Investments in financial assets or equity interests at fair value thrauai

e - (13
other comprehensive income
Investments in associates ~~/ - (1)

B. Net cash flow provided by/(used in) investing activities . (1,476) (266)
Capital contributions and other changes inequity 7/~ 496 3
Share buypgck - (100)
Dividend distributon (105) (101)
Early repayment of credit facility - (50)
Repayment of EIB Loan 2013 an (16)
Proceeds of EIB Loan 2017 - 110

Proceeds of Loans for acquisition ® 1,700 -
Repayment of Loans for acquisition (200)
Proceeds of Unicredit Loan 200

Issuance of Convertible Bond 2017 ' - 500

Proceeds of CDP Loan - 100

. (396) -

Finance costs paid @ (362) (398)
Finance income received ¥ 278 328
Changes in other net financial receivaisles/payables (902) (7)

C. Net cash flow provided byi{used in) financing activities 692 369
D. Currency translation gains/{ic (12) (21)
E. Total cash flow provided/(used)in the year (A+B+C+D) (334) 689
F. Net cash and cash equivalents\at the beginning of the year 1,335 646
G. Net cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year (E+F) 1,001 1,335

(*) The previously published priar year consolidated financial statements have been restated following the adoption of IFRS 15 and
IFRS 9. Further details can be found in Section C. Restatement of comparative figures.

@ The figure of Euro 1,208-wiillion represents the difference between the cash outlay of Euro 1,290 million to acquire General Cable and
the net cash/and cash equivalents reported by General Cable at the time of the acquisition. More details can be found in the section on
"Business comiinations".

@ The figure of Eurc-%,700 million excludes loan-arrangement costs of Euro 10 million, which are reported in Finance costs paid.

® Finance costs paid-of Euro 362 million include interest payments of Euro 48 million in 2018 (Euro 33 million in 2017).

@ Finance income received of Euro 278 million includes interest income of Euro 4 million in 2018 (Euro 6 million in 2017).
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EXPLANATORY NOTES

A. GENERAL INFORMATION

Prysmian S.p.A. ("the Company") is a company incorporated and domiciled in Italy and organised under the

laws of the Republic of Italy.

The Company has its registered office in Via Chiese 6, Milan (Italy).

Prysmian S.p.A. was floated on the Italian Stock Exchange on 3 May 2007 and since September 2007 has
been included in the FTSE MIB index, comprising the top 40 Italian companies by capitalisation and stock

liquidity.

The Company and its subsidiaries (together "the Group" or "Prysmian Group") produce cables and systems
and related accessories for the energy and telecommunications /industries, and distribute and sell them

around the globe.

A.1 SIGNIFICANT EVENTS IN 2018

Mergers & Acquisitions

Acquisition of General Cable

On 4 December 2017, the Prysmian Group and.General Cable Corporation announced that they had entered
into a merger agreement. Under this agreement,; Prysmian S.p.A., through Alisea Corp. (Alisea), a wholly-
owned indirect subsidiary of Prysmian S.n.A.,-and General Cable Corporation (a company whose shares
were listed on the NYSE prior to completion of the merger) had entered into an "Agreement and Plan of

Merger" governing the terms and conditioris of the merger of Alisea into General Cable Corporation.

On 16 February 2018, a special meeting of the shareholders of General Cable Corporation approved
Prysmian's acquisition of 100% i General Cable's shares for a consideration of USD 30.00 per share.
Present at the meeting was 75.34% cf the share capital entitled to vote, of which some 99% voted in favour

of the acquisition.

Between March and 2 June, all the approvals or clearances were obtained from the relevant antitrust
authorities along with approval by other requisite governmental regulators and authorities (Committee on
Foreign Investment in the United States - CFIUS).

The closing of the, acquisition was consummated on 6 June, following which all the Alisea shares, wholly-
owned by Prysmian, were converted into General Cable Corporation shares resulting from the merger, with

the consequence that all the General Cable Corporation shares outstanding on the effective date of the
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merger with Alisea were cancelled and converted into a right of their respective holders to receive cash

consideration of USD 30.00 per share.

Following consummation of the transaction, General Cable Corporation shares were delisted from the NYSE
on 6 June 2018.

The combined group is now present in more than 50 countries with approximately 29,000-employees.
Prysmian expects the combined group to generate run-rate pre-tax cost synergies of approximately Euro 175
million by 2022 versus a total of Euro 220 million in integration costs. These synergies wiii come mainly from

improved procurement strategy, overhead cost savings and manufacturing footprint optimisation.

Finance Activities

Interest rate hedging derivatives

In January 2018, the Group entered into interest rate hedging derivatives, transforming variable into fixed
rate, with the purpose of reducing rate volatility risk. In particular, forward rate-agreements were arranged, for
an overall notional value of Euro 850 million, with the objective of-hedging variable interest rate flows over
the period 2018-2023 on financing contracted by the Group for the Genera!l'Cable acquisition. Following the
acquisition, these agreements have become operative through their transformation into interest rate swaps.
Other interest rate swaps were also arranged in January 2018 for.an overall notional value of Euro 110
million, with the objective of hedging variable interest rate f'ows-over the period 2018-2024 on the EIB loan of
matching underlying amount.

In July 2018, the Group entered into interest rate hedging derivatives, transforming variable into fixed rate,
with the purpose of reducing variable rate risk. In particular, forward rate agreements were arranged, for an
overall notional value of Euro 300 million, with-the objective of hedging variable interest rate flows over the
period 2018-2020 on financing contracted by “thie Group for the General Cable acquisition. These
agreements became operative in September 2018 through their transformation into interest rate swaps.

In November 2018, the Group enterec’ into/additional interest rate hedging derivatives, transforming variable
into fixed rate, with the purpose of reducing variable rate risk. More specifically, interest rate swaps have
been arranged, for an overall notional value of Euro 150 million, with the objective of hedging variable
interest rate flows over the peried-2815-2023 on financing contracted by the Group for the General Cable

acquisition.

General Cable Corporation Acquisition Financing Agreement

On 2 March 2018, the Group entered into an agreement (the Acquisition Financing Agreement) under which

a syndicate of leading banks made available lines of credit, intended to finance costs of the General Cable

acquisition; in patticular:

(8) Acquisition Terim-Loan for Euro 1 billion, lasting 5 years from the Acquisition Closing and repayable with
a bullet payment at maturity;

(b) Acquisition.Bridge Loan for Euro 700 million, lasting 2 years from the Acquisition Closing and repayable
with a bullet payment at maturity.

Further details can be found in Note 12. Borrowings from banks and other lenders.
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Capital increase

On 12 April 2018, the shareholders of Prysmian S.p.A. approved a capital increase, in cash, for a maximum
amount of Euro 500,000,000.00, including any share premium, to be implemented by issuing ordinary shares
with normal dividend rights.

On 27 June 2018, the Board of Directors of Prysmian S.p.A. approved the final terms and conditions-of the
capital increase, approved by the Shareholders' Meeting on 12 April 2018. In particular, it was decided that
the capital increase would take place through the issue of up to 32,652,314 ordinary shares with a hominal
value of Euro 0.10 each, to be offered pre-emptively to all shareholders and holders of-the Company's
convertible bonds, namely the convertible bond known as "Prysmian S.p.A. €500,000,000 Zero Coupon
Linked Bonds due 2022", in the ratio of 2 new shares for every 15 option rights held, at.an issue price of
Euro 15.31 per new share, for a total amount of Euro 499,906,927.34, of which Eurc 496,641,695.94 by way
of share premium.

The rights offering of up to 32,652,314 new shares closed on 27 July 2018. During'the option rights offering
period (2 July 2018 - 19 July 2018, the "Option Period"), 239,533,800 ¢niionrights were exercised and
31,937,840 new shares were subscribed, with an aggregate value,of Euro 488,968,330.40. The 5,358,555
option rights not exercised during the Option Period were ther oifered on' the Italian Stock Exchange. All
these rights were sold by the end of the first trading sessich on 24 July 2018 and were subsequently
exercised, resulting in the issue of 714,474 new shares, with an aggaregate value of Euro 10,938,596.94. The
offering therefore concluded with the complete subscriptioiv-of the 32,652,314 new shares with an aggregate
value of Euro 499,906,927.34.

The offering also involved the payment of Euro 8,753,836 In related expenses and the receipt of Euro
4,455,461 in unsubscribed cancelled rights.

Share buyback and disposal programme and Employee incentive plan

The Shareholders' Meeting of Prysmian: S.p.A._held on 12 April 2018 authorised a share buyback and
disposal programme, revoking at the same time-the previous authorisation under the shareholder resolution
dated 12 April 2017. The new programme provides the opportunity to purchase, on one or more occasions, a
maximum number of ordinary shares wriose total must not exceed, at any one time, 10% of share capital.
Purchases may not exceed the amauit-of undistributed earnings and available reserves reported in the most
recently approved annual financial staiements. The authorisation to buy back treasury shares lasts for 18
months commencing from-the dale of the Shareholders' Meeting, while the authorisation to dispose of
treasury shares has notime limit.

The same Shareholders' Meeting also approved an incentive plan for Prysmian Group employees, including
members of the Board of Directors of Prysmian S.p.A., and granted the Board of Directors the necessary
powers to establish and implement this plan.

The purposg cf this Plan is:

- to generate strong commitment by the Group's management to achieving the targets for additional growth
in profits and return on capital employed over the next three years;

- to align the interests of management with those of shareholders by using share-based incentives, and

promoting stable share ownership of the Company;
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- to support synergies and the development of a one-company identity by defining a common performance
objective and introducing a retention mechanism, conditional upon completion of the acquisition of 100% of
the share capital of General Cable Corporation.

During the extraordinary session of the above meeting, the shareholders authorised an increase-iii-share
capital by a maximum amount of Euro 756,281.90, through the issue of up to 7,562,819 new ordinary shiares
with a nominal value of Euro 0.10 each, to be allotted for no consideration to Group empleyees who are

beneficiaries of the above incentive plan.

Shanghai Stock Exchange listing and capital increase by Yangtze Optical Fibre’/and Cable Joint
Stock Limited

On 20 July 2018, Yangtze Optical Fibre and Cable Joint Stock Limited Compaiy (an equity-accounted
associate) completed its listing on the Shanghai Stock Exchange; the comipany. was already listed on the
Hong Kong Stock Exchange. The Shanghai listing has increased the number of shares from a previous total
of 682,114,598 to 757,905,108. Since Draka Comteq B.V. has kept its’ holding (of 179,827,794 shares)
unchanged, its stake in this company has gone from 26.37% to 23,73%:/The Group has recorded a gain of

Euro 36 million resulting from the consequent share dilution.

Unicredit Loan Agreement
On 15 November 2018, Prysmian S.p.A. entered into ar agreement with Unicredit for a medium-term cash
loan for a maximum amount of Euro 200 million fer S years from the date of signing. The agreement

envisages a bullet repayment at maturity. The loan was drawn down in full on 16 November.

New industrial projects and initiatives

Cable to link Kincardine floating offshore wind farm to mainland Britain

On 24 January 2018, the Group was awarded-a contract by Cobra Wind International Ltd for the cable to link
the Kincardine floating offshore wind farm’to mainland Britain. This is the Group's first cable project for a
floating offshore wind farm and invoives the design and supply of two submarine export cables, inter-array
cables and related accessories to coritiect the turbines of the Kincardine floating offshore wind farm, located
approximately 15 km southeast of Aberdeen, to the Scottish mainland power grid. The cables are being

manufactured at the Group's factaries in Spain and Norway.

Submarine power link'to Capri

On 2 February 2018, following/a European call for tender, the Group was awarded a contract worth around
Euro 40 million for-a new submarine cable link between the isle of Capri and Sorrento (Naples); the contract
was awarded by Terna Rete Italia S.p.A., a company wholly owned by Terna S.p.A., Italy's sole transmission
system operater,

The project.involves the turnkey installation of a 150 kV HVAC power cable between the power stations
located in Sorreritdo and at the Gasto recycling centre on Capri, along a route running 16 km subsea and 3

km onshore.
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The cables for the Capri-Sorrento link will be manufactured at the Arco Felice plant in Naples, a Group
centre of submarine cable manufacturing and technological excellence. Prysmian will be responsible for
submarine cable laying, using its vessel the "Cable Enterprise”, and for supplying all related network
components and performing the required specialist civil engineering works. The project, which siarted during
2018, is scheduled for completion in 2019.

Framework agreement with Terna to upgrade Italian power grid
On 19 March 2018, the Group was awarded - as lead contractor in a Temporary As<cctaiion-of Companies

(RTI) involving CEBAT S.r.l. and Elettrovit S.r.l., which will carry out civil engineering Installation works - a

Italia, for the supply, installation and emergency repair of 220 kV cables to upgrade the national power grid.
The turnkey project is worth about Euro 50 million and will last for three years, with an option to extend its

duration and augment its value.

Contract with JG Summit Petrochemicals Group

On 21 March 2018, the Group signed an agreement with JG Surnmit Petrochemicals Group (JGSPG) for the
supply of approximately 820 km of low and medium voltage power-¢ables, instrumentation and control
cables and telecom cables for applications in the petroleum and petrechemicals industry.

JGSPG consists of JG Summit Petrochemical Corporation{JGSPC) - the largest manufacturer of polyolefins
in the Philippines and the first and only integrated Pz and PP resin manufacturer in the country - and JG
Summit Olefins Corporation (JGSOC) - the company that operates the first and only naphtha cracking plant
in the Philippines. Both companies are wholly-owned subsidiaries of JG Summit Holdings, Inc. (JGSHI), one
of the country's largest and most diversified ¢cnglomerates, with business interests in food manufacturing,
air transportation, real estate and property dewveiopment, petrochemicals, banking, publishing, power
generation and telecommunications.

The JGSPG complex is located 120 km south of Manila in Batangas City, overlooking the scenic Batangas
Bay. At present, JGSPG has a 250-hectare’ fully integrated world-class manufacturing complex that also
houses the naphtha cracking and polymer manufacturing plants.

The Group will provide a compiete package of power, instrumentation and control, and telecom cables for
Plant & Petrochemical applications. foi“phase 1 of the OSBL (Outside Battery Limits) expansion project for

the existing JG Summit facilities initiated in 2018.

New submarine cable-laying vessel

In April 2018, the Group entered into a contract for an investment of over Euro 170 million in a new
advanced cable:laying vessel. This strategic asset will bolster Prysmian's turnkey approach, under which it
delivers end-te-end EPCI projects, from engineering, manufacturing and installation to full monitoring and
diagnostic cervices for submarine power transmission lines. In particular, the investment in this new vessel
will support Icng4erm growth prospects in the submarine cable business, strengthening the Group's

installation and execution capabilities for interconnection and offshore wind projects.
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Contract for 66 kV submarine cable for Borssele Il & IV offshore wind farms in the North Sea

On 18 June 2018, the Group was awarded a contract by Van Oord Offshore Wind B.V. to develop a
submarine inter-array cable system for the Borssele Ill & IV offshore wind farms.

Prysmian will be responsible for the design, manufacture, supply and testing of approximately/175 km of 66
kV three-core XLPE-insulated cables in various cross sections and all related accessories for-the Barssele 11
& IV wind farms. These two farms, forming part of the extensive Borssele Wind Farm Zone located iear the
southern boundary of the Dutch Exclusive Economic Zone (EEZ), approximately 25 km from-the shore, will
have a total installed capacity of 731.5 MW with individual wind turbine capacity of 9.54 MW,

The cables, all of which will be manufactured at Prysmian's centre of excellence in Pikkala (Finland), are due

to be delivered in early 2020.

Contract for offshore wind farm connections in France

On 29 August 2018, the Group was awarded three important projects-to develop cable connections for
offshore wind farms in France. Prysmian has been engaged to design, supply,and install inter-array cables
for the two offshore wind farms, Fécamp and Courseulles-sur-Mer; iocated-off the north coast of France. The
third project, for the Saint Nazaire wind farm also owned by Eglien Maritime France, is worth over Euro 20

million and will be performed in a consortium with Louis Dreyfus Travocean.

Contract for submarine interconnection in Greece

On 4 September 2018, the Group was awarded a new ccntract worth approximately Euro 21 million by IPTO
(Independent Power Transmission Operator), the 7ransmission System Operator of the Greek electricity grid,
for two interconnections between the Cyclades/isiands (Evia, Andros and Tinos) in Greece. The project
involves the design, supply and installation, as-well as related onshore civil engineering works, of two
turnkey high voltage cable systems, which will"boost power transmission between the Cyclades islands,
ensuring a robust, reliable and sustainable power supply.

The submarine cables will be manufactured at the Arco Felice plant (Naples), a Group centre of
technological and manufacturing exceilence, /while the underground cables will be produced in Pignataro
(Naples).

Submarine and undergrourid- cablie manufacturing will be completed in 2019, with delivery and

commissioning also scheduled for the same year.

Contract for first submarine cable interconnection between the island of Crete and mainland Greece

On 2 October 2018, the Group was awarded a new contract, worth some Euro 125 million, for an
interconnection petween the island of Crete and mainland Greece (Peloponnese region). The project was
awarded by IPTO {Indepzendent Power Transmission Operator), which operates the transmission system for
Greece's power grid. The project for this first submarine electricity interconnection between Crete and the
mainland invclves the design, supply, installation and commissioning of an HVAC cable system using 150 kV
three-core XLPE-insulated double-armoured cables. The cables, running along a route of 135 km, will be

installed as deep as 950 metres.
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The submarine cables, which will be manufactured at the Arco Felice plant (Naples), will be laid at sea by the
"Giulio Verne", a vessel forming part of the Group's in-house fleet. Delivery and commissioning are
scheduled for 2020.

Contract for the design, installation and commissioning of two HV power cable systems in.Singapore
On 15 November 2018, the Group was awarded a contract by the utility SP Power Assets Ltd, wottiv- Euro 33
million, for the design, supply, installation and commissioning of two high voltage power-cakle systems to
connect the Rangoon and Paya Lebar substations in Singapore.

Prysmian Group will also supply a grid monitoring system using its proprietary PRY-CAM technology
allowing the acquisition, processing and classification of partial discharge and iemperature measurements.
The cable and accessories will be supplied by the Group's factory in China. This‘project is scheduled for

delivery and commissioning in 2020.

Technical cooperation agreement with GCC Lab in Saudi Arabia for grid monitoring services

On 29 November 2018, the Group signed a non-binding memoranaum of understanding with GCC Electrical
Equipment Testing Laboratory (GCC Lab) - a testing facility for power trarismission and distribution cables
and accessories located in Dammam (Saudi Arabia) - for jcint technical cooperation aimed at developing
services in support of testing, inspection and certification activities in the Gulf Cooperation Council region.
The agreement involves the supply of PRY-CAM equipmerit-and-training for GCC Lab engineers at Prysmian
Headquarters in Milan (Italy). Prysmian will support GCC-Lak in the execution of partial discharge analysis to
ensure superior performance, quality and levels of ;service. PRY-CAM will also become an integral part of

GCC Lab's overall package offered to its customers:

Contract for a power interconnection between Reer Island and the mainland Boston power grid

On 17 December 2018, the Group was awarded a new contract by Caldwell Marine International LLC, a US
construction contractor specialising in sabmarine. utilities operations.

Prysmian Group will be responsible for thie design, manufacture, supply and commissioning of a 6 km 3x630
mm?2 115kV XLPE-insulated submarine cahle system, plus all related cable accessories to connect Deer
Island to mainland Massachuseits {USA): Prysmian Group will also be responsible for the project's onshore
section, for which it will supply- and-install 8 km of 115kV underground cables, along with all related
accessories. The submarine cables will all be manufactured at Prysmian's centre of excellence in Arco Felice
(Italy). The undergrourid cakles will be manufactured at Prysmian's state-of-the-art factory in Abbeville
(South Carolina, USA), thus cffering high-quality products and cable solutions to the US market by drawing

on local expertise - The project is due for delivery in 2019.
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Other significant events

Approval of financial statements at 31 December 2017 and dividend distribution

On 12 April 2018, the shareholders of Prysmian S.p.A. approved the financial statements for 2017 ana-the
distribution of a gross dividend of Euro 0.43 per share, for a total of some Euro 96 million. The dividend was
paid out from 25 April 2018 to shares outstanding on the record date of 24 April 2018, with the shares going
ex-dividend on 23 April 2018.

Western Link

With reference to the Western Link, an electrical transmission cable between Scotland, \Wales and England,
a fault was detected at the end of April 2018 during preparations to make the link available for full load
operation, as a result of which, when approving the Quarterly Financial Repert‘at 31 March 2018, the
Directors decided to recognise a provision of Euro 20 million as the best estimate ‘of costs to cover the
related contractual penalties for this project's late delivery.

On 22 June 2018, the Board of Directors of Prysmian S.p.A. met to examine the implications of certain faults
in the cable's operation. In particular, it was noted that during comrissicaing of the Western Link Cable, the
fault detected at the end of April 2018 had recurred. In light of the tests’carried out and the information
received from the project's technical managers, it was concluded with-reasonable certainty that the area in
which the fault had re-emerged was limited to that affected by the previous repair. In light of the information
received from the project's technical managers concerning the-costs and time for the new repairs needed to
solve this fault, of the related risks and the liquidated damages envisaged by the Western Link Contract, the
Board of Directors prudently estimated that the Company might be required to incur additional costs of
approximately Euro 50 million and recognised a provision accordingly.

On 12 September 2018, Prysmian announcéd that the commissioning and testing of the Western Link
Interconnection project had been temporarily suspanded to investigate a problem in the land section of the
cable.

On 16 October 2018, Prysmian announced that the problem involving the land section of the cable had been
successfully repaired.

On 19 February 2019, a problem was detected in the Western Link interconnector, leading to its temporary
switch-off.

The tests and investigations carried out so far have located the problem necessitating the temporary switch-
off within the southern land cable section.

Prysmian has already started-mobilising specialised teams on site to investigate the nature of the problem
further. In parallel, the Group is taking every necessary step to carry out the repairs in the shortest possible
time with the least-iogistical and environmental impact.

As a result of these events, the Group's management has assessed the need for a provision of Euro 25
million. This provisicii 1s against contractual penalties, accruing over the period needed for the repair in
guestion,‘and against costs of producing an additional length of cable for any future repairs or other needs
that might arise.

As described above, the provisions recognised in 2018 have therefore had a total impact of Euro 95 million

on income.
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Agreement with Ol Group in Brazil

During the first few months of 2018, the Group reached a credit recovery agreement with the Ol Group, a
Brazilian customer that has filed for bankruptcy. The outstanding receivables, amounting to around Euro 8
million, had already been written down in full in 2016. The agreement involves a partial repaymeit-iin-four

annual instalments and so the Group has reinstated the receivable at its realisable amount of Euro.5 niiliion.

Establishment of privacy department and appointment of internal data protection officerpursuant to
European Regulation 2016/679 ("GDPR")

In view of the entry into force of the GDPR (on 25 May 2018), the Board of Directors 0f Prysmian S.p.A.
decided on 10 May 2018 to establish a new department to oversee the area of personal data protection and
identified and appointed an internal data protection officer (or DPO) whose duties include monitoring the
correct application of the GDPR within the Group, supporting senior management in identifying adequate
data protection measures and, consequently, processing data correctly in accordance with the law. The role

of DPO is held by Mr. Giorgio Totis who continues to act as Group Compliance Director.

New organisation for integration with General Cable

On 11 June 2018, Prysmian Group announced its new orgariisation and began its integration with General
Cable.

The new organisation combines the strengths of both Prysmian and General Cable and is based on
centralised governance and integrated management ct glabai businesses, clear responsibilities for results, a
focus on efficiency and technological innovation;and a customer-centric approach enabled by teams
dedicated to key customer accounts.

The new organisational matrix is structured aieng 3 lines: Group centralised functions, which aim to foster
the creation of a highly integrated "One Comnany":-Regions, which must ensure proximity to the market; and
Business areas (Energy, Telecom and Projects), which are responsible for product and cross-selling
strategies.

Further details can be found in Section G. - Segrent information.

Ruling of the General Court of the Eurcpean Union regarding antitrust investigations

On 12 July 2018, the General Court of the European Union issued rulings on the appeals lodged by the
Prysmian Group, including-Generai Cable, against the decision of the European Commission dated 2 April
2014 and whose conterit had already been anticipated by Prysmian on the same date.

These rulings have aismissed the appeals, thus confirming the previously imposed fines. The Prysmian
Group, including/General Cable, does not agree with the conclusions reached by the General Court of the
European Union '‘and has appealed to the Court of Justice of the European Union. Further details can be

found in Note-14. -Provisions for risks and charges.

Resignation and new appointment of the Chairman of the Board of Directors
On 25 July 2018, Massimo Tononi, Chairman of the Board of Directors, tendered his resignation as

Chairman and member of the Board of Directors and as a member of the Company's Compensation,
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Nominations and Sustainability Committee, with effect from the end of the Board of Directors' meeting which
approved the Half-Year Financial Report at 30 June 2018.

Mr. Tononi's resignation was tendered following his appointment to Cassa Depositi e Prestiti S.p.A.,as a
result of which he considered it appropriate to step down from all positions held in other companies:

In its meeting of 18 September 2018 to approve the Half-Year Financial Report at 30 June 2018, the Board
of Directors named Mr. Claudio De Conto, an independent non-executive pursuant to Legisiative Decree

58/98, as its new Chairman.

Closure of the General Cable Group's European headquarters

The Prysmian European Works Council and General Cable European Works Council-and the local unions
were informed in October 2018 of the intention to close the General Cable Group's European corporate
headquarters in Barcelona. After consultations and negotiations, an agreement ‘was reached on 16
November 2018 with the site's union representatives, providing incentives-to ernployees who leave the
company and, in order to reduce the social impact, also offering the possihility of relocation for part of the
redundant workforce to other company sites.

This operation, involving about 75 employees, together with a /social plan“instituted in the same period at
Montereau (France) for around 70 staff, forms part of the Group's rationalisation following the General Cable
acquisition. Accordingly, the process aims to streamline resources hy exploiting possible synergies arising

from the combination of the two groups.

Antitrust Brazil

On 11 February 2019, as reported in the note on Subsequent Events, the general superintendence of the
Brazilian antitrust authority published a technical note in the Brazilian Federal Official Gazette in connection
with the procedure notified to Prysmian in 201%; the note sets out the conclusions of the authority's
investigation and recommends the imposition-of.a fine on Prysmian. In view of the circumstances described
and consistent with the Group's accounting policies, the directors, assisted by the Group's legal advisors,
have recognised a specific risk provision foi /Euro 68 million, deemed appropriate to cover the potential

liability associated with the matter in questicn.

Changes to segment reporting
Following the acquisition of-General/Cable, the Group has embarked on a process of organisational change
that has led to a redefinition-of its segment reporting and the resulting identification of the following new

operating segments: Energy, Projects and Telecom. In detail:

e Energy segment: this encompasses the former Energy Products segment as well as the Core
Oil&Gas and DHT businesses included until the last quarter in the OIL&GAS segment no longer
significant for the Group.

e Projects segment: this encompasses the former Energy Projects segment, the Submarine Telecom

business, new to the Group following the acquisition of General Cable, and the Offshore
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Specialties business (previously known as SURF and included in the OIL&GAS segment now no

longer significant for the Group);

e Telecom segment: this has not undergone any changes as a result of the above reorganisation.

This change has resulted in the reallocation of Euro 23 million in goodwill; the Cash-Generating WUnits {CGU)
have also been redefined.

Work on the reporting systems in support of the new model started in 2018 and was completed for the
purposes of preparing the current document. The Board of Directors approved the-adopticn of the new
structure for segment reporting in its meeting on 19 February 2019. Further details can be found in Section
G. Segment information and in Section B.8 Impairment of property, plant and eguipment and finite-life
intangible assets.

The consolidated financial statements contained herein were approved by the Board of Directors on 5 March
2019.

In application of art. 264b HGB of the German Commercial’ Cede ("Handelsgesetzbuch"), the present

financial statements exempt Draka Comteq Berlin GMBH & C0.KG and Draka Comteq Germany GMBH &
Co.KG. from the requirement to present statutory financial statements.

Note: all amounts shown in the tables in the following Notes are expressed in millions of Euro, unless otherwise stated.
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B. ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND STANDARDS

The main accounting policies and standards used to prepare the consolidated financial statements-and

Group financial information are set out below.

B.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION

The present financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis, witix-the-directors having
assessed that there are no financial, operating or other kind of indicators that might provide evidence of
material uncertainties as to the Group's ability to meet its obligations in ihe foresezable future and

particularly in the next 12 months.

In particular, the Group's estimates and projections have been prepared alsa taking into account possible
developments in the investigations by the European Commission and other-jurisdictions into alleged anti-
competitive practices in the high voltage underground and submarine cables market, as well as the risk
factors described in the Directors' Report. The assessments cairied out confirm Prysmian Group's ability to

operate in compliance with the going concern presumption and with its financial covenants.

Section D. Financial risk management and Section D.1 Capitai-fisk management of these Explanatory Notes

contain a description of how the Group manages financial-risks, including liquidity and capital risks.

In application of Legislative Decree 38 of 28 Febi:ary 2005 "Exercise of the options envisaged by article 5 of
European Regulation 1606/2002 on international acceunting standards”, the Company has prepared its
consolidated financial statements in accordance with the international accounting and financial reporting
standards (hereafter also "IFRS") adopted by the European Union.

The term "IFRS" refers to all the Interriatiorial Financial Reporting Standards, all the International Accounting
Standards ("IAS"), and all the interprefations of the International Financial Reporting Interpretations
Committee ("IFRIC").

IFRS have been applied consistently te-ail the periods reported in this document. The consolidated financial
statements have been preparedin-accordance with IFRS and related best practice; any future guidance and
new interpretations will be reflected in subsequent years, in the manner established from time to time by the
relevant accounting standards:

The Group has elected to present its income statement according to the nature of expenses, whereas assets
and liabilities in the siatement of financial position are classified as current or non-current. The statement of
cash flows has'been prepared using the indirect method. The Group has also applied the provisions of
Consob Reseluticn 15519 dated 27 July 2006 concerning financial statement formats and the requirements

of Consoh Communication 6064293 dated 28 July 2006 regarding disclosures.

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis, except for the valuation of certain

financial assets and liabilities, including derivatives, which must be reported using the fair value method.
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The consolidated financial statements present comparative information referring to the previous year. The
Group also presents a supplementary statement of financial position as at the beginning of the first
comparative year in which it retroactively applies a new accounting standard, retroactively reccgiises an
adjustment or reclassifies items in the financial statements. Following the retroactive application of the new
accounting standards, as reported in Note B.3. the present explanatory notes include a. suppiementary

statement of financial position as at 1 January 2017.

B.2 BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION

The financial statements of Group operating companies used for consolidatich purposes have been
prepared for the year ended 31 December 2018 and the year ended 31 December 2017. They have been
adjusted, where necessary, to bring them into line with Group accounting policies and standards. All the
companies included in the consolidation end their financial year at 31 December. It should be noted that
Yangtze Optical Fibre and Cable Joint Stock Company Limited, consoildated using the equity method, has
reported financial results for the first nine months of 2018; for consolidation purposes these figures have
been combined with the company's estimated results for iihe last guarter of the year. General Cable,
acquired by Prysmian on 6 June 2018, has been consolidated fer accounting purposes with effect from 1
June 2018.

Subsidiaries

The Group consolidated financial statements inciude the financial statements of Prysmian S.p.A. (the Parent
Company) and the subsidiaries over whick the Parent Company exercises direct or indirect control.
Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date controlis acquired until the date such control ceases. Control is

connected with the ongoing existence of all the following conditions:

. power over the investee;
. the possibility of achieving a returin.resulting from ownership of the investment;
. the investor's ability to use its power over the investee to affect the amount of its return.

The existence of potential voting rights-exercisable at the reporting date is also taken into consideration for

the purposes of determining contrai.

Subsidiaries are consolidated-on & iine-by-line basis. The criteria adopted for line-by-line consolidation are

as follows:

. assets and liahiiities, expenses and income of consolidated entities are aggregated line-by-line and
non-controlling-interests are allocated, where applicable, the relevant portions of equity and profit for
the pericd, which are then reported separately within equity and the consolidated income statement;

. gains and-losses, including the relevant tax effect, arising from transactions between consolidated
companies are eliminated if not realised with third parties; unrealised losses are not eliminated if

there Isevidence that the asset transferred is impaired. The following are also eliminated:
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intercompany payables and receivables, intercompany expenses and income, and intercompany
finance income and costs;

business combinations through which control of an entity is acquired are recorded using-the
acquisition method of accounting. The acquisition cost is measured as the acquisition-date faii vaitie
of the assets acquired, the liabilities incurred or assumed and the equity instruments issued. The
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities acquired are recognised at their acquisitich-date fair
values. The excess of acquisition cost over the fair value of the Group's share of the identifiable net
assets acquired is recorded as goodwill under intangible assets. If the acquisition cest is less than
the Group's share of the fair value of the identifiable net assets acquired, the difference is recognised
as a gain directly in the income statement, but only after reassessing that the fairvalues of the net
assets acquired and the acquisition cost have been measured correctly;

if non-controlling interests are acquired in entities which are already under, the Group's control, the
Group recognises directly in equity any difference between the acquisition/cost and the related share
of net assets acquired;

if non-controlling interests are acquired in entities previcusiy- riat under the Group's control, and
which result in it obtaining control, the Group accounts for this using the acquisition method, whereby
the consideration transferred is equal to the acquisition-date fair value of the assets acquired and
liabilities assumed or incurred. In a business combination-achieved in stages, the previously held
equity interest in the acquiree is remeasured at iis acquisition-date fair value and any resulting gain
or loss is recognised in the income statement;

gains or losses arising on the disposal of ownership interests that result in a loss of control of
consolidated companies are recognised -ir-the income statement at the amount equal to the
difference between the sale consideration and the corresponding share of consolidated equity sold;
gains or losses from the deconsolidatioin of an investee's net assets, resulting from the difference
between the fair value of the equity interest and the corresponding portion of equity, are recognised

in "Finance income" and "Finarice costs” respectively.

In compliance with IAS 32, put cptions.aver’non-controlling interests in subsidiary companies are recognised

in "Other payables" at their present value. The matching entry differs according to whether:

A.

the minority shareholders-have a direct interest in the performance of the subsidiary's business in
relation to the transfer-of the risks and rewards of the shares subject to the put option. One of the
indicators thai/such interest exists is the fair value measurement of the option exercise price. In
addition to the presernce of this indicator, the Group will assess on a case-by-case basis the facts
and circurnstarices characterising existing transactions. In these circumstances, the present value of
the option.is initially deducted from the equity reserves attributable to the Group. Any subsequent
changes-in the measurement of the option exercise price are recognised through the income
statement, as "Other income" or "Other expenses";

the minarity shareholders do not have a direct interest in the performance of the business (eg.

predetermined option exercise price). The duly discounted option exercise price is deducted from the
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corresponding amount of capital and reserves attributable to non-controlling interests. Any
subsequent changes in the measurement of the option exercise price follow the same treatment, with

no impact on the income statement.

described would be modified in the event of different interpretations or accounting standards in this.regard.

Associates and joint arrangements: joint ventures and joint operations

Associates are those entities over which the Group has significant influence, generallv accompanying a
shareholding of between 20% and 50% of the voting rights. Investments in associates’are accounted for
using the equity method and are initially recorded at cost.

Joint arrangements are arrangements in which two or more parties have joint contral. They are classified as
either joint ventures or joint operations depending on the rights and Jobligaiions of the parties to the
arrangement.

Joint ventures are those companies characterised by the presence of ari-ariangement for joint control
whereby the parties are entitled to a share of the net assets or profit-or/loss arising from the arrangement.
Joint ventures are accounted for using the equity method.

Joint operations are arrangements whereby the parties that have joint control of the arrangement have rights
to the assets and obligations for the liabilities relating to the arrangement. The assets, liabilities, revenues
and expenses of a joint operation are consolidated accorting to.the rights and obligations under the related
arrangement.

Under the equity method, used to account for associates and joint ventures:

e the book value of these investments reflecis the value of equity as adjusted, where necessary, to
reflect the application of IFRS and inciudes any higher values identified on acquisition attributed to
assets, liabilities and any goodwiill;

e the Group's share of profits or losses.ic recognised from the date significant influence is acquired
until the date it ceases. If a campany accounted for under this method has negative equity due to
losses, the book value of the-investrent is reduced to zero and additional losses are provided for
and a liability is recognised, aniy to the extent that the Group is committed to fulfilling legal or
constructive obligations of the investee company; changes in the equity of companies valued using
the equity method whicih. are ‘not accounted for through profit or loss, are recognised directly in
equity;

e unrealised gairis arising from transactions between the Parent Company/subsidiaries and equity-
accounted companies, are eliminated to the extent of the Group's interest in the investee company;

unrealised losses are also eliminated unless they represent impairment.
Translatior of foreign company financial statements

The financia! statements of subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures are prepared in the currency of the

primary economic’ environment in which they operate (the "functional currency"). The consolidated financial
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statements are presented in Euro, which is the Prysmian Group's functional and presentation currency for its

consolidated financial reporting.

The rules for the translation of financial statements expressed in currencies other than the Eurc are as

follows:

. assets and liabilities are translated using the exchange rates applicable at the end of ihe reporting
period;

. revenues and expenses are translated at the average rate for the period/year;

. the "currency translation reserve" includes both the translation differences-generated by translating
income statement items at a different exchange rate from the period-end rate and the differences
generated by translating opening equity amounts at a different exchange rate from the period-end
rate;

. goodwill and fair value adjustments arising from the acquisition. of-a-foreign entity are treated as

assets and liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at the period-end exchange rate.

Impacts of applying IAS 29 - Financial Reporting in Hyperinfiatiohary Economies

If a foreign entity operates in a hyperinflationary economy, revenues and expenses are translated using the
exchange rate current at the reporting date. All amounts in the incoime statement are restated by applying
the change in the general price index between the date wher-income and expenses were initially recorded in
the financial statements and the reporting date.

Companies operating in Argentina and Angola have’been treated as belonging to high inflation economies in
2018, therefore requiring the application of IAS 29~ Financial Reporting in Hyperinflationary Economies.

Following a long period of observing inflation-rates and-other indicators in both these countries, a general

standards.

Argentina reported a steep devaluaticn in/its currency, a hike in interest rates and accelerating inflation
during the first half of the year. Based on these parameters and taking into account the guidance of the
accounting standard, IAS 29 - Financial Reporting in Hyperinflationary Economies has been applied as from
1 July 2018.

In addition, a company operating in’' Angola entered the scope of consolidation from 1 June 2018 following
the acquisition of Gerieral Cable. The country was already treated as a hyperinflationary economy at
December 2017, a situation/confirmed by the trend in the relevant parameters in 2018 resulting in the
continued application of iAS 29.

The Group's ccrisolidated results at 31 December 2018 therefore include the effects of applying this
accounting standard, with effect from 1 July 2018 for the Argentine company and from 1 June 2018 for the
Angolan company.

In accordance with IAS 29, the restatement of financial statements as a whole requires the application of

certain procedures as well as judgement.
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With reference to the income statement, income and expenses have been restated by applying the change
in the general price index, in order to reflect the loss of the local currency's purchasing power at 31
December 2018. The income statements thus restated have been translated into Euro at the closing raies at
31 December 2018 instead of at the average rates for the reporting period. The effects of appiying the
standard, all of which attributable to the Argentine company, have added Euro 7 million to net sales with no
impact on net profit.

With reference to the statement of financial position, monetary items have not been resiated -hecause they
are already expressed in terms of the monetary unit current at the end of the reporting-gericd; non-monetary
assets and liabilities have been restated to reflect the loss in the local currency's purchasing power from the
date the assets and liabilities were originally recorded to the end of the reporting/period;

The effect arising in 2018 on the net monetary position is a net expense of Eurao 6 million (all of which
attributable to the Argentine company). This amount has been recorded iri the income statement under Net
finance income (costs), while the effects of the standard's first-time application.at 1 January 2018 have been

recorded directly in equity (Euro 14 million, all of which attributable to the Argentirie company).
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Closing rates at

Average rates in

31 December 2018 : 31 December 2017 2018 2017
Europe
British Pound 0.895 0.887 0.885
Swiss Franc 1.127 1.17 1.155 )
Hungarian Forint 320.98 310.33 318.89: 309.193
Norwegian Krone 9.948 9.84 9.327
Swedish Krona 10.255 9.844 9.635
Czech Koruna 25.724 25.535 26.326
Danish Krone 7.467 7.445 7.439
Romanian Leu 4.664 4.659 4.569
Turkish Lira 6.039 4,524 4,123
Polish Zloty 4.301 4.177 4.257
Russian Rouble 79.715 69392, - 74,042 65.938
North America
US Dollar @ 1.145 1.199 1.181 1.13
Canadian Dollar 1.561 1504 1.529 1.465
Central/ South America
Colombian Peso @ 3,721.81 3,486.741 n.a
Brazilian Real ©® 4.437 4.316 3.607
Argentine Peso 43.167 33.203 18.721
Chilean Peso ¥ 794.37 756.941 732.607
Mexican Peso ® 22.492 22.705 21.329
Oceania
Australian Dollar 1.622 . 1.58 1.473
New Zealand Dollar 1706 1.685 1.706 159
Africa
CFA Franc 655.957/; 655.957 655.957 655.957
Tunisian Dinar 343 2.974 3.111 2.731
ASla .............
Chinese Renminbi (Yuan) 7.804 7.808 7.629
United Arab Emirates Dirham 4.404 4.337 4.148
Hong Kong Dollar 9.372 9.256 8.805
Singapore Dollar 1.602 1.593 1.559
Indian Rupee 76.606 80.733 73.532
Indonesian Rupiah 16,239.12 16,803 15,118
Japanese Yen 135.01 130.396 126.711
Thai Baht 39.121 38.164 38.296
Philippine Peso 59.795 62.21 56.973
Omani Rial 0.461 0.454 0.434
Malaysian Ringgit 4.854 4.763 4.853
Qatari Riyal 4.366 4.299 4.112
Saudi Riyal 4.497 4.429 4.237

® The consolidation of General Cable has used the EUR/USD rate at 31 December 2018 as the period-end exchange rate, and the

average rate of 1.154 fsi iive nienths-from June to December 2018 as the period-average rate.

@ The consolidation of Genera! Cable has used the EUR/Colombian Peso rate at 31 December 2018 as the period-end exchange rate,

and the average rate of 3,481.411 for the months from June to December 2018 as the period-average rate.

® The consolidation-of General Cable has used the EUR/Brazilian Real rate at 31 December 2018 as the period-end exchange rate,

and the average rate oi 4.468 for the months from June to December 2018 as the period-average rate.

@ The consolidation 0f General Cable has used the EUR/Chilean Peso rate at 31 December 2018 as the period-end exchange rate,

and the average rate of 767.806 for the months from June to December 2018 as the period-average rate.

® The consolidation of General Cable has used the EUR/Mexican Peso rate at 31 December 2018 as the period-end exchange rate,

and the average rate of 22.475 for the months from June to December 2018 as the period-average rate.
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Changes in the scope of consolidation
The Group's scope of consolidation includes the financial statements of Prysmian S.p.A. (the Parent
Company) and of the companies over which it exercises direct or indirect control, which are consclidated

from the date when control is obtained until the date when such control ceases.

The following changes in the scope of consolidation took place during 2018:

Acquisitions

As described in Section A.1 Significant events, the Group completed the acquisition of all the ordinary
shares of General Cable on 6 June 2018. The acquisition was completed through merging Alisea Corp. (a
Delaware corporation and wholly-owned indirect subsidiary of Prysmian S.p.A) with General Cable
Corporation.

This has led to a significant enlargement of the scope of consolidation, whichas from 1 June 2018 includes
all the assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses of subsidiaries and investees of General Cable

Corporation. More details can be found in Section F. Business Comibinaiions.

Liquidations
On 8 May 2018, the liquidation of the Swiss company Prysmian Cables and Systems S.A. in liquidation was

completed with its removal from the local company registry:

On 31 July 2018, the liquidation of the Russian ccmpany Neva Cables Ltd was completed with its removal

from the local company registry.

On 2 August 2018, the liquidation of the New Zeaiand companies GCNZ India Cable 1 Limited, GCNZ India
Cable 2 Limited and General Cable Superconductors Investments Limited was completed with their removal

from the local company registry.

On 15 September 2018, the liguidation of the Australian company General Cable Australia Pty. Ltd. was

completed with its removal from the-iocai company registry.

On 20 December 2018, the tiquidation of the Dutch company NK China Investments B.V. was completed

with its removal from the local company registry.

New company formatiocns
P.O.R. S.A.S. was formed on 13 April 2018 and is wholly owned by Draka France S.A.S..

Mergers
On 1 May 2018, the US companies Draka Cableteq USA Inc. and Gulf Coast Downhole Technologies LLC

completed their merger into Prysmian Cables and Systems USA LLC.
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On 1 November 2018, the Slovak company Draka Comteq Slovakia s.r.o. completed its merger into
Prysmian Kablo s.r.o.
For the sake of better understanding the scope of consolidation, the name changes occurring, in the period

are listed below:

Name changes

On 25 January 2018, the Finnish company Prysmian Finland OY changed its nhame 16’ Prysmian Group
Finland OY.

On 30 May 2018, the Danish company Prysmian Denmark A/S changed its-name to Prysmian Group
Denmark A/S.

On 26 June 2018, the Swedish company Draka Sweden AB chaiged its name to Prysmian Group North
Europe AB.

On 2 July 2018, the Estonian company AS Draka Keila Cabies changed its name to Prysmian Group Baltics
AS.

On 6 July 2018, the Norwegian company Draka Noisk Kabel AS changed its name to Prysmian Group Norge
AS.

Appendix A to these notes contains a list of the companies included in the scope of consolidation at 31
December 2018.

B.3 ACCOUNTING STANDARDS, AMENDMENTS AND INTERPRETATIONS APPLIED IN 2018

The basis of consolidation, the methods applied for translating foreign company financial statements into the
presentation currency, the accounting standards as well as the accounting estimates adopted are the same
as those used for the consolidated, financial statements at 31 December 2017, except for the accounting
standards and amendfrients described below and obligatorily applied with effect from 1 January 2018 after

being endorsed by the competent authorities.

On 28 May 2014, the IASB published the new standard IFRS 15 - Revenue from Contracts with Customers
which has replaced 1AS 11 - Construction Contracts, IAS 18 - Revenue and the related interpretations. The
standard has introduced a new five-step model to account for revenue arising from contracts with customers.
Under IFRS 15, ievenue is recognised at an amount that reflects the consideration to which an entity
expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring goods or services to a customer. The Group has elected

to apply IFRS 15 using the full retrospective method of adoption. As a result of adopting IFRS 15, the Group
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has accounted for the effects of extended non-standard warranties given to certain customers in the Projects

operating segment.

On 24 July 2014, IASB published the new standard IFRS 9 - Financial Instruments which replaced 1AS 39'-
Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement. The standard brings together all three aspects-of the
accounting for financial instruments: classification and measurement; impairment; and hedge-accounting.
Following the adoption of IFRS 9, the Group has not only recorded effects for the time value-component of

option contracts designated as hedging instruments, but has also made some reclassificatiois.

More details about the effects of applying IFRS 15 and IFRS 9 can be found in/Section . Restatement of

comparative figures.

On 14 December 2016, the IASB published a number of amendments to iFRS 2/~ Share-based Payments.
The document clarifies:

» the accounting treatment of vesting conditions;

» the measurement of cash-settled share-based payment transactions;

» the treatment of share-based payment transactions with net settlement features for withholding tax

obligations.

On first-time adoption of this amendment, the reporting entity_must apply the changes without restating prior
periods, although retrospective application is permitted only ii-this election is made for all three of the above

amendments. The adoption of these amendments hias not had any material effects for the Group.

On 8 February 2018 the IASB issued Annuai-Improvernents to IFRS Standards 2014-2016 Cycle which
includes amendments to IAS 28 - Investments in-associates and joint ventures, applicable from 1 January

2018. The amendments clarify and correct the related standards and remove redundant provisions.

B.4 ACCOUNTING STANDARDS, AMENDMENTS AND INTERPRETATIONS NOT YET APPLICABLE AND
NOT ADOPTED EARLY BY THE GRQURP

On 11 September 2014, the IASE puiciished amendments to IFRS 10 - Consolidated Financial Statements
and to IAS 28 - Investmentis in Associates and Joint Ventures. The purpose is to clarify how to account for
the results of a sale /or contribution of assets between group companies and their associates and joint
ventures. As at the present document date, the European Union had not yet completed the endorsement
process needed for ihe application of these amendments which is deferred until completion of the IASB
project on the equity method. These amendments have no impact on the consolidated financial statements

of the Group,
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On 13 January 2016, the IASB published the new standard IFRS 16 - Leases which will replace IAS 17. The
new accounting standard requires lessees to adopt a uniform accounting treatment for both operating and
finance leases. In fact, IFRS 16 requires the lessee to recognise assets and liabilities for both operating-and
finance leases. At the commencement date of a lease, a lessee will recognise a liability to ‘make iease
payments (i.e., the lease liability) and an asset representing the right to use the underlying asset during the
lease term (i.e., the right-of-use asset). Lessees will be required to separately recognise the interesi expense
on the lease liability and the depreciation expense on the right-of-use asset.

The standard allows two exemptions from lease accounting: leases with a term of 12 -months or less and
leases of low value assets.

This standard will apply to annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019.

The Group will apply the new standard using the modified retrospective approach and is finalising its
implementation and analysis of the impact of its introduction. In short, the introduction of the new standard is
expected to increase the amount of Property, plant and equipment and-lease liabilities by around Euro 140

million at 1 January 2019, as shown below:

(in millions of Euro)

Operating lease obligations at 31 December 2018 126

Minimum lease payments (notional amount) for finance lease liabilities 13
Relief option for short-term leases 9)

Relief option for leases of low-value assets

Exercise of renewal option for operating leases 49
Gross lease liabilities at 1 January 2019 N 179
Discountng > 27)
Lease liabilities at 1 January 2019 152
Present value of finance lease liabilities at 31 Decéﬁber 2018 12)
Lease liabilities as a result of the first-time aoonllonofl'—RS 16 as at 1 January 2019 140

The impact on the Group's net iesult wiil be immaterial, with Other expenses decreasing by around Euro 37
million, matched by a correspcnding-increase in Depreciation and Finance costs; as a result, Cash flow
provided by operating activities will\increase, while Cash flow from financing activities will decrease. The
financial liability that will-be recogiised on 1 January 2019 will not include leases with a term of less than 12

months, as permitted by the accounting standard.

On 12 October/2017, the IASB published Amendments to IFRS 9: Prepayment Features with Negative
Compensation. Under RS 9, a debt instrument can be measured at amortised cost or at fair value through
other comprehensive income, provided that the contractual cash flows are "solely payments of principal and
interest on-the principal amount outstanding” (the SPPI criterion) and the instrument is held within the
appropriate busiriess model for that classification. The amendments to IFRS 9 clarify that a financial asset

passes the SPPI criterion regardless of the event or circumstance that causes the early termination of the
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contract and irrespective of which party pays or receives reasonable compensation for the early termination
of the contract.
The amendments should be applied retrospectively and are effective from 1 January 2019. These

amendments have no impact on the consolidated financial statements of the Group.

On 12 October 2017, the IASB published Amendments to IAS 28: Long-term interests in associates and joint
ventures. The amendments clarify that an entity applies IFRS 9 to long-term interests in an-assaciate or joint
venture to which the equity method is not applied but that, in substance, form part cf-the iiet.investment in
the associate or joint venture (long-term interests).

This clarification is relevant because it implies that the expected credit loss modiel in' IFRS 9 applies to such
long-term interests.

The amendments also clarify that, in applying IFRS 9, an entity does not take account of any losses of the
associate or joint venture, or any impairment losses on the net investment, recognised as adjustments to the
net investment in the associate or joint venture that arise from applying I1AS 28 - Investments in Associates
and Joint Ventures.

The amendments should be applied retrospectively and are effective from 1 January 2019. Since the Group
does not have such long-term interests in its associates and jnint ventures, the amendments will not have an

impact on its consolidated financial statements.

On 7 February 2018, the IASB published Amendiments to IAS 19: Plan Amendment, Curtailment or
Settlement in which it clarifies how to determine pension costs when a defined benefit plan is amended. The
amendments specify that when a plan amendment, curtailment or settlement occurs during the annual
reporting period, an entity is required to:

o Determine current service cost for the remairider of the period after the plan amendment, curtailment
or settlement, using the actuarial assumptions used to remeasure the net defined benefit liability
(asset) reflecting the benefits offered under the plan and the plan assets after that event.

o Determine net interest forthie remainder of the period after the plan amendment, curtailment or
settlement using: the net defined benefit liability (asset) reflecting the benefits offered under the plan
and the plan assets after-thai event; and the discount rate used to remeasure that net defined benefit
liability (asset).

The amendments apply to plah amendments, curtailments, or settlements occurring on or after the beginning
of the first annual reporting period that begins on or after 1 January 2019.

These amendments wili.apply only to any future plan amendments, curtailments, or settlements of the Group.
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B.5 TRANSLATION OF TRANSACTIONS IN CURRENCIES OTHER THAN THE FUNCTIONAL
CURRENCY

Transactions in currencies other than the functional currency of the company which undeitakes the
transaction are translated using the exchange rate applicable at the transaction date.

P.T. Prysmian Cables Indonesia (Indonesia), Draka NK Cables (Asia) Pte Ltd (Singapore), Draka FPillippines
Inc. (Philippines), Draka Durango S. de R.L. de C.V., Draka Mexico Holdings S.A. de C.:V.-and NK Mexico
Holdings S.A. de C.V. (Mexico) present their financial statements in a currency other than'iivat of the country
they operate in, as their main transactions are not conducted in the local currency but in the reporting
currency.

Foreign currency exchange gains and losses arising on completion of transactions or on the year-end
translation of assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in'the income statement.
Exchange differences arising on loans between group companies that form part of the reporting entity's net
investment in a foreign operation are recognised in other comprehensive income and reclassified from equity

to profit or loss on disposal of the net investment.

B.6 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Property, plant and equipment are stated at the cost of acauisition or production, net of accumulated
depreciation and any impairment. Cost includes expenditure directly incurred to prepare the assets for use,
as well as any costs for their dismantling and removal which will be incurred as a consequence of contractual
or legal obligations requiring the asset to be restored to its original condition. Borrowing costs directly
attributable to the acquisition, construction or production-of qualifying assets are capitalised and depreciated
over the useful life of the asset to which they iefei.

Costs incurred subsequent to acquirirg.an’ asset’and the cost of replacing certain parts of assets recognised
in this category are capitalised only. it they-increase the future economic benefits of the asset to which they
refer. All other costs are recognised in profit or loss as incurred. When the replacement cost of certain parts

of an asset is capitalised, the iesidual vaiue of the parts replaced is expensed to profit or loss.

Depreciation is charged on a straight-line, monthly basis using rates that allow assets to be depreciated until
the end of their useful'lives.<When assets consist of different identifiable components, whose useful lives
differ significantly fromeach’ other, each component is depreciated separately using the component

approach.
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The indicative useful lives estimated by the Group for the various categories of property, plant and

equipment are as follows:

Land

Buildings

Plant 10-15vears
Machinery 10-20 years
Equpmentand Ofher mssee L\ 310years ......

The residual values and useful lives of property, plant and equipment are reviewed and adjusted, if

appropriate, at least at each financial year-end.

Property, plant and equipment acquired through finance leases, whereby the risks and rewards of the assets
are substantially transferred to the Group, are capitalised at their fair value or, if lower, at the present value
of the minimum lease payments, including any sum payable to exercise’/a purchase option. The
corresponding lease liability is recorded under financial payables./ The assets are depreciated using the
method and rates described earlier for "Property, plant and equipiment”;-unless the lease term is less than
the useful life represented by such rates and ownership of the' leased asset is not reasonably certain to be
transferred at the end of the lease; in this case the depreciation-period will be the lease term. Any capital
gains realised on the disposal of assets which are leased back under finance leases are recorded under
liabilities as deferred income and released to profit or loss over-the lease term. Leases where the lessor
substantially retains all the risks and rewards of ownership-of the assets are treated as operating leases,

payments for which are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Non-current assets classified as held for sale are-measured at the lower of carrying amount and fair value

less costs to sell as from the time they qualify-as tieia for sale under the related accounting standard.

B.7 INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Intangible assets are non-monetary-assets which are separately identifiable, have no physical nature, are
under the company's control and are able to generate future economic benefits. Such assets are recognised
at acquisition cost and/or production cost, including all costs directly attributable to make the assets available
for use, net of accumulated amortisation and any impairment. Borrowing costs directly attributable to the
acquisition or development of gualifying assets are capitalised and amortised over the useful life of the asset
to which they refer--Amortisation commences when the asset is available for use and is calculated on a

straight-line basis over the: asset's estimated useful life.

(&) Goodwill
Goodwill represents the difference between the cost incurred for acquiring a controlling interest (in a
business) and the fair value of the assets and liabilities identified at the acquisition date. Goodwill is not

amortised, but is tested for impairment at least annually to identify any impairment losses. This test is carried
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out with reference to the cash-generating unit ("CGU") or group of CGUs to which goodwill is allocated and
at which level it is monitored. An impairment loss is recognised if the recoverable amount of goodwill is less

than its carrying amount. Recoverable amount is defined as the higher of the fair value of the CGU or.group
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of CGUs, less costs to sell, and the related value in use (see Note B.8 Impairment of property, -
equipment and finite-life intangible assets, for more details about how value in use is calculated): An
impairment loss recognised against goodwill cannot be reversed in a subsequent period.

If an impairment loss identified by the impairment test is higher than the value of goodwill-allocated to that
CGU or group of CGUs, the residual difference is allocated to the other assets included-iniie-CGU or group

of CGUs in proportion to their carrying amount.

Such allocation shall not reduce the carrying amount of an asset below the highest cf:

. its fair value, less costs to sell;
. its value in use, as defined above;
. zero.

(b) Patents, concessions, licences, trademarks and similar iights

These assets are amortised on a straight-line basis over their useful lives:

(c) Computer software

Software licence costs are capitalised on the basis of purchase costs and costs to make the software ready
for use. These costs are amortised on a straight-lirie: basis over the useful life of the software. Costs relating
to the development of software programs are capitaiised, in accordance with IAS 38, when it is likely that the
asset's use will generate future economic benefits and-when the conditions described below are met (see

N

paragraph (d) on Research and development costs).

(d) Research and development cosis
Research and development costs are recognised as an expense when they are incurred, except for

development costs which are recorded as intangible assets when all the following conditions are met:

. the project is clearly identified and the related costs can be reliably identified and measured;

. the technical feasibility of the project can be demonstrated;

. the intention to complete the project and to sell its output can be demonstrated;

. there is a potential market for the output of the intangible asset or, if the intangible asset is to be

used internally,.lis.usefulness can be demonstrated;

. there are/sufficient technical and financial resources to complete the project.

Development costs capitalised as intangible assets start to be amortised once the output of the project is

marketable.
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B.8 IMPAIRMENT OF PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND FINITE-LIFE INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Property, plant and equipment and finite-life intangible assets are analysed at each reporting date foir-any
evidence of impairment. If such evidence is identified, the recoverable amount of these assets ‘is-gstimated
and any impairment loss relative to carrying amount is recognised in profit or loss. The recoveraile amiount
is the higher of the fair value of an asset, less costs to sell, and its value in use, where thelaiier is the
present value of the estimated future cash flows of the asset. The recoverable amount ¢t an.asset which
does not generate largely independent cash flows is determined in relation to the cash-generating unit to
which the asset belongs. In calculating an asset's value in use, the expected future cash flows are
discounted using a discount rate reflecting current market assessments of the time value of money, in
relation to the period of the investment and the specific risks associated with the asset. An impairment loss is
recognised in profit or loss when the asset's carrying amount exceeds its récoverable amount. If the reasons
for impairment cease to exist, the asset's carrying amount is restored with the resuiting increase recognised
through profit or loss; however, the increased carrying amount shall not exceed the net carrying amount that
this asset would have had if no impairment had been recognised and<it had been depreciated/amortised
instead.

Following the acquisition of General Cable, the Group has embtarked onh a reorganisation under which it has

identified the following new operating segments:

e Energy, whose smallest identifiable CGU is the Region; this segment encompasses the former
Energy Products segment as well as the Core Oil&Gas and DHT businesses included until the last
quarter in the OIL&GAS segment no longer significant for the Group.

e Projects, whose smallest identifiable CGUs are the High Voltage, Submarine Power, Submarine
Telecom and Offshore Specialties businesses; this segment encompasses the former Energy
Projects segment, the Offshore Specialties business (previously included in the OIL&GAS segment
no longer significant for the Group) and the Submarine Telecom business, new to the Group
following the acquisition of General Cable;

e Telecom, whose smallest CGU- continues to be the operating segment itself. This segment has not

undergone any changes-as a result of the above reorganisation.

B.9 FINANCIAL ASSETS

Financial assets are lnitially recorded at fair value and classified in one of the following categories on the

basis of their nature and the purpose for which they were acquired:

€) Financial asseis‘at amortised cost;
(b) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss;
(c) Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (OCI).
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Financial assets are derecognised when the right to receive cash flows from the instrument expires and the

Group has substantially transferred all the risks and rewards relating to the instrument and its control.

(8) Financial assets at amortised cost

Financial assets are classified in this category if they are held within a business model with the cbjective of
holding them in order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial asset give
rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured using the effective interest method and are
subject to impairment. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss wheri the asset/is derecognised,
modified or impaired.

The Group's financial assets at amortised cost include loans and receivables. Assets’at amortised cost are
classified in the statement of financial position as "Financial assets at amortised cost" and presented as
current or non-current assets depending on whether their contractual mafurity is less or more than twelve
months from the reporting date.

The process of identifying any loss allowances for expected crecit losses on trade and other receivables is
described in Note B.11.

(b) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets classified in this category are repiesented by securities held for trading, having been
acquired for the purpose of selling in the near terim. Derivatives are treated as securities held for trading,
unless they are designated as hedging instrumerits and are therefore classified as "Derivatives".

Financial assets at fair value through profit 6t _loss ate initially recognised at fair value and the related
transaction costs are recognised immediately as an.expense.

Subsequently, financial assets at fair vaitie through profit or loss are measured at fair value. Assets in this
category are classified as current assets (except for Derivatives maturing more than twelve months from the
reporting date). Gains and losses from changes in the fair value of financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss are reported in the income statement as "Finance income" and "Finance costs", in the period in which
they arise. This does not apply to-metal derivatives, whose fair value changes are reported in "Fair value
change in metal derivatives". Any-dividends from financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
recognised as income when the Group's right to receive payment is established and are presented in the

income statement undér "Share of net profit/(loss) of equity-accounted companies”.

(c) Financial assetsatfair value through other comprehensive income (OCI)

Financial assets are classified in this category if they are held within a business model with the objective of
both holding te caliect contractual cash flows and selling. In addition, the contractual terms of the financial
asset must give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the

principal amount cutstanding.
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All the financial assets in this category are initially recorded at fair value, changes in which are recognised in
an equity reserve; the cumulative fair value gain or loss is taken to the income statement as "Finance

income" or "Finance costs" only when the financial asset is derecognised.

The fair value of listed financial instruments is based on the current bid price; such instruments beiong to
Level 1 of the fair value hierarchy.

If the market for a financial asset is not active (or refers to unlisted securities), the Group meastires fair value
using valuation techniques whose inputs are based on observable market-based data (Level 2) or
unobservable data (Level 3). More details can be found in Section D.2 Fair value.

When performing such valuations, the Group gives preference to market data’ rather-than to internal data

specifically connected to the nature of the business in which the Group operates.

Any dividends arising from investments recorded as financial asseis -at fair value through other
comprehensive income (OCI) are recognised as income when the Group's right to receive payment is

established.

When evaluating financial assets at fair value through OCi, the Group applies the simplified approach
permitted for assets with low credit risk. At every reporting date, the Group evaluates whether the debt
instrument is considered to have low credit risk using ait-reasonable and supportable information that is
available without undue cost or effort. In making that evaluation, the Group continuously tracks the credit
rating of the debt instrument. If there is evidence of/deterioration in the counterparty's credit rating, the Group
will recognise an allowance for the credit losses gxpected over the remaining life of the exposure.

In some cases, the Group may consider that-a financial asset is no longer recoverable when internal or
external information indicates that the contractual flows are unlikely to be recovered in full, also taking into
account any credit enhancements held by the Group. Therefore, the financial asset is eliminated when there
is no reasonable expectation of recovering itie centractual cash flows.

In the case of investments in othier companies not held for trading purposes, previously classified as

"Available-for-sale" (IAS 39), the Group has elected to classified them at fair value through OCI.

B.10 DERIVATIVES

Derivative instruments are accounted for at fair value at the contract inception date and, unless accounted
for as hedging instruments, any changes in the fair value following initial recognition are recorded as finance
income or costs for the period, except for fair value changes in metal derivatives. If derivatives satisfy the
requirements for classification as hedging instruments, the subsequent changes in fair value are accounted
for using the specific ciiteria set out below.

The Group-designates some derivatives as hedging instruments for particular risks associated with highly
probable transactions ("cash flow hedges"). Each derivative financial instrument that qualifies for hedge
accounting must be supported by documentation of the hedging relationship, including the risk management

objective, the hedging strategy and the methods for checking the hedge's effectiveness. The effectiveness of
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each hedge is reviewed both at the derivative's inception and during its life cycle. In general, a cash flow
hedge is considered highly "effective" if, both at its inception and during its life cycle, the changes in the cash
flows expected in the future from the hedged item are largely offset by changes in the fair value of the
hedging instrument.

The fair values of the various derivative financial instruments used as hedges are presented in Noie 8.
Derivatives. Movements in the "Cash flow hedge reserve" forming part of equity are reported-in Note 11.
Share capital and reserves.

The fair value of a hedging derivative is classified as a non-current asset or liability if the hedged item has a
maturity of more than twelve months; if the maturity of the hedged item is less than tweive months, the fair

value of the hedge is classified as a current asset or liability.

Derivatives not designated as hedging instruments are classified as current. ar non-current assets or

liabilities according to their contractual maturities.

Cash flow hedges

In the case of hedges intended to neutralise the risk of changes in cash flows arising from the future
execution of contractual obligations existing at the reporting ate ("cast: flow hedges"), changes in the fair
value of the derivative following initial recognition are recorded in equity under the "Cash flow hedge reserve",
but only to the extent that they relate to the effective portisn cf:the hedge. When the effects of the hedged
item are reported in profit or loss, the reserve is trarisierred to the income statement and classified in the
same line items that report the effects of the hedged item. If a'hedge is not fully effective, the change in fair
value of its ineffective portion is immediately recoghised in the income statement as "Finance income" or
"Finance costs". If, during the life of a derivative instrument, the hedged forecast cash flows are no longer
considered to be highly probable, the portion of the."Cash flow hedge reserve" relating to such instrument is
taken to the period's income statement and treated as "Finance income" or "Finance costs". Conversely, if
the derivative instrument is disposed of/'or 10 longer qualifies as an effective hedge, the portion of the "Cash
flow hedge reserve" representing the -changes’/in the instrument's fair value recorded up to then remains in
equity until the original hedged transacticnoccurs, at which point it is then taken to the income statement,

where it is classified on the basis-described above.

At 31 December 2018, the Group had designated derivative instruments to hedge the following risks:

. exchange rate risk on contracts or orders: these hedges aim to reduce the volatility of cash flows
due to changes in exchange rates on future transactions. In particular, the hedged item is the value
in the company's unit of account of a cash flow expressed in another currency that is expected to be
receivedipaid under a contract or an order whose amount exceeds the minimum thresholds set by
the-Group, FFinance Committee: all cash flows thus identified are therefore designated as hedged

items in ihe hedging relationship. The reserve originating from changes in the fair value of derivative
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instruments is transferred to the income statement according to the stage of completion of the
contract itself, where it is classified as contract revenue/costs;

. interest rate risk: these hedges aim to reduce the volatility of cash flows relating to finance costs
arising on variable rate debt.

When the economic effects of the hedged items occur, the gains and losses from the hedging instruments

are taken to the following lines in the income statement:

Sales of goods and services/ rinance income/
Raw materials, consumables (costs)
used and goods forresale . °
Exchange rate risk on construction contracts or orders 'Y

Interest rate risk °

B.11 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Trade and other receivables are initially recognised at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised
cost, net of the allowance for doubtful accounts. Impairment of receivables is recognised on the basis of
Expected Credit Loss (ECL). ECLs are based on the difference between the contractual cash flows due in
accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the Groug expects to receive, discounted at an
approximation of the original effective interest rate.

The expected cash flows will include cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements

that are integral to the contractual terms.

ECLs are recognised in two stages.

- For credit exposures for which there has-not been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, ECLs are provided for credit-losses that result from default events that are possible within
the next 12 months (a 12-month ECL.).

- For those credit exposures for which/there, has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, a loss allowance ‘is-required for credit losses expected over the remaining life of the
exposure, irrespective of the timing oi thie default (a lifetime ECL).

For trade receivables and contract assets, the Group applies a simplified approach in calculating ECLs.

Therefore, the Group does not track changes in credit risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance based on

lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. The Group has established a provision matrix that is based on its

historical credit loss /experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the
economic environment.

The Group makes use of without-recourse factoring of trade receivables. These receivables are

derecognised because jsuch transactions transfer substantially all the related risks and rewards of the

receivables - the facior.
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B.12 INVENTORIES

Inventories are recorded at the lower of purchase or production cost and net realisable value, represented by
the amount which the Group expects to obtain from their sale in the normal course of business, netof selling
costs. The cost of inventories of raw materials, ancillaries and consumables, as well as finished praducts and

goods is determined using the FIFO (first-in, first-out) method.

The exception is inventories of non-ferrous metals (copper, aluminium and lead) and duantities of such
metals contained in semi-finished and finished products, which are valued using the weighted average cost
method.

The cost of finished and semi-finished products includes design costs, raw materials, direct labour costs and
other production costs (calculated on the basis of normal operating capacity). Borrowing costs are not
included in the valuation of inventories but are recognised as an expense when incurred because inventories

are not qualifying assets that take a substantial period of time to get ready ier use’or sale.

B.13 CONTRACT WORK IN PROGRESS

Contract work in progress (hereafter also "contracts") is recognised-at the value agreed in the contract, in
accordance with the percentage of completion method, taking-into account the progress of the project and
the expected contractual risks. The progress of a praject is-measured by reference to the contract costs
incurred at the reporting date in relation to the total estimated costs for each contract. When the outcome of
a contract cannot be estimated reliably, the contract revenue is recognised only to the extent that the costs
incurred are likely to be recovered. When the - outcome of a contract can be estimated reliably, and it is
probable that the contract will be profitable, contract revenue is recognised over the term of the contract.
When it is probable that total contract costs will exceed total contract revenue, the potential loss is
recognised immediately as an expense.

If the contract contains a warranty’ canstituting a performance obligation that is distinct from the standard
customer warranties concerning product. conformity with agreed specifications, the consideration for this
obligation is allocated over the termy-of such obligation.

The Group reports as assets thie gross amount due from customers for contracts in progress, where the
costs incurred, plus recognised profits (less recognised losses), exceed the billing of work-in-progress; such
assets are reported in/“Other receivables”. Amounts invoiced but not yet paid by customers are reported

under "Trade receivables".
The Group reports as liabilities the gross amount due to customers for all contracts in progress where billing

exceeds the cosis iivcurred plus recognised profits (less recognised losses). Such liabilities are reported in

"Other pavables".
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B.14 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash, demand bank deposits and other short-term investments, with a
maturity of three months or less. Current account overdrafts are classified as financial payabies under

current liabilities in the statement of financial position.

B.15 ASSETS AND LIABILITIES HELD FOR SALE

Assets and liabilities held for sale are classified as such if the carrying amount wiil e recovered principally
through a sale transaction; for this to be the case, the sale must be highly probable and the related
assets/liabilities must be available for immediate sale in their present conditicn. Assets/Liabilities held for

sale are measured at the lower of carrying amount and fair value less costs:to sell.

B.16 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair value arid subsequently measured at amortised cost.

B.17 BORROWINGS FROM BANKS AND OTHER LENDERS

Borrowings from banks and other lenders are initially recegnised at fair value, less directly attributable costs.
Subsequently, they are measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest method. If the estimated
expected cash flows should change, the value of'the iiabilities is recalculated to reflect this change using the
present value of the expected new cash fiows and the effective internal rate originally established.
Borrowings from banks and other lenders are classified as current liabilities, except where the Group has an

unconditional right to defer their paymernt for at ieast twelve months after the reporting date.

Borrowings from banks and other lenders are derecognised when they are extinguished and when the Group

has transferred all the risks and cests relatirig to such instruments.

B.18 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

The Group operates both defined contribution plans and defined benefit plans.

Defined contribution plans

A defined centributiori plan is a plan under which the Group pays fixed contributions to third-party fund

managers’and to which there are no legal or other obligations to pay further contributions should the fund not

have sufficient-assets to meet the obligations to employees for current and prior periods. In the case of

defined contribution plans, the Group pays contributions, voluntarily or as established by contract, to public

and private pension insurance funds. The Group has no obligations subsequent to payment of such
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contributions, which are recognised as personnel costs on an accrual basis. Prepaid contributions are

recognised as an asset which will be repaid or used to offset future payments, should they be due.

Defined benefit plans

In defined benefit plans, the total benefit payable to the employee can be quantified only. aiter the
employment relationship ceases, and is linked to one or more factors, such as age, years qi ceivice and
remuneration; the related cost is therefore charged to the period's income statement on-ike. basis of an
actuarial calculation. The liability recognised for defined benefit plans corresponds to the-present value of the
obligation at the reporting date, less the fair value of the plan assets, where anplicable. Obligations for
defined benefit plans are determined annually by an independent actuary usirg tha projected unit credit
method. The present value of a defined benefit plan is determined by discounting-the future cash flows at an
interest rate equal to that of high-quality corporate bonds issued in the liability's  seitlement currency and
which reflects the duration of the related pension plan. Actuarial gains andlosses arising from the above
adjustments and the changes in actuarial assumptions are recorded directly-in-equity.

Past service costs resulting from a plan amendment are recognisea imniediately as an expense in the period

the plan amendment occurs.

Other post-employment obligations

Some Group companies provide medical benefit plans for-retirad employees. The expected cost of these
benefits is accrued over the period of employment using the same accounting method as for defined benefit
plans. Actuarial gains and losses arising from the valuation and the effects of changes in the actuarial
assumptions are accounted for in equity. These liabilities are valued annually by a qualified independent

actuary.

Termination benefits

The Group recognises termination benefits when it can be shown that the termination of employment
complies with a formal plan communicated/ to the parties concerned that establishes termination of
employment, or when payment of the benefit is the result of voluntary redundancy incentives. Termination

benefits payable more than twelve months after the reporting date are discounted to present value.

Equity-settled share-based payments

Stock options are valued on the basis of the fair value determined on their grant date. This value is charged
to the income statement.on a straight-line basis over the option vesting period with a matching entry in equity.
This recognition is‘based on an estimate of the number of stock options that will effectively vest in favour of
eligible employees, takirig into consideration any vesting conditions, irrespective of the market value of the

shares.
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B.19 PROVISIONS FOR RISKS AND CHARGES

Provisions for risks and charges are recognised for losses and charges of a definite nature, whose existence
is certain or probable, but the amount and/or timing of which cannot be determined reliably. A provision-is
recognised only when there is a current (legal or constructive) obligation for a future outflow of eccnomic
resources as the result of past events and it is likely that this outflow is required to settle the ohiigaiion. Such
amount is the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the obligation. Where the-eifect of the time
value of money is material and the obligation settlement date can be estimated reliakly, ihe-provisions are
stated at the present value of the expected outlay, using a rate that reflects market conditions, the variation
in the cost of money over time, and the specific risk attached to the obligation.

Increases in the provision due to changes in the time value of money are accournited for as interest expense.
Risks for which the emergence of a liability is only possible but not remote are indicated in the disclosures
about commitments and contingencies and no provision is recognised.

Any contingent liabilities accounted for separately when allocating the cost of a’business combination, are
valued at the higher of the amount obtained using the method described above for provisions for risks and
charges and the liability's originally determined present value.

Further details can be found in Note 29. Contingent liabilities.

The provisions for risks and charges include the estimated -legal costs to be incurred if such costs are

incidental to the extinguishment of the provision to which-they refer.

B.20 REVENUE RECOGNITION

Revenue is recognised at the fair value of the consideration received for the sale of goods and services in
the ordinary course of the Group's business.-Revenue is recognised net of value-added tax, expected
returns, rebates and discounts.

Revenue is accounted for as follows:

(a) Sale of goods

Revenue from the sale of goods-is recognised at the point in time when control of the asset is transferred to
the customer, generally on-dispatch or delivery to the customer who has accepted it. The Group considers
whether there are othier conditions in the contract that are separate performance obligations to which a
portion of the transaction price needs to be allocated (e.g., warranties), and the effects of variable
consideration, the-existence of significant financing components, non-cash consideration, and consideration
payable to the customer. If the consideration in a contract includes a variable amount, the Group estimates
the amount of consideiation to which it will be entitled in exchange for transferring the goods to the customer.
The variable consideration is estimated at contract inception and is recognised only when it is highly
probable. When contracts provide a customer with a right to return the goods within a specified period, the
Group uses the expected value method to account for revenue. The Group provides retrospective discounts

to certain customers once the quantity of products purchased during the period exceeds a threshold
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specified in the contract. Discounts are offset against amounts payable by the customer. To estimate the
variable consideration for the expected future discounts, the Group applies the "most likely amount" method
for contracts with a single-volume threshold and the "expected value" method for contracts with more-than
one volume threshold. Generally, the Group receives short-term advances from its customers:. The Giroup
does not adjust the promised amount of consideration for the effects of a significant financing component if it
expects, at contract inception, that the period between the transfer of the promised good cr service to the

customer and when the customer pays for that good or service will be one year or less.

(b) Sale of services
The sale of services is recognised in the accounting period in which the services are rendered, with
reference to progress towards complete satisfaction of the service, given that tive customer simultaneously

receives and consumes the benefits arising from the services provided by the Group.

In both cases, revenue recognition depends on there being reasonabie assurance that the related

consideration will be received.

The method of recognising revenue for contract work in progress is outiined in Note B.13 Contract work in

progress.

B.21 GOVERNMENT GRANTS

Government grants are recognised on an accruai basis in direct relation to the costs incurred when there is a
formal resolution approving the allocation and, when tihe right to the grant is assured since it is reasonably
certain that the Group will comply with the conditigns attaching to its receipt and that the grant will be

received.

(a) Grants related to assets

Government grants relating to investments in property, plant and equipment are recorded as deferred
income in "Other payables”, classitiea-urider current and non-current liabilities for the respective long-term
and short-term portion of such-granis. Deferred income is recognised in "Other income" in the income

statement on a straight-line-hasis over the useful life of the asset to which the grant refers.

(b) Grants related to.income

Grants other thari those related to assets are credited to the income statement as "Other income".

B.22 COST RECQOGNITION

Costs are recagnised for goods and services acquired or consumed during the reporting period or to make a

systematic allocation to match costs with revenues.
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B.23 TAXATION

Current taxes are calculated on the basis of the taxable income for the year, applying the tax rates effective
at the reporting date.

Deferred taxes are calculated on all the differences emerging between the taxable base of ‘an asset or
liability and the related carrying amount, except for goodwill and those differences arising from-investments
in subsidiaries, where the timing of the reversal of such differences is controlled by the Greup-and it is likely
they will not reverse in a reasonably foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets, including-those relating to past
tax losses, not offset by deferred tax liabilities, are recognised to the extent it is likely that future taxable profit
will be available against which they can be recovered.

Deferred taxes are determined using tax rates that are expected to apply in the years when the differences
are realised or extinguished, on the basis of tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the

reporting date.

Current and deferred taxes are recognised in the income statement with the exception of those relating to
items recognised directly in equity; such taxes are also accourited for directly in equity. Income taxes are
offset if they are levied by the same taxation authority, if there is a legally enforceable right to offset them

and if the net balance is expected to be settled.

Other taxes not related to income, such as property tax, are reported in "Other expenses".

B.24 EARNINGS PER SHARE

(a) Basic earnings per share
Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the profit attributable to owners of the parent by the
weighted average number of ordinary/shares cutstanding during the reporting period, excluding treasury

shares.

(b) Diluted earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share are caicuiated by dividing the profit attributable to owners of the parent by the
weighted average number-of.ordinary shares outstanding during the reporting period, excluding treasury
shares. For the purposes of calculating diluted earnings per share, the weighted average number of
outstanding shares is ‘adjusted /so as to include the exercise, by all those entitled, of rights with a potentially
dilutive effect, whiie the profit attributable to owners of the parent is adjusted to account for any post-tax

effects of exercising such rights.

B.25 TREASURY SHARES

Treasury shares are reported as a deduction from equity. The original cost of treasury shares and revenue

arising from any subsequent sales are treated as movements in equity.
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C. RESTATEMENT OF COMPARATIVE FIGURES

The prior year figures presented for comparative purposes in the consolidated income statement, forming

the previously published ones for the sake of consistency with the current year presentation.
The consolidated financial statements at 1 January 2017 and at 31 December 2017, presented in-iis report

for comparative purposes, have been amended compared with the previously published figures.

Adoption of IFRS 15 and IFRS 9

Following adoption of IFRS 15, the Group has elected to apply it retrospectively, with restatement of its

consolidated figures from 1 January 2017. In particular:

L] "Other receivables" reported in the statement of financial position Fizve been decreased by Euro 53
million at 1 January 2017 and by Euro 29 million at 31 December 2017, while "Other payables" have
been increased by Euro 21 million at 31 December 2017;

= "Deferred tax assets" have been increased by Euro 16 miilion at 1 January 2017 and by Euro 14
million at 31 December 2017,

. "Sales of goods and services" at 31 December 2017 kave been-.increased by around Euro 3 million,

while "Taxes" have been increased by around Euro 2 millior.

There have been no effects on either net financial debt oi-casi flow provided by operating activities for 2017.
The above effects are due to the extended warranties given by the Group to its customers, compared with
those that are standard in the Projects operating segment.
Following the adoption of IFRS 9, the Group has made the following adjustments:
e other comprehensive income (OCI) for financial-year 2017 has been decreased by Euro 13 million, net of
the related tax; net profit has therefore been-increased by the same amount;
e "Finance costs" have been decreased by Euro 17 million and "Taxes" increased by Euro 4 million in
financial year 2017.
There have been no effects on either net financial debt or cash flow provided by operating activities.
The above effects are due, to the time value component of option contracts designated as hedging
instruments. Following the adoption of IFRS 9, the Group has also made the following reclassifications:
e non-current "Availaile-for-sale financial assets" have been reclassified in "Other investments at fair
value through/ather comprehensive income";
o "Held-to-maturity finaricial assets" have been reclassified in "Financial assets at amortised cost”;
e "Financial assets held for trading" have been reclassified in "Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss";
e current “Available-for-sale financial assets" have been reclassified in "Financial assets at fair value
through other comprehensive income”.
Lastly, no significant effects have emerged as a result of applying the new model of credit impairment
envisaged by IFRS 9.
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position at 1 January 2017

(in millions of Euro)

1 January Effect of Effect of 1 January
2017 IFRS 15 IFRS 9 2017

published : application application restated
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 1631, [ Lest
Intangible assets 792
Equity-accounted investments 195
Available-for-sale financial assets 2
Other investments at fair value through other comprehensive income o . 12
Financial assets held to maturity A 2) -
Financial assets at amortised cost 2 2
Derivatives 3 3
Deferred tax assets 130 146
Other receivables 21 ! 21
Total non-current assets 2,786 16\ - 2,802
Currentassets ]
Inventorles 906 ............................. 906
Trade receivables 1,088 1,088
Other receivables 88 L (53) 735
Financial assets held for trading 57 (57) -
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss W 57 57
Derivatives 40
Cash and cash equivalents 646
Total current assets (53) - 3,472
Total assets 37) - 6,274
Equity attributable to the Group: 37) - 1,411
Share capital 22
Reserves 37) 1,143
Net profit/(loss) for the year - 246
Equity attributable to non-controlling interests: - - 227
Share capital andreserves 211
Net profit/(loss) for the year 16
Toalequity o (37) : 1,638
Non-current liabilities
Borrowings from banks and other lenders 1,114 1,114
Otherpayables . 4 / 18 18
Provisions for risks and charges 40 40
Sy ........ - o
Deferred taX Ilabllltles ............................ lll 111
Employee benefit obligations - 383 383
Total non-current liabilities . " 1,678 - - 1,678
Current Ilabllltles ................................
Borrowings from banks and otiier/lenders 172 172
Trade payables 1,498 1,498
Other payables .\ | 875 875
Derivatives 24 24
Provisions for risks @nd 339 339
Current tax payables . | 50 50
Total current liabilities - 2,958 - - 2,958
Total liabilities™ 4,636 - - 4,636
Total equity and liabilities 6,311 37) - 6,274
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position at 31 December 2017

(in millions of Euro)

31 Effect of Effect of | 31 December
December IFRS 15 IFRS 9 2017
2017 application application restated
published
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 1,646
Intangible assets 735
Equity-accounted investments 217
Available-for-sale financial assets 12
Other investments at fair value through other comprehensive income
Financial assets held to maturity 2
Financial assets at amortised cost
Derivatives 14
Deferred tax assets 135 149
Other receivables 18 /7 N\ 18
Total non-current assets 2,779 14, - 2,793
Current assets :
Inventories 954 954
T 1’:13.1 ....................................... 131
Other receivables (29) 419
Financial assets held for tading /- 40 (40) -
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 40 40
Derivatives 45 45
Available-for-sale financial assets """"""""""" 1 (11) -
Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income _ 11 11
Cash and cash equivalents 1,335 1,335
Total currentassets e 3,964 (29) - 3,935
Totalassets ./ 6,743 (15) - 6,728
Equity attributable to the Group: /& 1,487 (36) - 1,451
Share capital L 22 22
Reserves 1,238 (36) (13) 1,189
Net profit/(loss) for theyear 227 - 13 240
Equity attributable to non-controlling interests: 188 - - 188
Share capital and reserves 192 192
Net profitloss) for the year /", @ @
Total equity _ 1,675 (36) - 1,639
Non-current liabilities
Borrowings from banks and other lenders AN 1,466 1,466
Other payables 8 8
Provisions for risks and charges 33 33
Derivatives 2 2
Deferred tax liabilities 103 103
Employee benefit obligations _—, 355 355
Total non-current liabilities 1,967 - - 1,967
Current liabilities
Borrowings from banks and aé_ﬁ_ﬁr__gf:ildérs 370 370
Trade payables 1,686 1,686
Other payables | | 671 21 692
Derivatives 35 35
321 321
18 18
3,101 21 - 3,122
Total liabilities ' 5,068 21 - 5,089
Total equity and liabilities 6,743 (15) - 6,728
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2017 Effect of IFRS 15 Effect of IFRS 9 2047
published application application restated =
Sales of goods and services 7,901 3
C_:h_ange in inventories of work in progress, semi-finished and 57
finished goods
Other income 81
Raw materials, consumables used and goods for resale (4,912)
Fair value change in metal derivatives 12
Personnel costs (1,086)
of which personnel costs for company reorganisation (24)
of which personnel costs for stock option fair value (49)
Amortisation, depreciation, impairment and impairment (199)
POVerSalS
of which impairment related to company reorganisation 4) 4)
of which other impairment as (18)
Other expenses (1,475) (1,475)
of which non-recurring (other expenses) and releases as o o (18)
of which (other expenses) for company reorganisation © (6)
Share of net profit/(loss) of equity-accounted companies 42
Operating income 3 - 424
Finance costs 17 (349)
of which non-recurring finance costs 2)
Finance income 250
of which non-recurring finance income T -
Profit/(oss) before taxes /.- 305 3 17 325
e —— A ) (2) @ )
Net profit/(oss) for the year 223 1 13 237
Attributableto: -
omesotepet N - ”
/4 @ @
Sasic carmingsiioss) per share (n Eure) NN o 0
Diluted earnings/(loss) per share (in €ure)— . 1.05 1.11
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income at 31 December 2017

(in millions of Euro)

2017 Effect of IFRS 15 Effect of IFRS 9 2047

published application application
Net profit/(loss) for the year 223 1
Comprehensive income/(loss) for the year:
- items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or
loss:
Fair value gains/(losses) on cash flow hedges - gross of tax 28 (W) 11
ai value gainl(osses) on cash flow hedues - tax effec 5 4 / (5)
Currency transiation ifferences w7 N 169)
Total items that may be reclassified, net of tax (150) P/ (13) (163)
“items that will NOT be reclassified subsequently to profit | 7/ 7 =5
or loss:
Actuarial gains/(losses) on employee benefits - gross of tax 17 17
Actuarial gains/(losses) on employee benefits - tax effect (©)] 3)
Total items that will NOT be reclassified, net of tax 14 L - - 14
Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the year 1 - 88
Attributable to:
Owners of the parent 120
Non-controlling interests (32)
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D. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group's activities are exposed to various forms of risk: market risk (including exchange rate, interest rate
and price risks), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group's risk management strategy focuses an- the
unpredictability of markets and aims to minimise the potentially negative impact on the Group's resuits.
Certain types of risk are mitigated using derivative instruments.

Monitoring of key financial risks is centrally coordinated by the Group Finance Department,—and,by the
Purchasing Department where price risk is concerned, in close cooperation with the Groun's operating
companies. Risk management policies are approved by the Group Finance, Administraticn_and Control
Department, which provides written guidelines on managing the above risks and on using (derivative and

non-derivative) financial instruments.

The impact on profit and equity presented in the following sensitivity analyses hias been determined net of

tax, calculated using the Group's weighted average theoretical tax rate.

[a] Exchange rate risk

The Group operates worldwide and is therefore exposed to exchange raie risk caused by changes in the

value of trade and financial flows expressed in a currency othier than the unit of account of individual Group

companies.

The principal exchange rates affecting the Group are:

. Euro/US Dollar: in relation to trade and financiai-transactions in US dollars by Eurozone companies
on the North American and Middle Eastern markets, and similar transactions in Euro by North
American companies on the European market;

. Euro/Canadian Dollar: in relation to trade and firancial transactions by Eurozone companies on the
Canadian market and vice versa,;

. Euro/British Pound: in relation t¢’ trade-and financial transactions by Eurozone companies on the
British market and vice versa;

. Bahraini Dinar/Euro: in relation to-trade and financial transactions by Eurozone companies on the
Bahrain market;

. Euro/Hungarian Forint:.in reiatioin to trade and financial transactions by Hungarian companies on the
Eurozone market and vice versa;

. United Arab Emirates-Dirnam/Euro: in relation to trade and financial transactions by Eurozone
companies on'the United Arab Emirates market;

. Australian Dollar/Euro”in relation to trade and financial transactions by Eurozone companies on the
Australigri market and vice versa;

. Brazilian Real/U$ Dollar: in relation to trade and financial transactions in US dollars by Brazilian
cornpanies.on foreign markets;

. Euro/Romanian Leu: in relation to trade and financial transactions by Eurozone companies on the

Romaniain market and vice versa;
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. Indonesian Rupiah/US Dollar: in relation to trade and financial transactions in Indonesia Rupiah by
companies operating in Indonesia on the local market;

. Czech Koruna/Euro: in relation to trade and financial transactions by Eurozone companies an-the
Czech market and vice versa;

. Euro/Qatari Riyal: in relation to trade and financial transactions by Eurozone companies cr the
Qatari market;

. Turkish Lira/US Dollar: in relation to trade and financial transactions in US dotlars- by Turkish
companies on foreign markets;

. Euro/Norwegian Krone: in relation to trade and financial transactions by Eurezone‘companies on the
Norwegian market and vice versa;

. Renminbi/US Dollar: in relation to trade and financial transactions in- S dollars by Chinese
companies on foreign markets and vice versa;

. Euro/Swedish Krona: in relation to trade and financial transactions ky-Edrozone companies on the
Swedish market and vice versa;

. Euro/Singapore Dollar: in relation to trade and financial trarisactions by Eurozone companies on the
Singapore market and vice versa;

. Costa Rican Colon/US Dollar: in relation to trade and-tinancial transactions in US dollars by Costa

Rican companies on foreign markets.

In 2018, trade and financial flows exposed to the above exchange rates accounted for around 86.5% of the

total exposure to exchange rate risk arising from trade and financial transactions.

The Group is also exposed to appreciable exchange rate risks on the following exchange rates: Euro/Hong

Kong Dollar, Renminbi/Euro, UAE Dirham/Omani Rial, Omani Rial/Qatari Riyal; none of these exposures,

taken individually, accounted for more than 1.4% ot the overall exposure to transactional exchange rate risk

in 2018.

It is the Group's policy to hedge, wheie possible, exposures in currencies other than the unit of account of its

individual companies. In particular, the Group hedges:

. firm cash flows: invoiced trade flows and exposures arising from loans and borrowings;

. projected cash flows: trade and financial flows arising from firm or highly probable contractual
commitments.

Such hedges are arranged; using derivative contracts.

The following sensitivity analysis shows the effects on net profit of a 5% and 10% increase/decrease in

exchange rates versus closing exchange rates at 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2017.

(in millions of Euro)

2018 2017

..................... o o o T

Euo ‘o ) (0.75) 0.67 (0.97) 0.88
TN/ 53 5ol 076 oo
Other currencies (4.39) 3.97 (3.49) 3.16
Total (8.47) 7.65 (5.22) 4.73
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(in millions of Euro)

2018

-10% +10%

Euro (1.57) 1.29
US Dollar (7.02) 5.75
Other currencies (9.26) 7.58
Total (17.85) 14.62

When assessing the potential impact of the above, the assets and liabilities of eacii-Group company in
currencies other than their unit of account were considered, net of any derivatives hedging'the above-stated
cash flows.

The following sensitivity analysis shows the post-tax effects on equity reserves.cf an increase/decrease in
the fair value of designated cash flow hedges following a 5% and 10% increase/decrease in exchange rates

versus closing exchange rates at 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2017.

(in millions of Euro)

2018 2017

T T = o ol

US Dollar 329 . {3.63) 6.31 (6.97)

United Arab Emirates Dirham 1.26 . (159) 0.67 (0.75)

ot Riya RO 30) L )

Euro 000 0.00 0.32 (0.36)

Other currencies 312 (3.45) 3.62 (4.00)

Total 9.77) 12.21 (13.51)
(inmillions of Euro) A

2018 2017

-10% +10% -10% +10%

usoollar 6.27 (7.67) 12.04 (14.71)

United Arab Emirates Ditham /7 241 (2.94) 1.29 (1.57)

S \Z AV o o1 v 502

e QORY) 000 oo oo 075)

Other currencies ~ ,— o 5.95 (7.27) 6.92 (9.56)

Total 16.87 (20.62) 23.34 (29.61)

The above analysis igneres the effects of translating the equity of Group companies whose functional
currency is not the Eurg,
Further details can be found in the individual notes to the financial statements.

[b] Interest rate risk
The interest rate risk-to which the Group is exposed is mainly on long-term financial liabilities, carrying both

fixed and variable rates.

Fixed rate debt exposes the Group to a fair value risk. The Group does not operate any particular hedging
policies in relation to the risk arising from such contracts.
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Variable rate debt exposes the Group to a rate volatility risk (cash flow risk). In order to hedge this risk, the
Group can use derivative contracts that limit the impact of interest rate changes on the income statement.

The Group Finance Department monitors the exposure to interest rate risk and adopts appropriate riedging
strategies to keep the exposure within the limits defined by the Group Administration, Finance‘and Caontrol

Department, arranging derivative contracts, if necessary.

The following sensitivity analysis shows the effects on consolidated net profit of an increaseidecrease of 25
basis points in interest rates on the interest rates at 31 December 2018 and 31 Decéimbeir-2017, assuming

that all other variables remain equal.

The potential effects shown below refer to net liabilities representing the bulk of Group debt at the reporting
date and are determined by calculating the effect on net finance costs following a change in annual interest
rates.

The net liabilities considered for sensitivity analysis include variable rate financiai receivables and payables,

cash and cash equivalents and derivatives whose value is influenced by rate volatility.

(in millions of Euro)

"""" 2018 2017

Fr VRN e e e

Euro o.oomf 0.00 (1.34) 1.34
US Dollar (0.28)" 0.26 (0.08) 0.08
British Pound (0.21) 0.21 (0.27) 0.27
Other currencies /. (0.36) 0.36 (0.36) 0.36
" o . 00 -

At 31 December 2018, the Group had interesi raie swap agreements in place that transform the variable rate

into a fixed one. These agreements have been-accounted for as cash flow hedges.

[c] Price risk

The Group is exposed to price risk in relatioh to purchases and sales of strategic materials, whose purchase
price is subject to market volatiiity. The main raw materials used by the Group in its own production
processes consist of strategic metals such as copper, aluminium and lead. The cost of purchasing such
strategic materials accounted for approximately 53.4% of the Group's total cost of materials in 2018 (53.3%

in 2017), forming part/of its overall production costs.

In order to manage the price risk on future trade transactions, the Group negotiates derivative contracts on
strategic metals, setting/the price of expected future purchases.
Although the ultimate aim of the Group is to hedge risks to which it is exposed, these contracts do not qualify

as hedging-instruments for accounting purposes.
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The derivative contracts entered into by the Group are negotiated with major financial counterparties on the
basis of strategic metal prices quoted on the London Metal Exchange ("LME"), the New York market
("COMEX") and the Shanghai Futures Exchange ("SFE").

The following sensitivity analysis shows the effect on net profit and consolidated equity. of a 10%

increase/decrease in strategic material prices versus prices at 31 December 2018 and 31 Decemier 2017,

assuming that all other variables remain equal.

(in millions of Euro)

2017

“10% ~10% +10%
LME (13.93) 1393 (18.03) 18.04
COMEX ©042 ‘o042 0.76 (0.76)
SME (2.73) (1.48) 1.48
Total (17.08) (18.76) 18.76

The potential impact shown above is solely attributable to increases and decreases in the fair value of
derivatives on strategic material prices which are directly attrinutable to-changes in the prices themselves. It

does not refer to the impact on the income statement of the purchase cost of strategic materials.

[d] Credit risk
Credit risk is connected with trade receivables, ‘cash and cash equivalents, financial instruments, and

deposits with banks and other financial institutioris:

Customer-related credit risk is managed by-the-individual subsidiaries and monitored centrally by the Group
Finance Department. The Group does riGt have excessive concentrations of credit risk. It nonetheless has
procedures aimed at ensuring that sales of products and services are made to reliable customers, taking
account of their financial situation, tcack recerd’and other factors. Credit limits for major customers are based
on internal and external assessments withiiz ceilings approved by local country management. The utilisation

of credit limits is periodically monitored-at/iocal level.

During 2018 the Group had a global insurance policy in place to provide coverage for part of its trade

receivables against any creditlosses, net of the deductible.

As for credit risk’ relating, to the management of financial and cash resources, this risk is monitored by the
Group Finance Department, which implements procedures intended to ensure that Group companies deal
with independent, high standing, reliable counterparties. In fact, at 31 December 2018 (like at 31 December
2017) almost all the Group's financial and cash resources were held with investment grade counterparties.
Credit limits reiating to the principal financial counterparties are based on internal and external assessments,

within ceilings set by the Group Finance Department.
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[e] Liquidity risk

Prudent management of the liquidity risk arising from the Group's normal operations involves- the
maintenance of adequate levels of cash and cash equivalents and short-term securities as well‘as-eisuring
the availability of funds by having an adequate amount of committed credit lines.

The Group Finance Department uses cash flow forecasts to monitor the projected levei of the Group's

liquidity reserves.

The amount of liquidity reserves at the reporting date is as follows:

(in millions of Euro)

31 December 2017

Cash and cash equivalents 1,335
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 40
_Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive 1
income

Undrawn committed lines of credit 1,000
Total 2,386

Undrawn committed lines of credit at 31 December 2018 reier-to the Syndicated Revolving Credit Facility
2014 (Euro 1,000 million), like at 31 December 2017. The foliowing-table includes an analysis, by due date,

of payables, other liabilities, and derivatives settled on a net iasis; the various due date categories refer to

the period between the reporting date and the contractual miaturity of the obligations.

(in millions of Euro)

31 December

2018

Due‘within Due between Due between Due after

________ 1 year 1-2years 2 -5years 5 years

Borrowings from banks and other lenders 137 669 2,507 119

Finance lease obligations 1 1 3 7

Derivatives 41 2 -

Trade and other payables 3,053 9 3 -

Total 3,232 685 2,515 126
(inmillionsof Euro) /.

31 December

..... 2017

Due within Due between Due between Due after

______ 1 year 1-2years 2 -5years 5 years

Borrowings from banks and cther-lericers 403 71 1,375 111

Finance lease obligations 1 2 3 7

Derivatives 35 2 - -

Trade and othei payables 2,357 2 3 3

Total 2,796 77 1,381 121
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In completion of the disclosures about financial risks, the following is a reconciliation between the classes of

financial assets and liabilities reported in the Group's consolidated statement of financial position and the

categories used by IFRS 7 to identify financial assets and liabilities:

(in millions of Euro)

Financial Loans and Financial Financial Fin
assets at fair receivables assets at fair | liabilities at | liaHities  derivatives
value value through fair value | carrieg-ai ;
through other through | amortised
profit or loss comprehensive | profit or loss | cost
income
Other investments at fair value ) ) 1l L ) )
through other comprehensive income
Financial assets at fair value through 10
other comprehensive income
Trade receivables - 1,635 - AN ] - -
Other recelvables - 699 i OV 4 - - -
Financial assets at fair value through o5 ) ) ) ) )
profit or loss
Derivatives (assets) 18 - - - 3
Cash and cash equivalents - 1001 /L - - -
Borrowings from banks and other
|enders i BN \ i} 3’259 i
Trade payables - - - - 2,132 -
Other payables - RN - - 933 -
Derivatives (liabilities) - - - 26 - 24
(inmillions of Euro) A
A 31 December 2017(*)
Financial : Loans-and Financial Financial Financial Hedging
assets at fair | receivables. assets at fair | liabilities at liabilities | derivatives
value | 7 value through fair value carried at
through | other through amortised
profit or loss comprehensive | profit or loss cost
income
Other investments at fair value
o - 12 - - -
through other comprehensive income
Financial assets at fair value through 1
other comprehensive income
Trade receivables > 1,131 - - - -
Other receivables - 466 - - - -
Financial assets at fair value through 40 ) ) ) ) )
profitorloss 1
Derivatives (assets) &~ ) 46 - - - - 13
Cash and cash equivalents - - 1,335 - - - -
Borrowings from banks and/cther ) ) ) ) 1,836 )
lenders 1
Tradepayables N\ . . ' . 1,686 .
Other payables ~ ~— . - - - - 679 -
Derivatives (liabilities) - - - 17 - 20

(*) The previousiy pubiished-prior year consolidated financial statements have been restated following the adoption of IFRS 15 and
IFRS 9. Furthe! detaiis can be found in Section C. Restatement of comparative figures.
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D.1 CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group's objective in capital risk management is mainly to safeguard business continuity in order to
guarantee returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders. The Group also aims to-maiitaiin-an
optimal capital structure in order to reduce the cost of debt and to comply with a series of covenants required

by the various Credit Agreements (Note 32. Financial covenants).

The Group also monitors capital using a gearing ratio (i.e. the ratio between net financiai debt and capital).
Details of how net financial debt is determined can be found in Note 12. Borrowings froivi banks and other
lenders. Capital is equal to the sum of equity, as reported in the Group consgciidated financial statements,
and net financial debt.

The gearing ratios at 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2017 are shown below:

(in millions of Euro)

2018 2017 (*)
Net financial debt : 2,222 436
oy 446 Ao
Total capital L) 4,668 2,111
Gearing ratio N 47.60% 20.65%

(*) The previously published prior year consolidated financial statements have heen restated following the adoption of IFRS 15 and
IFRS 9.

D.2 FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT

IFRS 13 requires assets and liabilities recognised in the statement of financial position at fair value to be

classified according to a hierarchy that reflects the significance of the inputs used in measuring fair value.

Financial instruments are classified according tc-the following fair value measurement hierarchy:

Level 1: Fair value is determined with'reference-to quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical

financial instruments. Therefore, the emphasis within Level 1 is on determining both of the following:

€) the principal market for the ‘asset or liability or, in the absence of a principal market, the most
advantageous market for-the asset or liability; and

(b) whether the entity can enier into a transaction for the asset or liability at the price in that market at
the measurement daie.

Level 2: Fair value is determined using valuation techniques where the input is based on observable market

data. The inputs for this-level include:

(a) quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets;
(b) quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in markets that are not active;
(c) inpuis-atherthan quoted prices that are observable for the asset or liability, for example:

i. interest rate and yield curves observable at commonly quoted intervals;
ii. implied.voiatilities;
iii. credit spreads;

(d) market-corroborated inputs.
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Level 3: Fair value is determined using valuation techniques where the input is not based on observable

market data.

The following tables present, on recurring basis, the assets and liabilities that are measured at fair vaiue:

(in millions of Euro)

Level 1

Level 2

Assets

Financial assets at fair value

Derivatives through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Hedging derivatives

Other investments at fair value through other comprehensive income

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income

Total assets

Liabilities

Financial liabilities at fair value

Derivatives through profit or loss

Hedging derivatives

Total liabilities

(in millions of Euro)

31 December 2017

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Assets
Financial assets at fair value
Derivatives through profitorloss ——/ - 46 - 46
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 39 1 - 40
Hedging derivatives A/ - 13 - 13
Other investments at fair value through other comprehensive income - - 12 12
Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income 11 - - 11
TOtaI assets ...................... 50 60 12 122
T — s S
Financial liabilities at fair value
Derivatives through profitorloss o - 17 - 17
Hedging derivatives - 20 - 20
Total liabilities - 57 - 57

Financial assets classified in fair. value Level 3 have reported no significant movements in either 2018 or

2017.

Given the short-term nature of trade receivables and payables, their carrying amounts, net of any allowance

for doubtful accouriis ,-are treated as a good approximation of fair value.

During 2018 there were no transfers of financial assets and liabilities between the different levels of the fair

value hierarchy.
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VALUATION TECHNIQUES

Level 1: The fair value of financial instruments quoted in an active market is based on market price at the
reporting date. The market price used for derivatives is the bid price, while for financial liabilities the-ask price

is used.

Level 2: Derivative financial instruments classified in this category include interest rate swaps, forward

currency contracts and metal derivative contracts that are not quoted in active markets. Fair value is

determined as follows:

. for interest rate swaps, it is calculated on the basis of the present value of forazast future cash flows;

. for forward currency contracts, it is determined using the forward exchange rate at the reporting date,
appropriately discounted;

. for metal derivative contracts, it is determined using the prices of such.metals at the reporting date,

appropriately discounted.

Level 3: The fair value of instruments not quoted in an active market is primarily determined using valuation

techniques based on estimated discounted cash flows.

An increase/decrease in the Group's credit rating at 31 December 2018 would not have had significant

effects on net profit at that date.
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E. ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS

The preparation of financial statements requires management to apply accounting policies and misthods
which, at times, rely on judgements and estimates based on past experience and assumptions deemed to be
reasonable and realistic according to the related circumstances. The application of these estimates,and
assumptions influences the amounts reported in the financial statements, meaning the statement-ai financial
position, the income statement, the statement of comprehensive income and the statement-of-cash flows, as
well as the accompanying disclosures. Ultimate amounts, previously reported on the ‘basis cf estimates and
assumptions, may differ from original estimates because of the uncertain nature of tihe /assumptions and
conditions on which the estimates were based.

The following is a brief description of the accounting policies that require the Prysmian Group's management
to exercise most subjectivity of judgement when preparing estimates and’a change in whose underlying

assumptions could have a material impact on the consolidated financial staierents.

(a) Provisions for risks and charges

Provisions are recognised for legal and tax risks and reflect the risk-of a negative outcome. The value of the
provisions recorded in the financial statements against such risks represents the best estimate by
management at that date. This estimate requires the use of assumptions depending on factors which may
change over time and which could, therefore, materially inigact-the current estimates made by management

to prepare the Group consolidated financial statements.

(b) Impairment of assets

Goodwill

The Group's activities are organised in three operating segments: Projects, Energy and Telecom. The
Projects segment consists of the Highi Voitage, Submarine Power, Submarine Telecom and Offshore
Specialties CGUs; the Energy segmerit coinsists of a number of CGUs corresponding to the Regions or
Countries in keeping with the new/arganisation structure; lastly, the Telecom segment consists of a single
CGU that coincides with the operating-segment itself. Goodwill, acquired on the occasion of business
combinations, has been allocated ta groups of CGUs, corresponding to the operating segments, which are
expected to benefit from the synergies’ of such combinations and which represent the lowest level at which
management monitors business peiformance. In accordance with the accounting standards adopted and
related impairment testing procedures, the Group tests annually whether Goodwill has suffered an
impairment loss. The recoverable amount has been determined by calculating value in use. This calculation
requires the use of estimates.

More details about the impairment test for Goodwill can be found in Note 2. Intangible assets.

Property; plant and equipment and finite-life intangible assets
In accordance with the Group's adopted accounting standards and impairment testing procedures, property,
plant and equipment and intangible assets with finite useful lives are tested for impairment. Any impairment

loss is recognised by means of a write-down, when indicators suggest it will be difficult to recover the related
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net book value through use of the assets. To verify the existence of these indicators management has to
make subjective judgements based on information available within the Group and from the market, as well

as on past experience. If an impairment loss is identified, the Group will determine the amount c¢f such

well as its very measurement, depend on factors which can vary over time, thus influencing the judgements
and estimates made by management.

Prysmian Group has assessed during the course of 2018 whether there was any evidence-that its CGUs
might be impaired and has consequently tested for impairment those CGUs potentialiy-at "risk". The Group
has not written down any assets because no impairment losses were identified as a result'of these tests. The
Group has nonetheless written down some specific assets.

The outcome of impairment tests at 31 December 2018 does not mean that futtire results will be the same,
especially in the event of currently unforeseeable developments in the business environment.

Further information can be found in Note 1. Property, plant and equipment.

(c) Depreciation and amortisation

The cost of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets is-depreciated/amortised on a straight-line
basis over the estimated useful lives of the assets concerned. The useiul economic life of Group property,
plant and equipment and intangible assets is determined by management when the asset is acquired.
This is based on past experience for similar assets, markei-canditions and expectations regarding future
events that could impact useful life, including developmients in technology. Therefore, actual economic life
may differ from estimated useful life. The Group periodically reviews technological and industry
developments to update residual useful lives. This periodic update may lead to a variation in the

depreciation/amortisation period and therefore’also in thie depreciation/amortisation charge for future years.

(d) Recognition of revenues and costs from contract work in progress

The Group uses the percentage of complétion, method to account for long-term contracts. The margins
recognised in the income statement depend ori the progress of the contract and its estimated margins upon
completion. This means that if work-in-pragress and margins on as yet incomplete work are to be correctly
recognised, management must have carrectly estimated contract revenue and completion costs, including
any contract variations and any-cast overruns and penalties that might reduce the expected margin. The
percentage of completion method, requires the Group to estimate contract completion costs and involves
making estimates dependent on factors that could potentially change over time and so could have a

significant impact on the recogrnition of revenue and margins in the process of formation.

(e) Taxes

Consolidated cornpanies are subject to different tax jurisdictions. A significant degree of estimation is needed
to establish-the expected global tax charge. There are many transactions for which the relevant taxes are
difficult to estimate at year end. The Group records liabilities for tax risks on the basis of estimates, possibly

made with the assistance of outside experts.
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(f) Inventory valuation

Inventories are recorded at the lower of purchase cost (measured using the weighted average cost formula
for non-ferrous metals and the FIFO formula for all others) and net realisable value, net of selling costs. Net
realisable value is in turn represented by the value of firm orders in the order book, or otherwise by the
replacement cost of supplies or raw materials. If significant reductions in the price of non-ferrous meiais are
followed by order cancellations, the loss in the value of inventories may not be fully offset by the penalties

charged to customers for cancelling their orders.

(g) Employee benefit obligations

The present value of the pension plans reported in the financial statements depends-or an independent
actuarial calculation and on a number of different assumptions. Any changes in‘assumptions and in the
discount rate used are duly reflected in the present value calculation and/may have a significant impact on
the consolidated figures. The assumptions used for the actuarial calculation are/examined by the Group
annually.

Present value is calculated by discounting future cash flows at an/inierest rate equal to that on high-quality
corporate bonds issued in the currency in which the liability wili be settled’and which takes account of the
duration of the related pension plan.

Further information can be found in Note 15. Employee benefit obiigations and Note 21. Personnel costs.

(h) Incentive and share purchase plans

The employee share purchase plan, directed at alimost all the Group's employees, provides an opportunity
for them to obtain shares on preferential terms and conditions. The operation of this plan is described in Note
21. Personnel costs.

The grant of shares is subject to continued employment with the Group in the months between signing up to
one of the plan's purchase windows and the purchase of the shares themselves on the equity market. The
plan's financial and economic impact/has/ therefore been estimated on the basis of the best possible
estimates and information currentlyavailahie.

The incentive plan for 2018-2020 invoives granting options to some of the Group's employees and co-
investing part of their annual honuses:-These benefits are awarded subject to the achievement of operating
and financial performance objectives-and a continued employment relationship for the three-year period
2018-2020. The plan's financial and /economic impact has therefore been estimated on the basis of the best
possible estimates and information available at the valuation date. More details can be found in Note 21.

Personnel costs.
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F. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS

As described in Section A. Significant events, Prysmian Group acquired control of Generai-Cable
Corporation on 6 June 2018. The acquisition date has been backdated to the end of May-2018 for

accounting purposes.

The total consideration paid for the acquisition is approximately Euro 1,290 million.

Acquisition-related costs amount to around Euro 19 million, before tax effects of some-Eurc-5-million. These
costs have been expensed to income as "Non-operating expenses", of which Euro_ 15 miliion accounted for
in 2017 and Euro 4 million in 2018.

The assets and liabilities of General Cable have been determined on a piovisional basis, since the main
acquisition accounting processes were still being finalised at the current repariing date.

In compliance with IFRS 3, the fair value of the assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities will be finalised
within twelve months of the acquisition date.

The excess of the purchase consideration over the provisional fair value of net assets acquired has been
recognised as goodwill, quantified as Euro 1,084 million.

Such goodwill is primarily justified by the expected future income frem integrating the two groups, including
the benefits of run-rate synergies. The allocation of the acqguisition purchase price is currently being finalised,
as permitted by the relevant accounting standard.

Details of the assets and goodwill are as follows:

(in millions of Euro)

cashout 1,303
Derivatives (collar) for acquisiton /5 (13)
Acquisition price (A) 1,290
Fair value of net assets acquired (B) 208
Non-controlling interest 2
Goodwill (A-B) 1,084
Purchase consideration 1,290
Cash and cash equivalents held by acq (82)
Acquisition cash flow 1,208
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Details of the provisional fair values of the assets/liabilities acquired are as follows:

(in millions of Euro)

Property, plant and equipment 890

Intangible assets

Assets held for sale

Financial assets at amortisedcost A 3
Deerat'VeS .................. 16
Deferredtaxes (140)
Inventories o 646
Trade and other receivables Y 697
Trade and other payables (692)
Borrowings from banks and other lenders S/ ] (1,315)
Employee benefit obligations and Provisions for risks and charges = W/ (305)
Cash and cash equivalents 82
Net assets acquired 8) 208

There now follow some brief comments about the fair value measuremeni forming part of the purchase price

allocation process performed thus far.

Property, plant and equipment

The fair value measurement has increased book value by Etra 484 million.

Intangible assets
The fair value measurement has identified the following highervalues of intangible assets:
e Customer relationships: Euro 232 million/(amortised over a useful life of between 3 and 20 years);
e Trademarks: Euro 51 million (amortised over a useful life of 10 years);
e Technology: Euro 39 million (amortised over-a useful life of between 4 and 5 years);
e Order book: Euro 2 million (amoriised-over a useful life of 1 year);
"Goodwill" and other pre-existing intangibie assets recorded in the General Cable financial statements,

amounting to Euro 27 million, will be canceiled against the above higher values.

Trade and other receivables, Trade-and other payables

Trade and other receivables and-trade-and other payables have been measured at fair value.

Inventories
The fair value measurement of inventories has involved an increase of Euro 16 million in book value to

recognise the inveriiory step-up for production profit margins.
Provisions forrisks

The fair value measurement has increased book value by Euro 88 million in connection with contingent

liabilities.
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Deferred taxes
The variation reflects recognition of the tax effect of all the above differences against book value.

General Cable accounted for Euro 2,117 million of the Prysmian Group's total sales of goods aiid services in
2018, while making a negative contribution of Euro 13 million to net profit for the year. If Generai-Cable had
been consolidated from 1 January 2018, it would have contributed Euro 3,536 million to sales of goods and

services and a negative Euro 8 million to net profit for the year.
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G. SEGMENT INFORMATION

Following the acquisition of General Cable, since June 2018 the Group has embarked on a reorganisation,
as a result of which it has redesigned its operating segments and therefore its segment reporting-to reflect

the new model adopted by the Group.
These changes have caused the operating segments to be redesigned as follows:

e Energy, whose smallest identifiable CGU is the Region; this segment encompasses the former
Energy Products segment as well as the Core Oil&Gas and DHT businesses included until the last
quarter in the OIL&GAS segment no longer significant for the Group.

e Projects, whose smallest identifiable CGUs are the High Voltage, Submarine Power, Submarine
Telecom and Offshore Specialties businesses; this segment encompasses the former Energy
Projects segment, the Offshore Specialties business (previously inciuded/in the OIL&GAS segment
no longer significant for the Group) and the Submarine Teleceny business, new to the Group
following the acquisition of General Cable;

e Telecom, whose smallest CGU continues to be the operaiing segment itself. This segment has not

undergone any changes as a result of the above reorganisation.

The new operating segments are: Energy, Projects and Telecom.

Segment information is structured in the same way as the report periodically prepared for the purpose of
reviewing business performance. This report presents operating performance by macro type of business
(Energy, Projects and Telecom) and the resuits-of operating segments primarily on the basis of Adjusted
EBITDA, defined as earnings (loss) for the periad before non-recurring items, the fair value change in metal
price derivatives and in other fair value/items, arortisation, depreciation and impairment, finance costs and
income and taxes. This report also grovides iniormation about the statement of financial position for the
Group as a whole but not by operating segmerit.

In order to provide users of the-financial statements with clearer information, certain economic data is also

reported by sales channels arid business areas within the individual operating segments:

A) Projects operating segment:_encompassing the following high-tech and high value-added businesses
whose focus is on/projects and their execution, as well as on product customisation: High Voltage,

Submarine Power, Submarine Telecom and Offshore Specialties.

B) Energy operating segment: encompassing the businesses offering a complete and innovative product
portfolio’designed to meet the various and many needs of the market, namely:
1. Energy & jinfrastructure (E&I): this includes Trade and Installers, Power Distribution and Overhead

lines;
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2. Industrial & Network Components: this comprises Specialties and OEM, Elevators, Automotive,
Network Components, core Oil & Gas and DHT,;

3. Other: occasional sales of residual products.

C) Telecom operating segment. producing cable systems and connectivity producis. used in
telecommunication networks. This segment is organised in the following lines of business: cpiical fibre,
optical cables, connectivity components and accessories, OPGW (Optical Ground Wire). and copper

cables.

All Corporate fixed costs are allocated to the Projects, Energy and Telecom operating segrnents. Revenues
and costs are allocated to each operating segment by identifying all revenues and costs directly attributable
to that segment and by allocating indirect costs on the basis of Corporate resources (personnel, space used,
etc.) absorbed by the operating segments.

Group operating activities are organised and managed separately according. to’the nature of the products
and services provided: each segment offers different products-arnd services to different markets.
Sales of goods and services are analysed geographically on the basis of the location of the registered office
of the company that issues the invoices, regardless of the/ geographic destination of the products sold.
This type of presentation does not produce significantly different results from analysing sales of goods and
services by destination of the products sold. All transfer prices-are set using the same conditions applied to
other transactions between Group companies and ‘are-generally determined by applying a mark-up to
production costs.

Assets and liabilities by operating segment are not includad in the data reviewed by management and so, as
permitted by IFRS 8, this information is not presentad-in the current report.
It should be noted that the previously /pubiished comparative figures have been restated to reflect the

redefinition of the operating segments/descrioed-above.

G.1 OPERATING SEGMENTS

The following tables present iafermaiion by operating segment.
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2018 (*)
Projects Energy Telecom | Corporate |  Group
E&l | Industrial . Other Total -
& NWC Energy
Sales @ 1,689 | 4,636 2,103 236 6,975
Adjusted EBITDA before share of net
profit/(lo_ss) of equity-accounted 159 168 150 2 316
companies
% of sales 9.4% | 3.6% 7.1% 4.5%
Adjusted EBITDA (A) 159 171 151 2) 320
% of sales 9.4% | 3.7% 7.2% 4.6%
EBITDA (B) 79 121 130 ) 249
% of sales 47% ; 2.6% 6.2% 3.6%
Amortisation and depreciation (C) (54) (86) (38) 2) (1256)
Adjusted operating income (A+C) 105 85 113 (4) ¢94 .....
% of sales 6.2% i 1.8% 5.4% 5:"8% 15.9% 5.3%
Fair value change in metal derivatives (D) (48)
Fair value stock options (E) (6)
e 0 | o
Operating income (B+C+D+E+F) 310
% of sales 3.0%
Finance income 302
Finance costs (414)
Taxes (68)
Net profit/(loss) for the year 130
% of sales 1.3%
Attributable to:
Owners of the parent ; 130
Non-controlling interests -
RECONCILIATION BETWEEN EBITDA AND ADJIJSTED EBITDA
EBITDA (A) A8/ 121 130 2 249 306 (38) 596
Adjustments:
Company reorganisation 70 29 16 _ 45 ) 3 66
of which General Cable integration
COStS e L 9 21 9 - 30 7 3 49
Non-recurring expenses/(income): 69 R _ _ R _ _ 69
of which Antitrust 69 - - - - - - 69
Other non-operating expens?_s/(incga‘.e) 1 21 5 _ 26 (30) 35 32
of which General Cable acquisition-
relatedcosts |\ - - - - - - 4 4
of which General Cable integration
COStS oL = = = = = = 31 31
of which release of General Cable
inventory step-up.® 1 8 4 - 12 3 - 16
of which income from-YGOFC listing - - R R - (36) - (36)
Total adjus;__rnents B) 80 50 21 R 71 (22) 38 167
Adjusted EBITDA (A+8) 159 171 151 @) 320 284 - 763

@ sales of the operating segments and business areas are reported net of intercompany transactions and net of transactions
between operating segments, consistent with the presentation adopted in the regularly reviewed reports.

@ Reflects the higher cost of using finished goods and raw materials measured at General Cable’s acquisition-date fair value.

O The results of General Cable have been consolidated for the period 1 June - 31 December 2018.
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(in millions of Euro)

2017 (%)
Projects Energy Telecom : Corporate Group
E&| . Industrial | Other Total ol
& NWC Energy
Sales @ 1,533 | 3,271 1,693 149 5,113 1,258 7,904
Adjusted EBITDA before share of net
profit/(lo_ss) of equity-accounted 277 128 113 1) 240 177 - 694
companies :
% of sales 18.0% | 3.9% 6.7%
Adjusted EBITDA (A) 278 130 115 (1)
% of sales 18.0% | 4.0% 6.8%
EBITDA (B) 258 116 107 ()
% of sales 16.6% | 3.6% 6.3%
Amortisation and depreciation (C) (50) (57) 27) 2)
Adjusted operating income (A+C) 228 73 88 3)
% of sales 14.7% : 2.2% 5.2%
Fair value change in metal derivatives (D) _
Fair value stock options (E) f (49)
A A . ¥ NN N 7/ ) | @
Operating income (B+C+D+E+F) 424
% of sales 5.4%
X 250
Finance costs _ (349)
Taxes ' (88)
Net profit/(loss) o 237
%ofsales 3.0%
Attributable to:
Owners of the parent : 241
Non-controlling interests 4)
RECONCILIATION BETWEEN EBITDA AND ADJ USTED EBI!TDA
EBITDA(A) A 258 116 107 (2) 221 206 (25) 660
Adjustments: /
Company reorganisation 1 : 10 9 1 20 6 3 30
Non-recurring expenses/(income) 18 R _ _ R _ _ 18
T S NN . _ - - _ - - .
Other non-operating expenses/(income) | 1 4 (1) _ 3 2 22 28
of which General Cable acquisition-
relatedcosts -~ - - - - - - 16 16
Total adjustments (B) 20 14 8 1 23 8 25 76
Adjusted EBITDA (A+B) . - 278 | 130 us | (1) 244 214 - 736

@ sales of the operating segments and business areas are reported net of intercompany transactions and net of transactions between
operating segments, consistent with the presentation adopted in the regularly reviewed reports.

(*) The previously-nublisived prior year consolidated financial statements have been restated following the adoption of IFRS 15 and
IFRS 9.Further details can be found in Section C. Restatement of comparative figures.
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G.2 GEOGRAPHICAL AREAS

The following table presents sales of goods and services by geographical area.

(in millions of Euro)

2018 (**) 2017 (¥

Sales of goods and services

EMEA*

(of which ltaly)

North America IIIII 2,457 1,179
Latin America v/ 9 w2
Pt ................. oo oo

*EMEA: Europe, Middle East and Africa.

** The results of General Cable have been consolidated for the period 1 Jurie - 31 -December 2018.

** The previously published prior year consolidated financial statements have been restated following the adoption of IFRS 15 and
IFRS 9.Further details can be found in Section C. Restatement of comparative iigures.

No individual customer accounted for more than 10% of the Group's total sales in either 2018 or 2017.

191



1. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

PRYSMIAN GROUP | EXPLANATORY NOTES

Details of this line item and related movements are as follows:

(in millions of Euro)

Land : Buildings: Plantand: Equipment Other assets Assets under Total
machinery construction
and advances .
Balance at 31 December 2017 232 528 576 42 61 207 1,646
Movementsin2018: L e
- Business combinations 71 195 601 3 3 oo 17 890
- Investments 1 13 32 6 6 209 267
- Disposals - - 1) - - - (1)
- Depreciation - (34) (109) (12) - (168)
- Impairment (3) (1) (1) - - (5)
;1 ypZ’?nr;lzttéil(r))r/] revaluation for 5 5 5 4N 2 8
dlf(:fg:;enr::(;ys translation @) o 4 1 @ o @)
st T NI B - - .
- Other ) 21 87 6 (122) -
Total movements 62 193 615 - 105 983
Balance at 31 December 2018 294 721 1,191 61 312 2,629
Of which:
- Historical cost 301 1,035 2,080 14 150 315 4,023
i- n,;\[;:;il:mg:ﬁted depreciation and @) (314) (889) ©2) (89) 3) (1,394)
Net book value 294 721 1,191 . 50 61 312 2,629
(in millions of Euro)
Land : Buildings | Plantand | Equipment Other assets Assets under Total
meachinery construction
: and advances
Balance at 31 December 2016 239 533 573 39 64 183 1,631
Movements in 2017:
- Investments 49 3 4 165 237
- Disposals 1) - - - )
- Depreciation (80) (11) (11) - (132)
- Impairment (15) - - - (22)
;' n‘Cf::g::%ys translation @7) @) o 1) (66)
- Other 77 14 5 (130) -
Total movements 4 3 (4) 22 15
Balance at 31 December 2017 576 42 61 207 1,646
Of Wthh .........
- HIStOI’Ica| COSt ................................................ 1'413 126 146 210 2'951
- Accumulated de| iati Y
impaiment preciation arid \©) (290) (837) (84) (85) @3) (1,305)
Net book value 232 528 576 42 61 207 1,646
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"Business combinations" at 31 December 2018 refer to the General Cable acquisition, details of which can
be found in Section F. Business Combinations.
In 2018, gross capital expenditure on property, plant and equipment came to Euro 267 million.

Such expenditure during the course of 2018 referred to:

e Projects to increase and technologically upgrade production capacity and -develcp new
products/markets: Euro 163 million (61% of the total). Within the Projects operating seanmient, the most
significant investment was the advance payment for the construction of a new cable-laying vessel, for a
total estimated cost in excess of Euro 170 million, of which Euro 31 million capitalised during the year.
This new vessel is intended to support long-term growth prospects in the ‘submarine cable business,
strengthening the Group's installation and execution capabilities for intercannéction and offshore wind
projects. The new cable-laying vessel is scheduled to enter into operation-iii-2021.

Still within the Projects segment, during 2018 work was completed-on upgrading the Yixing factory
(previously owned by ShenHuan Cable Technologies), forming part-of the High Voltage business, to
comply with the Group's procedures in order to offer customers every available high-voltage cable
technology by creating a centre of excellence in China serving the entire Far East region. The High
Voltage business also saw investments to boost productiori capacity at the Montereau plant in France
for cables up to 2 km long in order to meet ever growing demand for long-distance direct current power
lines.
Global investments in the Energy segment were able tc fulfii growing demand in certain value-added
sectors. In China, the investment to increase productioir-capacity for Trade & Installer, Rolling Stock
and Automotive cables was completed at the Suzhou plant. The entire Far East region received great
attention in general, with completion of an additionai-catenary line for medium voltage cable extrusion in
Indonesia, which has already started to produce for the local and export markets. In fact, these
investments aim to make sure the Group is ready to exploit the growth opportunities presented by this
region in every area of its business./Lastly, it was decided to make the most of the opportunities arising
from the General Cable acquisition, £y investing in increased production capacity at medium voltage
plants in the United States (mainly in-Maishall, Texas) to serve a business displaying strong growth on
the back of a healthy US econamy..Capex by the subsidiary Oman Cables Industry was concentrated
mainly in the low and medium-voltage cables business, serving both local utilities and the large
engineering procurement and construction companies active in the Arabian Peninsula.
In the Telecom operating segiment, the investments started in 2017 to create a verticalised production
platform were almost cornpleted at the optical fibre plant in Claremont, North Carolina, which also
increased its spiniing-capacity to satisfy fibore demand for optical cable manufacturing purposes. For
the same reason, the Group is also boosting ribbon cable production capacity at the plant in Lexington,
South Carglina, also in the wake of a major supply agreement with US telecom customers to support
expansion of the telecom carrier's optical network that will promote development of 5G services, while
improving.the 4G LTE capacity of the broadband network. Confirming its role as a centre of excellence
in the United States for the production of optical cables for the Telecom segment, Lexington is also
benefiting from a new series of investments to produce cables with a new state-of-the-art technology
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called FlexRibbon that compacts the maximum fibre count into the smallest cable possible by using
extremely flexible fibre ribbons that can be rolled up for high packing densities or laid flat for ribbon
splicing.

Apart from the USA, other investment projects were commenced in Europe, at the plants-in-Douvrin
(France) and Battipaglia (Italy), with the purpose of developing single-mode fibre production, serving
the continent's optical telecom cables market. Both projects are due to be completed in the first half of
2020. In Europe, optical fibre production has been accompanied by growth in the -optical cable
business, and in particular at the Slatina plant, where the second phase of the projectic-exnand optical
telecom cable production capacity is reaching completion.

Multiple projects to improve industrial efficiency and rationalise production capacity:-Euro 54 million (20%
of the total). The Group has continued to invest in cost optimisation throughaut the Telecom segment's
production chain. In particular, the European optical fibre manufacturing facilities in Battipaglia (Italy) and
Douvrin (France) carried on investing in measures to boost efficiency hy significantly reducing fibre
manufacturing costs, with particular attention to increased preform size, tie length of production batches
and spinning speed.

The project to create a new Centre of Excellence for South America in Brazil, within the existing facility
in Sorocaba (Sdo Paulo), is reaching completion: this<centre will house all of the production unit
currently located in Santo André (S&o Paulo) and will be one of the Group's most modern complexes in
the world. This project confirms the Group's confiderice in the potential of this country, where it has
been present for nearly 100 years, while ensuring-its-readiness for recovery of the energy and telecom
markets in Brazil and South America.

Structural work: Euro 50 million (19% of the total). A large part of this expenditure related to continued

activities to remove all asbestos from the Group's faciiities around the world.

There are Euro 4.4 million in liens on machinery as security against long-term loans (Euro 3 million at 31
December 2017).

During the reporting period just ended, the Prysmian Group reviewed whether there was any evidence that

its CGUs might be impaired, and then tested for impairment those CGUs potentially at "risk".

Such impairment testing has not resulted in the recognition of any impairment.

The Group has nonetheless recogrised impairment against other assets which, although belonging to larger

CGUs for which there /was nro specific evidence of impairment, presented evidence of impairment due to

particular market circumstances. This has led to the recognition of Euro 5 million in impairment losses in

2018, mainly to write down the site in Delfzijl (Netherlands).

"Buildings" include assets under finance lease with a net book value of Euro 18 million at 31 December 2018

(Euro 20 milion_at 31 December 2017). The maturity dates of finance leases are reported in Note 12.

Borrowings from banks and other lenders; such leases generally include purchase options.
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2. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Details of this line item and related movements are as follows:

(in millions of Euro)

Patents : Concessions, | Goodwill : Software : Other intangible Intarnigibl
licences, assets progress and
trademarks advances
and similar
rights |

Balance at 31 December 2017 7 27 438 31 216 16 735
Movements in 2018:
- Business combinations - 88 1,084 - /23 - 1,407
- Investments - - - 14 18
- Amortisation 3) (20) - - (59)
-Currency translation differences 1 2 19 1 31
- Other 1 6 - (112) -
Total movements (1) 86 1,103 4 1,397
Balance at 31 December 2018 6 113 1,541 20 2,132
Of which:
- Historical cost 59 185 1561; 1 41 2,567
;mAF)c;?:Jnr:\elﬁ?ted amortisation and (53) (72) 20) (20) (189) 1) (435)
Net book value 6 113 1541 . 35 417 20 2,132
(in millions of Euro) N

Patents Concessions, Goodwitt Software Other Intangibles in Total

licences, intangible progress and
trademarks assets advances
and similar 3
rights.

Balance at 31 December 2016 9 35 448 31 256 13 792
Movements 2017:
- Investments i - - 1 7 11 20
- Disposals - = - - - 1) 1)
- Amortisation @ 5y 4 (7 (29) - (45)
172 N S 1| e
- Other 2 1 - 6 1 8) -
Total movements @ . /6 (10) : (40) 3 (67
Balance at 31 December 2017 7 27 438 31 216 16 735
Of which:
- Historical cost : 89 458 102 368 37 ¢ 1,111
- Accumulated amortisation and _
impairment m) (62) (20) (71) (152) (21) i (331)
Net book value [~ 7 27 438 31 216 16 735

The amount of "Business cambinations” at 31 December 2018 refers to the General Cable acquisition,
details of which can be ieund.in Section F. Business Combinations.

In 2018, gross capital expenditure on intangible assets came to Euro 18 million, most of which attributable to
ongoing enhancement /of information systems and research and development. A large part of the
expenditure went on developing the Group's information systems and on "Digital Transformation" projects.
Work continued in, 2018 on completing the "SAP Consolidation (1C)" program, based on the innovative SAP
HANA infrastructure and intended to standardise back office processes, involving the platform's roll-out to

China, APAC and part of the United States. In addition, a project was started in Slatina to develop Fasttrack,

195



PRYSMIAN GROUP | EXPLANATORY NOTES

the Group's first Global Manufacturing Execution System, with the aim of boosting the efficiency and efficacy
of industrial processes and of improving customer service, by ensuring complete traceability of the
components used in the production cycles. During the year a project got underway to upgrade the Greup's
wide area network, due to be completed in 2019, by significantly boosting capacity and improving the

performance of inter-office communication infrastructure.

As at 31 December 2018, the Prysmian Group had capitalised Euro 1,540 million in Goodwiii;-of which Euro
1,084 million for the General Cable acquisition, details of which can be found in-Secticn F. Business

Combinations.

As described in Note 1. Property, plant and equipment, at 31 December 2018 the Prysmian Group has
reviewed whether there was any evidence that its CGUs might be impaired; and has then tested for

impairment those CGUs potentially at "risk".

Goodwill impairment test

As reported earlier in note B.8 Impairment of property, plant and eguipment and finite-life intangible assets,
the Group's activities are organised in three operating segments: Rrojects, Energy and Telecom. The
Projects segment consists of the High Voltage, Submarine Power, Submarine Telecom and Offshore
Specialties CGUs; the Energy segment consists of a riumher-of CGUs corresponding to the Regions or
Countries in keeping with the new organisation struciure; lastly, the Telecom segment consists of a single
CGU that coincides with the operating segment itself. Goodwill, acquired on the occasion of business
combinations, has been allocated to groups of CGus, corresponding to the operating segments, which are
expected to benefit from the synergies of sucti-combinations and which represent the lowest level at which
management monitors business performance.

Goodwill has therefore been allocated to/each-of the operating segments: Projects, Energy and Telecom.

The following table reports the amount of goodwill allocated to each operating segment:

(in millions of Euro)

31 December | Reclassifications Additions Currency 31 December
2017 translation 2018
differences

Energy goodwill _ 23 728 14 1,023
OIL & GAS goodwill 23 (23) -
Projects goodwill 71 156 2 229
Telecom goodwill 86 200 3 289
Total goodwill 438 - 1,084 19 1,541

The cash flow projection has been determined, for 2019, using the post-tax cash flow derived from the
Group's 2015 budget,-approved by the Board of Directors on 19 February 2019 and taking account of
subsequent effects of the Western Link contract. The operating segment cash flow forecasts have been
extended to the/period 2020-2021 assuming expected annual growth rates of between 2.0% and 2.2%
(consistent with the growth rates of the countries concerned). A terminal value has been estimated to reflect

operating segment value after this period; this value has been determined assuming a 2% perpetuity growth
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rate, considered prudent compared with growth rates observed around the world. The rate used to discount
cash flows has been determined on the basis of market information about the cost of money and asset-
specific risks (Weighted Average Cost of Capital, WACC). The outcome of the test has shown that the
recoverable amount of the individual operating segments is higher than their net invested capital-{inciuding
the allocation of goodwill). In particular, recoverable amount is significantly above carrying amiount for the
Projects operating segment (270%), and higher for both the Energy operating segment.(52%) and the
Telecom operating segment (124%).

The WACC used for the Projects operating segment was 7.3% while the theoreticai WACC, making
recoverable amount equal to carrying amount, would be 25.1%. In the case of the Energy segment, the
WACC used was 6.6% while the theoretical WACC, making recoverable amount equal ta.carrying amount,
would be 8.92%. In the case of the Telecom segment, the WACC used was 6.7% while the theoretical

WACC, making recoverable amount equal to carrying amount, would be 12.4%.

In the case of growth rates, for recoverable amount to be equal to carrying amount, the growth rate would

have to be negative for all segments.

3. EQUITY-ACCOUNTED INVESTMENTS

These are detailed as follows:

(in millions of Euro)

31 December 2018 31 December 2017
Investments in associates 289 212
Investments in joint ventures S 5 5
Total equity-accounted investments 294 217

Movements over the period are as follows:

(in millions of Euro)

31 December 2018

Investmen_ts in Irjv_estments in Total
........................................... associates joint ventures

Opening balance 212 5 217
S N

- Currency translation differences - ) - 2)

e : - -

- Share of net profit/(loss) - 59 - 59

N ) : o)

- Other movements | | 36 - 36

Total movements 77 - 77

...... c Iosmgbala]r,e - . v
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31 December 2017

Investmen_ts in Ir_1v_estments in Total
associates jointventures :
Opening balance 191 4 195
ovomae T T R O
-~ Business combinations - RS\ N =
" Currency translation differences TS A R\ (11) ......
- Investments - 1
- Share of net profit/(loss) 41 42
- Dividends 9) (10)
Total movements 2 /) 22
Closing balance T o

Detalls of investments in equity-accounted companies are as follows:

(in millions of Euro)

31 Decemter 2018 31 December 2017
Yangtze Optical Fibre and Cable Joint Stock Limited Company ~ // 246 168
Yangtze Optical Fibre & Cable (Shanghai) Co. Ltd. 26 26
Kabelrommel Gmbh & Co.K.G. 6 6
O . ;
Rodcold. I 2 2
S N R R
Total investments in associates 289 212
Precision Fibre Optics Ltd. - -
Power Cables Malaysia Sdn Bhd
Total investments in joint ventures 5 5
Total investments in equity-accounted companies 294 217

The value of investments includes Euro 59 miiiion

companies .

Investments in associates

for the share of net profit (loss) of equity-accounted

Information about the nature oi the main investments in associates:

Company name Registered office % owned
..... China 23.73%

China 44.78%

Kabeltrommel Gmbh";i Co.K.g. Germany 43.18%
Ekatld. Russia 40.00%

Yangtze Optical Fibre and Cable Joint Stock Limited Company is a Chinese company formed in 1988 whose

main shareholdei's are: China Huaxin Post and Telecommunication Economy Development Center, Wuhan

Yangtze Communications Industry Group Company Ltd. and Prysmian Group. The company is one of the
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industry's most important manufacturers of optical fibre and cables. Its products and solutions are sold in
more than 50 countries, including the United States, Japan, the Middle East and Africa.

The company was listed on the Main Board of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange in December 2014-and in
July 2018 it was also listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange.

The Shanghai listing has increased the number of shares from a previous total of 682,114,598 to
757,905,108. Since Draka Comteq B.V. has kept its holding (of 179,827,794 shares) uncharigeu;-its stake in
this company has gone from 26.37% to 23.73%. The Group recorded a gain of Euro 36 miiiion-in the third

quarter of 2018 due to this share dilution.

At 31 December 2018, the fair value of the investment in Yangtze Optical Fibre and Cable Joint Stock
Limited Company was Euro 429 million (based on the price quoted on the Horig Kong market), compared

with a carrying amount of Euro 246 million.

Yangtze Optical Fibre & Cable (Shanghai) Co. Ltd, formed in 2002 and based‘in Shanghai (China), is an
associated company, 25% of whose share capital is held by Prysmian‘Group and 75% by Yangtze Optical
Fibre and Cable Joint Stock Limited Company. The company specialises’in the manufacture and sale of
optical fibre and cables, offering a wide range of optical fibre-cables-and accessories, services and FTTx

solutions.

Kabeltrommel Gmbh & Co. K.G. is a German company that heads a consortium for the production,
procurement, management and sale of disposable and reusable cable carrying devices (drums).
The services offered by the company include both the sale of cable drums, and the complete management of
logistics services such as drum shipping, ©andling -and subsequent retrieval. The company operates

primarily in the German market.

Elkat Ltd. is based in Russia and manufactures and sells copper conductors; it is the only company certified

by the LME to test copper cathodes tor the iocal market.
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The following table reports key financial figures for the principal investments in associates:

(in millions of Euro)

Kabeltrommel Gmbh & Yangtze Optical Fibre Elkat Ltd. Yangtze Optiéf"éL! Fibre &
Co.K.G. and Cable Joint Stock Cable (Shanghai) Ca.
Limited Company Lid
31 31 30 31 31 31
December | December | September = December | December | December
2018 2017 2018 (%) 2017 2018 2017
Non-current assets n.a 9 606 505 n.a 5
Current assets n.a 20 1,026 670 n.a 17
Total assets n.a 29 1,632 1,175 n.a 22 79 72
Equity n.a 11 1,068 703 n.a 21 43 40
e e i e R W
|Iab||lt|es n.a 1 170 94 n.a ..................... ) 4 4
Current liabilities n.a 17 394 378 n.a 1 32 28
Total equity and n.a 29 1,632 1,175 79 72
liabilities
2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017
Sales of goods and na 35 1,096 1,359 122 112
SerVIceS .................
Net profi(loss) for na 7 159 162 " 1 5 5
(LIS N N N S N N S
Comprehensive
income/(loss) for the n.a 7 152 159 4 n.a 1 5 5
year NN
Dividends received 3 3 12 n.a - 1 -

O The figures for Yangtze Optical Fibre and Cable Joint Stock Limited Comipany;.a.company listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange,
refer to its latest published financial results for the first nine months o7 2018:

Investments in joint ventures

Information about the nature of the main investments in.jeint ventures:

Company name Registered office % owned
Power Cables Malaysia Sdn Bhd Malaysia 40.00%
Precision Fiber Optics Ltd Japan 50.00%

Power Cables Malaysia Sdn Bhd-is 4 joint venture based in Malaysia between Prysmian Group and
Lembaga Tabung Angkatan-Teniera (LTAT), a Malaysian government retirement benefits fund. The
company manufactures and sells power cables and conductors and is mainly specialised in high voltage
products.

Precision Fiber Optics Ltd.; vased in Japan, manufactures and sells optical fibre cables in the local market.
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The following table reports key financial figures for the investments in joint ventures:

(in millions of Euro)

Power Cables Malaysia Sdn Bhd

Precision Fiber Optics Lta.

31 December 2018 | 31 December 2017 : 31 December 2018 31 Decembei. 2017
Non-current assets 11 10 - -
Current assets 15 15 1
of which Cash and cash equivalents 4 2 1
Equity 12 11 1.
Non-current liabilities 2 2 SN\ -
of which Financial liabilities - - R -
Current liabilities 12 13 - -
of which Financial liabilities 3 4
2018 2017
Sales of goods and services 31 42 1 2
Amortisation, depreciation and impairment (1) v - -
Profit/(loss) before taxes 1 2 —\ - -
Taxes : M)/ : :
Net profit(loss) for the year 1 2. NN/ : :
Other comprehensive income - - - -
Comprehensive income/(loss) for the year 1 - -
Dividends received i N4 - -

4. OTHER
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

These are detailed as follows:

(in millions of Euro)

INVESTMENTS AND

FINANCIAL ASSETS

AT FAIR VALUE

THROUGH OTHER

31 December 2018

31 December 2017

Other investments at fair value through other comprehensive incenie - non

13 12
Current ........
Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive incorne - current 10 11
Total 23 23

Other investments at fair value throcugh’ other’ comprehensive income report shareholdings considered

instrumental to the Group's business that are rnot intended for sale in the near term.

Financial assets at fair value tiirough. other comprehensive income (current) report securities that either

mature within 12 months of the repariing date or could possibly be sold in the near term.

Other investments at fairvalue through other comprehensive income are analysed as follows:

(in millions of Euro)

Type of financial asset % owned by 31 December 31 December

the Group 2018 2017

Ravin Cables Limiteq: """"""" unlisted shares 51% 9.00 9.00
Tunisie CablesS.A.\ ./ unlisted shares 7.55% 0.91 0.91
Cesi Motta S.pA. unlisted shares 6.48% 0.59 0.59
Voltimum S.A/ unlisted shares 13.71% 0.27 0.27
Other ............................ 1'81 1'73
Total non-currerit 12.58 12.50
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Other investments and financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income are denominated

in the following currencies:

(in millions of Euro)

31 December 2018

Euro 13
Tunisian Dinar 1
Indian Rupee 9
Total 23

Other investments at fair value through other comprehensive income are classified in Levei 3-oi the fair value
hierarchy, while financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income-fall under Level 1 of the
fair value hierarchy.

5. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

These are detailed as follows:

(in millions of Euro)

31 December 2018

Non-current Current Total
Trade receivables Lo N 1,723 1,723
Allowance for doubtful accounts o = (88) (88)
Total trade receivables - 1,635 1,635
Other receivables:
Taxreceivables /- 6 155 161
Financial receivables o 2 7 9
Prepaid finance costs - - 1
Receivables from employees 2 2 4
Pension plan receivables /) /> - 1
Construction contracts ./ - 362 362
A W4 " s >
TN 0 e s
O - oo coo
RN - > 501 50
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31 December 2017 (*)

Non-current Current Total
Trade receivables - 1,196 ;19’3
Allowance for doubtful accounts - 65 (65)
ol e e : RO 1131
T Ry
o receabios 5 PSS\ 113
Financial receivables 2 7
repaid fivance sosts . N~ 3
Receivables from employees 1 2 3
bension plan receivables B EE—— s - .
Construction contracts I IR 186 186
Advances © supplors : 15 -
Other 1 91 102
e SR\ i1s e
Total 18 1,550 1,568

(*) The previously published prior year consolidated financial statements have beeri-restated following the
IFRS 9. Further details can be found in Section C. Restatement of comparative fiqures.

Trade receivables
The increase of Euro 504 million in trade receivables mostly
Cable.

adoption of IFRS 15 and

refers to the first-time consolidation of General

The gross amount of past due receivables that are totally or partially impaired is Euro 308 million at 31

December 2018 (Euro 196 million at 31 Deceimber 2017).

The ageing of past due impaired receivables is a3 follows:

(in millions of Euro)

""""""""" 31 December 2018 31 December 2017
T o %
o0 ds e NN 5 s
91to 180 days pastdue | 33 17
N o 5
More than 365 days past due 43 48
Total - 308 196

The value of trade receivables past due but not impaired is Euro 141 million at 31 December 2018 (Euro 113

million at 31 December 2017). These receivables mainly relate to customers in the Projects operating

segment, which, given the nature of the counterparties, are not considered necessary to impair.
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The ageing of receivables that are past due but not impaired is as follows:

(in millions of Euro)

31 December 2018 31 Decemher 2017
1 to 30 days past due p 20
31 to 90 days past due TN . ;
91 to 180 days past due AP\ A 8
181 to 365 days past due o 32

More than 365 days past due

Total 113

The value of trade receivables not past due is Euro 1,274 million at 31 December2018 (Euro 887 million at
31 December 2017). There are no particular problems with the quality of these receivables and there are no

material amounts that would otherwise be past due if their original due dates had not been renegotiated.

The following table breaks down trade and other receivables according to the currency in which they are

expressed:

(in millions of Euro)

31 December 2018 31 December 2017 (*)
e N 055 o2
US Dollar 533 268
Omani Rial 143 137
Chinese Renminbi (Yuan) 129 109
BraziianReal o 108 80
Indonesian Rupiah 72 49
British Pound 48 96
Canadian Dollar /o 59 12
N A/ - .
T NN\ - 2
Australian Dollar 20 22
O s o
NN - i
Chilean Peso | 15 -
o T N : s
Other currencies " 103 76
Total - 2,334 1,568

(*) The previously published prior year consolidated financial statements have been restated following the adoption of IFRS 15 and
IFRS 9. Further detalls can be found in Section C. Restatement of comparative figures.
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The allowance for doubtful accounts amounts to Euro 88 million at 31 December 2018 (Euro 65 million at 31

December 2017). Movements in this allowance are shown in the following table:

(in millions of Euro)

31 Becerber 3618 T
Opening balance o e
Movements: e R

- Business combinations PSS :

- Increases in allowance o S— .
_Releases gy 2
_Bad debt write-ofts e 0

- Currency translation differences and other movements @)
Total movements | :
Closing balance a8 o

Increases in and releases from the allowance for doubtful accounts are i€ported in "Other expenses" in the

income statement.

Other receivables

Other receivables include "Prepaid finance costs" of Euro,1 miilicn at 31 December 2018, primarily relating to
arrangement costs for the Syndicated Revolving Credit Facility-2014 agreed with a syndicate of leading
banks on 27 June 2014,

At 31 December 2017, the corresponding figure for prepaid finance costs of this Revolving Credit Facility

was Euro 3 million.
"Contract work in progress" represents the-vaiue of contracts in progress, determined as the difference
between the costs incurred plus the related proiit margin, net of recognised losses, and the amount invoiced

by the Group.

The following table shows how these amounts are reported between assets and liabilities:

(in millions of Euro)

"""" 31 December 2018 31 December 2017 (*)
Construction contract reveriue to date, | 9,186 7,347
Amounts invoiced (9,046) (7,255)
Net amount due from/(to) customers for construction contracts 139 92
Of which: |
Other receivables for construction contracts 362 215
Other payabies for construction contracts (223) (123)

(*) The previousiy. published prior year consolidated financial statements have been restated following the adoption of IFRS 15 and
IFRS 9. Further detaiis’can be found in Section C. Restatement of comparative figures.
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The following table shows the revenue recognised and costs incurred in 2018 and 2017:

(in millions of Euro)

2018 2017 (%)

Revenue 249 1,254

Costs (1,093) (1,029)

Gross margin 156 225

6. INVENTORIES

These are detailed as follows:

(in millions of Euro)

31 December 2018 31 December 2017

Raw materials 284
of which allowance for obsolete and slow-moving raw materials (33)
Work in progress and semi-finished goods 230
of which allowance for obsolete and slow-moving work in progress and semi- /. - (13) ®)
fINISNEA GOOAS | e
Finished goods (*) 717 440
of which allowance for obsolete and slow-moving finished goods (67) (50)
Total 1,515 954
® Finished goods also include goods for resale.
The increase in inventories since the previous year-is principally due to the acquisition of General Cable.
7. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS
These are detailed as follows:
(inmillions OF BUr0) e S

31 December 2018 31 December 2017
Listed securities 19 40
Unlisted securities 6 -
Total 25 40

Financial assets at fair/value {inrough profit or loss basically refer to units in funds that mainly invest in short
and medium-term government securities. These assets are mostly held by subsidiaries in Brazil and

Argentina which/irivest temporarily available liquidity in such funds.
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31 December 2017

31 December 2018

Opening balance 20 o
Movements:

- Currency tl’anslation differenCeS (5) (8) ______
- Purchase of securities AN O 2 ______
 Disposal of securities RSN\ ( 11) ......
- Other movements ) -
otal Tavemmente. e e T/ (17) ......
Closing balance o

8. DERIVATIVES

These are detailed as follows:

(in millions of Euro)

31 December 2018

Asset Liability
Non-current A
Interest rate derivatives (cash flow hedges) . - 8
Total hedging derivatives e - 8
Metal derivatives 2 -
> , :
Total non-current 2 8
Current
Interest rate derivatives (cash flow hedges) <o - 6
Forward currency contracts on commercial transactions (cash...%.i;s\.w hedges) 3 10
Total hedging derivatives 5 > 3 16
Forward currency contracts on commercial transac;ions ........ 4 8
Forward currency contracts on financial transac.ﬁ.ons ...................... 2 2
R N WV, 0 s
Total other derivatives 16 25
AN . "
A NN o o
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(in millions of Euro)

31 December 2017

Asset Liability

Non-current

Forward currency contracts on commercial transactions (cash flow hedges)

Total hedging derivatives

Metal derivatives

Total other derivatives

Total non-current 1a 5
A \V7Z B
Zero cost collar on General Cable acquisition (cash flow hedges) /0 \ 17
Forward currency contracts on commercial transactions (cash flow hedges) . /- 7 3
Total hedging derivatives . ”
Forward currency contracts on commercial transactions /o 2 3
Forward currency contracts on financial transactions 1 s
T RN - o
Total other derivatives ) 38 1
e R - .
A - >

Forward currency contracts have a notional value of Euro 1,787 miiliion at 31 December 2018 (Euro 1,461
million at 31 December 2017); total notional value at 31 December 2018 includes Euro 438 million in
derivatives designated as cash flow hedges (Euro 543 millicn-at 31 December 2017).

Interest rate derivatives designated as cash flow heciges refer to:

e interest rate swaps, for an overall notional value of Euro 1,000 million, with the objective of hedging
variable rate interest rate flows for the period 2018-2023 on financing contracted by the Group to
acquire General Cable;

e interest rate swaps, for an overall notichal value of Euro 300 million, with the objective of hedging
variable rate interest rate flows for the period 2018-2020 on financing contracted by the Group to
acquire General Cable;

e interest rate swaps for an-overall notional value of Euro 110 million, with the objective of hedging

variable interest rate {lows aver the period 2018-2024 on an existing loan.

At 31 December 2018, like at.31-December 2017, almost all the derivative contracts had been entered into

with major financial insfitutions.

Metal derivatives have a\ notional value of Euro 691 million at 31 December 2018 (Euro 566 million at 31
December 2017).

The following-tables show the impact of offsetting assets and liabilities for derivative instruments, done on
the basis of master netting arrangements (ISDA and similar agreements). They also show the effect of

potential offsetting in the event of currently unforeseen default events:
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(in millions of Euro)

31 December 2018

Gross | Amounts offset Derivatives Amounts not | Net
derivatives recognised in offset ™ derivaiives
statement of
financial
position |
Assets
Forward currency contracts 9 - 9

Interest rate derivatives - - -

Metal derivatives 12 - 12

Total assets 21 - 21

Liabilities

Forward currency contracts 20 - 20 ..................... @) 13
Interest rate derivatives 14 - 14 - 14
el dorvties e S FAN 5 0
Total liabilities 49 NN a8 /) (12) 37

(in millions of Euro)

31 December 2017

Gross | Amounts offéet Derivatives Amounts not Net
derivatives recognised in offset @ derivatives

statement of

financial

_____ position

Assets

Forward currency contracts 16 - 16 (6) 10
Interest rate derivatives - - - - -

Metal derivatives 43 - 43 (20) 33
Total assets 59 N - 59 (16) 43
Liabilites

Forward currency contracts /) 3 - 24 (6) 18
Interest rate derivatives - - - -
Metal derivatives - 13 (20) 3
Total liabilities - 37 (16) 21

® Derivatives potentially offsettable in the event of default events under master netting arrangements.

The following table shows-movements in both reporting periods in the cash flow hedge reserve for

designated hedging deivaiives:
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(in millions of Euro)

2018 2017(*)
Gross reserve Tax effect Gross reserve Tax effect
Opening balance © , ey E— 7
Changes in fair value (10) 3 18 @
Reserve for ofher finance costs/(income) & : RN
Reserve for exchange losses/(gains) - i NN S
Reclassification - - - -
Release to finance costs/(income) - - 1 -
Discontinued hedge accounting for nterest rate swaps : N R ——
Release to construction contract costs/(revenues) 1) SN\ (8) 2
Closing balance 20 77 © )

(*) The previously published prior year consolidated financial statements have been restatec following the adoption of IFRS 15 and

IFRS 9. Further details can be found in Section C. Restatement of comparative figures.

9. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

These are detailed as follows:

(in millions of Euro)

31 December 2018

31 December 2017

Cash and cheques - 2
Bank and postal deposits 1,001 1,333
Total 1,001 1,335

Cash and cash equivalents, deposited with major-financial institutions, are managed centrally through the

Group's treasury company and in its various-operating units.

Cash and cash equivalents managed hy the Group's treasury company amount to Euro 630 million at 31

December 2018, compared with Eure 1,086 million at 31 December 2017.

The change in cash and cash equivalents is commented on in Note 37. Statement of cash flows.
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10. ASSETS AND LIABILITIES HELD FOR SALE

These are detailed as follows:

(in millions of Euro)

31 December 2018

Assets held for sale:

Lands 2
Buildings 1 »
Total 3 -

Movements in Assets held for sale are reported below:

(in millions of Euro)

31 December 2018 31 December 2017
Opening Balance Sl -
- Business combinations 3
- Disposals ; -
- Reclassificaton L ° .
Total movements 3 -
Closing balance 3 -

At 31 December 2018 assets held for sale primarily refer to the Delfzijl plant for which a potential buyer has
been identified and negotiations are at an advanced stage, meaning.that management expects to sell these
assets within the next 12 months.

The disposals of Euro 5 million refer to the Ascoli Picenc-site sold in July 2018 and to disposals of General
Cable assets, namely the site in Malvern (USA) and‘a piece of land in Brazil.

Assets held for sale are classified in Level 3 of the fairvalue hierarchy.
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11. SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES

Consolidated equity has recorded a positive change of Euro 807 million since 31 December 2017, miainly

reflecting the net effect of:

- negative currency translation differences of Euro 6 million;

- the negative post-tax change of Euro 10 million in the fair value of derivatives designated as cash flow
hedges;

- the positive change of Euro 6 million in the share-based compensation reserve iinked-to_stock option
plans;

- the distribution of Euro 105 million in dividends;

- anincrease of Euro 283 million following conversion of the Convertible Bond 2013;

- adecrease of Euro 2 million in the reserve for actuarial gains and losses’on employee benefits;

- areduction of Euro 1 million for the movement in other reserves due to-tire efiect of measuring financial
assets at fair value through other comprehensive income;

- the net profit for the year of Euro 130 million;

- anincrease of Euro 14 million for the effects of hyperinflatior;

- the addition of Euro 496 million from the capital increase;

- the increase of Euro 2 million in non-controlling interests arising from the acquisition of General Cable.

At 31 December 2018, the share capital of Prysmian S.p.A.-comprises 268,144,246 shares, each of nominal

value Euro 0.10 for a total of Euro 26,814,424.60.

Movements in the ordinary shares and treasury shares of Prysmian S.p.A. are reported in the following table:

""" Ordinary shares Treasury shares Total

Balance at 31 December 2016 LN 216,720,922 (2,618,317) 214,102,605
Capitalincrease @ 761,832 - 761,832
Share buybacks - (4,003,943) (4,003,943)
Ao TN - 5555 555
Balance at 31 December 2017 /. 7 217,482,754 (6,494,881) 210,987,873
. Ordinary shares Treasury shares Total

Balance at 31 December 2017 217,482,754 (6,494,881) 210,987,873
Capital increase @ 50,661,492 50,661,492
Allotments and sales ¥ 1,397,668 1,397,668
Balance at 31 December 2018 268,144,246 (5,097,213) 263,047,033

M ssue of new shares following partidi.conversion of the Convertible Bond 2013.

@ Allotment of 92,271 treasury shares under the Group employee share purchase plan (YES Plan) and sale of 35,108 shares.

® |ssue of new shares serving-the capital increase (32,652,314 shares), the conversion of the Convertible Bond 2013 (12,677,769
shares) and the long-term incentive plan (LTI Plan) for Group employees (5,331,409 shares).

@ Allotment of treasury-shares (o serve the long-term incentive plan (LTI Plan) for Group employees (1,278,001 shares) and the share

purchase plan/(¥ES-Pian) for Group employees (87,540 shares) and sale of 32,127 shares.
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Capital increase

On 12 April 2018, the shareholders of Prysmian S.p.A. approved a capital increase, in cash, for a maximum
amount of Euro 500,000,000.00, including any share premium, to be implemented by issuing ordinary shares
with normal dividend rights.

On 27 June 2018, the Board of Directors of Prysmian S.p.A. approved the final terms and conditions-of the
capital increase, approved by the Shareholders' Meeting on 12 April 2018. In particular, it was decided that
the capital increase would take place through the issue of up to 32,652,314 ordinary shares with a hominal
value of Euro 0.10 each, to be offered pre-emptively to all shareholders and holders of-the Company's
convertible bonds, namely the convertible bond known as "Prysmian S.p.A. €500,000,000 Zero Coupon
Linked Bonds due 2022", in the ratio of 2 new shares for every 15 option rights held, at.an issue price of
Euro 15.31 per new share, for a total amount of Euro 499,906,927.34, of which Eurc 496,641,695.94 by way
of share premium.

The rights offering of up to 32,652,314 new shares closed on 27 July 2018. During'the option rights offering
period (2 July 2018 - 19 July 2018, the "Option Period"), 239,533,800 ¢niionrights were exercised and
31,937,840 New Shares were subscribed, for an aggregate amourit of Euro 488,968,330.40. The 5,358,555
option rights not exercised during the Option Period were ther oifered on' the Italian Stock Exchange. All
these rights were sold by the end of the first trading sessich on 24 July 2018 and were subsequently
exercised, resulting in the issue of 714,474 new shares, with an aggregate value of Euro 10,938,596.94.
The offering therefore concluded with the complete subscrigtion of the 32,652,314 new shares with an
aggregate value of Euro 499,906,927.34.

The offering also involved the payment of Euro 8,753,836 In related expenses and the receipt of Euro
4,455,461 in unsubscribed cancelled rights.

Treasury shares
Movements in treasury shares during 2018 refer-to the allotment and sale of treasury shares serving the
long-term incentive plan and the empiayee share purchase plan.

The following table reports movements in treasury shares during the year:

Number of shares i Total nominal % of share : Average unit Total carrying

value (in Euro) capital value (in value

......... Euro) (in Euro)

Balance at 31 December 2016 2,618,317 261,832 1.25% 12.02 33,610,906
-Allotments and sales /- (127,379) (12,738) - 1,928 (2,455,867)
- Share buypback ~ \\ | 4,003,943 400,394 - 25.03 100,232,035
Balance at 31 December 2017 ..... 6,494,881 649,488 2.99% 20.23 131,387,074
- Allotments and salss | (1,397,668) (139,767) - 19.92 (27,841,547)
Balance at 31 Deceul.ﬁbn.r 2018 5,097,213 509,722 1.90% 20.31 103,545,528

Authorisaticn to huy and dispose of treasury shares
The Shareholders' Meeting of Prysmian S.p.A. held on 12 April 2018 authorised a buyback and disposal of

treasury shares, revoking at the same time the previous authorisation under the shareholder resolution dated
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12 April 2017. The authorisation provides the opportunity to purchase, on one or more occasions, a
maximum number of ordinary shares whose total must not exceed, at any one time, 10% of share capital.
Purchases may not exceed the amount of undistributed earnings and available reserves reported in thie most
recently approved annual financial statements. The authorisation to buy back treasury shareslasts for 13
months commencing from the date of the Shareholders’ Meeting, while the authorisation to. dispase of

treasury shares has no time limit. Further details can be found in Note 21. Personnel costs.

12. BORROWINGS FROM BANKS AND OTHER LENDERS

These are detailed as follows:

(in millions of Euro)

31 December 2018

Non-current | ~— Current Total
Borrowings from banks and other lenders 82 328
Term Loan 1 994
Bridge Loan - 500
UnicreditLoan 189 - 199
Non-convertible bond 745"3 14 759
S AN : - -
Convertible Bond 2017 467 - 467
A\ 0 . >
(xR S160 o 3350

(in millions of Euro)

31 December 2017

Non-current Current Total
Borrowings from banks and other lenders £ — 255 72 327
Non-convertblebond 743 14 757
e : 255 265
S N\ 74 o - o
mnonce lese oblgaios NN o . o
T AN Y e - o
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Borrowings from banks and other lenders and Bonds are analysed as follows:

(in millions of Euro)

31 December 2018 31 Decemher 2017
cbP Loan AN 100 ......
EIB Loans 152 ‘ 169
. TN YT —
Bridge Loan RS\ N =
Unicredit Loan 199 . -
Other borrowings 58
Borrowings from banks and other lenders 327
Non-convertible bond 757
Convertible Bond 2013 N 283
Convertible Bond 207 467 456
e 3’24:/... o

The Group's principal credit agreements in place at the reporting date are as follows:

Syndicated Revolving Credit Facility 2014

On 27 June 2014, Prysmian S.p.A. signed an agreement {the "Credit Agreement 2014") under which a
syndicate of premier banks made available a long-term credit-facility for Euro 1,000 million (the "Syndicated
Revolving Credit Facility 2014"). The facility, which expires-on 27 June 2019, can also be used for the issue
of guarantees. This revolving facility was intended io refinance the existing facilities and the Group's other
operating activities. At 30 June 2018, the facility’hiad heen drawn down by Euro 500 million to help refinance
the debt of General Cable, as well as to meet'the Prysmian Group's post-acquisition current financial needs.
This drawdown was repaid during the third guaiter of 2018. At 31 December 2018, this facility was not being

used.

EIB Loans

On 18 December 2013, Prysmian S.p.A. entered into a first loan agreement with the European Investment
Bank (EIB) for Euro 100 million, te fund the Group's research & development (R&D) programmes in Europe
over the period 2013-2016.

The EIB Loan was particuiariy. intended to support projects developed in the Group's R&D centres in six
countries (France, Great Britain, the Netherlands, Spain, Germany and Italy) and represented about 50% of
the Prysmian Group's investment expenditure in Europe during the period concerned.

The EIB Loan, received on 5 February 2014, is repayable in 12 equal half-yearly instalments commencing 5
August 2015 and ending 5 February 2021.

On 10 November 2017, Prysmian S.p.A. entered into a second loan agreement with the EIB for Euro 110
million to suppert the Group's R&D programmes in Europe over the period 2017-2020. The loan was

received on 29 November 2017 and involves a bullet repayment at maturity on 29 November 2024. Interest
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rate swaps have been arranged in respect of this loan, for an overall notional value of Euro 110 million, with
the objective of hedging variable interest rate flows over the period 2018-2024.
This second loan, following on from the first, and also in support of R&D in Europe, is a sign-of the

confidence and excellent credit standing that the Group enjoys with the EIB.

At 31 December 2018, the fair value of the EIB Loans approximates the related carrying amount.-Fair value
has been determined using valuation techniques that refer to observable market data (Level 2 of the fair

value hierarchy).

After repayments against the EIB Loan 2013, the outstanding balance on the EiB loans-as at 31 December
2018 was Euro 152 million.

Loan from Cassa Depositi e Prestiti (CDP)

On 25 September 2017, Prysmian S.p.A. entered into an agreement with Cassa Depositi e Prestiti S.p.A. for
a medium/long-term cash loan for a maximum total amount of Euio 210G million. This loan, maturing on 30
September 2020, was drawn down in its entirety on 29 September 2017. It will be used solely for the Group's
general purposes, including capital expenditure, expenditure/gn research, development and innovation, as
well as on energy efficiency and environmental stewardship. At 31-December 2018, the fair value of the CDP

Loan approximates the related carrying amount.

Financing for the General Cable acquisition

On 2 March 2018, Prysmian S.p.A. entered int¢ a credit agreement (the Acquisition Financing Agreement)
with the object of obtaining the financial resources neetded to pay the consideration for the acquisition of
General Cable, to refinance the existing deht of -General Cable Corporation and its subsidiaries and to

finance the fees, commissions, costs and axperises surrounding the acquisition.

This financing consists of two lines of credit:

* "Term Loan": a term loan for. Eure-1 Btliion, repayable on the fifth anniversary of the acquisition closing date
(6 June 2023);

» "Bridge Loan": a term loan-for Euro 700 million, repayable with a bullet payment within 2 years of the
acquisition closing date(8 Jure 2020).

The interest rates applied to the new loans are indexed to 6M and 3M Euribor.

As at 31 December 20183, both lines were drawn down in full.
In December 2018, the Group repaid Euro 200 million against the Bridge Loan in advance of its contractual
maturity.

At 31 December 2018, the fair value of these two loans approximates their carrying amount.
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Unicredit Loan

On 15 November 2018, Prysmian S.p.A. entered into an agreement with Unicredit for a medium-term cash
loan for a maximum amount of Euro 200 million for 5 years from the date of signing. The agreement
envisages a bullet repayment at maturity.The interest rate applied is indexed to 6M and 3M Euritior:

As at 31 December 2018, this loan was drawn down in full.

At 31 December 2018, the fair value of this loan approximates its carrying amount.

The following tables summarise the committed lines available to the Group at 31 Decemniber 2018 and 31
December 2017:

(in millions of Euro)

31 December 2018

Total lines Drawn Undrawn

Symdicated Revaivine Gradit Faciity 2014 o EEEANSQNG 7 L 000
oP Lonn 100 \ 20
Term Loan 1,000 (1,000)
Bridge Loan 50 (500)
EBLlLoans o1y (152)
Unicredit Loan (200)

Total . pgmo (1,952) 1,000

(inmillions of Euro)

31 December 2017

""""""" Tatal lines Drawn Undrawn

Syndicated Revolving Credit Facility 2014 N 1,000 - 1,000
coPLoan 100 (100)
EBLoans 169 (169)

Total S/ S 1,269 (269) 1,000

The Revolving Credit Facility is intended io finance ordinary working capital requirements.

Bonds

Convertible Bond 2013

On 4 March 2013, the Bsoard of Diiectors had approved the placement of an Equity-Linked Bond, referred to
as "€300,000,000 1.25'per cent. Equity Linked Bonds due 2018", maturing on 8 March 2018 and reserved for
institutional investors. During 2018 the entire bond was converted into shares.

Non-convertible bend-issued in 2015
On 10 March 2015, the Board of Directors of Prysmian S.p.A. authorised management to proceed,
depending on prevailing market conditions and in any case by 30 June 2016, with the issuance and private
or public placement of bonds in one or more tranches. These bonds were offered for sale to institutional
investors only.
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As a result, on 30 March 2015 Prysmian S.p.A. completed the placement with institutional investors of an
unrated bond, on the Eurobond market, for a total nominal value of Euro 750 million. The bond, with an issue
price of Euro 99.002, has a 7-year maturity and pays a fixed annual coupon of 2.50%. The individuai-hcnds,
maturing on 11 April 2022, have minimum denominations of Euro 100,000, plus integral multiplesof Curo
1,000.

The bond settlement date was 9 April 2015. The bond has been admitted to the Luxembaurg Stock
Exchange and is traded on the related regulated market.

At 31 December 2018, the fair value of the non-convertible bond is Euro 735 million:-Fair-value has been

determined with reference to the quoted price in the relevant market (Level 1 of the fair vaiue hierarchy).

Convertible Bond 2017

On 12 January 2017, the Board of Directors approved the placement of ‘an equity-linked bond, known as
"Prysmian S.p.A. Euro 500 million Zero Coupon Equity Linked Bonds due 2022" maturing 17 January 2022
and reserved for institutional investors.

At the meeting held on 12 April 2017, the Company's shareholders authorised:

- the convertibility of the Equity-Linked Bond,;

- the proposal to increase share capital for cash, in singie or muitiple issues with the exclusion of pre-
emptive rights, by a maximum nominal amount of Eurc. 1,457,942.70, by issuing, in single or multiple
instalments, up to 14,579,427 ordinary shares of ihe Caornpany, with the same characteristics as its
other outstanding ordinary shares, exclusively‘and.irrevocably to serve the Bond's conversion.

The conversion price of the bonds of Euro 34.2949 was set by applying a 41.25% premium to the weighted
average price of the Company's ordinary shares recorded on the Milan Stock Exchange between the start
and end of the book-building process during the - morning of 12 January 2017.

The Company will have the option to call all (but not just a part) of the outstanding bonds at their principal
amount from 1 February 2020, should tha value of the shares exceed 130% of the conversion price for a
specified period of time.

The placement has allowed the Company-te diversify its financial resources more widely by raising funds on
the capital market. These funds will -he used to pursue the Company's potential external growth
opportunities; to finance, in line with iiie-shareholders' authorisation of the share buyback, the buyback of the
Company's shares that will be used to-fulfil potential conversion rights requirements and/or as consideration
to finance the Company's growth strategy and for general corporate purposes.

On 16 May 2017, the Company sent a physical settlement notice to holders of the bonds, granting them the
right, with effect from'29 May 2017, to convert them into the Company's existing or new ordinary shares.
On 30 May 2017, the Bond was admitted to trading on the Third Market (a multilateral trading facility or MTF)

on the Vienna Stock Exchange.

The acceunting treatment for the Convertible Bond 2017 has resulted in the recognition of an equity

component of Euro 48 million and a debt component of Euro 452 million, determined at the bond issue date.
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(in millions of Euro)

Issue value of convertible bond 500
Equity reserve for convertible bond (48)
Issue date net balance 452

Interest - non-monetary

Related costs

Balance at 31 December 2018

At 31 December 2018, the fair value of the Convertible Bond 2017 (equity component.and-dehi’ component)
is Euro 457 million, of which the fair value of the debt component is Euro 429 inillion:. in the absence of
trading on the relevant market, fair value has been determined using valuation techniques that refer to

observable market data (Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy).

General Cable convertible bond

This bond, originating from the acquisition of General Cable, was issued-on 18 December 2009 for an
amount of USD 429.5 million; it allowed bondholders the option,/in the event of an acquisition, to request
repayment of the nominal value plus a premium. The Bond was’extinguished in the two months following the

acquisition, leaving a remaining debt of USD 0.4 million at 31 December 2018.
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The following tables report movements in Borrowings from banks and other lenders:

(in millions of Euro)

CDP EIB Conv. Non-Conv. | Loans for : Unicredit Other Total
Loan Loans Bonds bonds acquisition Loan borrowings
(including ex
Generai Cable
borrowingsj/
Finance lease
obligations, |
Balance at 31 December 100 169 739 757 ) ) 7 1,836
2017 ..............................................................................................
Business combinations - - 396 - - - 919 1,315
C_urrency translation ) ) ) ) ) - 12 12
differences
New funds - - - - 1,700 29 1,929
Repayments - a7) (396) - (200) (943) (1,556)
Amortisation of bank and N
financial fees and other - - 1 2 (7) 1), - (5)
expenses
Conversion of Convertible
Bond 2013 ) ) (283) ) (283)
Interest and other ) ) 10 ) 1
movements
Total movements - a7) (272) 17 1,423
Balance at 31 December 100 152 267 88 3,259
2018
(nMIONS OF BUIO) g S e
CDP EIB Conv. Non-Conv. : Loans for : Unicredit Other Total
Loan Loans Bonds bends - acquisition Loan borrowings/
: Finance lease
obligations @
Balance at 31 December | .
2016 - 75 289 755 - - 167 1,286
Currency translation
differences - - - - - (@) (@)
New funds 100 110 446 - - - 14 670
Repayments - (16y: - - - - (103) (119)
Amortisation of bank and
financial fees and other
expenses - 2 - - - 5
Conversion of Convertible
Bond 2013 - - - - an
Interest and other
movements 18 - - - - 18
Total movements 450 2 - - (96) 550
Balance at 31 December
2017 739 757 - - 71 1,836

M Includes the Revolving Credit Facility 2014.

Finance lease obligaiichs regiesent the liability arising as a result of entering into finance leases.

Finance lease obligations are reconciled with outstanding payments as follows:
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(in millions of Euro)

31 December 2018 31 December 2017
Due within 1 year 1 : s
Due between 1 and 5 years 7Y B— N 1
Due after more than 5 years TR .
Minimum finance lease payments Y I NN 2 1 4
Future interest costs (1) ......................................................... ( 1)
Finance lease obligations SN\ 1 3

The following tables provide a breakdown of borrowings from banks and other lendeis by maturity and
currency at 31 December 2018 and 2017:

(in millions of Euro)

31 December 2018

Variable interest rate Fixed interest rate Total
Euro usD Other Euro. - usD Other
currencies : currencies
Due within 1 year 31 16 2 .23/ - 2 4 08
Due between 1 and 2 years 617 - - - - 619
Due between 2 and 3 years 9 - - 1 - 11
Due between 3 and 4 years - - -/ 1,212 - - 1,212
Due between 4 and 5 years 1,193 - -1 QN = - - 1,193
5gaers after more than 5 117 8 ) 1 ) ) 126
Total 1,967 24 22 ~ 1,239 3 4 3,259
Qgﬁg"’c‘ﬁzs ggf::ecfrtn e 0.9% 3.1% 5.0% 2.1% 9.4% 4.6% 1.4%
Average interest rate in D
period, including IRS effect 1.3% 3.1% 5.0% 2.1% 9.4% 4.6% 1.7%
@

a) Interest rate swaps have been put in place to-hedge interest rate risk on variable rate loans in Euro. At
31 December 2018, the total hedged amotuiit eguates to 71.7% of Euro-denominated debt at that date.
Interest rate hedges consist of interest rate swaps which exchange a variable rate (3 or 6-month Euribor
for loans in Euro) with an average fixed rate (fixed rate + spread) of 1.4% for Euro-denominated debt.
The percentages representing thie.average fixed rate refer to 31 December 2018.

(in millions of Euro)

31 December 2017

Variable interest rate Fixed interest rate Total
Euro | usD Other Euro usD Other
: currencies currencies
Due within 1 year [/ A 2 18 16 302 3 9 370
Due between 1 and 2 years | 17 - - 1 - 2 20
Due between 2 and 3 years - - 117 - - - 1 - 118
Due between 3 and 4'years-. . 9 - - 1 - - 10
Due between 4 and 5 years - - - 1,201 - - 1,201
Due after more than 5 117 ) ) ) ) ) 117
YOS
Total / 282 18 16 1,505 4 11 1,836
Average interest rate | in o o o o o o 0
period, as per contract 0.4% 3.1% 6.2% 2.5% 10.7% 13.9% 2.3%

Risks relating to 'sources of finance and to financial investments/receivables are discussed in the section

entitled "Risks factors and uncertainties" forming part of the Directors' Report.
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Note . 31 December 2018 : 31 December 2017
Long-term financial payables
CDP Loan 12 100
EIB Loans 12 135
Non-convertible bond 12 745
Convertible Bond 2017 12 467
Term Loan 12 993
Bridge Loan 12 500 -
Unicredit Loan 12 199 -
Finance leases 12 12
Inforest rato swaps e B ——— N -
Other financial payables 12 ’ - n 3
Total long-term financial payables 3,169 1,466
Short-term financial payables 7
EIB Loans 12 17 17
Non-convertible bond 12 14 14
Convertible Bond 2013 12 // - 283
Term Loan : 1 -
Finance leases _______ 12 1 1
Interest rate swaps 8. 6 -
Forward currency contracts on financial transactions 8 2 1
Other financial payables 65 55
Total short-term financial payables 106 371
Total financial liabilities —\\ 3,275 1,837
Long-term financial receivables 5 2 2
Long-term bank fees . 8 - 1
Financial assets at amortised cost 5 2
Forward currency contracts on financial transactions (curré"hf) ______________ 8 2 1
Short-term financial receivables 5 7 7
Short-term bank fees 5 1 2
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss /. 7 25 40
Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income 4 10 11
Cash and cash equivalents 9 1,001 1,335
Net financialdebt A 2,222 436

The following table presents a recenciliaiion for the periods concerned of the Group's net financial debt to the

amount that must be reported under Consob Communication DEM/6064293 issued on 28 July 2006 and

under the CESR recommendation dated 10 February 2005 "Recommendations for the consistent

implementation of the /Ezuropean Commission's Regulation on Prospectuses™:
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(in millions of Euro)

Note : 31 December 2018 : 31 December 2017

Net financial debt - as reported above 2,222 436
Long-term financial receivables and other assets 7.

Long-term bank fees 8 -

Net forward currency contracts on commercial transactions 8 11 9) )
Forward currency contracts for General Cable acquisition (cash flow hedge) 8 17
Net metal derivatives 8 3 ‘ (30)

Recalculated net financial debt 2,243

13. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

These are detailed as follows:

(in millions of Euro)

31 December 2018

Nori-current Current Total
Trade payables N - 2,132 2,132
Total trade payables o> - 2,132 2,132
Other payables: o
Tax and social security payables o 3 163 166
<X - 265 265
Payables to employees - 176 176
Accrued expenses - 140 140
ther A DD . 7 150
Total other payables 12 921 934
Total 12 3,053 3,065

(in millions of Euro)

31 December 2017 (*)

Non-current Current Total
TSN : o o
roul vadepaybies N : o o
Other payables: N
Tax and social security pavabies 3 161 164
Advances from customers - 177 177
Payables to employees - - 92 92
PR — /S : e (o7
Other 5 155 160
e — A . con o6
Total /. 8 2,378 2,386

(*) The previousiy puplished prior year consolidated financial statements have been restated following the adoption of IFRS 15 and
IFRS 9. Further detai!s can be found in Section C. Restatement of comparative figures.
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Trade payables include around Euro 218 million (Euro 180 million at 31 December 2017) for the supply of
strategic metals (copper, aluminium and lead), whose payment terms, in some cases, are longer than normal

for this type of transaction.

Advances from customers include the liability for contract work in progress, amounting to Euro 223 million at
31 December 2018 compared with Euro 123 million at 31 December 2017. This liability. represents the
excess of amounts invoiced over costs incurred plus accumulated profits (or losses), receanised using the

percentage of completion method.

The following table breaks down trade and other payables according to the /currency in which they are

expressed:
(nmillions Of EUr)

31 December 2018 31 December 2017 (*)
e . 403 .................. o1
US Dollar /660" 421
— >3 o 100
Chinese Renminbi (Yuan) 190 167
BraziianReal i 114 88
Canadian Dollar . 57 20
OomaniRi@ L 51 53
e 4o 39
e SN P -
Bahraini Dinar / 38 -
Indonesian Rupiah /> 34 -
Australian Dollar 32 30
Malaysian Ringgit 14 13
Other currencies 137 204
Total S/ 3,065 2,386

(*) The previously published prior year consaiidated financial statements have been restated following the adoption of IFRS 15 and
IFRS 9. Further details can be found in Section'C. Restatement of comparative figures.
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14. PROVISIONS FOR RISKS AND CHARGES

These are detailed as follows:

(in millions of Euro)

Non-current Current Total
Restructuring costs 1 39
Contractual and legal risks 13 302
Environmental risks 2 10
Tax inspections 22 87
Contingent liabilities 3~ 20 93
Other risks and charges 10 7 43 53
Total 51, 533 584
(AN MUONS OF BUIO) e
31 December 2017
Non-current | Current Total
A 1..5 - s
Contractual and legal risks Lo~ 14 239 253
Environmental risks 7 7
e NN 5 s s
ot ieiies TR R R .
Other risks and charges 10 30 40
Tota S 33 321 354
The following table presents the movements in these provisions during the reporting period:
(inmilions of EUr0) LSSl
Restructuring | Contractual | Environmental Tax = Contingent Other Total
: and legal risks risks liabilities risks
risks and
charges
Balance at 31 December 2017 253 7 23 5 40 354
Business combinations - 4 3 70 88 28 193
Increases o) 38 91 1 1 - 2 133
PSS 0 20 0 > : ) =
Releases (8) (24) - Q) - Q) (34)
Currency translation differences - 2 - - - 1 Q)
Y=\ O : : ” : . @
Total movements 13 49 3 64 88 13 230
Balance at 31 Decer‘;;cr 20;8 39 302 10 87 93 53 584

The provision far/contractual and legal risks amounts to Euro 302 million at 31 December 2018 compared

with Euro 253 million at 31 December 2017.

This provision includes the provision for the antitrust investigations discussed in the following paragraphs.
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Antitrust — European Commission Proceedings in the high voltage underground and submarine cables
business

The European Commission started an investigation in late January 2009 into several European and-Asian
electrical cable manufacturers to verify the existence of alleged anti-competitive practices in the highi voltage
underground and submarine cables markets. On 2 April 2014, the European Commission adopted-a decision
under which it found that, between 18 February 1999 and 28 January 2009, the world's iargest cable
producers, including Prysmian Cavi e Sistemi S.r.l., adopted anti-competitive practices-in-the European
market for high voltage submarine and underground power cables. The Européan Commission held
Prysmian Cavi e Sistemi S.r.l. jointly liable with Pirelli & C. S.p.A. for the alleged infringement in the period 18
February 1999 - 28 July 2005, sentencing them to pay a fine of Euro 67.3 millicn, and it heid Prysmian Cavi
e Sistemi S.r.l. jointly liable with Prysmian S.p.A. and The Goldman Sachs Group Inc. for the alleged
infringement in the period 29 July 2005 - 28 January 2009, sentencing them to.pay a fine of Euro 37.3
million. Prysmian filed an appeal against this decision with the General Court of the European Union along
with an application to intervene in the appeals respectively lodged by Pirelli-& C. S.p.A. and The Goldman
Sachs Group Inc. against the same decision. Both Pirelli & C. S.p,A. ancd The Goldman Sachs Group Inc. in
turn submitted applications to intervene in the appeal brougiht by Prysmian against the European
Commission's decision. The applications to intervene presented by Prysmian, Pirelli and The Goldman
Sachs Group Inc. were accepted by the General Court of the Eurapean Union. Prysmian did not incur any
financial outlay as a result of this decision having elected;-pending the outcome of the appeals, to provide
bank guarantees as security against payment of 50% ¢f the fine imposed by the European Commission
(amounting to approximately Euro 52 million) for the alleged infringement in both periods. As far as Prysmian
is aware, Pirelli & C. S.p.A. also provided the European Commission with a bank guarantee for 50% of the
value of the fine imposed for the alleged infringement in the period 18 February 1999 - 28 July 2005. The
hearing of oral arguments in the appeal brought hy -Erysmian against the European Commission's decision of
April 2014 took place on 20 March 2017, whiie the hearings of oral arguments in the appeals brought by
Pirelli & C. S.p.A. and The Goldman Sachs-Group Inc. against the same decision of the European
Commission in April 2014 took place cn 22 and 28 March 2017 respectively.

On 12 July 2018, the General Court of the European Union issued rulings on the appeals lodged by the
Prysmian Group, including Generai Cahie. These rulings have dismissed the appeals and confirmed the
previously imposed fines. The- Prysrnian Group, including General Cable, does not agree with the
conclusions reached by the General Court of the European Union and has appealed to the Court of Justice
of the European Union.

Pirelli & C. S.p.A. has'also brought a civil action against Prysmian Cavi e Sistemi S.r.l. in the Milan Courts, in
which it demands to be held harmless for all claims made by the European Commission in implementation of
its decision and far any expenses related to such implementation. Prysmian Cavi e Sistemi S.r.l. started legal
proceedings in-February 2015, requesting that the claims brought by Pirelli & C. S.p.A. be rejected in full and
that it sheuid be Pirelli & C. S.p.A. which holds harmless Prysmian Cavi e Sistemi S.r.l., with reference to the
alleged infringemient in the period 18 February 1999 - 28 July 2005, for all claims made by the European
Commission in implementation of its decision and for any expenses related to such implementation. The

proceedings have since been stayed by order of the court concerned in April 2015, pending the outcome of
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the appeals made against the European Commission's decision by both Prysmian and Pirelli in the European
Courts. Pirelli has challenged this decision before the Court of Cassation, Italy's highest court of appeal,
which has confirmed the stay of execution ordered by the Milan Courts. In view of the circumstances
described and also with the support of the Group's legal advisors and consistent with the accounting paticies,
the directors have recognised a level of provisions deemed appropriate to cover the potential liahilities

associated with the events in question.

Antitrust — Other proceedings in the high voltage underground and submaring-cailes business in
jurisdictions other than the European Union

In Australia, the ACCC filed a case before the Federal Court arguing that Prysmiian Cavie Sistemi S.r.l. and
two other companies violated antitrust rules in connection with a high voltage urderground cable project
awarded in 2003. A ruling issued in July 2016 held the company liable for violation of Australian antitrust law
with regard to this project, without however quantifying the applicable penaity, which would be determined
upon completion of the second stage of these proceedings. On 1 Decernbei 2016 the hearing of oral
arguments took place to quantify the amount of the penalty to impsse-or Prysmian Cavi e Sistemi S.r.l. and
on 28 July 2017, the Federal Court in Adelaide finally issued & ruiing sentencing Prysmian Cavi e Sistemi
S.r.l. to pay a fine of AUD 3.5 million. Prysmian Cavi e Sisterii S.r.l. lodged an appeal against this decision
with the Australian Federal Court of Appeals, while no such appeai-was filed by the Australian competition
authority. The court concerned issued a ruling on 13 March 2018, dismissing the appeal filed by Prysmian
Cavi e Sistemi S.r.l. and consequently confirming the decisicn by the court of first instance. Prysmian Cavi e
Sistemi S.r.l. challenged this ruling. On 8 August 2018, the Australian High Court dismissed the appeal filed
by the company against the decision by the-court of second instance, thereby definitively closing
proceedings.

In Brazil, the local antitrust authority started an investigation into several manufacturers of high voltage
underground and submarine cables, amongst whom Prysmian, notified of this investigation in 2011.
Prysmian's preliminary defence was rgjected by the local competition authority in a statement issued in
February 2015. On 3 January 2019, the authority informed Prysmian that the investigative stage had been
completed and gave it 10 working days for. the submission of briefs, duly filed by Prysmian on 18 January
2019. The general superintendence of the Brazilian antitrust authority (Administrative Council for Economic
Defense — "CADE") published & Tecinical Note in the Brazilian Federal Official Gazette on 11 February
2019. The Technical Note sets out the conclusions of CADE's investigations which lean towards the
imposition of a fine on Prysmian. The Technical Note contains the recommendation that the amount the
CADE Tribunal could fine Prysmian be between15% and 20% of its turnover in Brazil in 2009. In any case,
this recommendation-is-not binding. The Tribunal's decision, which will be issued at the end of a public
hearing, will be provisionally enforceable but can be challenged before the Brazilian courts.

In view of the-circumistances described, the directors, assisted by the Group's legal advisors, have decided

to recognise a provision of Euro 68 million.
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Antitrust - Claims for damages as a result of the European Commission's 2014 decision

During 2015, National Grid and Scottish Power, two British operators, filed claims in the High Court in
London against certain cable manufacturers, including Prysmian Group companies, to obtain compensation
for damages purportedly suffered as a result of the alleged anti-competitive practices condernnsd bty the
European Commission in the decision adopted in April 2014. The Group companies concerned were natified
of this initial court filing during the month of May 2015 and presented their defence early in Octoter 2015,
along with the summons of other parties censured in the European Commission's decisich: :‘Among the
parties involved in this action, Pirelli & C. S.p.A. has requested the London High-Couit to decline its
jurisdiction or nonetheless to stay the proceedings in its regard pending the outcome’of the civil action
previously brought by Pirelli against Prysmian Cavi e Sistemi S.r.l. in the Milan/Courts, inwhich it demands
to be held harmless for all claims made by the European Commission in implementation of the latter's
decision and for any expenses related to such implementation. The proceedings have since been stayed, as
agreed between the parties, pending the outcome of the action brought hy- Pirelii in the Milan Courts. A
similar agreement has also been reached with The Goldman Sachs Group’ Inc., another company involved in
the actions discussed above. The other actions brought by Prysmian-Group companies against other cable
producers censured in the European Commission decision have in turii been suspended pending the
outcome of the main action brought by National Grid and Scottish Powert.

During the first few months of 2017, in addition to those rmentioned in the preceding paragraph, other
operators belonging to the Vattenfall Group filed claims'iin-the-High Court in London against certain cable
manufacturers, including companies in the Prysmiain- Group, to obtain compensation for damages
purportedly suffered as a result of the alleged anti-competitive practices condemned by the European
Commission in its decision of April 2014. The Prysmian Group defendant companies duly filed their
statement of objections.

By an order dated 8 August 2018, the Court dismissed the statements of objection filed, among others, by
the defendant Prysmian Group companies, which in turn appealed against this order to the relevant court. In
a ruling dated 17 December 2018, the appeal presented by the Prysmian Group companies was dismissed,
like for the other defendants. The judgment wiil’now address the merits of the dispute.

Prysmian S.p.a. and Prysmian Cavi e Sistemi S.r.l. have been summoned by Nexans France SAS and
Nexans SA to appear before the Court-of Dortmund (Germany) in notifications dated 24 and 25 May 2018
respectively. The plaintiffs have asked the Court concerned to ascertain the existence of joint and several
liability between Prysmian S.p.a. and Prysmian Cavi e Sistemi S.r.l., on the one hand, and Nexans France
SAS and Nexans SA,/on the ather, for any damages suffered by third parties in Germany as a result of the
alleged cartel in the market for nigh voltage underground and submarine power cables fined in the European
Commission's decision dated 2 April 2014. On 7 June 2018, Prysmian S.p.a. and Prysmian Cavi e Sistemi
S.r.l. filed a notice with tne Court concerned in which they declared their intention to appear and defend
themselves in-this action and requested an 8-month deadline within which to file their defence, a term which
the Court‘has granted. Prysmian filed its response on 20 February 2019.

At present, Prysimian S.p.a. and Prysmian Cavi e Sistemi S.r.l. have not yet been able to assess in detail the

merits of this litigation, except to express their intention to defend themselves.
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In view of the circumstances described and also with the support of the Group's legal advisors, the directors
have recognised, consistent with the accounting policies, a level of provisions deemed appropriate to cover

the potential liabilities associated with the events in question.

Antitrust — Other investigations

At the end of February 2016, the Spanish antitrust authorities initiated proceedings to verify the existence of
anti-competitive practices by local low voltage cable manufacturers and distributors, inciuding.the Group's
local subsidiaries. The Spanish competition authority then sent a statement of objections-to some of the
Group's local subsidiaries in January 2017.

On 24 November 2017, the local competition authority notified the Group's Spanish subsidiaries of a decision
under which they were held liable for the alleged infringements in the period from dune 2002 to June 2015
and were jointly and severally sentenced to pay a fine of Euro 15.6 million. The Group's Spanish subsidiaries
have appealed against this decision. The appeal decision is still pending.

The decision of 24 November 2017 also held the Spanish subsidiaries of General Cable liable for breach of
local antitrust law. However, they have obtained immunity from paying the related fine (quantified at about
Euro 12.6 million) having filed for leniency and collaborated/ with the iocal competition authority in its
investigations. The Spanish subsidiaries of General Cable have also appealed against the decision of the
local competition authority; the appeal decision is still pending.

In view of the circumstances described and also withthe-support of the Group's legal advisors and
consistent with the accounting policies, the directors have adiusted the related provisions for risks deemed

appropriate to cover the potential liabilities associated with the events in question.

As at 31 December 2018, the provision for the-above artitrust matters amounts to approximately Euro 233
million.
Despite the uncertainty of the outcome of the-investigations and legal action in progress, the amount of this

provision is considered to represent the’best’estimate of the liability based on the information now available.
15. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS

The Group provides a number of past-employment benefits through programmes that include defined benefit
plans and defined contribution-plans:

The defined contribution plans require the Group to pay, under legal or contractual obligations, contributions
into public or private insurance institutions. The Group fulfils its obligations through payment of the
contributions. At the financial reporting date, any amounts accrued but not yet paid to the above institutions
are recorded in\"Other payables”, while the related costs, accrued on the basis of employee service, are
recognised in-"Persoiiiiel costs".

The defined benefit plans mainly refer to Pension plans, Employee indemnity liability (for Italian companies),
Medical benefit plans and other benefits such as seniority bonuses.

The liabilities arising from these plans, net of any assets serving such plans, are recognised in Employee

benefit obligations and are measured using actuarial techniques.
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Employee benefit obligations are analysed as follows:

(in millions of Euro)

31 December 2018
Pension plans 379
Employee indemnity liability (Italian TFR) 15
Medical benefit plans 30
Termination and other benefits 39
Total 463

Pension plan amendments in 2018
There were no amendments to existing pension plans in 2018, but new plans/were-adged as a result of

acquiring General Cable.

PENSION PLANS

Pension plans relate to defined benefit pension schemes that can be "Funded".and "Unfunded".

Pension plan liabilities are generally calculated according to employee {ength of service with the company
and the remuneration paid in the period preceding cessation of empiayment:

Liabilities for "Funded pension plans" are funded by contributions paid ty the employer and, in some cases,
by employees, into a separately managed pension fund. The fund-independently manages and administers
the amounts received, investing in financial assets and paying-henefits directly to employees. The Group's
contributions to such funds are defined according“ta-the legal requirements established in individual
countries.

Liabilities for "Unfunded pension plans" are maiaged directly by the employer who sees to paying the
benefits to employees. These plans have no assets to cover the liabilities.

At 31 December 2018, the most significant-plans-in-terms of accrued employee benefit obligations are those

managed in the following countries:

. Germany;

. Great Britain;
. France;

) United States.

Pension plans in the above countries account for more than 90% of the related liability. The principal risks to

which they are exposed are described below:

Germany

There are fifteeri pension plans in Germany. These are mostly final salary plans in which the retirement age
is generally set-at 65. Although most plans are closed to new members, additional costs may need to be
recognised.in the future. As at 31 December 2018, the plans had an average duration of 14.0 years (14.9

years at 31 Decernber 2017).
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Total plan membership is made up as follows:

31 December 2018

Number of participants

Active 1,403
Deferred 1,042
Pensioners 2,120
Total membership 4,565

The German plans do not have any assets that fund the liabilities, in line with.the /practice in this country;
the Prysmian Group pays these benefits directly.

The benefits payable in 2019 will amount to Euro 9 million (Euro 7 million at'31 December 2017 for 2018).
The increase in benefits, and so in the recorded liability and in service-costs, rnainly depend on inflation,
salary growth and the life expectancy of plan members. Another variable to-censider when determining the
amount of the liability and of service costs is the discount rate, ideniified by reference to market yields of AA
corporate bonds denominated in Euro.

Great Britain

Two defined benefit plans were in operation at 31 December;2018: the Draka pension fund and the
Prysmian pension fund. Both are final salary plans, in which-the retirement age is generally set at 65 for the
majority of plan participants. Neither plan has admitted any new members or accrued any new liabilities
since 2013. Currently all employees participate in‘defined contribution plans.

As at 31 December 2018, the plans had an average duration of approximately 21.1 years (approximately
19.8 years at 31 December 2017).

Total plan membership is made up as'fellows:

31 December 2018

31 December 2017

Draka pension Prysmian Total Draka Prysmian Total

fund- “pension fund pension fund : pension fund
Number. of Number of Number of Number of Number of Number of
narticipantsi participants participants participants participants participants
Active - - - - - -
Deferred 492 547 1,039 492 547 1,039
Pensioners 458 379 837 458 379 837
Total membership 950 926 1,876 950 926 1,876

Both plans cperate-under trust law and are managed and administered by a Board of Trustees on behalf of
members/end in accordance with the terms of the Trust Deed and Rules and current legislation. The assets
that fund the iiabliities are held by the Trust, for both plans.

For the purposes of determining the level of funding, the Trustees appoint an actuary to value the plans

every three years, with annual updates. The latest valuations of the Draka pension fund and the Prysmian
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pension fund were conducted as at 31 March 2015 and 31 December 2017 respectively. Even the
contribution levels are set every three years at the time of performing the valuation to determine the level of
plan funding. Currently, the contribution levels are set at Euro 7.3 million a year for the Draka pensicn fund
(Euro 3.3 million at 31 December 2017) and Euro 0.8 million a year for the Prysmian pension fund-{Euic 0.

million at 31 December 2017).

The Trustees decide on the investment strategy in agreement with the company. The strategies differ for
both plans. In particular, the Draka pension fund has invested its assets as follows: 17% in egtiiies, 38% in
bonds and 45% in other financial instruments. The Prysmian pension fund has investecd-its assets as follows:
35% in bonds and the remaining 65% in other financial instruments.

The main risk for the Prysmian Group in Great Britain is that mismatches between the expected return and
the actual return on plan assets would require contribution levels to be revised.

The liabilities and service costs are sensitive to the following variables: life’expectancy of plan participants
and future growth in benefit levels. Another variable to consider when determining the amount of the liability
is the discount rate, identified by reference to market yields of AA corperate bonds denominated in GB

pounds.

France

There were five pension plans in operation in France at 31 December 2018, of which four are unfunded
retirement benefit plans and one is a partially funded pension plan.

All the plans generally set the retirement age at 63: They. are all open to new members, except for the
funded plan which does not admit new members or accrue new liabilities. As at 31 December 2018, the
plans had an average duration of approximately 11.1 years (10.6 years at 31 December 2017).

Total plan membership is made up as follows:

31 December 2018 31 December 2017

............................................. Number of participants Number of participants
AN 5669 ors
Deferred N/A N/A
Pensioners . 25 25
e N > 7a o8

In the case of the unfunded plaris, the company pays the amount accrued when employees leave the
company upon retirement.

The principal risk for the Prysmian Group in France is salary growth, which affects the benefits that the
company has to'pay the .employee. In the case of the retirement benefit plans, the benefits vest only upon
attaining retirement age; consequently, the cost to the company will depend on the probability that an
employee rdces not leave the company before that date. There are no life expectancy risks relating to these
plans. The-liabilities and service costs are sensitive to the following variables: inflation, salary growth, life
expectancy of plan participants and the discount rate, identified by reference to market yields of AA

corporate bonds denominated in Euro.
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The main risks for the funded plan are connected to inflation and life expectancy, both of which affect
contribution levels. The plan's assets are entirely invested in insurance funds, whose main risk is that a
mismatch between the expected return and the actual return on plan assets would require contribution ievels

to be revised.

United States

There were four pension plans in operation in the United States at 31 December 2018,-oi which two are
funded plans that pay an income upon retirement; one is a supplementary unfunded ‘clan and -another is an
unfunded deferred compensation plan.

All the plans generally set the retirement age at 65. They are all open to new members, except for the
funded plans which does not admit new members or accrue new liabilities. As-at‘31 December 2018, the
plans had an average duration of approximately 8.6 years (12.2 years at 31 December 2017).

Total plan membership is made up as follows:

31 Decernber 2018 31 December 2017

Numbercf participarits Number of participants

T/ N ca 166
Deferred ................... 677 258
Pensioners 2,990 372
Total membership 4,199 818

Pension plan obligations and assets are analysed as follows ai. 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2017:

(in millions of Euro)

31 December 2018

Germany Great Britain France = United States Other Total
________ countries

Funded pension obligations:
Present value of obligation /5 - 179 3 142 8l 405
Fair value of plan assets (113) 2) (112) (71) (298)
Asset ceiling - - - -
Unfunded pension obligations:
Present value of obligations 2i8 - 31 9 14 272
AN > - - - 54 7o

(in millions of Euro)

31 December 2017

Germany | Great Britain France . United States Other Total
............. COUntrieS

Funded pension obligations:
Present value of obhé...’.;ltion ....... - 193 3 27 24 247
Fair value of plan asseis - (123) 2) (22) (26) (173)
resstcaling /i~ : : : - :
Unfunded p;z"l.‘.sion ob"‘:.i"gations
Present value ofobllg?uons 163 - 21 11 195
Total 163 70 22 5 9 269
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At 31 December 2018, "Other countries” mainly refer to:

. Canada: funded pension obligations have a present value of Euro 43 million compared with a fair

value of Euro 37 million for plan assets;

. Netherlands: funded pension obligations have a present value of Euro 22 million compared wiiit a

fair value of Euro 22 million for plan assets;

. Spain: funded pension obligations have a present value of Euro 11 million compared with aiair value

of Euro 9 million for plan assets;

. Sweden: unfunded pension obligations have a present value of Euro 7 million;
. Chile: unfunded pension obligations have a present value of Euro 4 million;
. Norway: unfunded pension obligations have a present value of Euro 2 miilion.

Changes during the year in pension plan obligations are analysed as follows:

(in millions of Euro)

2018 2017
Opening defined benefit obligation ~~ /r ~.4 442 475
Business combinatons 261 -
— 4/ : ,
Interestcosts 15 10
R , -
Actuarial (gains)losses recognised in equity - experience . 1 3)
Actuarial (gains)/losses recognised in equity - demographic assumptions - 3)
Actuarial (gains)/losses recognised in equity - financial assumptions (14) (@)
Disbursements from plan assets /. (20) (12)
Disbursements paid directly by the employer . (18) (8)
Currency translation diffierences 1 (12)
Reclassifications and legislative amendments to existing-plars—— 2
N - )
Closing defined benefit obligation /2 // 677 442
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Changes during the year in pension plan assets are analysed as follows:

(in millions of Euro)

Opening plan assets

Business combinations

Interest income on plan assets

Actuarial gains/(losses) recognised in equity

Contributions paid in by the employer

Contributions paid in by plan participants = -

Disbursements (39) (20)
2NN - :
Currency translation differences L~ /- 2 5)
Total movements 125 4)
/AR W 205 s

At 31 December 2018, pension plan assets consisted of equities (36.1% versus 14.6% in 2017), government
bonds (11.0% versus 16.8% in 2017), corporate bonds (18.4% wversus-18.1% in 2017), and other assets
(34.5% versus 50.5% in 2017).

The value of the asset ceiling was zero at 31 December 2018, iike at 21 December 2017.

Pension plan costs recognised in the income statement are anaiysed as follows:

(in millions of Euro)

2018
Gex‘rﬁvany Great Britain France United Other Total

States | countries
Personnel costs 1 2 1 2 2 9
Interestcosts 3 5 - 4 2 15
Expected returns on plan assets - ) - ?3) Q) (8)
Total pension plancosts ~ // /5 5 3 2 1 3 16

(nmillions of EUr0)

2017
"""""""""""""""""" Germany Great Britain France United Other Total

............................... States Countries
Personnel costs 1 - 1 - - 2
Interest costs N 3 5 - - 2 10
Expected retums on plan assets’ - 3) - - (1) 4)
Total pension plan costs ) 4 2 1 - 1 8

More details cari pbe founc in Note 21. Personnel costs.
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The weighted average actuarial assumptions used to value the pension plans are as follows:

31 December 2018

Germany Great Britain France United States
Interest rate 1.75% 3.00% 1.50% tboe—
Expected future salary increase 2.20% N/A 1.83% 250%
Expected increase in pensions 1.75% 3.11% 1.00% 0 0&%
P e o oo ?00% .........................................
Life expectancy at age 65: Male | Female Male Female Male Female Male IIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIII Female .................
People currently aged 65 20.05 23.56 21.80 23.70 24.16 27.63 20.07 22.38
People currently aged 50 22.16 25.91 22.60 24.60 26.23 2084 21.33 23.64
......................... TR T ———
Germany Great Britain France - United States
Interest rate 1.75% 2.70% 125% 3.60%
Expected future salary increase 1.75% N/A J.:".’"/;S% N/A
Expected increase in pensions 1.75% 3.40% 1:75% N/A
O, - NN N/A ..... S
Life expectancy at age 65: Male | Female ! Male Fem:;!.e Male Female Male Female
People currently aged 65 19.90 | 23.95 @ 22.10 2390 ....... 24.16 = 27.63 22.15 23.64
People currently aged 50 21.88 | 25.84 = 2310, 2510 = 26.23 | 29.84 23.66 25.35

The following table presents a sensitivity analysis

of the efiects of an increase/decrease in the most

significant actuarial assumptions used to determine tiie_resent value of benefit obligations, namely the

interest rate, inflation rate and life expectancy.

Inflation rate sensitivity includes those effects relating to’assumptions about salary increases and increases

in benefits.
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31 December 2018

Germany Great Britain France United States
Interest rate -0.50% +0.50% : - 0.50% ; + 0.50% @ - 0.50% : + 0.50% - 0.50% + 0.500/; ................
Change in pension plans 7.15% | -6.41% : 10.16% | -9.07% | 5.66% : -5.21% 4.22% 0206
Inflation rate -0.25% | +0.25% | - 0.25% | +0.25% | - 0.25%  + 0.25% -0.25% £9.25%
Change in pension plans -2.59% : 2.51% @ -3.55% : 3.73% | -2.83% : 2.94% -0.04% 004% IIIIIIIIIIIIIIIII
31 December 2018
Germany Great Britain France United Stateé """""
1-year increase in life expectancy 4.87% 3.53% 186% 2 52% ...........
""""""" 31 December 2017
Germany Cra —— N L]ﬁited .
Interest rate -0.50% +0.50%  -0.50%  +0.50% - 0.50% + 050 -0/50% + 0.50%
Change in pension plans 7.61% | -6.79% | 10.16% : -9.07% : 5.38% 6.10% -5.61%
Inflation rate -0.25% | +0.25% | - 0.25% | + 0.25% ; - 0.25%"; +0:25% - 0.25% +0.25%
Change in pension plans -2.93% @ 2.85% @ -3.54% | 3.72% -2.790.; .......... é"..;39% N/A N/A
"""" 31 December 2017
Germany Great Britain United States
1-year increase in life expectancy 5.19% 3.53% 2.86%

EMPLOYEE INDEMNITY LIABILITY
Employee indemnity liability refers to Italian companies only and is analysed as follows:

(in millions of Euro)

2018 2017
Opening balance e 17 19
Y : -
—— - :
PR ————— A/ - o
T R \\\ g > o
o e\ > (2)
st TN e o

Net actuarial gains recognised at 31 December 2018 were less than Euro 1 million (Euro 1 million at 31

December 2017) and mainly relate to the change in the associated economic parameters (the discount and

inflation rates).

Under ltalian law, the airiount due to each employee accrues with service and is paid when the employee

leaves the company. The amount due upon termination of employment is calculated on the basis of the

length of service aind the taxable remuneration of each employee. The liability is adjusted annually for the

official cost af-livirig index and statutory interest, and is not subject to any vesting conditions or periods, or

any funding obligation; there are therefore no assets that fund this liability.
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The benefits relating to this plan are paid to participants in the form of capital, in accordance with the related
rules. The plan also allows partial advances to be paid against the full amount of the accrued benefit in
specific circumstances.

The main risk is the volatility of the inflation rate and the interest rate, as determined by the market yiela on
AA corporate bonds denominated in Euro.

The actuarial assumptions used to value employee indemnity liability are as follows:

31 December 2018 21 December 2017
T T B\ Z4 Lass
Expected future salary increase 1.50%
Inflation rate 1.50%

The following table presents a sensitivity analysis of the effects of ari-.increase/decrease in the most
significant actuarial assumptions used to determine the present value-of bengfit obligations, namely the

interest rate and inflation rate:

31 December 2017
Interest rate - 0.50% - 0.50% + 0.50%
Qha_xr_nge in employee indemnity 4.93% 4.78% 4.44%
liability
Inflation rate - 0.25% - 0.25% + 0.25%
ﬁ;tfi‘l’i]t‘-i’/e in employee indemnity -1.50% 154% -1.44% 1.48%

MEDICAL BENEFIT PLANS

Some Group companies provide medical benefit plans for retired employees. In particular, the Group
finances medical benefit plans in Brazil, Canada and the United States. The plans in the United States
account for more than 90% of the total cbiigation for medical benefit plans.

Apart from interest rate and life expectarncy risks, medical benefit plans are particularly susceptible to
increases in the cost of meeting claims. None of the medical benefit plans has any assets to fund the
associated obligations, with benefits paid directly by the employer.

As noted earlier, the US medical benefit plans account for the majority of the benefit obligation. These plans
are not subject to the same level of legal protection as pension plans. Currently the latest reform has had no

impact on liabilities and costs.
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The obligation in respect of medical benefit plans is analysed as follows:

(in millions of Euro)

2018 2017

Opening balance 27 29

Business combinations

Personnel costs

Interest costs

Plan settlements

Actuarial (gains)/losses recognised in equity - experience

Actuarial (gains)/losses recognised in equity - demographic assumptions - -

Actuarial (gains)/losses recognised in equity - financial assumptions - 2

Reclassifications - -

Disbursements 1) (1)
Currency translation differences /7 N\ 2 4)
Total movements AL/ 3 2)
Closing balance T TS - =

The actuarial assumptions used to value medical benefit plans are as follows:

31 Decemicer 2018 31 December 2017
e YR\ o
Expected future salary increase NIA N/A
Increase in claims 5."09% ..... 5.17%
Life expectancy at age 65: Male Female Male Female
People currently aged 65 2121 23.16 21.39 23.26
People currently aged 50 2?53 .................... 24.69 22.75 24.84

The following table presents a sensitivity-analysis of the effects of an increase/decrease in the most
significant actuarial assumptions used (o determine the present value of benefit obligations, such as the

interest rate, inflation rate/growth in medical care costs and life expectancy.

31 December 2018 31 December 2017

Interestrate > - 0.50% + 0.50% - 0.50% + 0.50%
Change in medical benefit plans,~ 7.89% -6.73% 8.91% 7.93%
Medical inflation rate ./ - 0.25% +0.25 -0.25¢ +0.25%
Change in medical benefit plghs -4.40% 4.69% 4.75% 5.02%
"""""""""" 31 December 2018 31 December 2017

1-year increase in life expectaﬁby 4.08% 4.35%
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OTHER INFORMATION
Contributions to and payments of employee benefit obligations in 2019 will respectively amount to Euro 19
million (of which Euro 11 million in Germany and Euro 3 million in the United States) and Euro 9 miilion (of

which Euro 4 million in Great Britain and Euro 3 million in the United States).

Headcount

Average headcount in the period is reported below, compared with closing headcount aithe-end of each

period:
........... 5618
Averag(]g % Closing %
Blue collar 16,019 21,051 2%
White collar and management 5,439 | 8,109 28%
Total 21,458 29,159 100%
................. SO
Average % Closing %
Buecollar 15,856 75% 15,927 76%
White collar and management 5173 25% 5,123 24%
AN 51039 Lo >1 050 Lo

O The period average reflects the average number of employees for the ‘whole of 2018 of Prysmian Group companies prior to the
acquisition of General Cable. The average number of employees including-General Cable is available for the last 5 months of 2018 and
is as follows:21,301 blue-collar and 8,290 white-collar and management.
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16. DEFERRED TAXES

The balance of deferred tax assets at 31 December 2018 is Euro 161 million (Euro 135 million-at 31
December 2017) while that of deferred tax liabilities is Euro 238 million (Euro 103 million at 31 December
2017).

Movements in deferred taxes are analysed as follows:

(in millions of Euro)

Fixed assets | Provisions® . Tax losses | Gther Total
Balance at 31 December 2016 (*) (128) 117 (8) 35
Business combinations - - - -
Currency translation differences 8 ) 7 13
Impact on income statement 21 2) _ Q) 12
Impact on equity - @ ; (13) (16)
Ot el rociaesontio : TN % 5 )
Salance at 31 December 2017 () ) _~ G 48 ) 6
Business combinations (207) 48 ........ 1 17 (141)
Currency translation differences 3 l 1 5) (6)
Impact on income statement 29 @) 5 2 26
mpact on equity R (1) - 5 ©
Ot el rocimsaontios TSN : : . .
Balance at 31 December 2018 (2803 0 147 55 2 (77)

(*) The previously published prior year consolidated financiai statements have been restated following the adoption of IFRS 15 and
IFRS 9. Further details can be found in Section C. Restaterient of cemparative figures.

® These comprise Provisions for risks and charges (current and non-ctirent) and Employee benefit obligations.

Although the Group has not recognised any deferred tax assets on Euro 1,158 million in carryforward tax
losses at 31 December 2018 (Euro 599 miilion at 31 December 2017), it has recognised deferred tax assets
on Euro 98 million in tax losses at(this same date (Euro 121 million at 31 December 2017). Unrecognised
deferred tax assets relating to the above carryforward tax losses and to deductible temporary differences
amount to Euro 197 million at 31 December 2018 (Euro 167 million at 31 December 2017).

The following table presents details of carryforward tax losses:

(in millions of Euro)

31 December 2018 31 December 2017

Carryforward tax lossés— . 1,256 720
of which recognised as def.e";"rred tax assets 98 121
Carryforward expires witiin- y".;zar 12 3
Carryforward expires between 2-5 years 74 85
Carryforwar(;expires b/;\)ond 5 years 140 15
Unlimited carryfoM‘;am 1,030 617
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17. SALES OF GOODS AND SERVICES

These are detailed as follows:

(in millions of Euro)

Finished goods

Construction contracts

Services

Other

Total 10,158

7,904

(*) The previously published prior year consolidated financial statements have been restated following ihe adcution of IFRS 15 and

IFRS 9. Further details can be found in Section C. Restatement of comparative figures.

18. CHANGE IN INVENTORIES OF WORK IN PROGRESS, SEMI-FINISHED AND FINISHED GOODS

This is detailed as follows:

(in millions of Euro)

2018 2017
Finished goods (98) 33
Work in progress 13 24
Total (85) 57
19. OTHER INCOME
This is detailed as follows:
(inmillionsof EUro) A

2018 2017
Rental income 1 1
Insurance reimbursements and indemnities 41 12
Gains on disposal of property 2 2
Other income 95 66
Total 139 81
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20. RAW MATERIALS, CONSUMABLES USED AND GOODS FOR RESALE

These are detailed as follows:

(in millions of Euro)

Raw materials

Change in inventories

Total

21. PERSONNEL COSTS

Personnel costs are detailed as follows:

(in millions of Euro)

2018 2017
Wages and salaries and social security 1,144 952
Fair value - stock options 6 49
7 QIR . ,
Medical benefit costs 1 1
Termination and other benefits 3 3
Other personnel costs 40 55
Company reorganisation 57 24
Total 1,260 1,086

Share-based payments
At 31 December 2018, the Prysmian Group had share-bhased compensation plans in place for managers and
employees of Group companies and for members of the Parent Company's Board of Directors. These plans

are described below.

Employee share purchase plan (2016-2621) -~ YES 2.0

The Shareholders' Meeting of 12 Apni 2018 amended the YES 2.0 plan, approved by the same on 13 April
2016. In fact, anticipating the cempletion of the General Cable acquisition, the number of plan participants
was expected to increase. considarably, as a result of which the Shareholders' Meeting approved an
extension of the plan's validity for another two years until 2021 and an increase in the number of shares
serving it.

The Plan is basedoan financial instruments reserved for employees of Prysmian S.p.A. and/or of its
subsidiaries, including some of the Company's Directors; the Board of Directors has been granted the

relevant powers to establish and implement this plan.
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The main objectives of the Plan and the 2018 amendments are:

. to strengthen the sense of belonging to the Group by offering employees an opportunity to share in
its successes, through equity ownership, especially in view of the process of integration with General
Cable Corporation;

. to align the interests of the Prysmian Group's stakeholders, employees and shareholders, by
identifying a common goal of creating long-term value.

The Plan offers the opportunity to purchase Prysmian's ordinary shares on prefereniial terms, with a

maximum discount of 25% on the stock price, given in the form of treasury shares;-except for certain

managers, for whom the discount is 15%, and the executive Directors and key managerment personnel, for

whom the discount is 1% on the stock price.

The Plan therefore qualifies as "of particular relevance" within the meaning of art.-84-bis, par. 2 of the Issuer

Regulations.

The shares purchased are subject to a retention period, during which they cannot be sold. The Plan contains

purchase windows over the next three years.

All those who have signed up for the plan have also received an entry tonus of six free shares, taken from

the Company's portfolio of treasury shares, only available at the time of first purchase. If an employee had

already participated in the 2013 plan, they received eight shares as ar entry bonus to the new plan. For

those who already purchased shares in a 2017 purchase window, the entry bonus is three shares.

The shares purchased by participants, as well as those received by way of discount and entry bonus, will

generally be subject to a retention period during whichi-tiiey cannot be sold and the length of which will vary

according to local regulations.

The fair value of the options has been determined using the Montecarlo binomial pricing model, based on the

following assumptions:

Window
T Y/ ae L Novar b 2016
Share purchase date /[~~~ // from 16 February 2017 to 16 September 2019
End of retention period from 16 February 2020 to 16 September 2022
Residual life at grant date (in years) i 2.71
P ————— AN 520
Expected volatility . from 31.74% to 36.05%
Risk-free interestrate from 0.70% to 0.75%
Expected dividend % /. 2.07%

Option fair value at grant date from €21.57 to €23.15

Costs of Euro 2 million have been recognised as "Personnel costs" in the income statement at 31 December

2018 for the fair-value of options granted under this plan.
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The following table provides additional details about movements in the plan:

Options at start of year

Granted

e NN 2 14385 ......
S
Exercised AR (87,784)
Options atend of year A\ 307,338

The information memorandum, prepared under art. 114-bis of Legislative Decree '58/98 and describing the
characteristics of the above plan, is publicly available on /the ~ Conipany's website at

http://www.prysmiangroup.com/, from its registered offices and from Borsa italiana/S.p.A.

Long-term incentive plan 2018-2020

The Shareholders’ Meeting of Prysmian S.p.A. held on 12 April 2018 approved an incentive plan for
employees of the Prysmian Group, including members of the Board of Directors of Prysmian S.p.A., and
granted the Board of Directors the necessary powers to establish and.implement this plan.

The reasons behind the introduction of the Plan are:

- generation of a strong commitment by the Group's management to achieving the targets for additional
growth in profits and return on capital employed;

- alignment of the interests of management with those of shareholders by using share-based incentives, and
promoting stable share ownership of the Company;

- to support synergies and the development of a cne-company identity by defining a common performance
objective and introducing a retention /mechanism, also further to the acquisition of General Cable
Corporation.

The Plan covers around 600 emplcyees-oi- Group companies and involves the grant of options, the number
of which depended on the achievemeni-of common business and financial performance objectives for all
participants.

The Plan consists of two parts:

- Co-investment;

- Performance Shares:

The Co-investment part allows each participant to defer and co-invest a variable portion of their annual
bonus for the yeairs 2018, 2019 and 2020; if the Target is achieved, this portion will be returned to the
participant in the form of/company shares with a higher value, depending on the type of co-investment profile
selected and the amauit co-invested.

The Performance (Shares part involves the prior establishment of a minimum and maximum number of
shares for each ‘participant, according to their company position and salary level. The number of shares

actually awarded will depend on the extent to which the Performance Conditions are achieved. Both parts of
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the plan are contingent upon achieving the Group's aggregate Adjusted EBITDA for the three years 2018-
2020, while the number of shares awarded for the Performance Share part will depend on the level of:

e aggregate Adjusted EBITDA (60%);

e net financial debt at 31 December 2020 (40%).
Total Shareholders Return acts as a multiplier and demultiplier of the total shares awarded for both parts of
the plan (+12.5% and -25%).
The employee incentive plan (LTI 2018-2020), introduced to support the integration wiiii-General Cable,
which got off to a rapid start after the mid-year closing, has been significantly affected-in tiie-short-term by
unexpected problems encountered in the Projects business during 2018. In fact, although the integration has
continued to be implemented in line with the roadmap for its completion and’ achievemgnt of the related
synergies by 2021, the operating issues, particularly involving the Western “Link project, have led
management to believe that the above incentive plan is at risk in target termis and nonetheless off track with
the new medium-term outlook. Also in light of the General Cable integration glan; currently in progress and
due for completion at the end of 2021, management has deemed it approptiate to bring the term of the LTI
into line with that of this integration plan, also to lend additional supporttc the latter's effective pursuit.
Therefore, the Company will submit for approval by the forthcoming Shareholders' Meeting a proposal to
adopt several amendments to the Plan, aimed at strengthenirig-its retention and motivational mechanism for
management (including the very high number of General Cable participants), who represent the Group's key
asset for delivering the ultimate strategy, staying constanily-cn track with shareholder interests.
The main amendments to the Plan, made for the“henefit of participants, concern the period and the
performance conditions; the period will be extende! to include 2021, making it a four-year plan, in line with
the integration roadmap. The revised term of the Rian will better measure the Group's medium-term growth

in value.

The following table provides additional details about movements in the plan:

......................... NumBer options Exereisapiice
Options at start of year ’ - -
L 4’588’930 -
Variation for target remeasurement .\ (4,044,853) -
Cancelled - -
Exercised - -
Options atend ofyear = ° 544,077 -

of which vested atend of year .~/ 544,077 -

of which exercisable - - -

of which not vested at end of year -

Costs of Euro 4 rniiiion.have been recognised as "Personnel costs" in the income statement at 31 December

2018 for the fair'value of options granted under this plan.
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In accordance with IFRS 2, the options allotted have been measured at their grant date fair value. The fair

value of the options has been determined using the following assumptions:

Grant date 12 Aprii2018

Residual life at grant date (in years) 2.76

Exercise price (Euro) -

Risk-free interest rate 0.49%
Expected dividend % 2.25%
Option fair value at grant date (Euro) 21.67

The information memorandum, prepared under art. 114-bis of Legislative Decree 58/98 and describing the
characteristics of the above plan, is publicly available on//the “~Company's website at

http://www.prysmiangroup.com/, from its registered offices and from Borsa liaiiana’ S.p.A.

As at 31 December 2018, there are no outstanding loans or guarantees by the Parent Company or its

subsidiaries to any of the directors, senior managers or statutory auditors.

22. AMORTISATION, DEPRECIATION, IMPAIRMENT AND IMPAIRMENT REVERSALS

These are detailed as follows:

(in millions of Euro)

""" 2018 2017
Depreciation of buildings, plant, machinery and equipment CN 155 121
Depreciation of other property, plant and equipment 13 11
Amortisation of intangible assets 59 45
Net other impairment of property, plant and equipmér;t" ................... 5 18
Net impairment of intangible assets involved in "ompaly reorganisations - 1
Net impairment of property, plant and equmemlnvo'\/eJ An company reorganisations - 3
T \\\N - Lo

The impairment losses of Euro 5 million mainly refer to the site in Delfzijl (Netherlands).
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23. OTHER EXPENSES

These are detailed as follows:

(in millions of Euro)

Professional services

Insurance

Maintenance costs

Selling costs 56 47
utiies 166 138
e — 45 ) S — ”
Vessel charter 113 88
Increases in/(releases of) provisions for risks 30 32
Losses on disposal of assets - 1 -
e AN/ o, o
7\ sos ois
SN . ;
Non-recurring other expenses o 69 18
A oo e

The Group expensed Euro 98 million in research and development costs in 2018 (Euro 73 million in 2017),

insofar as no criteria existed for their capitalisation.

24. SHARE OF NET PROFIT/(LOSS) OF EQUITY-ACCOUNTED COMPANIES

This is detailed as follows:

(in millions of Euro)

2018 2017
Share of net profit/(loss) of associates 59 42
Total 59 42

Further information can be found-in-Note 3. Equity-accounted investments.
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These are detailed as follows:

(in millions of Euro)
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2018§

Interest on EIB loans

Interest on Term Loan

Interest on Bridge Loan

Interest on non-convertible bond 19
Interest on convertible bond 2013 - non-monetary component ~~~~ _—_ /< 2

Interest on convertible bond 2013 - monetary component /. ”_ 4
Interest on convertible bond 2017 - non-monetary component 7/ 10 9
e R S . -
Amortisation of bank and financial fees and other expenses - 6
Employee benefit interest costs net of interest on plan assets 8 8
Other bank interest 10 7
Costs for undrawn credit fnes o< 4 4
Sundry bank fees S 14 12
Non-recurring other finance costs .~ 2 2
Finance costs for hyperinflaon (> -
T IO N > ;
— XX Lo o
Net losses on forward currency contracts 1 10
Losses on derivatives 1 10
Foreign currency exchange losses /. 307 249
Other non-operating finance costs - 2
Total finance costs 414 349

(*) The previously published prior year consolidated financial statements have been restated following the adoption of IFRS 15 and
IFRS 9. Further details can be found in Section/C. Restatement of comparative figures.

26. FINANCE INCOME

This is detailed as follows:

(in millions of Euro)

2018 2017

..... . .

4 5

11

Foreign currémﬁcy exchange gains 293 239
Total finance mcune 302 250
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27. TAXES

These are detailed as follows:

(in millions of Euro)

2018
Current income taxes 94
Deferred income taxes (26)
Total 68

2017 (%)

(*) The previously published prior year consolidated financial statements have been restated following the adoption of IFRS 15 and

IFRS 9. Further details can be found in Section C. Restatement of comparative figures.

The following table reconciles the effective tax rate with the Parent Company's-thecretical tax rate:

(in millions of Euro)

Taxrate . 2017 () . Tax rate
Profit/(loss) before taxes 325
Theoretical tax expense at Parent Company's nominal tax rate ~~ // > 48 24.0% 78 24.0%
Differences in nominal tax rates of foreign subsidiaries 4/ 5 2.5% 5 1.5%
Deferred tax assets not recognised or released in prior years . 2 1.0% 4) -1.2%
Net increase (release) of provision for tax disputes 1 0.5% Q) -0.3%
IRAP (ltalian regional business tax) N 7 3.5% 7 2.2%
Current taxes for prior years 2 1.0% 5 1.5%
Taxes on distributable reserves 2) -1.0% 2 0.6%
Release of prior year credit for taxes paid abroad /. - 0.0% Q) -0.3%
Antitrust provision L/~ 16 8.1% - 0.0%
Asset impairment N - 0.0% 7 2.2%
Non-deductible costs/ (non-taxable income) and other (11) -5.6% (10) -3.1%
Effective income taxes /> 68 34.1% 88 27.0%

(*) The previously published prior year consolidated finaricial statements have been restated following the adoption of IFRS 15 and

IFRS 9. Further details can be found in Section C. Restatement of comparative figures.
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28. EARNINGS/(LOSS) AND DIVIDENDS PER SHARE

Both basic and diluted earnings (loss) per share have been calculated by dividing the net result for the period
attributable to owners of the parent by the average number of the Company's outstanding shares.

Diluted earnings/(loss) per share have been affected by the options under the employee share purchase
plan (YES Plan). Diluted earnings/(loss) per share have not been affected by the Convertible Bond 2017,
whose conversion is currently "out of the money”, or by the options under the long-term incentive plan 2018-

2020 which, based on the amount of aggregate EBITDA to 31 December 2018, are nctyer vested.

(in millions of Euro)

2018 2017
Net profit/(loss) attributable to owners of the parent /o 130 241
Weighted average number of ordinary shares (thousands) ‘oL ) 244,957 211,684
Basic earnings per share (in Euro) 0.53 1.14
Net profit/(loss) attributable to owners of the parent for purposes of diluted earnings per share. 130 251
Weighted average number of ordinary shares (thousands) /) - 244,957 211,684
AN
New shares from conversion of bonds into shares (thousands) . - - 13,375
Dilution from incremental shares arising from exercise of stock options (thousar;a.S) - 97
\(/t\:ggzgicésfwerage number of ordinary shares to calculate d|lutecifi| vmgs per share 244,957 225,156
Diluted earnings per share (in Euro) 0.53 1.11

The dividend paid in 2018 amounted to approximately Euro 96 million (Euro 0.43 per share). A dividend of
Euro 0.43 per share for the year ended 31 Decernber-2018 will be proposed at the annual general meeting to
be held on 17 April 2019 in a single call; based on the number of outstanding shares, the above dividend per
share equates to a total dividend pay-out of approximately Euro 113 million. The current financial statements

do not reflect any liability for the proposed dividena.
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29. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As a global operator, the Group is exposed to legal risks primarily, by way of example, in the arcas of
product liability and environmental, antitrust and tax rules and regulations. The outcome of lega! disptites
and proceedings currently in progress cannot be predicted with certainty. An adverse outcome.in ane or
more of these proceedings could result in the payment of costs that are not covered, or not fully-cavered, by
insurance, which would therefore have a direct effect on the Group's financial position and resulis:

As at 31 December 2018, the contingent liabilities for which the Group has not recoghised any provision for
risks and charges, on the grounds that an outflow of resources is unlikely, but which can nonetheless be

estimated reliably, amount to approximately Euro 44 million.

30. COMMITMENTS

(&) Commitments to purchase property, plant and equipment and intangibie assets

Contractual commitments already entered into with third parties. ‘as-at’ 31 December 2018 and not yet
reflected in the financial statements amount to Euro 222 million for investments in property, plant and
equipment (Euro 85 million at the end of 2017); there were noc.commitments to third parties at 31 December

2018 for investments in intangible assets (like at the end of 2017):

(b) Operating lease commitments

Future commitments relating to operating leases aré as follows:

(in millions of Euro)

2018 2017
Due within 1 year 38 20
Due between 1 and 5 years 28 49
Due after more than5years ~ // /5 61 16
—————————& /7 Do o

31. RECEIVABLES FACTORING
With reference to factoring programmes, the Group has made use of without-recourse factoring of trade

receivables. The amount-of receivables factored but not yet paid by customers was Euro 336 million at 31
December 2018 (Eurc 363 million at 31 December 2017).

252



PRYSMIAN GROUP | EXPLANATORY NOTES

32. FINANCIAL COVENANTS

The credit agreements in place at 31 December 2018, details of which are presented in Note 12, require the
Group to comply with a series of covenants on a consolidated basis. The main covenants, classified by type,

are listed below:

a) Financial covenants
. Ratio between EBITDA and Net finance costs (as defined in the relevant agreements);
. Ratio between Net Financial Debt and EBITDA (as defined in the relevant agreements).

The covenants contained in the various credit agreements are as follows:

EBITDA/Net finance costs not less than Net financial debt / EBITDA® not more than

4.00x 3.00x

® The ratios are calculated on the basis of the definitions contained in the relevant/credit agreements. The Net Financial Debt-EBITDA
ratio can go as high as 3.5 following extraordinary transactions like acquisitions; 1o mare than three times, including on non-consecutive

occasions.

b) Non-financial covenants

A number of non-financial covenants have been established in line with market practice applying to
transactions of a similar nature and size. These cavenants involve a series of restrictions on the grant of
secured guarantees to third parties, on the /conduct of acquisitions or equity transactions, and on

amendments to the Company's by-laws.

Default events

The main default events are as follows:

. default on loan repayment cbligations;

. breach of financial covenants;,

) breach of some of the non-financial covenants;

. declaration of bankruptcy-or suibjection of Group companies to other insolvency proceedings;

. issuance of particuiariy significant judicial rulings;

. occurrence of events that may adversely and significantly affect the business, the assets or the

financial conditicns of/'the Group.

Should a default event occur, the lenders are entitled to demand full or partial repayment of the amounts lent

and not yet repaid; together with interest and any other amount due. No collateral security is required.
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Actual financial ratios reported at period end are as follows:

31 December 2018 31 December 2017
EBITDA / Net finance costs 10.08x 15.37x
Net financial debt / EBITDA ® 2.57x 0.58x

@ The ratios are calculated on the basis of the definitions contained in the relevant credit agreements.

The above financial ratios comply with both covenants contained in the relevant credit agreemenis and there

are no instances of non-compliance with the financial and non-financial covenants indicated abave.

33. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Transactions between Prysmian S.p.A. and subsidiaries with associates mainly refer to:

. trade relations involving purchases and sales of raw materials and-finished-goods;

. services (technical, organisational and general) provided by head office for the benefit of Group
companies;

. recharge of royalties for the use of trademarks, patents and technological know-how by Group
companies.

The related party disclosures also include the compensation paid to Directors, Statutory Auditors and Key

Management Personnel.

All the above transactions form part of the Groug’s centinuing operations.

The following tables provide a summary ¢f ieiated party transactions and balances for the years ended 31
December 2018 and 31 December 2017:
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(in millions of Euro)

31_ December 2018

Equity-accounted Compensation Total Total | Related
companies of directors, related reported | narty % of
statutory parties amount | total
auditors and
key
management
personnel
Equity-accounted investments 294 - 294
Trade receivables 3 - 3
Other receivables 5 - 5
Trade payables 5 - 5
Other payables - 1 1
Provisions for risks and charges 4 4
(in millions of Euro)
78w 31 December 2017 (*)
Equity-accounted Compensation Total Total Related
companies of directors, related— reported party % of
statutory parties amount total
auditors and
key
management
personnel .
Equity-accounted investments 217 - N/ 217 217 100.2%
Trade receivables 6 - /72 N\ . A\ 6 1,131 0.5%
Other receivables 5 5 437 1.1%
Trade payables 4 4 1,686 0.2%
Other payables - A NN 5 700 0.7%
Provisions for risks and charges 4 354 1.1%
(in millions of Euro)
_ 2018
Equity- | * Compensation Total Total Related
accounted-: of directors, related reported party % of
companies statutory parties amount total
auditors and
key
management
_______ personnel
Sales of goods and services 29 - 29 10,158 0.3%
Other income 5 - 5 136 3.7%
izglénatenals. consumables used and goods for (20) ) (20) (6,542) 0.3%
Personnelcosts .../l - (11) (11) (1,260) 0.9%
Otherexpenses L 7 - (1) @ (1,876) 0.0%
Share (_)f net profit/(loss) of equity-accounted 59 ) 59 59 100%
O AN S
(in millions of Euro)
2017 (*)
Equity- Compensation Total Total Related
accounted of directors, related reported party % of
companies statutory parties amount total
auditors and
key
management
______ personnel
Sales of goods and services 34 - 34 7,904 0.4%
Otherincome . 5 - 5 81 6.2%
IIr?eas\;\lllEr}naterials. consumables used and goods for (15) ) (15) (4,912) 0.3%
Personnel costs - (26) (26) (1,086) 2.4%
- 1) (1) (1,475) 0.1%
42 - 42 42 100.0%

(*) The previously published prior year consolidated financial statements have been restated following the adoption of IFRS 15 and
IFRS 9. Further details can be found in Section C. Restatement of comparative figures.
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Transactions with associates
Trade and other payables refer to goods and services provided in the ordinary course of the Group's
business. Trade and other receivables refer to transactions carried out in the ordinary course of the Greup's

business.

Key management compensation

Key management compensation is analysed as follows:

(in thousands of Euro)

2018 2017
Salaries and other short-term benefits - fixed pat 7,736 6,671
Salaries and other short-term benefits - variable pat 2,504 4,901
Other benefits Ly 853 255
Share-based payments e 232 12,294
e — AN s v 101
of which Directors 4,924 15,015

At 31 December 2018, payables for key management compensation amount to Euro 0.6 million, while

employee benefit obligations for key management compensation are-Euro 0.4 million.

34. COMPENSATION OF DIRECTORS AND STATUTGRY AUDITORS

The compensation of the executive and non-executive Directors of Prysmian S.p.A. came to Euro 5.52
million in 2018 (Euro 15.54 million in 2017). Tihe compensation of the Statutory Auditors of Prysmian S.p.A.
came to Euro 0.2 million in 2018, the same as tihe vear before. Compensation includes emoluments, and
any other types of remuneration, pension and-medical benefits, received for their service as Directors or
Statutory Auditors of Prysmian S.p.A./and other.companies included in the scope of consolidation, and that
have constituted a cost for Prysmiari.

35. ATYPICAL AND/OR UNUSUAL TRANSACTIONS

In accordance with the disclosures required by Consob Communication DEM/6064293 dated 28 July 2006, it

is reported that no atypical and/or unusual transactions took place during 2018.
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36. SIGNIFICANT NON-RECURRING EVENTS AND TRANSACTIONS
As required by Consob Communication DEM/6064293 dated 28 July 2006 and in accordance with the ESMA

Guidelines/2015/1415, the following table presents the effects of non-recurring events and trainsacticins on

the income statement:

(in millions of Euro)

2018 2017
Nomrecuring other ncomefempensesy N\
Antitrust investigations (69) (28)
Non-recurring other finance income/(costs):
Non-recurring other finance costs ~~~~_— 2 2)
T/ SN o 20

37. STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

After accounting for a positive change of Euro 4 million in working capital during the year, Euro 110 million in
tax payments and Euro 16 million in dividend receipts from asscciates and joint ventures, net cash flow from

operating activities in 2018 was a positive Euro 462 million.

Acquisitions and disposals during the year involved a net outflow of Euro 1,208 million, mainly attributable to
the acquisition of General Cable.

Net operating capital expenditure came to Euro/267 million in 2018, a large part of which relating to projects
to increase, rationalise and upgrade production capacity’and to develop new products. More details can be

found in Note 1. Property, plant and equipmeiit of these Explanatory Notes.

Cash flows provided by financing activities were influenced by the distribution of Euro 105 million in

dividends. Finance costs paid, net ¢f finance income received, came to Euro 84 million.
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38. INFORMATION PURSUANT TO ART.149-DUODECIES OF THE CONSOB ISSUER REGULATIONS

Pursuant to art. 149-duodecies of the Consob Issuer Regulations, the following table shows the fees in 2018

Ernst & Young network:

(in thousands of Euro)

Recipient

Supplier of services

Fees relating :

Fees relating

to 2018 to 2017

Audit services Parent Company - Prysmian S.p.A. | Ernst & Young ltalia 651 518
TR et & Young lialia 4i'3 a 407 ......

Foreign subsidiaries Ernst & Young Italia 168 159

Foreign subsidiaries st & Youn 3,075 1,424

Certification services Parent Company - Prysmian S.p.A. | Emst& Young ltalia | /< | 55 -

Italian subsidiaries Ernst & Young ltalia  © . .~/ - 7

Foreign subsidiaries Rete Emst& Young /- - -

Other services Parent Company - Prysmian S.p.A. | Ernst & Young Ital.i;. ......... - 55

Italian subsidiaries Ernst & Younqg talla ......... 10 2

Foreign subsidiaries Rete Ernst 73 261

Total 4,449 2,833

@ Tax and other services.

The increase in fees is due to growth in the scope’of the audit after the General Cable acquisition.
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39. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Antitrust Brazil

On 3 January 2019, the Brazilian antitrust authority informed Prysmian that the investigations, natifiea to the
Company in 2011, had been completed and gave it 10 working days for the submission of briefs, dulv filed
by Prysmian on 18 January 2019. The general superintendence of the Brazilian antitrust authority
(Administrative Council for Economic Defense — "CADE") published a Technical Note in the Biraziiian Federal
Official Gazette on 11 February 2019. The Technical Note sets out the conclusions of CADE's investigations
which lean towards the imposition of a fine on Prysmian. The Technical Note contains the recommendation
that the amount the CADE Tribunal could fine Prysmian be between15% and 20% of its turnover in Brazil in
2009. In any case, this recommendation is not binding for the CADE Tribunal. The Tribunal's decision, which
will be issued at the end of a public hearing, will be provisionally enforceabie but can'be challenged before
the Brazilian courts.

In view of the circumstances described, the directors, assisted by the Group's legal advisors, have decided

to recognise a provision of Euro 68 million.

Development of power transmission grid in Washington D.C.

On 6 February 2019, the Group signed an agreement to pariicipate.in a project to upgrade the US capital
district's power transmission system. The multi-stage prciect is-warth approximately USD 190 million and is
scheduled to run between 2019 and 2026. The first batcih-of cables worth USD 13 million will be delivered by
the end of 2019.

Cables will be manufactured at Prysmian's state-of-the-art factory in Abbeville (South Carolina, USA).

Contract to develop a new submarine cahle system in Canada (Fundy Isles)

On 11 February 2019, the Group was awarded a new contract worth Euro 17 million by New Brunswick
Power Corporation (NB Power), the laigest electric utility in Canada, based in the province of New Brunswick.
The Fundy Isles project involves the developiment of a new submarine cable link to upgrade the capacity of
the existing transmission system in the RPassamaquoddy Region of the Bay of Fundy. The new submarine
power cable will connect Deer-isiand, Campobello Island and Grand Manan Island to the Canadian
province's mainland power grid.

The submarine cable cores will be produced at Prysmian's centre of excellence in Montereau (France), while
the cable armouring wili be manufactured at its state-of-the-art factory in Nordenham (Germany), part of the

Group after the Generai Cable acquisition. Completion of the project is scheduled for October 2019.

Western Link

On 19 February 2015, a problem was detected in the Western Link interconnector, leading to its temporary
switch-off.

The tests and investigations carried out so far have located the problem necessitating the temporary switch-

off within the southern land cable section.
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Prysmian has already started mobilising specialised teams on site to investigate the nature of the problem
further. In parallel, the Group is taking every necessary step to carry out the repairs in the shortest possible
time with the least logistical and environmental impact.

As a result of these events, the Group's management has assessed the need for a provisiori 6f Euio 25
million. This provision is against contractual penalties, accruing over the period needed for the repair in
qguestion, and against costs of producing an additional length of cable for any future repairs. or cther needs

that might arise.

Mediobanca loan and partial repayment of the Bridge Loan

On 20 February 2019, the Group entered into an agreement with Mediobanca for-a Zuro 100 million
medium-term loan for 5 years from the date of signing, with a bullet repayment at maturity. In parallel, a
partial repayment of Euro 100 million against the Bridge Loan was instructed . an 25 February 2019 for

execution on 6 March 2019.

Amendments to the long-term incentive plan 2018-2020

The employee incentive plan (LTI 2018-2020), introduced to support the“integration with General Cable,
which got off to a rapid start after the mid-year closing, has been signiticantly affected in the short-term by
unexpected problems encountered in the Projects business during-2018. In fact, although the integration has
continued to be implemented in line with the roadmap ‘for-iis-coampletion and achievement of the related
synergies by 2021, the operating issues, particulariy- involving the Western Link project, have led
management to believe that the above incentive plan is at risk in target terms and nonetheless off track with
the new medium-term outlook. Also in light of the - General Cable integration plan, currently in progress and
due for completion at the end of 2021, management has deemed it appropriate to bring the term of the LTI
into line with that of this integration plan, also to lend additional support to the latter's effective pursuit.
Therefore, the Company will submit for/approval by the forthcoming Shareholders' Meeting a proposal to
adopt several amendments to the Plan/aimed at strengthening its retention and motivational mechanism for
management (including the very high-number of General Cable participants), who represent the Group's key
asset for delivering the ultimate strategy, staying constantly on track with shareholder interests.

The main amendments to the Pian,-made for the benefit of participants, concern the period and the
performance conditions; the periad-wiil'be extended to include 2021, making it a four-year plan, in line with
the integration roadmap. The revised term of the Plan will better measure the Group's medium-term growth

in value.

Milan, 5 March 2019

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
THE CHAIRMAN

Claudio De Conto
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The following companies have been consolidated line-by-line:

Fully consolidated subsidiaries on a line-by-line basis:
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Legal name Office Curf;:?\gm" Share capital % ownership Direct parent company
Europe
Austria
Prysmian OEKW GmbH Wien Euro 2,053,007.56 100.00% Prysmian Cavi e Sistemi S.r.l.
Belgium
Draka Belgium N.V. Antwerpen Eure 61,973.38 98.52% Draka Holding B.V.
"""""""""" 1.48%  Draka Kabel B.V.
Denmark
Prysmian Group Denmark A/S Albertslund Lo L] DanisnKrone ... 40,001,000 . .: 100.00% _ DrakaHolding B.V.
Estonia
Prysmian Group Baltics AS Keila Euro 1,664,000 100.00% Prysmian Group Finland OY
Finland R
Prysmian Group Finland OY Kirkkonummi Euro 100,000 77.7972% Prysmian Cavi e Sistemi S.r.l.
France
Prysmian (French) Holdings S.A.S. Paon NN ] Buro 129026210 . 100.00% _ Prysmian Cavie SistemiS.r.l.
Prysmian Cables et Systémes France S.A.S. Sens AN\ Euro 136,800,000 100.00% Prysmian (French) Holdings S.A.S.
Draka Comteq France S.A.S. Paron Euro 246,554,316 100.00% Draka France S.A.S.
Draka Fileca S.A.S. Sainte Geneviéve Euro 5,439,700 100.00% Draka France S.A.S.
Draka Paricable S.A.S. Sainte Genev Euro 5,177,985 100.00% Draka France S.A.S.
DrkaFrance SAS. o ..oMamelavalee BUO o 281551700 10000% _ Draka HoldingB.Y.
P.O.R. S.AS Mame La Vallée Euro 100,000 100.00% Draka France S.A.S.
Silec Cable, S. A. S. Montreau-Fault-Yonne Euro 60,037,000 100.00% Grupo General Cable Sistemas, S.L.
Germany AN
Prysmian Kabel und Systeme GmbH Betiin Euro 15,000,000 93.75% Draka Cable Wuppertal GmbH
6.25% Prysmian S.p.A.
Prysmian Unterstuetzungseinrichtung Lynen GmbH _Eschweiler Deutsche Mark 50,000 100.00% Prysmian Kabel und Systeme GmbH
Draka Cable Wuppertal GmbH L Woppertal ] U 25000 100.00% _ DrakaDeutschland GmbH
Draka Comteq Berlin GmbH & Co.KG Berlin Deutsche Mark 46,000,000 50.10% Prysmian Netherlands B.V.
Euro 1 49.90% Draka Deutschland GmbH
Draka Comteq Germany Verwaltungs GmbH /7 / Koln Euro 25,000 100.00% Draka Comteq B.V.
Draka Comteq Germany GmbH & Co.KG N, Koln Euro 5,000,000 100.00% Draka Comteq B.V.
Draka Deutschland Erste Beteiligungs- GmbH NN\ Wuppertal Euro 25,000 100.00% Draka Holding B.V.
Draka Deutschland GmbH NN\ Wuppertal Euro 25,000 90.00% Draka Deutschland Erste Beteiligungs GmbH
10.00% Draka Deutschland Zweite Beteiligungs GmbH
Draka Deutschland Verwaltungs GmbH ~——\ Wuppertal Deutsche Mark 50,000 100.00% Draka Cable Wuppertal GmbH
Draka Deutschland Zweite Beteiligungs GmbH . Wuppertal Euro 25,000 100.00% Prysmian Netherlands B.V.
Draka Kabeltechnik GmbH N NN Wuppertal Euro 25,000 100.00% Draka Cable Wuppertal GmbH
Draka Senice GmbH N Nuremberg Euro 25,000 100.00% Draka Cable Wuppertal GmbH
Hohn GmbH N\ ) Wuppertal Deutsche Mark 1,000,000 100.00% Draka Deutschland GmbH
Kaiser Kabel GmbH NN 4 A Wuppertal ] DeutscheMark ... 9,000,000 ... 100.00% _ Draka Deutschland GmbH .
NKF Holding (Deutschland) GmbH.-i.L/ Wuppertal Euro 25,000 100.00% Prysmian Netherlands B.V.
Norddeutsche Seekabelwerke' GmbH Nordenham Euro 50,025,000 100.00% Grupo General Cable Sistemas, S.L.
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Legal name Office Share capital % ownership Direct parent company

U.K.

P

P N . }

Prysmian Cables (2000) Ltd. Eastleigh 1 100.00% Prysmian Cables & Systems Ltd.

Prysmian Cables and Systems International Ltd. Eastleigh 1 100.00% Prysmian Cavi e Sistemi S.r.1.

Cable Makers Properties & Senices Limited Esher 39.08 75.00% Prysmian Cables & Systems Ltd.
25.00% Third parties

Comergy Ltd. Eastleigh 1 100.00% Prysmian Cavi e Sistemi S.r.1.

Prysmian Pension Scheme Trustee Limited Eastleigh _British Pound 1 100.00% Prysmian S.p.A.

P i i itish Pou i

Di [¢] .00% ry: p

Draka Comteq UK Ltd. Eastleigh /-Britis 100.00% Prysmian UK Group Ltd

Draka UK Ltd. Eastleigh N/ Britichh Pound 1 100.00% Prysmian UK Group Ltd.

DrakaUKGrowpltd  Eastleigh /.  BitshPound 2 10000% _PrysmianUKGrowpltd.
Prysmian Powerlink Senices Ltd. Eastleigh /£ British Pound 46,000,100 100.00% Prysmian UK Group Ltd.

General Cable Holdings (UK) Limited tondon /o BritishPound 20232084 100.00% __GK Technologies, Incorporated
General Cable Senices Europe Limited London . British Pound 1,178,495 100.00% General Cable Holdings (UK) Limited

NSW Technology Limited Aberdeen __ British Pound 10,000 100.00% Norddeutsche Seekabelwerke GmbH

Ireland

Ital
_Ff!.y.)s_/mi_?n.9?‘.‘&?..?!.5.‘.9_?!11§_-.'.-.'; _____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ BUIO ] 50,000000 : 100.00%  Prysmian SpA.
Prysmian Cavi e Sistemi ltalia S.r.1. Euro 77,143,249 100.00% Prysmian S.p.A.
PrysmianTreasury S.Ll. MR NN ] B e reee e 80,000000 ... 100.00%  Prysmian S.p.A.
Prysmian PowerLink S.rl. e MHA ] BUO e 100,000,000 ... 100.00%  Prysmian S.pA. e
Fibre Ottiche Sud - F.O.S. S.r.l. Battipaglia Euro 47,700,000 100.00% Prysmian S.p.A.
Prysmian Electronics S.r.l. /. / Milan Euro 10,000 100.00% Prysmian Cavi e Sistemi S.r.1.
General Cable talia S.r.l. e MilaN ) B0 10000 .. 100.00% __Grupo General Cable Sistemas, S.L.
Norway
Prysmian Group Norge AS Drarnmen Norwegian Krone 22,500,000 100.00% Draka Holding B.V.
General Cable Nordic A/S .. Vestby Norwegian Krone 1,674,000 100.00% Grupo General Cable Sistemas, S.L.
The Netherlands
Draka Comteq B.V. Ainsterdam Euro 1,000,000 100.00% Draka Holding B.V.
Draka Comteq Fibre B.V. / N\, Eindhoven Euro 18,000 100.00% Prysmian Netherlands Holding B.V.
Draka Holding B.V. Amsterdam Euro 52,229,320.50 100.000% Prysmian S.p.A.
Draka Kabel B.V. Amsterdam Euro 2,277,976.68 100.00% Prysmian Netherlands B.V.
Domne Draad B, TR NiewBergen T Euo T 2813437 100.00%  Prysmian Netherlands B.v. T
NKF Vastgoed | B.V. SN Delft Euro 18,151.21 99.00% Draka Holding B.V.
1.00% Prysmian Netherlands B.V.
NKF VastgoedmBv. \ Delft Euro 18,151.21 99.00% Draka Deutschland GmbH
1.00% Prysmian Netherlands B.V.
Prysmian Netherlands B.V. N NN Delft Euro 1 100.00% Prysmian Netherlands Holding B.V.
Prysmian Netherlands Holding B.V. Amsterdam Euro 1 100.00% Draka Holding B.V.
General Cable Holdings Netherlands C.V. 1\ Amsterdam Euro 159,319,137 95.50% GK Technologies, Incorporated
1.00% GC Global Holdings, Inc.
P — 3.50% Phelps Dodge National Cables Corporation
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Legal name Office Currency Share capital % ownership Direct parent company
Portugal
General Cable Investments, SGPS, Sociedade Unipessoal, S.A. Funchal Euro 8,500,020 100.00% GK Technologies, Incorporated
General Cable Celcat, Energia e Telecomunicagoes SA PeroPinheiro ] BUr0 /)l 13,500,000 100.00% __General Cable Investments, SGPS, Sociedade Unipessoal, S.A.
Czech Republic
Draka Kabely, s.r.o. Velke Mezirici Czech Karura 255,000,000 100.00% Draka Holding B.V.
Romania
Prysmian Cabluri SiSisteme SA. Slatina Romanianleu 103850920 99.9995%  DrakaHoldingBLY.

0.0005% Prysmian Cavi e Sistemi S.r.1.
Russia
Limited Liability Company Prysmian RUS Rybinsk city Russian Rouble 230,000,000 99.00% Draka Holding B.V.

1.00% Prysmian Cavi e Sistemi S.r.l.
Limited Liability Company "Rybinskelektrokabel" Rybinsk city Russian Rouble 90,312,000 100.00% Limited Liability Company Prysmian RUS
Slovakia
Prysmian Kablo s.r.o. Bratislava Zuro 21,246,001 99.995% Prysmian Cavi e Sistemi S.r.l.
) 0.005%  Prysmian S.p.A.

.S.L. anta Perpetua de Moged X .00% raka Holding B.V.

Draka Holding ,S.L. Santa Perpetua.de Mogoda Euro 24,000,000 99.99999% Draka Holding B.V.
0.00001% Marmauvil.S.L. (Sociedad Unipersonal)
_GC Latin America Holdings, S.L. Barcelona * -, Euro 151,042,030 100% General Cable Holdings (Spain), S.L. .
General Cable Holdings (Spain), S.L. Baicelona . Euro 138,304,698.48 99.349% GK Technologies, Incorporated
0.6510% General Cable Overseas Holdings, LLC
Grupo General Cable Sistemas, S.L. . Barcelona Euro 22,116,018.7 93.75% General Cable Holdings (Spain), S.L.
6.25% GC Latin America Holdings, S.L.
Sweden
Prysmian Group North Europe AB /b SSI0 SwedishKrona 100100 100.00%  DrakaHoldingBV.
Draka Kabel Swerige AB A\ Nassio- Swedish Krona 100,000 100.00% Prysmian Group North Europe AB
Turkey
Turk Prysmian Kablo Ve Sistemleri A.S. Mudanya Turkish new Lira 141,733,652 83.746% Draka Holding B.V.
"""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""" 0.705% _ Turk Prysmian Kabio Ve Sistemleri A.S. T
15.549% Third parties
Tasfiye Halinde Draka Istanbul Asansor lthalat Ihracat Uret{Aﬂ__I:i_qgryjr_!__i_g_._ Sti. Osmangazi-Bursa Turkish new Lira 2,080,000 100.00% Draka Holding B.V.
Tasfiye Halinde Draka Comteq Kablo Limited Sirketi VA VA Osmangazi-Bursa Turkish new Lira 45,818,775 99.99995% Draka Comteq B.V.
0.00005% Prysmian Netherlands B.V.

Hungary
Prysmian MKM Magyar Kabel Muvek Kit. Budapest Hungarian Forint 5,000,000,000 100.00% Prysmian Cavi e Sistemi S.r.1.
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Legal name Office Currency Share capital % ownership Direct parent company
North America
Canada
Prysmian Cables and Systems Canada Ltd. Saint John Canadizn Dollar 1,000,000 100.00% Draka Holding B.V.
Draka Elevator Products, Incorporated Saint John n/a 100.00% Prysmian Cables and Systems USA, LLC
General Cable Company Ltd. Brampton Canauian Doliar 113,052,213 100.00% General Cable Canada Holdings LLC
Cayman Islands
Phelps Dodge Yantai China Holdings, Inc. George Town / MJS Doitar 99 66.67% YA Holdings, Ltd.
33.33% Third parties
YA Holdings, Ltd. George Town ~___~US Dollar, 50,000 100.00% General Cable Company Ltd.
Dominican Republic
General Cable Caribbean, S.R.L. Santa Domingo Oeste /_-Dominican Peso 2,100,000 99.995% GK Technologies, Incorporated
0.005% Diversified Contractors, Inc.
Trinidad and Tobago
General Cable Trinidad Limited Port of Spain ~ Trinidadian Dollar 100 100.00% GK Technologies, Incorporated
U.S.A.
_Prysmian Cables and Systems (US)Inc. . lasvegas &/ s usDollar . ........330517608 100.00% __ DrakaHolding B.V.
Prysmian Cables and Systems USA, LLC Wilmington US Dollar 10 100.00% Prysmian Cables and Systems (US) Inc.
Prysmian Construction Senvces Inc. Wilmington N\ US Dollar 1,000 100.00% Prysmian Cables and Systems USA, LLC
Draka Elevator Products, Inc. Boston N\ US Dollar 1 100.00% Prysmian Cables and Systems USA, LLC
Draka Transport USA, LLC Boston/ . US Dollar 0 100.00% Prysmian Cables and Systems USA, LLC
Diversified Contractors, Inc. Highland Heighis US Dollar 1,000 100.00% General Cable Industries, Inc.
GC Global Holdings, Inc. Higiland Heigits US Dollar 1,000 100.00% General Cable Owerseas Holdings, LLC
General Cable Canada Holdings LLC Highlaric Heighits US Dollar 0 100.00% General Cable Industries, Inc.
General Cable Corporation /- Highland Heights US Dollar 1 100.00% Prysmian Cables and Systems (US) Inc.
General Cable Industries LLC /_/_Highland Heights US Dollar 0 100.00% General Cable Industries, Inc.
General Cable Industries, Inc. /- Highland Heights US Dollar 10 100.00% GK Technologies, Incorporated
General Cable Overseas Holdings, LLC Highiand Heights US Dollar 0 100.00% GK Technologies, Incorporated
General Cable Technologies Corporation Highland Heights US Dollar 1,000 100.00% General Cable Industries, Inc.
Phelps Dodge Enfield Corporation ~._Doral US Dollar 800,000 100.00% General Cable Industries, Inc.
Phelps Dodge International Corporation Doral US Dollar 100,000 100.00% General Cable Industries, Inc.
Phelps Dodge National Cables Corporation AN\ Doral US Dollar 10 100.00% General Cable Industries, Inc.
GK Technologies, Incorporated /e Highland Heights US Dollar 1,000 100.00% General Cable Corporation
Central/South America
Argentina
Prysmian Energia Cables y Sistemas de Argentina S.A. .~/ / Buenos Aires Argentine Peso 135,549,900 46.776% Prysmian Consultora Conductores e Instalaciones SAIC
52.933% Draka Holding B.V.
0.134% Prysmian Cabos e Sistemas do Brasil S.A.
0.158% Third parties
Prysmian Consultora Conductores Instalaciories SAIC._ Buenos Aires Argentine Peso 48,571,242 95.00% Draka Holding B.V.

5.00% Prysmian Cavi e Sistemi S.r.1.
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Legal name Office Currency Share capital % ownership Direct parent company
Brazil
[Prysmian Cabos e Sistemas doBrasil S.A. Sorocaba Brazilian Real [~ 547,630,604.56 91.844% _ Prysmian CavieSistemiS.rl.
0.040% Prysmian S.p.A.
1.687% Draka Holding B.V.
6.428% Draka Comteq B.V.
DrakaComteq Cabos BrasilS.A SamaCatina __ BraziianReal | 27,467,522 49.352% _DrakaComteqBY.
50.648% Prysmian Cabos e Sistemas do Brasil S.A.
General Cable Brasil Industria e Comércio de Condutores Elétricos Ltda Pocos de Caldas Brazilian Redl 536,087,471 99.99% Grupo General Cable Sistemas, S.L.
0.01% General Cable Holdings (Spain) S.L.
Chile
Prysmian Cables Chile SpA Santiago _~.Chile Pesg 1,900,000,000 100.00% Prysmian Cabos e Sistemas do Brasil S.A.
Cobre Cerrillos S.A. Cerrillos /. ___-US.Dollar’ 74,574,400 99.80% General Cable Holdings (Spain), S.L.
............... 0.20%  Third parties
Colombia
PDIC Colombia S.A. Bogota /. /[ / Cdlombian Peso 594,064,000 95.00% Conducen, S.R.L.
5.00% Alcap Comercial S.A.
Productora de Cables Procables S.A.S. Bogota ._Colombian Peso 1,902,964,285 99.96% GC Latin America Holdings, S.L.
0.04% GK Technologies, Incorporated
Costa Rica
Conducen, S.R.L. Heredia N\ Costa Rican Colon 1,845,117,800 73.52% GC Latin America Holdings, SL
26.48% Cahosa S.A.
Ecuador
Cables Electricos Ecuatorianos C.A. CABLEC Quito US Dollar 243,957 67.14% General Cable Holdings (Spain), S.L.
32.86% Third parties
El Salvador
Conducen Phelps Dodge Centroamerica-El Salvador, S.A. de C.V. Cus_;:gg[g_q ______ US Dollar 22,858 99.95% Conducen, S.R.L.
0.05% Third parties
Guatemala
Proveedora de Cables y Alambres PDCA Guatemala, S.A. Guatemala City Guatemalan Quetzal 100,000 99.00% Conducen, S.R.L.
1.00% Third parties

Honduras
El

ahosa
Mexico
Draka Durango S. de R.L. de C.V. Durango Mexican Peso 163,471,787 99.996% Draka Mexico Holdings S.A. de C.V.
0.004% Draka Holding B.V
Draka Mexico Holdings SA.deCvV. /7 ~~  Duango ~ ~~~~~~~~~~~~ MexicanPeso 57036501  99.999998%  DrakaHoldingBv ===
0.000002% Draka Comteq B.V.
NK Mexico Holdings S.A. de C.V. Mexico City Mexican Peso n/a 100.00% Prysmian Group Finland OY
Prysmian Cables y Sistemas de Mexico S. de R. L. de C. V. Durango Mexican Peso 173,050,500 99.9983% Draka Holding B.V
0.0017% Draka Mexico Holdings S.A. de C.V.
General Cable de Mexico, S.A de C.V. Tetla Mexican Peso 1,329,621,471 80.41733609% General Cable Industries, Inc.

19.58266361%

Conducen, S.R.L.

0.00000015%

General Cable Technologies Corporation

0.00000015%

GK Technologies, Incorporated

General de Cable de Mexico del Norte, S.A de V.. Piedras Negras Mexican Peso 10,000 99.80% GK Technologies, Incorporated
0.20% General Cable Industries, Inc.
PDIC Mexico, S.A. de C.V. San Jose Mexican Peso 50,000
0.002% Third parties
Prestolite de Mexico, S.A. de C.V. . " Sonora Mexican Peso 50,000 99.80% General Cable Industries, Inc.
0.20% GK Technologies, Incorporated
Senvicios Latinoamericanos GC, S.A: de C.V. Puebla Mexican Peso 50,000 99.998% General Cable de Mexico, S.A de C.V.
0.002% General Cable Technologies Corporation
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Legal name Office Currency Share capital % ownership Direct parent company
Nicaragua
Conducen Nicaragua y Compania de Responsabilidad Limitada Managua Nicaraguan Cordoia n/a 99.00% Conducen, S.R.L.
1.00% GK Technologies, Incorporated
Panama
Alambres y Cables de Panama, S.A. Panama US Dollar 800,000 78.08% General Cable Industries, Inc.
"""""""""" 21.92%  Cahosa S.A.
Alcap Comercial S.A. Panama US Dollar 10,000 100.00% Conducen, S.R.L.
Cahosa S.A. Panama us Dgli_g_v n/a 100.00% GK Technologies, Incorporated
Peru
General Cable Peru S.A.C. Santiago de Surco(Lima) Peruvian.Soi 90,327,867.50 99.99999% GC Latin America Holdings, S.L.
7 N\ Y 0.00001% __Third Paries
Africa
Angola
General Cable Condel, Cabos de Energia e Telecomunicagoes SA Luanda Arigoian/Kwanza 20,000,000 99.80% General Cable Celcat, Energia e Telecomunicagoes SA
SV 0.20% Third parties
Botswana
General Cable Botswana (Pty) Ltd. Gaborone West Industrial .~/ Botswana Pula 100 100% National Cables (Pty) Ltd.
Ivory Coast
SICABLE - Sociéte Ivoirienne de Cables S.A Abidjan CFA Franc 740,000,000 51.00% Prysmian Cables et Systemes France S.A.S.
T e e R T TTTTT49.00%  Thind parties T
Mauritius
GC Specialty & Automotive < US Dollar 200 100% GK Technologies, Incorporated
General Cable Middle East AN US Dollar 2,897,150 100% GK Technologies, Incorporated
General Cable Trading o Portlows T T USDollar 81,097,100 100%  GK Technologies, incomorated
South Africa
General Cable Phoenix South Africa Pty. Ltd. Phoenix "~ " South African Rand 1,000 100.00% GK Technologies, Incorporated
National Cables Pty)ltd.  Johamesbwg . SouhAficanRand 101 _ 69.30% _Phelps Dodge National Cables Coporation
30.70% General Cable Holdings Netherlands C.V.
Tunisia
Auto Cables TunisieSA. [/ Grombaia _ TunisanDinar 4050000 _ 50998% _Prysmian Cables et Systemes France SAS.
49.002% Third parties
Eurelectric Tunisie S.A. . Menzel Bouzelfa Tunisian Dinar 1,850,000 99.97% Prysmian Cables et Systémes France S.A.S.
0.005% Prysmian (French) Holdings S.A.S.
0.005% Prysmian Cavi e Sistemi S.r.I.
0.020% Third parties
Oceania
Australia
Prysmian Australia Pty Ltd. Liverpool Australian Dollar 56,485,736 100.00% Prysmian Cavi e Sistemi S.r.1.
New Zealand /7 7
Prysmian New Zealand Ltd. NA_/ Auckland New Zealand Dollar 10,000 100.00% Prysmian Australia Pty Ltd.
General Cable Holdings New Zealand NN\ Christchurch New Zealand Dollar 160,671,634 86.17% GK Technologies, Incorporated
12.96% General Cable Industries, Inc.
0.87% GC Global Holdings, Inc.
General Cable New Zealand Limited Christchurch New Zealand Dollar 48,000,100 100.00% General Cable Holdings New Zealand
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Saudi Arabia
Prysmian Powerlink Saudi LLC Al Khoabar Saudi Arabian Riyal 500,000 95.00% Prysmian PowerLink S.r.I.

- 5.00%  Third parties
China
Prysmian Tianjin Cables Co. Ltd. Tianjin US Dollar 36,790,000 67.00% Prysmian (China) Investment Company Ltd.
- —— —,———_e_—e_———_—e——AASASASASASASASASASASASAS S S S 55— mid pates....SSsSsSssseeee
Prysmian Cable (Shanghai) Co.Ltd. Shanghai 5,000,000 100.00% Prysmian (China) Investment Company Ltd.
Prysmian Wuxi Cable Co. Ltd . Wuxi Sl 29941250 100.00% ___Prysmian (China) Investment Company Ltd.
Prysmian Hong Kong Holding Ltd. Hong Kong 72,000,000 100.00% Prysmian Cavi e Sistemi S.r.1.
Prysmian (China) Investment Company Ltd. Bejing 72,003,061 100.00% Prysmian Hong Kong Holding Ltd.
Nantong Haixun Draka Elevator Products Co. LTD Nantong 2,400,000 75.00% Draka Elevator Product Inc.
R 55.00%  Thind parties
Nantong Zhongyao Draka Elevator Products Co. LTD Nantong 2,000,000 60.00% Draka Elevator Product Inc.

Draka Cables (Hong Kong) Limited Hong Kong /. ~Heng Kong Dollar 6,500,000  99.9999985% Draka Cableteq Asia Pacific Holding Pte Ltd.
0.0000015% Cable Supply and Consulting Co. Pte Ltd.

Draka Shanghai Optical Fibre Cable Co Ltd. Shanghai US Dollar 15,580,000

45.00% Third parties

SuzhouDrakaCable Co.Ltd suzhou /L Chinese Renminbi (Yuan) 174,500,000 100.00% _ Draka Cableteq Asia Pacific Holding PteLtd
Prysmian PowerLink Asia Co. Ltd Suzhou /. N Euro 0 100.00% Prysmian (China) Investment Company Ltd.
Prysmian Technology Jiangsu Co. Ltd. Yixing Euro 51,150,100 100.00% Prysmian (China) Investment Company Ltd.
_Phelps Dodge Yantai Cable Co., Ltd. . Zhaoyuan (Yaniai) - 7 GsDellar T 18,000,000 . .. .60.00% _ Phelps Dodge Yantai China Holdings Inc.
40.00% Third parties
Prestolite Wire (Shanghai) Company, Ltd Shanghai N\ US Dollar 300,000 100.00% General Cable Industries, Inc.
Philippines
Draka Philippines Inc. Cebu Philippine Peso 253,652,000 99.9999975% Draka Holding B.V.
0.0000025% Third parties
India
Associated Cables Pu. Ltd. //Mumbai Indian Rupee 61,261,900 100.00% Oman Cables Industry (SAOG)
Jaguar Communication Consultancy Senices Private Ltd. /£ Mumbai Indian Rupee 76,027,030 99.99998% Prysmian Cavi e Sistemi S.r.l.
__________ 0.00002% _ Prysmian S.p.A. e
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Legal name Office Currency Share capital % ownership Direct parent company
Indonesia
PT.Prysmian Cables Indonesia Cikampek US Dollar— . 67,300,000 99.48% Draka Holding B.V.
0.52% Prysmian Cavi e Sistemi S.r.1.
Malaysia e T
Sindutch Cable Manufacturer Sdn Bhd Melaka Malaysian-Rirnggit 500,000 100.00% Draka Cableteq Asia Pacific Holding Pte Ltd
Draka Marketing and Senices Sdn Bhd Melaka Malaysian Ringgit 500,000 100.00% Cable Supply and Consulting Company Pte Ltd
Draka (Malaysia) Sdn Bhd Melaka Malaysian Ringgit 8,000,002 100.00% Cable Supply and Consulting Company Pte Ltd
Oman N
Oman Cables Industry (SAOG) Al Rusayl ‘Omani Riyal 8,970,000 51.17% Draka Holding B.V.
48.83% Third parties
Oman Aluminium Processing Industries LLC Sohar »__ Omani Riyal 4,366,000 51.00% Oman Cables Industry (SAOG)
49.00% Third parties
Singapore
Prysmian Cables Asia-Pacific Pte Ltd. Singapore /. Singapore Dollar 213,324,290 100.00% Draka Holding B.V.
Prysmian Cable Systems Pte Ltd. Singapore /AN Singapore Dollar 25,000 50.00% Draka Holding B.V.
50.00% Prysmian Cables & Systems Ltd.
Draka Offshore Asia Pacific Pte Ltd Singapore Singapore Dollar 51,000 100.00% Draka Cableteq Asia Pacific Holding Pte Ltd
Draka Cableteq Asia Pacific Holding Pte Ltd Singapore N\, Singapore Dollar 28,630,503.70 100.00% Draka Holding B.V.
Singapore Cables Manufacturers Pte Ltd Singapore \ Singapore Dollar 1,500,000 100.00% Draka Cableteq Asia Pacific Holding Pte Ltd
Cable Supply and Consulting Company Private Limited Singapore o Singapore Dollar | 50,000 100.00% __Draka Cableteq Asia Pacific Holding Pte Ltd
Draka Comteq Singapore Pte Ltd Singapare.._ Singapore Dollar 500,000 100.00% Draka Comteq B.V.
Draka NK Cables (Asia) pte Itd Singapore Singapore Dollar 200,000 100.00% Prysmian Group Finland OY
Thailand A\
MCI-Draka Cable Co. Ltd Bangkor-. Thai Baht 435,900,000 70.250172% Draka Cableteq Asia Pacific Holding Pte Ltd
0.000023% Draka (Malaysia) Sdn Bhd
........ 0.000023% __Sindutch Cable Manufacturer SdnBhd
0.000023% Singapore Cables Manufacturers Pte Ltd
29.749759% Third parties
General Cable Asia Pacific & Middle East Co., Ltd. Bangkak Thai Baht 30,000,000 100.00% éi{-fé-éﬁﬁaibéi-é-s-:'I-ﬁ-c-(-:;r-baé-t-éa ----------------------------------------------
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Legal name Office Currency. Share capital % ownership Direct parent company
Europe
Germany
Kabeltrommel GmbH & Co.KG Troisdorf Eurg 10,225,837.65 29.68% Prysmian Kabel und Systeme GmbH
13.50% Draka Cable Wuppertal GmbH
____________ 1.75% ___ Norddeutsche Seekabelwerke GmbH .
55.07% Third parties
Kabeltrommel GmbH e Troisdorf DeutscheMark  ......5L000 . 17.65% ___ Prysmian Kabel und Systeme GmbH
23.53% Draka Cable Wuppertal GmbH
58.82% Third parties
Nostag GmbH & Co. KG Oldenburg /o . /Euro 540,000 33.00% Norddeutsche Seekabelwerke GmbH
67.00% Third parties
U.K.
Rodco Ltd. Woking N\ British Pound 5,000,000 40.00% Prysmian Cables & Systems Ltd.
60.00% Third parties
Poland
Eksa Sp.z.0.0 Sokoléw Polish Zloty 394,000 29.949% Prysmian Cavi e Sistemi S.r.l.
70.051% Third parties
Russia
Elkat Ltd. Moscow Russian Rouble 10,000 40.00% Prysmian Group Finland OY
60.00% Third parties
Central/South America
Chile
Colada Continua Chilena S.A. Quilicura (Santiago) Chile Peso 100 41.00% Cobre Cerrillos S.A. (41 shares)
' 59.00%  Thid patties
Asia
China
Yangtze Optical Fibre and Cable Joint Stock Limited Co. Wuhan Chinese Renminbi (Yuan) 757,905,108 Draka Comteq B.V.
Third parties
Yangtze Optical Fibre and Cable (Shanghai) Co. Ltd. ~ Shanghai Chinese Renminbi (Yuan) 100,300,000 75.00% Yangtze Optical Fibre and Cable Joint Stock Limited Co.
Japan
Precision Fiber Opticos Ltd. Chiba Japanese Yen 138,000,000 50.00% Draka Comteq Fibre B.V.
--------- 50.00% Third parties
Malaysia A T
Power Cables Malaysia Sdn Bhd Selangor Darul Eshan Malaysian Ringgit 18,000,000 40.00% Draka Holding B.V.
""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""" 60.00%  Third paties T
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List of other investments not consolidated pursuant to IFRS 10:

Legal name % ownership Direct parent company

Asia

India

Ravin Cables Limited 51.00% Prysmian Cau e Sistemi S.r.|. N\

49.00% Third parties

United Arab Emirates

Power Plus Cable CO. LLC 49.00%
51.00%

Africa

South Africa

Pirelli Cables & Systems (Proprietary) Ltd. 100.00%
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CERTIFICATION OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS PURSUANT TO ART. 81-TER OF CONSCB
REGULATION 11971 DATED 14 MAY 1999 AND SUBSEQUENT
AMENDMENTS AND ADDITIONS
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